
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Please ask for: Amelia Boulter, Democratic Support Officer  
T: 01752 304570 E: amelia.boulter@plymouth.gov.uk 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Date:    Thursday 21 June 2012 
Time:   10am 
Venue: Warspite Room, Council House 
 
Members: 
Councillor Wheeler, Chair. 
Councillor Dr. Mahony, Vice Chair. 
Councillors Murphy, Stark and Stevens. 
 
Independent Members: 
Mr Clarke, Mr Stewart, plus one vacancy. 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 
 
Members and officers are requested to sign the attendance list at the meeting. 
 
Please note that unless the chair of the meeting agrees, mobile phones should be switched off 
and speech, video and photographic equipment should not be used in meetings. 
 
 
Bob Coomber 
Interim Chief Executive 

 

 

 Bob Coomber 
Interim Chief Executive 
 
Plymouth City Council 
Civic Centre 
Plymouth  PL1 2AA 
 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 
 
Date 13 June 2012 

Public Document Pack



 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
PART I – PUBLIC MEETING 
  
1. TO NOTE THE CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR    
  
 The committee will be asked to note the chair and vice chair appointed at the Annual 

General Meeting held on 18 May 2012.  
 

  
2. APOLOGIES    
  
 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Committee Members. 
  
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
 Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 

Agenda. 
  
4. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 6) 
  
 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 16 March 2012. 
  
5. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS    
  
 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration. 
  
6. RECRUITMENT OF INDEPENDENT MEMBER    
  
 To note progress on the recruitment of additional Independent Members. 
  
7. INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12   (Pages 7 - 42) 
  
 The council’s internal auditor will submit the Annual Report 2011/12. 
  
8. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2011/12   (Pages 43 - 64) 
  
 The Director for Corporate Services will submit the Annual Governance Statement 

2011/12. 
  
9. OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT - UPDATE 

REPORT   
(Pages 65 - 72) 

  
 The Director for Corporate Services will submit a report. 



 

  
10. RISK MANAGEMENT - ANNUAL REPORT   (Pages 73 - 84) 
  
 The Director for Corporate Service will submit a report. 
  
11a. ANNUAL REPORT ON TREASURY MANAGEMENT 

ACTIVITIES FOR 2011/12 
(Pages 85 - 180) 

   
 The Director for Corporate Services will submit the Annual Report on Treasury 

Management Activities for 2011/12. 
   
11b. TREASURY MANAGEMENT REVIEW - from March 

2012 meeting 
 

   
 The Director for Corporate Services will provide a verbal update. 
   
12. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2011/12    
  
 The Director for Corporate Services will provide a verbal update. 
  
13. INTERIM REPORT AND UPDATE TO FINANCIAL 

AUDIT PLAN 2011/12   
(Pages 181 - 198) 

  
 The Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton, will submit a report. 
  
14. EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN PROGRESS REPORT   (Pages 199 - 202) 
  
 The Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton, will submit a report. 
  
15. EXTERNAL AUDIT ARRANGEMENTS    
  
 The Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton, will provide a verbal update. 
  
16. EXTERNAL AUDIT FEE LETTER    
  
 The Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton, will provide a verbal report. 
  
17. AUDIT COMMITTEE FORWARD WORKPLAN 2012/13   (Pages 203 - 206) 
  
 The Committee will note its work plan for the forthcoming year. 

 
  
18. EXEMPT BUSINESS    
  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of 
business on the grounds that it (they) involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended by the 
Freedom of Information Act 2000. 



 

  
PART II (PRIVATE MEETING) 
 
AGENDA 
 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE 
that under the law, the Panel is entitled to consider certain items in private.  Members of the 
public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed.  
 
NIL. 
  
 



Audit Committee Friday 16 March 2012 

Audit Committee 
 

Friday 16 March 2012 
 

PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Dr. Mahony, in the Chair. 
Councillor Stevens, Vice Chair. 
Councillors Evans and Stark. 
 
Co-opted Representatives:  Mr Clarke and Mr Stewart 
 
Also in attendance:   Mike Hocking (Head of Corporate Risk and Insurance), Martin Gould 
(Internal Auditor), Barry Morris (a representative of Grant Thornton External Auditors), Chris 
Trevitt (Head of Capital and Assets), David Northey (Head of Finance) and Helen Rickman 
(Democratic Support Officer). 
 
The meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 12.00 pm. 
 
Note: At a future meeting, the committee will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, so they may 
be subject to change.  Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm whether these minutes have 
been amended. 

49. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
There were no declarations of interest made by Councillors in accordance with the code of 
conduct. 
 

50. MINUTES   
 
Agreed that the minutes of 16 December 2011 are approved as a correct record. 
 

51. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS   
 
There were no items of Chair’s urgent business however the advertisement for the vacant 
independent member post was discussed under this item. The Committee was informed that an 
advert was published in various local papers in February 2012 – the Committee would await 
progress. 
 
As a result of this update some Members raised concerns regarding the robustness of the 
procedure with regards to selecting independent candidates as it was highlighted that two former 
independent members were currently standing for election for the Conservative party. There was 
some concern that the independence of some of the independent members was being 
compromised because of this.  

 
Agreed that the Constitutional working group is asked to consider the recruitment process of 
independent members as two former independent members are currently standing for the 
Conservative party.  
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



Audit Committee Friday 16 March 2012 

52. STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER MONITORING REPORT   
 
Mike Hocking, Head of Corporate Risk and Insurance, provided the Committee with an update on 
the Strategic Risk Register Monitoring Report. 
 
The Committee was informed that –  
 
(a) the information Lead Officers Group would meet for the first time in the 

week commencing 19 March 2012; 
 

(b) the risk score for Amber Risk 77 ‘Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy 
Efficiency Scheme’ had decreased due to commitments being achieved via a 
number of initiatives. 

 
In response to questions raised it was reported that –  
 
(c) officers were due to meet to discuss the impact of the National Health 

Service changes to the Council; it was highlighted that the risks were not 
being ignored despite them not being listed on the risk register; 
 

(d) Mike Hocking, Head of Corporate Risk and Insurance, would inform the 
Director for People of the Committee’s concern regarding the risks 
associated with the National Health Service changes and would ask on the 
Committee’s behalf what efforts the Council was making to have sight of the 
register; 
 

(e) with regards to Amber Risk 46 ‘Information Governance’ an Information Lead 
Officers Group had been established to provide a consistent approach to 
information governance across the Council; 
 

(f) Richard Woodfield, Corporate Information Manager, would  have information 
on statistics available on how information requests were dealt with; 
 

(g) Mike Hocking, Head of Corporate Risk and Insurance, would re-write the last 
sentence of the Information Governance table on page 15 of the agenda pack 
so that it stated that the object of the Information Governance group was to 
look after the interests of the people of Plymouth; 
 

(h) Mike Hocking, Head of Corporate Risk and Insurance, would provide the 
Committee with a position statement on the risk associated with the 
requirement for extra Primary school places in Plymouth. 

 
Agreed that –  
 
1. the report is noted; 

 
2. Mike Hocking, Head of Corporate Risk and Insurance, would inform the 

Director for People of the Committee’s concern regarding the risks 
associated with the National Health Service changes and would ask on the 
Committee’s behalf what efforts the Council was making to have sight of the 
register; 

Page 2



Audit Committee Friday 16 March 2012 

 
3. Mike Hocking, Head of Corporate Risk and Insurance, would re-write the last 

sentence of the Information Governance table on page 15 of the agenda pack 
so that it stated that the object of the Information Governance group was to 
look after the interests of the people of Plymouth; 
 

4. Mike Hocking, Head of Corporate Risk and Insurance, would provide the 
Committee with a position statement on the risk associated with the 
requirement for extra Primary school places in Plymouth. 

 
53. INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL PLAN 2012 - 2013   

 
Martin Gould, the Council’s Internal Auditor, provided the Committee with an update on the 
Internal Audit Annual Plan 2012-13. The Committee was introduced to Rob Hutchings who was 
to replace Sue Watts, Chief Auditor. 
 
The Committee was informed that –  
 
(a) the Internal Audit Annual Plan was formulated using a similar plan as last 

year; 
 

(b) the plan included the corporate risk register, previous audit work, staffing 
changes; 
 

(c) the plan was used to help inform external audit with key financial systems 
work; 
 

(d) Internal Audit Officers were analysing the implementation of the new payroll 
system as well as the health integration transition and the significant risks 
associated with it; it was recognized that this was a key risk for Torbay, 
Plymouth and Devon; 
 

(e) anti fraud and corruption was considered to be a high priority; officers were 
aiming to increase actively in this areas and systems of work in terms of 
fraud, testing those areas; 
 

(f) the previous financial management in schools had been abolished and 
replaced with the schools financial value standard; this was a less 
bureaucratic system;  

 
In response to questions raised it was reported that –  
 
(g) Internal Audit were working closely with various parties with regards to re-

commissioning as a result of the Government Health Reforms; officers were 
ensuring that risks were appropriately managed; 
 

(h) the total number of audited days, as stated in Appendix 1 of the report, had 
reduced by 60 days;  
 

(i) Academies are required to have an internal audit and Martin Gould and 
some of his colleagues were undertaking some of this work;  

Page 3



Audit Committee Friday 16 March 2012 

 
(j) Martin Gould considered that the appropriate amount of information was 

provided to the Audit Committee however Barry Morris considered that 
the number of days for issues to be audited needed to be included in the 
plan; 

 
Agreed that the report is noted. 
 

54. AUDIT PLAN 2011 - 2012   
 
Barry Morris, a representative of Grant Thornton External Auditors, provided the Committee 
with an update on the Audit Plan 2011/12. 
 
The Committee was informed that –  
 
(a) the accounting standard for heritage assets had been introduced to the Audit 

Plan 2012-2012; 
 

(b) the Council was adopting a new asset register and assets would need to be 
valued; 
 

(c) the valuation for the Life Centre needed to be accounted for; 
 

(d) the accounting treatment for the Tamar Bridge and Torpoint Ferry 
Committee needed to be amended in order to change the bridge and ferry 
back into single entity accounts; 
 

(e) the Annual Governance Statement had not received any challenges for several 
years; 
 

(f) value for money for the Council would be assessed;  
 

(g) there was a 10% reduction on the audit fees in comparison to the previous 
year;  
 

(h) the council was required to register and price its heritage assets; a pragmatic 
approach was required which would specify when the assets were last valued, 
what the valuations were and if a re-classification of assets was required. 

 
Agreed that –  
 
1. Barry Morris would provide the Committee with copies of the information 

leaflet entitled ‘Is Your Audit Committee Effective?’ 
 

2. Mike Hocking, Head of Corporate Risk and Insurance, would provide the 
Committee with an update on the Royal Parade crossing with regards to the 
current risks associated in leaving it in its current state. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



Audit Committee Friday 16 March 2012 

55. AUDIT FEE LETTER 2012 - 2013   
 
The setting of Audit Fees had been deferred due to a procurement process being held by the 
Audit Commission; Grant Thornton, the Council’s external auditor, was successful in the process 
and would communicate fees in June 2012. 
 

56. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL 
INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2012 - 2013 UPDATE   
 
The Head of Finance provided the Committee with an update on the Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 2012/13. 
 
Members were informed that advice received from Arlingclose, the Council’s independent 
treasury management advisors, suggested that the requirement of a minimum short-term rating 
should be removed whilst maintaining the long-term rating requirement for new investments at A-. 
 
In response to questions raised it was reported that –  
 
a)  
 

a policy review would be incorporated into the Committee’s work 
programme in order to assess the success of the strategy; 
 

b) 
 

the definition of short term with regards to ‘short term rating’ was 
considered to be 30 days; 
 

c)  
 

officers were happy to provide treasury management specific training for 
members. 

 
Agreed that the Audit Committee recommend to Full Council that –  
 
1. the removal of the short-term rating requirement from the criteria required 

for the inclusion of organisations on the Council’s list of proposed 
Counterparties for new investment in 2012-13; 
 

2. the organisations and Counterparty limits as set out in Appendix A. 
 

57. AUDIT COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PLAN   
 
The Committee noted the work programme for 2011/12 and agreed to include the following 
items: 
 

• Treasury Management Review – for discussion in June 2012; 
 

• Audit Fee Letter – for discussion in June 2012. 
 
Under this item Councillor Evans raised a vote of thanks to the Chair and the Committee; the 
Chair, in response, thanked the Committee and the help provided by Officers. 
 

58. CENTRALISATION OF TREES UPDATE   
 
Chris Trevitt, Head of Capital and Assets, provided the Committee with an update on the 
centralisation of trees. 

Page 5



Audit Committee Friday 16 March 2012 

 
The Committee was informed that –  
 
(a) there were lots of risks to members of the public associated with trees, 

including tripping over roots and parts of trees falling on passers by; 
 

(b) a risk assessment was undertaken on ex Housing Revenue Account funded 
land and the Council’s Street Scene Services had been contacted to monitor 
and maintain the land; 
 

(c) Street Scene Services had undertaken 75 tree rectification works resulting in 
the risk being reduced from red to amber; 
 

(d) the highway’s department were responsible for maintaining pavements, as part 
of the public highway, in Plymouth; 
 

(e) schools would need to contact Street Scene Services to do a tree risk 
assessment. 

 
Agreed that the report is noted.  
 

59. EXEMPT BUSINESS   
 
There were no items of exempt business. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



1 

CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
 

Subject:    Internal Audit  

Committee:    Audit Committee 

Date:    21 June 2012 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Lowry 

CMT Member: Director for Corporate Services  

Author: Martin Gould, Head of Devon Audit Partnership 

Contact:    Tel:  (01752 (30) 6710 
    e-mail: martin.gould@devonaudit.gov.uk  

Ref:    AUD/MG 

Key Decision:   No 

Part: I   

 
Executive Summary:  
 
This report summarises the work undertaken by Devon Audit Partnership during 2011/12, reviews 
the performance and effectiveness of the Internal Audit service, and provides an audit opinion on 
the adequacy of internal control. The report is particularly relevant, therefore, to the preparation of 
the Authority’s Annual Governance Statement which is required under the Accounts and Audit 
(England) Regulation 2011. 
         
Corporate Plan 2012-2015:   
The work of the Internal Audit team assists the Authority in maintaining high standards of public 
accountability and probity in the use of public funds.  The Section has a role in promoting high 
standards of service planning, performance monitoring and review throughout the organisation, 
together with ensuring compliance with the Council’s statutory obligations. In addition, the delivery 
of the Internal Audit plan assists all directorates in meeting their Corporate Improvement Priorities 
and achieving the shared priorities for the City and the Council. 
          
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
None. 
   
Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk 
Management and Equality, Diversion and Community Cohesion: 
 
The work of the Audit Service is an intrinsic element of the Council’s overall corporate governance, 
risk management and internal control framework. 

  
Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action: 
 
It is recommended that:- 

1) the report be noted; 
2) the Audit Committee endorse the adequacy and effectiveness of Plymouth’s internal 

audit for the year ended 31 March 2012. 
 

Agenda Item 7Page 7



2 

Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
None, as failure to maintain an adequate and effective system of internal audit would contravene 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003, 2006 and 2011. 
 

 
Background papers: 
   
Internal Audit Annual Plan 2011/12 
 

 
Sign off:   
 
Fin AB 

1206 
Leg  HR MG 

1206 
Corp 
Prop 

 IT  Strat 
Proc 

 

Originating SMT Member: Martin Gould,  Head of Devon Audit Partnership 
 

 
 
 

Page 8



3 

1 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Audit Committee, under its Terms of Reference contained in Plymouth City Council’s 
Constitution, is required to consider the Chief Internal Auditor’s annual report, to review and 
approve the Internal Audit programme, and to monitor the progress and performance of Internal 
Audit. 
 
1.2 The Internal Audit plan for 2012/13 has already been presented and approved by Audit 
Committee on 16 March 2012. The following report and appendices set out the background to 
audit service provision, reviews work undertaken in 2011/12, and provides an opinion on the 
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control environment. 

 

1.3 The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006 introduced the 
requirement that all Authorities need to carry out an annual review of the effectiveness of their 
internal audit system, and need to incorporate the results of that review into their Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS), published with the annual Statement of Accounts.  
 

2    BACKGROUND 

2.1   Service Provision 
 

2.1.1 The Internal Audit (IA) Service for Plymouth City Council is delivered by the Devon Audit 
Partnership (DAP). This is a shared service arrangement between Devon County Council, Torbay 
Council and Plymouth City Council constituted under section 20 of the Local Government Act 
2000. The Partnership undertakes an objective programme of audits to ensure that there are 
sound and adequate internal controls in place across the whole of the Council. It also ensures that 
the Council’s assets and interests are accounted for and safeguarded from error, fraud, waste, 
poor value for money or other losses. 
 
 
2.2   Regulatory Role 
 

2.2.1 There are two principal pieces of legislation that impact upon internal audit in local 
authorities:  
 

Ø Section 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) Regulations 2011 which 
states that “…….a relevant body must undertake an adequate and effective internal audit of 
its accounting records and of its system of internal control in accordance with the proper 
practices in relation to internal control ……” 

Ø “……..a larger relevant body must, at least once in each year, conduct a review of the 
effectiveness of its internal audit ……” 

 
Ø Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, which requires every local authority to 

make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs. 

 
2.2.2 There are also professional guidelines which govern the scope, standards and conduct of 
Internal Audit, including CIPFA’s Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government and the 
Institute of Internal Auditors’ Standards and Guidelines. 
 
2.2.3 In addition, Internal Audit is governed by policies, procedures, rules and regulations 
established by the Authority. These include standing orders, schemes of delegation, financial 
regulations, conditions of service, anti-fraud and corruption strategies, fraud prevention procedures 
and codes of conduct, amongst others. 

Page 9



4 

 
2.2.4 The Internal Audit Strategy sets out how the service will be provided and the Internal Audit 
Charter describes the purpose, authority and principal responsibilities of the audit function. 
 

3    OBJECTIVES AND SCOPE 
 
3.1 This report compares the work carried out with the work that was planned; presents a 
summary of the audit work undertaken; includes an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of 
the Authority’s internal control environment; and summarises the performance of the Internal Audit 
function against its performance measures and other criteria. The report outlines the level of 
assurance that we are able to provide, based on the internal audit work completed during the year. 
It gives: 
 

• a comparison of internal audit activity during the year with that planned, placed in the 
context of internal audit need; 

 
• a summary of significant fraud and irregularity investigations carried out during the year 

and anti-fraud arrangements; and 
 

• a statement on the effectiveness of the system of internal control in meeting the 
Council’s objectives. 

 
3.2. The Chief Internal Auditor is required to provide the Council with an assurance on the 
adequacy and effectiveness of its accounting records and its system of internal control in the 
Council. In giving our opinion, it should be noted that this assurance can never be absolute. The 
most that the internal audit service can do is to provide reasonable assurance, based on risk-
based reviews and sample testing, that there are no major weaknesses in the system of control. In 
assessing the level of assurance to be given the following have been taken into account: 

 
• all audits completed during 2011/12, including those audits carried forward from 

2010/11; 
 

• any follow up action taken in respect of audits from previous periods; 
 

• any significant recommendations not accepted by management and the consequent 
risks; 

 
• the quality of internal audit’s performance; 

 
• the proportion of the Council’s audit need that has been covered to date; 

 
• the extent to which resource constraints may limit this ability to meet the full audit needs 

of the Council; 
 

• any limitations that may have been placed on the scope of internal audit. 
 

4 INTERNAL AUDIT COVERAGE 2011/12   
 
4.1 Delivery Against Plan 
 
4.1.1 The pie chart below shows the proportion of direct days provided in the year ended 31 March 
2012, by type of audit.  

Page 10



5 

      

Systems/Procurement/Cross Cutting 42%

ICT 10%

Anti-Fraud / NFI 17%

Consultancy / Advice 4%

Corporate Governance 4%

Other Chargeable 11%

Schools 12%

 
 

4.1.2 .Appendix 1 shows the actual days of audit delivery in 2011/12 against the audit plan. It will 
be noticed that there was a small shortfall in the total number of audit days provided during the 
year; we provided 1790 days against a plan of 1974 days. When we prepare our plans we make an 
educated assessment of the number of days that an audit is likely to take. When the fieldwork is 
actually completed there is inevitably a variance from the planned days. In addition we provide an 
allowance for work on areas such as fraud and corruption; in some years the requirement will 
exceed the planned budget and in others the need for our resource will be less than planned. It 
should also be noted that some audits required a richer mix of staff resource due to the complexity 
/ sensitivity of the area under review. In such instances we expect that a more senior officer will be 
able to complete the review in less time than a junior and also the need for managerial review of 
working papers will be less. 
 

4.1.3 Appendix 2 to this report provides a summary of the audits undertaken during 2011/12, 
along with our assurance opinion. Where a “high” or “good” standard of audit opinion has been 
provided we can confirm that, overall, sound controls are in place to mitigate exposure to risks 
identified; where an opinion of “improvement required” has been provided then issues were 
identified during the audit process that required attention. We have provided a summary of some of 
the key issues reported that are being addressed by management. It should be pointed out that we 
are content that management are appropriately addressing these issues. 
 

 

4.2 Systems / Procurement / Cross Cutting 
 
4.2.1 Systems audits account for a large element of the audit plan for the year and these are 
summarised in Appendix 2, together with the individual audit opinions. 
 
4.2.2 DAP has continued to attend and support a number of Project Boards and Project Teams 
set up to oversee significant and high profile procurement, construction, or system / service 
implementations projects. 
 
4.2.3 Project work has included continued involvement with the South West Devon Waste 
Partnership Waste PFI project in particular advising on governance and risk issues. 
 
4.2.4 DAP were also invited to provide advice and support to the team tasked with the 
purchasing of 15 refuse collection vehicles.  DAP were present at meetings held to develop the 

Page 11



6 

procurement approach and specification and provided comments on draft documents before they 
were issued to prospective bidders.  
 
4.2.5 Projects involving the implementation of new systems or services include the procurement 
and implementation of new HR / Payroll systems.  DAP assist in identifying any key project risks 
and issues, and monitors the way these have been managed and controlled as well as ensuring 
that good project governance is established and maintained. 
 
4.2.6  A review of the governance and monitoring arrangements introduced as part of the transfer 
of the City’s housing stock to Plymouth Community Homes in November 2009 found arrangements 
to monitor transfer promises and commitments to be of a good standard with a robust effective 
governance structure in place.  With the abolition of the Tenant Services Authority (TSA), 
independent regulation has passed to the Homes Communities Agency (HCA) but to a lesser 
degree and with more reliance on tenant and stakeholder involvement.  Consideration of the new 
regulatory framework, changes in the level of inspection and their impact on current governance 
arrangements has been subject to a further piece of work by DAP. 
 
4.2.7 In addition, DAP have been able to certify that the Council has fulfilled its obligations with 
regard the submission of data and compilation of supporting evidence for the CRC Energy 
Efficiency Scheme in respect of 2010/11. Further work is planned for the 2011/12 returns which 
have to be submitted in July. 
 
 
4.3    ICT (Computer Audit) 
 
4.3.1 With the agreement of the former Assistant Director for ICT, the 2011/12 ICT Audit Plan 
was aligned with the Information Technology Infrastructure Library (ITIL) service model in order to 
provide a more structured approach to the review of the Council’s  ICT service as a whole. The 
review of specific ITIL areas will inevitably result in lower ‘audit opinions’ than would otherwise 
have been given as part of a more traditional control based review. However, in the interest of 
achieving the goal of an ITIL based service delivery model, it has been agreed that the IT auditors 
act as a “critical friend “and measure against the standards to which ICT are striving to attain. 

 
4.3.2 A review of the organisational controls and workforce planning arrangements in place within 
the ICT department concluded that ICT is operating within the Council’s framework of approved 
corporate policies, strategies and plans and that it has sound procedures in place to manage its 
workforce planning, development and training needs.  

 
4.3.3 The good progress made by ICT in embedding of the ITIL methodology throughout the 
service serves to regulate the delivery of individual projects. However our review of overall ICT 
Programme Delivery found that the sheer number of projects that ICT are required to deliver 
remains a serious concern. The volume of work streams and projects currently identified by ICT 
now exceeds 200 and our review confirms that PCC’s ICT service is being run in an extremely 
‘lean’ manner.  
 
This resourcing issue was reinforced by a review of the ICT Service Level Management 
arrangements, where it was found that improvements are also required. The current workload of 
the ICT department is extremely challenging and the risk of taking on more than can realistically be 
delivered and failing to fulfil customer expectations is ever present. Customer expectations have 
changed in recent years and there is a recognised need for improved service level management 
and customer communication procedures, to ensure that these expectations are managed 
effectively. Effective service level management is a prerequisite of effective service delivery and it 
will become increasingly important as partnership working and shared services arrangements 
become more common. 
 
4.3.4 Our audit of ICT Availability and Capacity also identified that improvements to the service 
strategy and design phases will enable ICT to improve availability and capacity management and 

Page 12



7 

achieve better value for money. Crucially, the individual business area will receive the level of 
service that they have requested at a cost that is affordable and potentially remove the need for 
ICT management to make decisions based on cost alone. 

 
4.3.5 Other ICT audit work included a review of the ICT aspects of partnership working 
arrangements. This found a lack of clear corporate procedures to govern the arrangements and 
implementation of operational partnerships. Individual business areas inevitably focus on service 
delivery without always understanding, or recognising the existence of, the technical ICT elements 
of any proposed solutions. Controls need to be put in place to ensure that any proposals receive 
appropriate technical scrutiny at an early stage and that the necessary technical support is 
provided through to the ‘live’ environment. 
 
4.3.6 ICT advice and consultancy work during 2011/12 included the development of a simple ‘tool 
kit’ that would be of positive benefit to the Council’s ICT project management process, by ensuring 
that business managers understood the corporate implications of implementing any externally 
hosted business application (Cloud Computing Facilities). The tool kit was designed to allow 
potential users of externally hosted computer systems and services, to demonstrate that they have 
considered the risks involved and that they have complied with the Council’s approved policies and 
procedures for acquiring such systems. 

 
4.3.7 Throughout the year, the IT audit team have also maintained watching briefs and provided 
a wide range of advice and support in a number of key areas of the Council’s current and emerging 
activities. For example, we have: 

 
• Actively reviewed progress on the implementation of information management 

arrangements within the organisation and maintained a presence on the newly formed 
Information Lead officers Group; 

 
• Advised on the process of selecting contractors for the fitting out of the data processing 

centre at Windsor House; 
 
• Followed progress and provided advice regarding compliance with Government Connect 

and the Payment Card Industry security standards; 
 
• Advised and mediated with regard to the Advanced Payment Card system pending full 

implementation as part of the new personal budget process. 
 
• Monitored activity relating to business continuity developments and attended Steering 

Group meetings called in response to specific incidents. 
 

 
4.4 Special Investigations and Anti-Fraud Work 

 
4.4.1 Throughout the year, Internal Audit have been informed of instances of possible fraud or 
irregularities which have either led to advice being given to management on courses of action and 
improvements to controls, or auditors conducting formal investigations into the allegations. 
 
4.4.2 In 2011/12, Internal Audit received 20 matters requiring investigation which came from 
officers and members of the public. Investigations into 15 of those concerns have now been 
completed and investigations are on-going in respect of the remaining cases. Results of these 
investigations included one member of staff being dismissed and seven other employees receiving 
disciplinary sanctions.  
 
4.4.3 The Whistleblowing Policy aims to encourage staff to raise any legitimate concerns they 
may have in relation to the Council’s activities. This policy, which supports the Council’s Anti Fraud 
and Corruption Policy, makes it clear that concerns can be raised without fear of reprisals.  

Page 13



8 

 
4.4.4 A total of two Whistleblowers came forward during the year, and both investigations which 
are included in the 20 cases referred at 4.4.2 above, have been concluded. The investigations 
related to:- 
 

• Allegations concerning the decision making of a member of staff which was contrary to the 
Council’s working practices and procedures for which no further action was deemed 
necessary, and 

• Allegations regarding a failure to comply with financial regulations concerning the 
safeguarding of an asset, inappropriate payments and poor financial procedures which 
resulted in a verbal warning. 

 
4.4.5 Throughout 2011/12, a significant amount of audit resource has been provided to a 
complex on-going investigation into alleged major financial irregularities within a Plymouth school.  
The case was passed to the police and auditors have continued to assist them during their 
subsequent investigations. The case has received a large amount of media coverage and is 
currently going through the court process. Remedial action has been taken by the school to 
address matters from our report for school improvement. 
 
4.4.6 Data matching investigation work associated with the 2010/11 National Fraud Initiative 
(NFI) exercise has continued throughout 2011/12.  The exercise, which is run every two years by 
the Audit Commission, requires all councils to provide data for cross-matching with information 
supplied by other organisations, such as the Department for Works and Pensions and the NHS, to 
identify potential cases of fraud and error.  
 
4.4.7 In February 2011, the Council received a total of 15,060 data matches as a result of the 
exercise of which, the Audit Commission categorised 2,892 as the highest priority. In December 
2011 the Council submitted it’s most recent electoral registration and single person’s discount data 
as part of a separate exercise and a further 2,382 matches were received back in February 2012. 
Since that time, Devon Audit Partnership has engaged with the departments affected and agreed 
action plans to deal with the matches received.  This has resulted in the cancellation of 380 blue 
badges and concessionary travel passes (where the holders appear to be deceased) and will 
prevent these badges / passes from being re-issued. In addition, £54,881 in ‘savings’ has been 
identified to date in respect of housing benefit overpayments. 
 

4.5 Consultancy / Advice 
 
4.5.1 Internal Audit was consulted by all sections of the Authority on many and varied topics 
including, for example, document retention, tenders, financial procedures and good practice etc. 
 
4.5.2 The pro-active involvement of Internal Audit in control issues relating to new systems and 
changes assists in protecting the Authority from loss, fraud and abuse. This early involvement is 
also intended to prevent unnecessary criticism when a formal audit review is undertaken and 
Departments are actively encouraged to seek advice at the outset of any changes. 
 
 
4.6 Schools 
 
4.6.1 The audit plan to schools has been completed in full. Of the 34 school audits included in the 
2011-12 plan, 30 were carried out across the year, three schools were deferred to the new year at 
the schools request and one further school has not bought audit services. All prior year deferrals 
have been completed. Schools have again been very appreciative of the quality of our service 
provided. The requirements to meet the challenges of the former FMSiS were significant for 
schools in their first attempt; the majority of schools met the standard prior to its abolition in 
November 2010. The accreditation still holds value and its status prioritised our work for 
achievement of its replacement, the “Schools Financial Value Standard (SFVS). We completed our 
audits to the new standard from inception in September 2011. 

Page 14



9 

 
4.6.2 Revised and improved audit processes have been implemented to benefit the audit service 
provided to schools including the incorporation of the SFVS into the audit programme. New school 
audit processes have been implemented and we have been able to complete the audits generally 
within time allocations. The Partnership has again allowed much cross working and sharing of best 
practice across the Schools Team where the process is now more efficient. 
 
4.6.3 Schools’ audit reviews and programmes of testing are designed to provide assurance that 
there are effective internal controls in place and compliance with the Authority’s funding scheme for 
schools, Financial Regulations and the School’s Finance Policy. In addition, Internal Audit is 
responsible for completing the informal, assessment (i.e. it is not an accredited review) of schools 
arrangements against the DfE’s Financial Management Standards. 
 
4.6.4 Our opinion - based on the work to date is that the systems and controls in schools are of a 
“Good to High Standard” and generally mitigate the risks identified.  The most common areas 
arising from the audits are the: 
 

• effective demonstration of leadership and governance 

• demonstrable financing of school improvement plans and; 

• poor management of imprest / petty and inventories 

 
4.6.5 Recommendations have been made to reduce risks and in other areas, recommendations 
made serve to strengthen what are reasonably reliable procedures. 
 
4.6.6 Schools Financial Value Standard (SFVS) – Five schools were targeted as not having ever 
completed the former financial management standard FMSiS, and were specifically requested to 
make their returns by the 31 March 2012. All of these schools are, from a light touch review, 
considered to have met the key expectations of SFVS.  Of the 13 schools we have reviewed in 
total, all meet most of the key expectations of the standard. The key issues arising are the lack of 
skills assessment of governors, business continuity plans and poor financing of school 
development plans. 
 
4.6.7 All schools will need to make a return this year on their ability to comply with the SFVS and 
will continue to have to make annual returns from here on. Model answers are available on the 
DAP website (devonaudit.gov.uk) to help schools and training is planned for the autumn term. 
 
4.6.8 We were part of the DfE pilot study on the SFVS which in general received positive 
comment from the pilot schools. Comments have been restricted to procedural aspects of its 
completion and the need for training and support. We fed back similar comments and the need for 
LA’s to positively engage with the schools following review of their SFVS self-assessments. 
 
4.6.9 Academies - 11 secondary and 2 primary schools have now become academies. DAP are 
in the process of marketing and bidding for internal audit services to academy schools across 
Devon. We have been successful in winning work for 30 schools in 15 academies across the wider 
Devon and are hopeful of more. Work is being re-scheduled in light of the changing market. It is 
considered that retention (where possible) of the internal audit for these schools will be beneficial 
to the school audit service as a whole. 
 

5. INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE  
 
5.1.1 There are no national Performance Indicators in existence for Internal Audit, but the 
Partnership does monitor the following Local Performance Indicators LPI’s: 
 

Page 15



10 

Local Performance Indicator (LPI) 2011/12 2011/12 

 Target Actual 
Percentage of Audit plan Completed (Inc Schools) 90% 90.24% 
Actual Audit Days as percentage of planned (Inc Schools) 90% 91% 
Percentage of fundamental / material systems reviewed annually 100% 93% 
Percentage of chargeable time 65% 69% 
Customer Satisfaction  - % satisfied or very satisfied as per feedback 
forms 

90% 98% 

Draft Reports produced within target number of days (currently 15 days) 90% 80% 
Final reports produced within target number of days (currently 10 days) 90% 93% 
Average level of sickness absence (DAP as a whole) 2% 5.2% 
Percentage of staff turnover (DAP as a whole) 5% 8.5% (3 

people) 
Out-turn within budget Yes Yes 

 
5.1.2 Overall, performance against the indicators has been maintained, even against the 
backdrop of high, but unavoidable, instances of staff absence. The 7% shortfall on material 
systems relates to one review which is nearing completion and will ensure that the Authority has 
received 100% coverage in this area of the plan. It is particularly pleasing to see that customer 
satisfaction remains very high, which is much to the credit of the audit staff involved.  
 
5.1.3 In addition, we have undergone a restructure exercise with the aim of reducing our costs by 
10% in 2012/13 and a further 10% in 2013/14. As a result we have reduced our management team 
by three and restructured our operations to ensure that we can continue to deliver the high 
standard of work expected by our customers.   
 
 
6. INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION 
 

6.1.1   In carrying out systems and other reviews, Internal Audit assesses whether key, and other, 
controls are operating satisfactorily within the area under review, and an opinion on the adequacy 
of controls is provided to management as part of the audit report.   
 
6.1.2  All final audit reports also include an action plan which identifies responsible officers, and 
target dates, to address control issues identified during a review. Implementation of action plans 
are reviewed during subsequent audits or as part of a specific follow-up process. 
 
6.1.3    Directors have been provided with details of Internal Audit’s opinion on each audit review 
carried out in 2011/12 to assist them with compilation of their individual annual governance 
assurance statements.  If significant weaknesses have been identified in specific areas, these have 
been considered by the Authority in preparing its Annual Governance Statement which will be 
accompanying its published Statement of Accounts for 2011/12.   
 

6.1.4   Overall, and based on work performed during 2011/12, Internal Audit is able to provide 
reasonable assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control 
environment.  

 
 

Appendix 1 
 
 
 

Page 16



11 

Progress Against Plan - 2011/12 
 
 Planned 

Days 
% Actual 

Days 
% 

Systems / Procurement / Cross Cutting 948 48 756 42 
     
ICT 176 9 174 10 
     
Anti-fraud / NFI 250 12 309 17 
     
Consultancy / Advice 90 5 77 4 
     
Corporate Governance 90 5 68 4 
     
Contingency 100 5 - - 
     
Other Chargeable Activities 110 

 
6 188 11 

External Clients – Schools 
 

210 10 218 12 

Total Audit Days 1974 100 1790 100 
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



12 

Appendix 2 
             Summary of Audit work completed and Audit Opinions 
 
 

Corporate Services (excluding ICT) 

Audit Area Year Status Assurance 
Opinion 

Executive Summary 

Material Systems 

Loans & Investments 2010/11 Final Good Standard 
 

The review found a robust policy framework within which the Treasury 
Management activity takes place. The Audit Committee provides 
independent scrutiny of the Treasury Management Policy and 
Procedures and a TM board comprising senior officers and members 
meets regularly and receives regular updates of trading activity. 
Forecasting is accurate, enabling cash flow to be managed effectively. 
 

Main Accounting 
System 

2010/11 Final Good Standard The consistent application of internal controls ensures that the main 
accounting system has sound governance arrangements and continues 
to operate effectively. Information contained in the Joint Finance and 
Performance reports continues to develop and the process of challenging 
significant budget variations has become embedded within the culture of 
the organisation. 
 

The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board have again provided 
robust challenge and review of the proposed budget for 2010/11. 
 

Council Tax 
 

2010/11 Final Good Standard 
 

2010/11 was a challenging year set against continuing economic 
problems and payment issues experienced by customers of Santander, 
contributory factors which did result in Council Tax collection rates being 
below target set. However, although the target was not achieved, the 
consistent application of internal controls and sound debt recovery 
practices did result in a 0.9% increase on collection rates when 
compared to 2009/10.  Performance was regularly monitored and a 
number of initiatives developed to further improve collection rates.  
 

 

P
age 18



13 

 
 

Payroll 2010/11 Final High Standard Working processes are highly evolved and the system operates to a high 
standard of internal control. 
 
The maintenance of the SAP application and database remains costly 
and governance arrangements for administering the computer application 
remain complex but it is recognized that SAP will be replaced in early 
2012/13. 
 

Material Systems IT 
Issues  
 

2010/11 Final Good Standard The evidence obtained during the course of this review confirms that the 
majority of the processes and procedures, now in place within the ICT 
department, are of a Good Standard. However, in order to comply with 
the requirements of the external auditors, this audit exercise has had to 
consider the procedures that were in place throughout the whole of the 
financial year under review (i.e. 2010/11) when new working practices 
were still evolving and being consolidated throughout the department. 

It is anticipated that once all of the planned improvements have been fully 
implemented and the issues included in this report addressed, the ICT 
department procedures will then be of a High Standard. 

Housing Benefits 2010/11 Final Improvements 
Required 

The economic climate continues to provide a challenging environment 
with the average caseload increasing by approximately 5% between 
2009/10 and 2010/11 and consequently performance for 2010/11 was 
below the target set. 
 

Overall, the internal control arrangements operating within the benefits 
system were found to be of a good standard but the lack of in claim 
management does pose a risk to the integrity and quality of benefit claim 
data.  
 
Fraud work would also benefit from a more intelligence led, proactive 
approach to ensure resources are targeted at areas of highest risk. 
 

P
age 19



14 

Asset Register 2010/11 Final Good Standard The 2009/10 baseline data uploaded onto the Technology Forge (TF) 
database was the subject of detailed checks carried out by the Corporate 
Accountancy Team with any discrepancies being identified and 
corrected. 
 
As each category of assets was updated for 2010/11, the values on TF 
were reconciled to the general ledger with any discrepancies being 
investigated and resolved. Finance planned to complete this exercise 
early September with discrepancies resolved by early November. 
 
Access to the Valuation and Finance modules of TF was found to be 
adequately controlled with access permissions granted in respect of each 
individual module. However, security could be further strengthened if the 
configuration is updated so that the system automatically forces periodic 
password changes and the minimum length for passwords is set.  
 

ICT Helpdesk 2010/11 Final Improvements 
Required 

Internal control has improved with the introduction of self-service and the 
system provides a complete audit trail for each request raised. Although 
this has improved the overall management of user access and will enable 
it to evolve, the experience for the customer has deteriorated as the time 
taken to complete the requests are slower than that previously 
experienced.  
 

Main Accounting 
System 

2011/12 Draft Good Standard The consistent application of internal controls ensures that the main 
accounting system continues to operate to a good standard.  
The Joint Finance and Performance reports are now well established 
and report key financial information to Cabinet on a quarterly basis.  
  
The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board have continued to 
provide a robust challenge and review of the budget. Reconciliations 
continue to operate to a good standard.  

Revenues & Benefits 
System Parameters 

2011/12 Final Good Standard The procedures operating in respect of the Academy system are 
longstanding and applied consistently. Statutory rates and policy are 
applied to the system in a timely manner and the application is subject 
to secondary officer checks.  
 

P
age 20



15 

Creditors 2011/12 Draft Good Standard The review found that internal controls continue to operate to a ‘Good 
Standard’ and work is ongoing to streamline processes and further 
strengthen the system of control.  This includes the planned 
implementation of automatic payment authorisation.   
 

Debtors 2011/12 In-
progress 

N/A Field work is nearly complete. 

Payroll  
(Combined business 
& ICT) 

2011/12 Final High Standard Existing internal working procedures, including internal control systems, 
remain highly evolved. Further assurance is provided by the extensive 
library of operational procedures, which are of the highest quality and 
demonstrate knowledge, attention to detail and a desire to achieve and 
retain high standards.  
 
Existing internal working procedures provide a good benchmark from 
which to develop effective and efficient procedures for the new Midland 
iTrent system to be implemented.  
 
Maintenance contracts for key SAP system hardware components have 
been extended to cover the decommissioning period and no serious 
outages have occurred during the current financial year. Furthermore, it 
is envisaged that more automated monitoring of systems will be 
conducted by ICT in the near future to provide more timely warnings of 
pending issues or component failures.  
 

Council Tax 2011/12 Draft Improvements 
Required 

Continuing economic problems have made 2011/12 another 
challenging year for council tax collection.  However, although 
collection rates are likely to fall short of the performance target set 
recovery have increased the collection rate for the third consecutive 
year. 
 
Progress has been made since the 2010/11 audit in respect of the 
monitoring of student exemptions. However, the development of an on-
going review process in respect of single person's discount (SPD) 
which reduces gross liability by 25%, remains outstanding.  
 

P
age 21



16 

NNDR 2011/12 Draft Good Standard An increase in empty properties and businesses entering administration 
are contributory factors in collection rates being below target despite 
consistent application of internal controls and sound debt recovery 
practices but overall, the NNDR system continues to operate to a good 
standard.  
 

Housing Benefits 2011/12 Draft Improvements 
Required 

Due to the economic climate, the benefits caseload has continued to 
increase in 2011/12., averaging 30,000 cases. During the same period 
the service underwent a significant restructure but despite these factors, 
combined time to process new claims and change events have improved. 
However, performance was stronger in respect of actioning change 
events over new claims and it is important that the service strives to 
achieve a greater balance between the two.  
 

Loans & Investments 2011/12 Draft Good Standard An overall opinion of ‘Good Standard’ has been given based on the 
continued evidence of clear governance and operational processes.  . 
 
The use of Call Accounts has been central to the current Treasury 
Management activity as these have been able to offer the best rates of 
return within the advice provided by the external consultants, Arlingclose 
whose contract was renewed in January 2012.  Cash flow forecasting 
and the management of the Council's main bank account is considered to 
be operating well.  
 

Asset Register 2011/12 Draft Good Standard Monitoring of the Capital Programme was carried out throughout the year 
by senior officers and Cabinet. The five-year rolling programme for the 
revaluation of assets continues to be maintained. 
 

Depreciation charges for fixed assets follow the straight line method and 
were being accurately applied in the samples tested.  
 

P
age 22



17 

Cash Collection 2011/12 Draft Good Standard It is recognised that changes brought about by the recent restructure has 
placed additional pressure on staff but internal controls continue to 
operate to a good standard which is a credit to all involved.  Senior 
Officers continue to work ro streamline processes and identify 
efficiencies. 
 

ICT Helpdesk Access 
Controls 

2011/12 Draft Improvements 
Required 

The ICT Service Desk team now administer access to the most of the 
Council's key financial systems and there is a complete audit trail for 
each request raised. The 2010/11 review identified that requests under 
the new system took longer to action but these now form part of a 
'Service Level Agreement' and timescales have improved.    
 
User training and induction on 'key financial' systems is an area that 
needs to be strengthened and could be improve if there was better 
communications between the Service Desk and individuals within 
Departments responsible for organising training sessions.  
 
Adequate procedures are in place for all the systems reviewed to 
ensure that staff who leave or change positions within the organisation 
are identified, allowing their access to be reviewed 
 

Material Systems IT 
Issues (11/12) 
 

2011/12 Draft Good Standard The evidence obtained during the course of this review confirms that 
the majority of the processes and procedures, now in place within the 
ICT department, are of a Good Standard.  
 
It is anticipated that once all of the planned improvements have been 
fully implemented and the issues included in the report have been 
addressed, the ICT department procedures will then be of a High 
Standard.  
 

 
 

P
age 23



18 

Corporate Services - ICT 

New Data Centre 
 

2010/11 Final N/A This report was not issued as a standard report with an assurance opinion but 
was advice and consultancy issued directly to the Assistant Director for ICT. 
 

Partnership Working  
(ICT Systems) 
 

2010/11 Final Improvements 
Required 

The lack of clear corporate procedures to govern the arrangement and 
implementation of operational partnerships could expose the Council’s data 
assets to unnecessary risks.  
 
Individual business areas which identify partnership arrangements inevitably 
focus on service delivery without always understanding the technical aspects of 
any proposed ICT solutions. Appropriate controls need to be put into place to 
ensure that any proposals receive appropriate technical scrutiny at an early 
stage and that the necessary technical support is provided through to the “live” 
environment. 
 

BACS Transmission 
 

2011/12 Final N/A The PCC BACS system has been subject to external inspection which negated 
the need for DAP to perform work in this area as it would have been a 
duplication of effort. 
 
However, following the failure to pay teachers in July a review of what caused 
the incident to occur, the controls incorporated into the system for making BACS 
salary payments and an assessment of their effectiveness was carried out.  
 
The review found that there are multiple layers of sound controls built into the 
BACS salary payments system and, provided they are applied, they will ensure 
that payments are made on time. The failure was the result of human error and 
three minor recommendations were made to further strengthen the existing 
procedures. DAP consider that the response to the situation was well organised 
and all of the departments involved co-operated well with each other to ensure 
that everything ran smoothly and professionally.   

Event Management 
 

2011/12 Final Good Standard The review found that the way in which the ICT Service Desk provides a central 
point of contact and the use of standardised procedures and workflows within 
Supportworks is very effective. Where it is possible for the ICT Service to 
improve further, recommendations have been made which supports the 
department’s desire to continually improve service delivery and enhance its 
reputation with its customers. 

P
age 24



19 

Organisational 
Controls 
 

2011/12 Final Good Standard The ICT function is operating within a framework of approved corporate 
strategies, plans and policies and is well placed to support all other Council 
services in achieving their business aims and objectives. The review found that 
the ICT department is complying with the Council’s corporate requirements and 
has sound departmental procedures in place to manage its workforce planning, 
development and training requirements. 
 
The current workload of the ICT department is extremely challenging and the 
risk of failing to fulfil customer expectations is ever present. ICT team managers 
already acknowledge that there is a need to re-examine the department’s 
demand management procedures with a view to ensuring that its ‘Business as 
Usual’ functions are adequately resourced whilst, at the same time, its project 
workload does not exceed its ability to deliver in accordance with customer 
expectations and agreed time scales. 
 

Housing Benefits (IT) 
 

2011/12 Final Good Standard The operation of the existing Academy modules were found to be working to a 
good standard. System architecture was deemed sufficient in terms of capacity, 
processing power and resilience, with no incidents noted of system instability or 
lock ups caused by insufficient hardware. 
 
Security was found to be of a good standard overall. Physical access to 
hardware is satisfactory and logical access to the back end database is 
restricted to a small number of ICT staff. Users access the database via a virtual 
host, which is physically separate from the servers holding the core database, 
providing a good degree of protection. Data backup arrangements are working 
well. 
 
The introduction of the Self Service modules is still in the early stages and it 
was therefore not been possible to carry out the level of testing on 
implementation that had originally been planned. Delays have been caused due 
to the need to upgrade the core applications, operating system and database. 
Some recommendations have been made that will assist in ensuring best 
practice is used during the implementation of the modules. 
 

Business Continuity  
 

2011/12 Ongoing N/A DAP continue to attend the Authority’s Business Continuity Strategy Group to 
provide advice and support. 
 

P
age 25



20 

Hosted Services 
 

2011/12 Final  This was a piece of advice and consultancy work and did not involve the review 
of any existing systems or procedures upon which to give a standard audit 
opinion. Although the Council does have sound corporate procedures in place 
for the development of ICT business systems, there have been occasions when 
individual service departments have failed to comply with them.  
 
The purpose of this exercise was to produce a simple ‘tool kit’ that would be of 
positive benefit to the Council’s ICT project management process, by ensuring 
that business managers understood the corporate implications of implementing 
any externally hosted business application (Cloud Computing Facilities). The 
tool kit was designed to allow potential users of externally hosted computer 
systems and services, to demonstrate that they have considered the risks 
involved and that they have complied with the Council’s approved policies and 
procedures for acquiring such systems. 
 

Information Security  
 

2011/12 On-Going N/A DAP continue to attend and support the Management Information Security 
Forum (MISF) which also reports to the newly established Information Lead 
Officers Group (ILOG) in which Internal Audit has a role.  DAP have also 
provided support and advice to officers on individual cases. 
 

Capacity and 
Availability 
 

2011/12 Draft Improvements 
Required 

There are considerable benefits associated with getting things right at the 
earliest stage providing tangible improvements to new services passing through 
transition into live service operation. The audit identified that improvements to 
the service strategy and design phases will enable ICT to improve availability 
and capacity management and achieve better value for money. Crucially, the 
individual business area will receive the level of service that they have 
requested at a cost that is affordable and potentially remove the need for ICT 
management to make decisions based on cost alone.  
 
The use of automated alerts for review as part of the Service Desks morning 
operations routine is not only more efficient, but also more effective and greatly 
reduces the risk of human error or oversight. At present no bandwidth 
management tools are used to mitigate against the risk of poor network 
performance. This is likely to become an increasingly important issue as more 
business processes consume greater and greater network resources. This area 
will also be impacted by any future 'Shared Services' arrangements that the 
Authority enters into.  

P
age 26



21 

Service Level 
Management 
 

2011/12 Draft Improvements 
Required 

The current workload of the ICT department is extremely challenging and the 
risk of taking on more than can realistically be delivered and failing to fulfil 
customer expectations, is ever present. Customer expectations have changed 
in recent years and there is a recognised need for improved service level 
management and customer communication procedures, to ensure that these 
expectations are managed effectively and that the department’s workload does 
not exceed its ability to deliver in accordance with customer expectations and 
agreed time scales. 
 
It is imperative that adequate resources are made available to create and 
maintain a comprehensive ICT Service Catalogue by developing the Service 
Design Packages, Service Level Agreements and Supplier Management 
arrangements necessary to support it. 
 
The ICT department has made significant progress in aligning its structure and 
working practices to the business requirements of the Council but additional 
resources are now required in order to develop robust Service Level 
Management arrangements to a level that will meet the needs of the 
organisation in the coming years. 
 

Access Management 
 

2011/12 Draft N/A A briefing note has been issued identifying the key issues that will impact on 
PCCs access management in the near future.  As the Council becomes 
increasingly joined up with its partners within the city and provides the local 
community with electronic means of accessing services and obtaining 
information, so the historic corporate network boundaries become less distinct 
and more difficult to administer. 
 
The new AX platform being implemented as part of the new Transformational 
Change HR/Payroll system project provides the opportunity to capture all logical 
and physical access requirements as part of a “role based” approach. However, 
there is a danger that this opportunity will be lost if the resources required to 
achieve this are not provided. Without role based access, it is likely that there 
will be an increasing access management overhead as the range of access 
provided changes. Furthermore, there is likely to be an increased risk to the 
computerised information assets that have been previously well protected within 
the boundaries of the corporate network. 
 

P
age 27



22 

Programme 
Management 
 

2011/12 Final Improvements 
Required 

The shear number of projects ICT are required to deliver remains a concern.  
 
The good progress made by ICT in respect of the embedding of the Information 
Technology Information Library (ITIL) methodology throughout the service 
serves to regulate the change process required to deliver these projects.  
 
The introduction and use of the Microsoft Project Server project management 
software also provides a useful tool to manage and record individual projects, 
including resource management. Whilst its use is still being embedded into 
operational procedures it does represent a significant improvement. 
 

CareFirst 
 

2011/12 On-Going N/A The CareFirst Programme Team continues to provide the necessary day-to-day 
coordination and governance as the application continues to develop. Business 
process re-engineering is adding value to the services where this has already 
been undertaken and it is expected that this will be achieved as processes are 
improved in new areas.  
 
Reporting arrangements have been transformed and the continued 
development in this area is seen as genuine good practice, adding to both 
managerial and operational performance, as well as assisting in improving data 
quality. A further transformation has occurred in how CareFirst is now viewed in 
a positive way by most practitioners, particularly where processes have been re-
engineered or use of new technology has been introduced. The introduction of 
new technologies to interact with CareFirst, such as CM2000, is viewed by 
internal audit as both an opportunity and, if not implemented properly, a 
potential threat.  
 

Delivery Plans - ICT 2011/12 Final Good Standard The process followed by ICT to administer its delivery plans was found to be 
robust, with sound practices being supplemented by improving governance and 
procedural structures within ICT (based on ITIL practices and project 
management principles). The ICT monitoring data includes any additional 
financial pressures which have been identified in order to (where possible) 
provide a net position.   
 

P
age 28



23 

Corporate Services - Other   
Carbon  
Management 

2010/11 Final 
 

N/A DAP have been able to certify that the Council has fulfilled its obligations with 
regard the submission of data and compilation of supporting evidence for the 
CRC Energy Efficiency Scheme. An earlier audit review was able to provide 
management with the assurance that systems and processes were in place to 
enable officers to compile the necessary information accurately, in time for the 
submission deadline in July. 
 

Telephony 2010/11 Final Good Standard DAP has continued its watching brief of the Council’s implementation of a call 
centre management system and other associated telephony and 
communications projects.  Observations on the process and key issues have 
been reported in a briefing note to management, issues that include technical 
complexity and integration, systems administration, training and staff 
development, quality assurance and call monitoring, compliance with Data 
Protection Act and Payment Card Industry requirements, data security, risk 
management and business continuity. 
 

CRB and  
Independent  
Safeguarding 

2010/11 Final Good Standard Policy and guidance documents were found to be up to date and accessible but 
regular monitoring and updating needs to be continued in a structured way 
taking into account the timetables for change driven by Central Government 
reforms. 
 
The use of SAP has ensured that CRB data can be properly managed and is 
utilised effectively. The QA process helps to ensure that the data in the SAP 
system is accurate.  
 
PCC appeared to be compliant in the majority of areas with the CRB Code of 
Practice.  
 

P
age 29



24 

Payroll Procurement  
& Transfer 
from SAP 

2011/12 In 
Progress 

N/A As this is a high risk project, DAP have been asked by management to provide 
support and advice. This started with assistance during the accelerated 
procurement of consultancy and implementation services for the project and 
DAP was able to give assurance that the process was conducted in line with 
policy and procedures. 
   
DAP will continue its involvement during the implementation phase of the project 
ensuring the solution incorporates sufficient business and ICT controls, as well 
as monitoring project governance and the management of risks. 
 

Accommodation 
Strategy 
 

2011/12 Ongoing N/A DAP has continued its watching brief of the Accommodation Strategy project, to 
provide support and assurance on project governance and the management of 
risks facing the project. 
 

New Procurement 
Policies & Strategies 
inc Procure to Pay 
Project 
 

2011/12 On-Going N/A Support and advice given.  Some of the planned resource used in the review of 
Refuse Collection Vehicle procurement (see above). 

Housing Benefit  
Claim Checking 

2011/12 Ongoing N/A Time was allowed for in the audit plan for DAP to provide support to Housing 
Benefits by carrying out independent accuracy checking on HB claims. A number 
of days were delivered at the request of the department. 
 

Review of Refuse 
Collection Vehicle 
Procurement 

2011/12 Final N/A A review of the 2007 procurement exercise was requested by the Director for 
Corporate Support, ahead of a similar exercise that took place during the 2nd 
Quarter of 2011.  The review found that a radical, innovative but untried solution 
in terms of vehicle specification and ways of working drove the procurement. The 
recommendations made following the review were taken into consideration by 
the team undertaking the 2011 procurement.  
 

Delivery Plans – 
Invest to Save 

2011/12 Final  Good Standard The governance arrangements of two ‘Invest to Save’ projects within the 
Department for Services for Children and Young People where reviewed and 
found to be of a good standard. These projects will support the Authority in 
delivering its key objectives and the achievement of ongoing revenue savings. 
The projects were:- 
• ASD and Complex Needs 
• Parent and Child Assessment Team 

P
age 30



25 

Data Quality 
 

2011/12 Not 
Started 

 Due to the use of audit resources elsewhere in the 11/12 Audit Plan , this audit 
was not undertaken 
 

Local Performance 
Framework 
 

2011/12 Final  N/A The Corporate Plan 2011/14 set out the shared vision and priorities for the City 
and the Council and a range of high level long term and medium term outcome 
measures along with a variety of partnership indicators have been agreed to 
measure achievement against delivering the priorities. 
 
The following priority measures were reviewed and it was found that the systems 
and methodologies in place to collect and report on these indicators were 
operating effectively. 
 
• Percentage of attendances at Sports Development Unit activities by people 

from deprived neighbourhoods    
• First Time Entrants to the Youth Justice System aged 10-17 
• Number of Young People Re-Offending   
• Number of Visitors to Museums and Archive Services  
• Library Visits per 1,000 Population 
• Number of Enquiries to the Tourist Information Centre 
• Number of Inward Investment Enquiries 
• Number of Category 1 Hazards Removed   
 

Payment to 
Consultants & 
Advisors 
 

2011/12 Draft Improvements 
Required 

The system introduced in November 2011, to determine an individual's 
employment status prior to engagement is effective.  
This process, in the main, is compliant with HMRC best practice and will provide 
the Council with the necessary evidence that individual employment status has 
been correctly determined.  However the review has identified that the process is 
not yet completely embedded and there are inconsistencies in compliance with 
it.  Further improvements to the level of information obtained and recorded for 
future reference would improve the robustness of the process and provide the 
Council with demonstrable evidence that would mitigate any risk of HMRC 
challenge.   
 

Procurement & 
Management of 
Consultants & 
Advisors 

2011/12 Not 
Started 

 Initial research was undertaken as part of Payment to Consultants & Advisors 
audit (see above).  However, detailed fieldwork not undertaken due to lack of 
resources. 

P
age 31



26 

Capital Programme – 
Delivery 
 

2011/12 Not 
Started 

 Due to the use of audit resources elsewhere in the 11/12 Audit Plan, this audit 
was not undertaken 

 
 
 

Place   

Plymouth Market 2011/12 Final  Improvements 
Required 

The review had identified that although not complete at the time of the audit, 
considerable progress has been made in implementing the improvement plan 
resulting from the January 2010 audit review. The Market now appears to have 
effective governance arrangements and a good team environment which would 
be further enhanced through the successful recruitment of an Assistant 
Manager. 
 
 

Section 106 2011/12 
 

Final  Good Standard  The systems and procedures currently in place to identify and record Section 
106 Planning Obligations are sound overall. They ensure that if a planning 
application includes Section 106 Obligations it can be easily identified. 
However, there is still a major element of human input required and therefore a 
risk that individual obligations could be missed or input incorrectly. 
 
The processes for identifying and reporting that Section 106 funds are available 
were found to have improved greatly and are more efficient as a result of the 
redevelopment of the Section 106 database and the overall level of knowledge 
of those officers involved in the audit review appeared to be very good. 
 
 

Planning Applications 
and Appeals 

2011/12 
 

Final High Standard A robust governance structure is in place with defined processes and 
procedures that ensure probity within the City of Plymouth's Local Planning 
Authority.  Procedures in place for the processing of planning applications and 
appeals were clearly defined and understood. Planning applications and 
appeals were found to be effectively and efficiently recorded and processed with 
decisions being made in accordance with planning legislation and policy. 
 
 

P
age 32



27 

Waste Management - 
SWDWP - (Waste 
PFI) 

2011/12 On-Going N/A DAP continues to support the South West Devon Waste Partnership Waste PFI 
project as it now works through the planning application stage, following the 
award of the contract to MVV Umwelt.  DAP have been asked to advise on 
governance and risk issues, in particular the Partnership’s approach to Section 
106 negotiations that would minimise the risk of impact on a timely planning 
decision, whilst at the same time ensuring that the Partnership are not seen to 
be acting inappropriately.  
 

Life Centre, Leisure 
Management, 
Pavilions Projects 

2011/12 On-Going N/A DAP continue to support and advise the various project teams as well as the 
Culture, Sport and Leisure Programme Board, in providing assurance on project 
governance, the management of risks facing each project as well as the 
compliance with procurement practices and procedures, particularly where 
Competitive Dialogue has been utilised. DAP was present at the evaluation of 
the submissions received from bidders in respect of the Pavilions project and at 
the de-brief session with the unsuccessful bidder. 
 

Refuse Collection 
Vehicle Procurement 

2011/12 On-Going N/A DAP were invited to provide advice and support to the team tasked with the 
purchasing of 15 refuse collection vehicles.  Audit were present at meetings 
held to review previous procurements, develop the procurement approach and 
specification and provided comments on draft documents before they were 
issued to prospective bidders. 
 

Chelson Meadow 
Restoration Final 
Account 

2011/12 Complete  N/A At the request of the Council, DAP oversaw an audit of the Waste Infrastructure 
Delivery Contract at Chelson Meadow, undertaken by Mott MacDonald.  The 
review was as the result of a significant and sudden variance to the forecast 
costs for completion, presented by the contractor in October 2011.  A final 
report produced by Mott MacDonald was reviewed by DAP, prior to it being 
issued in May 2012. 
 

Blue Badges 2011/12 On-Going N/A Initial discussions with relevant officers involved in the administration and 
monitoring of blue badges to identify ways of tackling misuse in the City and 
assess impact of new Government reforms. 
 

Local Carbon 
Framework 
 

2011/12 Complete 
 

N/A Grant Certification 

P
age 33



28 

New Growth Point 
10/11 
 

2011/12 
 

Complete N/A Grant Certification 

Urban Bus Challenge 
10/11 
 

2011/12 
 

Complete N/A Grant Certification 

Contaminated Land 
Capital Projects Prog 
10/11 
 

2011/12 
 

Complete N/A Grant Certification 

Community 
Infrastructure Fund 
 

2011/12 
 

Complete N/A Grant Certification 

 
 

People   

PCH Monitoring 
10/11 

2010/11 Final Good  
Standard 

A robust governance structure has been implemented post stock transfer that 
allows both PCC and PCH to work together to deliver shared objectives for the 
future through the promises to tenants, whilst also allowing both organisations to 
be independent. Governance arrangements have been clearly defined, agreed 
by both parties and appear to work effectively with clear reporting lines up and 
down the structure. 
 
Performance, in respect of promises made to tenants, is reported by PCH on a 
quarterly basis. Performance data is subject to review by PCC and any 
anomalies challenged. However, PCC rely on the fact that the performance 
figures produced by PCH are accurate, no validation process is undertaken or 
formal assurances obtained to confirm the accuracy of the reported 
performance. 
 
Sufficient arrangements are in place to manage the service level agreements 
(SLA's) in place between PCC and PCH. The work involved in renegotiating the 
SLA's has been considerable but has now been finalised. 
 
PCH are subject to the Tenant Services Authority's (TSA) regulatory framework 
from which PCC can gain assurance. However, the Government intend to 

P
age 34



29 

abolish the TSA, with the regulatory role for housing associations passing to the 
Homes Communities Agency (HCA). It is intended that independent regulation 
will continue under the HCA but to a lesser degree and with more reliance on 
tenant and stakeholder involvement.  
 

PCH Monitoring 
11/12 

2011/12 Final N/A The Regulatory Framework for Social Housing came into effective in April 2010 
but the abolition of the TSA, reduced inspection regime and reliance on local 
accountability mechanisms pose a risk to service delivery and outcomes for 
tenants.   
 
To protect taxpayers, proactive economic regulation will continue with a greater 
focus on value for money. This will provide the necessary assurances that 
housing associations are financially viable and well governed.  PCC, as the 
Strategic Housing authority, can take assurance from economic regulation 
assessments and include within their monitoring arrangements consideration of 
Landlord's Annual reports, Local Offer documents and any independent external 
validation that has taken place. 
 
There are also potential benefits that can be realised through synergies between 
PCC and its strategic partners who can harness the work of Housing 
Associations engagement with local communities and their role in identifying 
local priorities. 
Greater engagement at strategic level across the sector will help to meet the 
objectives of the Big Society and Localism Bill that are the golden thread 
throughout government policy. PCC, as the Strategic Housing authority, should 
have an understanding of outcomes from tenant engagement processes and 
links should be made with the city's Housing Strategy. 
 
 

PCH Monitoring 
10/11 Follow-Up 

2011/12 Not 
Started 
 

 To be carried out in 2012/13 

Choice Based 
Lettings 10/11 F/U 

2011/12 Not 
Started 
 

 To be carried out in 2012/13. 

P
age 35



30 

Supporting People 2010/11 Final High Standard There have been changes in the past year, the main one being the integration 
into Adult Social Care. In addition, the Plymouth Supporting People Partnership 
Commissioning Body held their last meeting in September 2010. 
 

The Supporting People 5 year strategy came to an end in 2010. A new 
Commissioning Plan for 2011/14 for Supporting People is being developed 
which will set out the strategic direction for the provision of low preventative 
services over these three years. 
 

The procedures and process for the procurement of services and their 
subsequent monitoring have been maintained at a high standard since the issue 
of the last audit report in March 2010. This is much to the credit of the staff as 
members of the Supporting People Team. 
 

 
CareFirst  
Residential Care 
Payments  

2010/11 Final Good Standard The Residential Care Payments system aids in the processing of payments to 
residential and nursing care providers based on data being collected and 
processed through the CareFirst system. Information provided by the Corporate 
Performance Team, as at 4 January 2011, confirmed that there were 894 service 
users in long stay residential care and 136 in temporary (short stay) care, as 
compared to 181 in long stay nursing care and 17 in short stay nursing care. 
 

This audit identified that the systems operated for payments has achieved a 
'good standard' in the areas reviewed; much to credit of those staff involved in 
the processes.. 
 

In the June 2009 follow up, it was noted that there were outstanding actions to 
make on the recommendations previously made. However, it was pleasing to 
note that action has been taken to address these points and where 
recommendations had been implemented, the revised processes continued to be 
used. 
 

With the Council acting as agent for the Plymouth PCT in making payments 
through the Funded Nursing Care and Continuing Heath Care schemes, an 
agreement has been put in place with the PCT to ensure the Council receives a 
fixed monthly payment in advance of the payments being made to providers.  
 

P
age 36



31 

Safeguarding Adults 2010/11 
(Started 
2011/12) 

Final Good Standard The Plymouth Safeguarding Adults Board has a diverse membership and meets 
the national guidance objectives of approving and implementing a multi agency 
policy, co-ordinating activity between agencies, facilitating joint training and also 
monitoring and reviewing progress.  This multi agency approach is vital to 
reduce the risks to service users from a fragmented and individualised approach 
to safeguarding. 
 

The creation of supporting sub groups such as the Lead Officers Group has 
helped to ensure that the board can be effective and focus on the high level 
issues rather than the day to day safeguarding provision.  The sub groups help 
to implement and manage actions and provide feedback to the Board.  The 
production of annual reports helps to ensure that the Board are made aware of 
local and national issues and can be in a position to be ahead of changes and 
identify potential areas for improvement. 
 

The Council's Safeguarding Adult Manager plays a key role in ensuring that 
there is an effective process in place to support referrals which demands the 
majority of the available time.  Some recommendations were made relating to 
the management and administration of the Safeguarding Adults Board and Sub 
Groups which are considered as good practice and would be required if the 
board is placed on a statutory footing. 
 

It is evident from the work undertaken that overall there is a commitment from all 
partners to provide an effective multi agency safeguarding service.  However, 
the supporting governance documentation could be strengthened further.and the 
processes should be universally adhered to.  
 

Data Quality - Govt 
Returns 

2011/12 Final Good Standard Overall, the arrangements in place for managing submission of the RAP and 
ASC-CAR statutory government returns, for the year ending 31 March 2011, 
were of a good standard. 
 

Considerable effort had been made by performance officers, even at a time of 
significant change within the Adult Social Care (ASC) Policy and Performance 
team, enabling the completion and submission of the statutory returns by the 
deadline. 
 

Devon Audit Partnership supported the performance team by carrying out data 
accuracy validation checks on the ASC-CAR and key areas of the RAP.  

P
age 37



32 

Potential problems and other areas of concern found during the audit validation 
checks were referred back to the Performance Team to investigate and where 
necessary make amendments to the return prior to its submission to the NHS 
Information Centre. 
 

Client Finance 
Services 

2011/12 Final High Standard The completion of financial assessments for service users and /or their 
representatives has been carried out by the Client Finance Services Team 
promptly with notifications of any contributions, including a 'nil contribution' being 
sent out to these individuals. 
 

The result of the review of the processes and procedures has been given as 
'High Standard' which is due to the staff in the Team carrying out this process. 
 

Commissioning & 
Contracting  
(inc Supporting 
People) 

2011/12 In-
progress 

N/A The audit commenced in March 2012 and the majority of the fieldwork has been 
carried out.   

Non Residential 
Services Billing 
(NSIBS) 

2011/12 Draft Good Standard With progress being made towards Personalisation and Self-Directed Care, it is 
now expected that NSIBS will no longer be required in the medium to long-term 
and therefore, there are no longer plans for a replacement system. 
 

There is a possibility that this transition could take longer than anticipated.  It is 
also possible that some clients may refuse direct payments or pre-loaded cards 
and insist on retaining their commissioned services.  In the interim and for those 
clients who wish to retain commissioned services there will still need to be a 
system in place for client billing and for the payment of providers. 
 

It is understood that a decision has been made that no new services are to be 
added to NSIBS from April 2012 as there will be no more commissioned 
services.  There should to be some clear direction on how commissioned 
services are to be dealt with in the future and who will be responsible for making 
decisions on how the cases that do not "fit" into the personalisation criteria will 
be recorded, paid for and client's billed. These cases will need to be identified 
and solutions found before NSIBS is phased out. 
  
 

Domiciliary Care 
 

2011/12 Ongoing N/A To be carried out in 2012/13 following service restructure as part of Reablement.  

P
age 38



33 

Personalisation 
 

2011/12 Ongoing N/A To be picked up further as part of service restructure 2012/13. 

CareFirst 
Implementation / 
Charteris 

2011/12 Ongoing N/A To be picked up further as part of service restructure 2012/13. 

CareFirst Residential 
Care Payments F/Up 

2011/12 Not 
Started 

 

N/A Rescheduled to early 2012/13. 

Safeguarding Adults 
(F/Up) 

2011/12 Not 
Started 

N/A Rescheduled to 1st quarter of 2012/13 due to delays in finalisation of draft report. 

Commissioning & 
Contracting 
(Children) 

2011/12 Draft Good Standard The Children and Young People’s Plan (C&YPP) 2011-2014 has been 
developed following a comprehensive programme of work that included a 
complete needs analysis and input from service users, providers and 
stakeholders through a range of engagement mechanisms.   
 
The Commissioning Intentions Plan should be recognised as an excellent tool for 
implementing joint commissioning of services and should be further developed 
and embedded within the planning, delivery and evaluation of services to 
Children and Young People.  This should in turn enable the outcomes identified 
in the C&YPP to be achieved and provide a solution to commissioning services 
at a time of reduced funding. 
 

The Finance and Commissioning Programme Board is an effective medium 
through which C&YP finance and commissioning plans are considered, agreed 
and enabled.  Business cases for commissioning the appropriate services to 
deliver priority outcomes set out in the Commissioning Intentions Plan are 
submitted for consideration and approval.  Reporting of these to the 
Departmental Management Team (DMT) and the C&YP Trust Board is via the 
Finance and Commissioning Programme Board. 
 

CareFirst  Fostering 2011/12 Draft Improvements 
Required 

The review of the payment process identified a number of areas where 
improvements need to be made including full and accurate completion of 
supporting paperwork and the clarification of the perceived value of the 
authorisation stages.  The payment process is predominantly manual which 
increases the risk of errors being made or missed.   
 

The use of standardised paperwork ensures that carer details are obtained in a 

P
age 39



34 

uniform manner and it is recognised that staff work hard to ensure that foster 
carers receive their payment each week. 
 

‘Diversion of Children 
from Care’ Plan  

2011/12 Suspend 
Audit work 
at request 
of auditee. 

N/A DAP was informed that it was not a good time for this piece of work as a decision 
had been made to re-plan the DfC project. Children’s Services Finance & 
Commissioning Board 18th January 2012 agreed to revisit / re-profile the project 
plan - to inform a refreshed Phase 2. Suggest audit taken forward into the 
2012/13 financial year.   
 

School Transport 
Delivery Plan 

2011/12 Final N/A Overall the school transport delivery plans are likely to provide savings during 
2011/12. The need for alternative savings was identified to meet the full savings 
target.  Other areas within Learner and Family Support (Catering and Selling 
Services to Academies) were identified to meet the shortfall and these are on 
target to meet their objectives (taken from the Quarter 3 Delivery Plan - 
December 2011).  Concessionary Transport and Re-Routing of Special 
Educational Needs (SEN) transport were examined during this audit review. 
 

CareFirst Care 
Leavers (Follow Up) 

2011/12 Final  N/A The follow-up review found that good progress had been made in implementing 
the recommendations made. 

Data Quality 
Children’s EMS 
(Follow Up) 

2011/12 Not 
Started 

N/A Awaiting response from department as to convenient time to commence the 
‘Follow Up’. 

Children’s 
Independent Sector 
Placements  
(Follow Up) 

2011/12 Final N/A The follow-up review found that good progress had been made in implementing 
the recommendations made. 

School Construction 
Projects 

2011/12 On-Going N/A DAP have continued to support and advise the Tor Bridge High and High View 
construction projects.  DAP were asked to support the construction project at 
Boringdon Primary. 
 

P
age 40



35 

Academies Delivery 
Project 

2011/12 On-Going N/A DAP were invited onto the Project Board overseeing the delivery of £21m 
investment at two of the city’s Academy schools.  DAP have been providing 
assurance over project governance, risk management and compliance with 
procurement practices and procedures. 
 

Basic Needs 
Programme 

2011/12 On-Going N/A DAP have been able to support the Basic Needs Programme, offering advice 
and assurance on process and procedures involving procurement, risk and 
governance. 
  

 

P
age 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



�

�

���
��������	
���	
���
��	

	 	
�������	 	 	 	 ���������	
�����
����
�
�����������


���������		 	 	 �������������

�

������ � � � ������
������


������	�������	 ������������
�
������	


��	�������	 ���
�����������������
�
�	��
��

�������	 ���
� �����!"� 
��������������
�#��������$�������
�


�������� � � � %
�&����'(��)�*+,'�
� � � � ���
-������!.��/�����-!�	-����

����� � � � �#���� �

 �!	����"����	 0���
	
������ $����
	
#$�����%�	�����!�	 	
	
#
!��������*1)2������
��������������������13�!����2�#
!���������������
4���
�������
�
	����5���
�����
��
���
�������������	
�����
����
�
���1��2-�

%�
�������
������
�������������	��
�
	��
��
������������������
	�
6������
��������7�����
�����
���������������������!
�
�������
��
�"�������	��
���������
���������
���
��
���	
�
������������
����/�
��������5
��!����
����������
���������
�����/��
/�6
���
��
����
�����
�-�

%�
��������������������1��
���
��2�13�!����2�#
!������������,��������������
�����
4���
�
������
������
������������
	�
6������
�
��
���	
�
��������
����
������������/��
�-��

� %�
������������
�����������
����8�������������/����������!��������6��
4���
������"�6��������
�
��"���
�
��������5
�������
�
������6�
��
����
���������/7����������������!
�
��������!
�
����
��������6������
�!�	
�����
��
4���
�
���������
��$�9�����
�
��������
�#��
������
����
��
9���������:����
�����8�������	
���
��-�
� � �
%�����
�����������
����
�����
��������6
��������
�����������
���
��������������������
�
����
���������	��������
����
�
��������������!�����
�5/���
�8
��
�"���
����
��3;
����	
�������
�
���
����������������
�
�	��
�-�

%�
��
�������������	��
������������������
�
��
���	
�
��������
����
������������/��
��������
����
�
�
����-�
� �
%�
�������
�����
�
������������������������
�������
��
����-�
	
���������

��&�����	�'��	()*(+()*,�	 	 	
	
����������!��������/��
���������
��������������������������!
�
���
��5�
����
��������������������
�����
	�
6���
��
/��������������/���
	
���������������
	��!�������������
������
�	��
��5<
���	
�-�
��������

Agenda Item 8Page 43



�

�

��
��&'�������"	���	��-���	����	.�������'	�'��	��-	��"�����	��&'�������"�					
���'�-��/	�������0	�����0	��	��-�'��-	
�
0��
�������!���
��������/������������
����-�
���
�����	��&'�������"�	�1/1	
��'-	��%���!0	
�������!	����!0	���'��	��-	����!0	��"2	
����/�����	��-	#3��'��!0	��%��"��!	��-	
�������!	
���"����	
�
%�
�#��������!
�
�������
!/���
��������/������������
�����
��
��6��������
�������
���������������
��
����������	
�����
����
�
��-�
��
��������-�����"	4	���"��"	���	��������-�-	�������	
�
%�
��������������

�����
����
��
����&�
�

�2� 0��
���
�����
��
�������
��������
�����������������
������������������	
�����
�
���
�
��-�

�

52�3�����
���
���
4���/�����
��
���	
�
��������
��/��
��������
����������-�

�
�2� �����	
���
����������	
�����
����
�
��������������!�����
�5/���
�8
��
�"����
��3;
����	
�
� �������
����������������
�
�	��
�-�
�

�'�������%�	�&����"	���"�-���-	��-	���"��"	���	��������-�-	�������	
�
0����������5�
-�
�
5��2/����-	&�&��"�	 	�
�������������������1��
���
��213�!����2�#
!������������,�
�������������������13�!����2�#
!��������������
�
�/�	����		�
	
9��� ��0�

��)-�
�,�

8
!� 8%�*
+)'�

 #� � �����
�����

� $%� � �����
�����

�

:��!������!��%��
�5
�&��%��� �6
�"���������
����"��
������/�������	
�����
�
 �	
�/����������
����
���5��
���
�5
�1�2����
�������
��
����=��>
���

�

Page 44



�

�

*1	 �����-������	
�
� %�����
�����������
����
�5���!�����������
���������/��
4���
�
������������
�����������

��	
�����
����
�
���1��2������
����5
����
�����
��������6
�������������!���
��������
��������������5���������6������
�����������
�
��������������-��

�
(1					���	
�����'6"	�������!	��"&��"���'��!	
	

	 (1*����#
!��������*1)2������
��������������������13�!����2�#
!���������������
4���
��������
�
	����
� 5���
�������
���
�������������	
�����
����
�
��2-�
�
(1(	 	%�
�
������������
4���
�
������
����
��������������������1��
���
��2�13�!����2�#
!���������

���,�������
�������������
����
	�
6������
�
��
���	
�
��������
����
������������/��
�-�
�
(17				%�
������������
�����������
����8�������������/����������!��������6��
4���
������"�6������

��
���"���
�
��������5
�������
�
������6�
��
����
���������/7����������������!
�
���
�����!
�
������������6������
�!�	
�����
��
4���
�
���������
��$�9�����
�
��������
�#��
�
�����
����
��9���������:����
�����8�������	
���
��-	 	 	 	
	 	 	

(18��%�
�������
������
��������
������������	��
���������������
	�
6������
�
��
���	
�
���������
��!���������7�����
��������������������������!
�
��"�������
�����!�	
���������
���������
���

��
���	
�
�������������������
�������!
�
����������������������
�����
�����
��6
���
��
�����

���
������
��-�

�
(1,���%�
��������
4���
�����5
������	
��������������

������
����������������������������

��������5�/�6�����������������

"���������
��������
�
�
��
�������
�5�������
�����������������
���������!
�
��-��

�
(19���%�
�������
�����������	
�����
����
�
������������������������
�����������
����-�
	
71				#������%�	��%��:	��-	���	
�����'	��	��"2	
�
71*� %�
���������/��
������5����/������5�����������������	
�����
����
�
����
4���
����
���������

����
	�
6������
/������"����������
����/�������5�������
��������������������
���������!���������	
�
����
���	
�����
������-��

�
71(� %�
�
���������������/��
���
������
�����
	
�
��������
��������7�����
��5<
���	
�����������
!�
��

���"���
�
���
"���
�������	��
���������������/�����������/��
	�
6�!�	
�����
���������
������
����
��
����������
�������
����
��	
�/-�

�
81				��&�	��	���	�;	
�
81*���%�
������������
�6���
����!
������������������/�����	���
������������
������
����������

�
��!�
�����
����
&�
�

•� ��
���������/7��������
����
�����������������
�
•� ��
���!���������7��	���
����
��
��
•� ��6�������
!�����������
�������
��6����
•� �
4���
������
��
����
����
�
�����
•� ��������������
�
�����������
����5����
����������������
��������
������
���5�
"��
•� !�	
�����
������!
�
������
��������
�������!��������������
�������
•� �������
�����
���������
���
�����
����
�����!
��
�����
���/�����
��
���	
�/�

Page 45



�

�

�
81(����$��
���5������!������
�����!���
��/��
��������
���������������
�������	��
�����
��������5/�

6�������
���������/�������������"��
	�
6������

�����������
�������������
�	�����
��-��$��������
���
�����������������!�"�
;�
�������������������
�������
������������
����������!
�
�������
���
�������	��
�����
��
���	
��
	�
6������
��������7�����������!
�
����������������
��������-�

�
817���%�
��������7����������
�	�����
����������!
�������!�������5
��������
�����
��
������

����
���
��6�������
��
���
��6��������
�5��/������
���-�
�
818���%�
��������5

��������
��5/�����/��!����������������
	�
6������
���������
�	�����
���6�����

������	��	
���
�
������!������������/��
��!�����!������
������!���
�����
��
�����
��/��������
�
���������
���������/-��

�
81,			#
��!�����!��������
��������������
���������6��
?���!��!�������������
�����
�����������������

5
��6�
��5/���/���
��
�����
��"���@�����!�����������
/������
���6���
���5����
������	
��

�
��
�����
��-�%�����������������
�&�

�
•�  
��������������
�#��������$�������
�
•� ��������������
���������
������/�������	
�����
�
•� ����������!
�"��
	��������������
������
•�  
������9�����
�
•� �
����������/�"��
��������
����������
���������	��
��
•� � 
������8
!���
�	��
��

�
819			%�
�@�����!�����������
������5�
�������������!���
����6����������
�������	
��5/���
�

��������
�����!
�
���%
���������5��
���������!�����������������������5/���
�������
�������

-�

	
81<			%�
��������7��
;�
��������������6����������
����
������!
�
�����������
����
��5�
���
������������

��
���"���������!���
��
!�

����6�������
����������
��!���
�����������
��������
���������
�
�6�
�������������!�	
�����
������!
�
���-	 	

� �
,1				���	�""������	;�������/	&����""	
�
,1*���%���
�6�����
������5����/�������!���!���
�����

������

��������
����������
���������������
��

����
	�
6���
���������
�	�����
�����������
�
������������
-��%�
���������
�
���
��
4���
��
���5
���!�
��5/���
�������
����������
��������
�������
������
�5
��1�
���
����
��3;
����	
�
������
���������8
��
�2-��$������������!�
��5/���
����
����������������
�
�	��
�������
������
��
�
������5�
������	
��

��!���
�����������������
���-�

�
,1(���������!����
�����������������
��������
4���
��5/���
��������������������#
!��������"�������
�

������������
��6������
����
�
��������������"���
��
������5����/������
�����!�
��
���	
�
���
���������������
�������
������
�/�6������9�����
������-�

�
,17�����
��������������
����������
�
���
���	��	
����	���
�/�����
���
�����!
��6�����
��	
���!�

��������
�!�	
�����
&�
�

•� ���
�����"� 
�������
�	��
���������!
�������!�
��6������
��6�
��������������������
�
�
��	
�/�����
�	��
��

•� ��
����
��9���������:����
��6�������
������5�
�������
����������!����������/��
�������
�
������������
���
��������������
�����
�
���������������

•� ��
����������!�:����
������

���!�������������/��
������5�����
��

Page 46



�

�

•� 3�
��
���
�5
���1
-!-"������!�����������������/��������

�2�
•� ���
����
������5�
��������	����!���������
�1
-!-�$��
���������������#�������������
����!
�
��2�

�
,18			%�
�������/������
����������������6���������������
�����
��������
�������
�������

��������
�A�
���������
�������
�
��5/����
�����"� 
�������
�	��
��������
���
�����
����!
�����	
���!��
/�4�
����������������
����
�������������������!�	
�����
�����
6���-��

�
,1,� ��@�
�������
���!���
�
�4�
���������
���
�����
������
����
������
	�
6������5
����������
��

6�
�
����
�������������!�	
�����
�6
���
��
����/�5
���
�����
�&�
�

•� #�������
�����
���������
!�������:�
���������#����#
!���
���
•� $���
��������!������$��
�����������#
	�
6�������
�
�������������
•� $���
��������!������
;�
���������
�������
•� ����������������������������������$���
������8
��
��

�
91		 
�-�	��	
��&�����	;�%�������	�'�+�""�""����=�����'	��%��:	
	
91*� $�����������
�6������
��$�9��:8��3�����
6���������
��������������	�
�������
	�

��������������
������������������
�������������
������������
���	
�����
�6�����6���
�����	
��5/��������������

����)�������������B-�

�
91(� ��%�
�����
6�����
����
�����������
��������������
�������������/����
��?���
���
��������
�


;�
������6��������������
��6������
���;����
���������
�����!����!�	
�����
��
�����������
�
���
-�

�
917� %�
����@�����!����������������
�������������������
	�
6���������������
���������
�

!�	
�����
�����
6�����
����5
�����
�����/������
���	
�����
����
�
���������
����������
�
������������
����
����������
��
4���
�
���������
��$�9��:8��3����
�����
-�

�
<1	 ��%��:	��	�������'	��-��	!"���	
	
<1*			������������
	�
6������
�
��
���	
�
��������
��������7�����
������������/��
������������
��5/�

��
��������������

�6���
��
��������
�
�
��
�1����!������-�2�������
"���
��������/"����
������&�
�

•� %���!�

���
��������$��
����������������
•� %������������
����!�
��������
��������
����$��
�����������
•� %��������
����
����
���������7����������
����"���������
����������/������
���
4���/�
����
��
���	
�
���������
��������������/��
���6��������
���������

	
<1(� %�
����
���������7����������
��������5
��!�������
�
�������
����
����
����������
���������

��	��
���
�5
������
�����
���
���
4���/�����
��
���	
�
��������
��/��
��������
���������������
��
�/
���
����!�)��������������-�

�
<17� $������
����
��
������������
�����
�
�������������������
����������	
�����
����
�
�������

�������-�
	
>1	 �������"��&"	;�%�������	
	
>1*	 %�
����������������6��������
!���
����������
�������6�������
����
��
��������!��������
-�
�

Page 47



�

�

>1(	 %�
��������!��������������
���������	
���
����6��������
!���
�����������!
�����������������
�
���������
��������
�����!
�
��-�

�
>17	 �����������
����������������
����������
����������!
�
�������5

��������
�����������
����

5
��������
�����������6����5
���
����������	
��������
��/��������	��
������������������������
����!��!������
����������"��������������"�����!��!����������������!�!�����������
-�

	
?1				�-�����!��/	������'	:��2��""	"�/��������	���	���	&��&�"�	��	���	�;	
�
?1*	��@��������
�
��������5�����
��
��������������
��
��"���
������6��!������������1���	��
��5/��$�9�2�

��	
�5

����
������
������������
���!�6�
��
����������������
������!���������
���!�����5
�
�
����
����������
���&�

�
•� ����
������/���
<����
�������
	
��������
	
�
��������
������������5<
���	
������
���������/C�
•� ��������
����
�������
��

������

�������������������!��������6�������5
��
���	
�"��������
�
����
�������!�����������	
����������
�����
������������
�����
��������
�5����
��C�

•� ��������
����������
�����������������
����������
•� ��
��������������

���	��
������������5
�������
�
����!������������������������
C�
•� ��
� 
������$��
������������
�����������������!��������"����������������
"������
��������
�������������
����
�������������
�	�����
��C�

•� ��
�����
"��������������"������������
����!�����������5�������
�
�����������
������/�����!
��
��
��
��������������
���!���������C�

•� ��
�����
������
����
�������������������5
��!����
����
��5/���
����
��9���������:����
��
���������
����������!�:����
��

�
*)1				
���'�"���	
�
*)1*�%�
�������
�������
�����
����
�������
������
��
	�
6������
�
��
���	
�
��������/���������/�

�������7��!�	
�����
������!
�
���"���	
���!����
����������"����
����������������������
����!
�
����/��
��������������
�����
����!���������!�	
�����
�����
����!
��
��6�����
���������
��������5
��!����
���������
�����
�-�

�
**1				��������-�����"	
�
**1*	�
�5
��������
	�������������

���
��
����
��
����&�
�

�2� 0��
���
�����
��
�������
��������
�����������������
������������������	
�����
�
���
�
��-��

�

52� 3�����
���
���
4���/�����
��
���	
�
��������
��/��
��������
����������-�
�

�2� �����	
���
����������	
�����
����
�
��������������!�����
�5/���
�8
��
�"����
��
3;
����	
��������
����������������
�
�	��
�-�

�
�
�

�
�
�

Page 48



�

� � ���

��������	
���	
���
��	
	

����	�������
�	��������	���������	
�
�����	��	���������� �!"	
	
�������	�
����
�����������������������������������	��������������������������������������
���	��	���������������������������������	���������������������������������������������������
����������������������������������������������������
�
�	��
�����������	�����������������	����������������������   ������!������������������
��������������������������������	������������������������"��������	������������������
�������������������������������������������������
�
#�����	��������	����������������������������������	�
����
�����������������������������������������
�������������������������	�����������������������������������������	������������"����������	��

�����$�����������������	�	���������������������������	�������������������!��
�
�������	�
����
������	��������������������������
�������
���������������������	�	����
�������������	��	����������������	��
#�%�&'(��
)�%�������!�����������	
���	
��������	��	
����	
����������	����������	��
����������������������������*
�����������+��
�
�	��������������������'����������"�������	����	��
������	��������������	��	��
��������
�����	�������������	����,�������������-����������./01�����	�������������������/)������1�
-�����������23����
	
�#�	�$%����	��	!#�	��&�%�'���	(%')�*�%+	
�
�	��������������������!�����������	��������������������������������������������������
�	�	��	�����	��������������������������������������������������	����	��	�	���������������
�����������	������������	������������#�����������	�����	������������������	���	����������������
�����������4�����������������������	��	����	������4�������	������������	��������������
����������������5������������������

�
�	�����������������������������������������������������	�����������!���������������������������
���!������������������������#�������������������������!����������������	�����������������������
��4���������������	�����������������������������������������������������������������������������
�
�	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�	�����!������	���	�������������	��
�����$����������������������4���������������������	��
��!���	��������	�������!����������������������	���������	������	�������������������������������	���
����������������������������������������
�
�	��������������������!�	��������������������������	�
����
�����������	�������������0����
6��	�23�2������������	�����������	���������������	���������-����������'��������������������

�
�#�	��&�%�'���	(%')�*�%+	
�
�	��������������������������������������������	��������������������������������������	��
���������������������������������	��
�������#�����������������	��	��������������7�
�

•� ��������	��������������������	���	�������������	��
�����$����4�������
•� ��������������������������������!����

Page 49



�

� � ���

•� ���������������������	���������	��������������������������������������������
•� ���������������������������������������!���	����	��������	���������������	�����	�����$��

��4�������
•� ����������	������������������������������������������������������������������������

����������������	����������	�	��	�����	�����$����������������"�������
•� ���������������������������������������	�����������������������������������������

���!��
•� ����������������������������������������������������	�����	������
•� ������������������������	�����	���������������,���������������

�
�	�������������������������������	��!����������������������	�
����
�����$�����������������������
#����������������������"	��������������������������	����������������������	��
�����������������
���������������4���������	��
������	�������������������������������������������	�������������
����!��������������4����������������������	����	�������������������������������	������4�����������
����������������������������������������������������
�
�������	�	�����������������������������������)�����$�����������������������������������������
�	�������������������,��������������������4�������������������	����������������������*�������	�
2323+�8��	������������������������	��������������������������	�������������#������������	������"��
����	�	�����������������������������������������������������������������������5��������������
������������������
�
�	����������	���	��������,����������������	���������	�-���������23�3��	�	������������
�����	���������������������������������������	����������������	����������������������������
������������������������	������������������	�������������	�����$��������7�
�
n� 9������������	�
n� -�����������������
n� -��������,�������
n� �����������������������������
�
�	�����������������������������������������������������������������������������	�	�	����
�������������������������	����������	�����������	�2323������	��
��������������	������������
�������������	�����$�����������	�������9�����������%�������!$��
����'�������������	��
��,��������������	����������:������������������������	�����������	������23��50��������	�	�
��	�����������������������������������
�
�	��
����������������
�%��%'!�	� '���	�	�����������	����������������������	�������������
���������������	����"���	���������������������������������������	��������������������������
���������"�����������!�����������������������������������������	��������	�����������������
�
�	��
��������������23�2823�;�����������������
���������%��������23�2���������������	��

�����$���������������������#������������������������������������	��������������������$�������
�����
�����������
�����������33������������������������	�����������	��
���$������������������
�����������������������������
�
�	��
�����������������������������	����������!������������������������������������	����
,$������	� '����	�	���������	��������������	���	��������������4��������������������������
�������
�
�	�������������������#����������������/<��������233 1��������	����	��
������	���������
������������������������������������������������������������	����������������������������������

Page 50



�

� � ���

�������������������	��
�����$�������������������������������������	�����������������������	���
�����������������������������������������	���������������	������	����	���������	����
���������������������������������������������������������������	�����	���������������������������
������
�����	����������������������������	������������!�������������	�������������������
���������������	��'���������23���������
���������������"�����������������������	�������
��������	����	���������������	�������������	����	��������	����������������������
���������������������������
�
�	��
���!�!$!����������	��������������������������	�����	����������������������������
(��'���' 	��-$ '!����������!'�.��-	�%.�%�/��	�	������������������������������������
���������������������������������	���������������	��
�������
�
)���������	��
�����������������	��'*	'�.	��-$ '!����	���������������	���������������������	��
����������9�����������
���������'�������/9��������������������1���	������	��
�����$��
����������6����������(�����������������������������������������������������������������������
�
#��6��	�233=��	��
����������������
�.�	��	
�%��%'!�	��&�%�'���	���������������������
�����������������
#�%��/�	��
	��������#������������������%������������������1�����
'(��
)�/�	��'�����������������	������
	����)"�������1���	��
���������������������������������
����	������������������	�������������'����������
	
�	��(��'���' 	�'�'-�)��!�����	��
��������������������������5������������������8��	��
'���������%������(��������������������	��	��9����������
���������'����������	���>�������
%��������������������	������������9�����������%��������)�������������	�������������������
�	������������'��������%������6�����������������������	���4��������������
�
�	���������
�������6���������	��������������������%�������	���������������������	��	��9�������
����
���������'��������-������������������������������������	�������	���	�9������������	��
9�����������
���������'��������
�
-��������������������������������	�������������	��9����������
���������'���������	������������
9�����������%������������	��>�������%�����?��	����������������������	��������������������	��
������������������������	����������	���������������������������������������	����������
���������������������������������������
�
��!���������������$.-�!'%"	���!%� �����	���$.-�!	)���!�%��-	�%�������%���23��&�2������	��
�����������	�����	��%��������������������������������������������������������������������	����
�����������������	����"��9����������6�������������������������������������������������
��������!����������������������������������	��������������*�������+�������������	��

���������6����������������%������,���������4�����%������������������������������������	��

���������6����������������
������������������������	��(��������@�6����������'�������
��������	��������������������23�2&�0���
�
�	��%������6���������������/%6�1������������	��'��������%������6������������>�������
%������������������	���������������	����������������������������������������������
�

�)� �'���	*�!#	
��(	�!'!�)��!	��	!#�	�� �	��	!#�	
#���	(��'���' 	������%	��	���' 	
��&�%�)��!	0����12	
	
�	��
�������������������	��
#�%������������*9���������������������������������
����������+������	��*-��������	��
	����%��������(�����+��#�����������������	��������������	��

��������������������	����	�������������������������������������������������	����,�����������

Page 51



�

� � ���

-��������	������������������������������	�����!����������������������������������������������
�������������������������	�����������
���������6���������������������	������	��	��
��������
�
�')'%	,%�.-�	'�.	��%����!	(�%%"	3���!	
�))�!!��	
	
�����������������������	��
�����$���������'����������������������	������������������������
��������������
�
�	�������������������	����������������������!�	�����������������������	�������������	����
����������	�	���������������������������	���������������������������������	������������������
�������������

����������	���������������������"����������������������������������������
���&�����������������������	���������
�
#������������������	�������������������������	������������	��4�����������������/���	�
��������

�����1�������:�������������������%�����/�:�%1�A�����
����������
�
%�����	��23��&�2�'����������������������	������������������	��"�����������������	����	��

�����$��;3B��	��������	���������������������������������������������������	��������������	���
�	��
������	�����;3B�������	�������	���������������	�	�����������	������;3B��	������������������
�������������
�
>�����������������������������������������	���:�%�A�����
����������������������������������
��������������������������������������	������������������������������������	����������
����������'������������������	�����������������	��4���������������
	

�)��!���"	(%')�*�%+	
	
�	��
������	�������������
���������%�������!��������������������������������������
���������������������	����	��������������������������������	�������������	��������������
��	������������!��!��������������!���������������������	�����	��
������������������������������	��!���
���������������	��
���������������
	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 52



�

� � ���

�
�#�	�'�'-�)��!	��	���+		
�
�	������������������!�����������������!��������������������	�������������������75�
�
6��������������-�������������
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

��	
�	��������
�
�
�	�������
��
	������
����
����
����
������
�
���	�
��
	������
�����������
��������������
���	��	��	�����
����������
�	��
��� �!�"#�������
��
�$���
��
�����%�	�����
&����
'��������
�����
�
�
�	�������
(�������������
�
&������
)��	���$�
%�������

�
%�	����$���� ������	�

�
	����������� �
�����	��

�

���	����&�����

���
�������
'�����	����

��	
�	������ �
'��������)	��
�
*�'+,�

�%$	������

"-�	����&���������
���
$�����

&�������������

��.�������������

����������	
�	������������
����	�����
�
��	
�	�������������������
�	��
�
�
�
�	����������������������
�	��
�
�
��������
����

Page 53



�

� � �/�

��*	!#�	
�$��� 	����!�%�	���+	
�
�	��
����������������'������������(�����������-��!�-���������������������������������������
���������	��!������!���	�	��	��������	��
�����$������������������������4��������-���������
�����������������	�����	�������!������������	�	��������������������������������������������������
�������������	�����	��������������������������������������������������������������������
���!�����������������

(�4���������������������������������������:������������������������!���	��������������������	��

�������������������������	�����	�'�������������������	����������������������	���������������	��

�����$��!������������������
�
�	��
����������������������������������������	�������������������!��	����	�'������������
(�����������-��!�6��������������������-��!�6����������'������������������'���������	���
����������������������!������������������������������������	����������������������
�����������������������������������������!�����:������������������!���������������������������
�
-�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����������	����	��������������	��'������������(�����������-��!�6��������������������	�
6���������������
�������������������������,��������������������������
����������
�
(�����������-��!�-���������������������������������������������������!���	��������	��������	��
�������������	�������������4���������������������������!�����	����������������������������������	��
'��������-��!�-�����������������������5����������!���������������������������	��������	�����������
��4�����������	��
�������
�
(�����������-��!�-�������������������������������������������	�'��������4������������������	�
���������:�������������������������������
�
�	�����	�������!����������������������������������	����������������������������!�����������!����
���������������������������������������������
�
�	��
�����$��
���������������C����������������	������	��	�������-���������%������9���������

��������������������	���!����������������!�������������������������������������������������
���!������	����������������������������
�
�'%!��%�#���	��&�%�'���	
��
�	��
�����������������������������������������������	��������������	����������������������	���
�	�������������!����������������������������
��
������������	��
������	���������������������	����-���������	�	������������	���������	�������
������������
��
'������(����������&���6���������������	��������������������������	�
����
�����$�������
��������	���������������������������������	����������!�����������������������������&���������
��
'������������������	����	�����	�����������!������������������!���������������������������������
�����������������������
��
#���������������������������������������������������������	������������	�����������������
���	������������	�������������������!����������������������	��
������	�������������������

Page 54



�

� � �0�

��������	����
���������������	�	��������������������������	�!������!�	���������	��
������
	��������������������������������������	���	�������������������������!����������
��
�	�����������������������������������!�������������������������������������!�������������
����������������	�
����
�����$��������'�����������������������
��
��������������������	�������������������!����������������������,������������������	��������
����������������������������������������������������������������������������	����
,�����������������������������������������	�
����
���������������	����������!������	������	�
�	����������������������������������������������!�������������!���
�

�)� '��!�	����!�%��-	
�
�	��
����������������������	�������������������!��	����	������������������������������������
�
�	��'���������
���������������������������������	����	��	������������������(������������
�������������������������������������������������������
�
���������������������	���������������������������������������	�������������������������������
	����	�������	��
�����������������������������,��!��������������������������
�
�#�	�� �	��	$.�!	
�
#��������������
�
#���������������������!��������4�������������������������������������	����	�����������������
���,��������!�����������������������������������������������	���	��������	��
����
�������#��
���������������	�����	����������������������������������������	��
�����$�����������������������
����������������������������������������������������	�����������
�
#�������������������������������������������������������	���������������������������������������
�����������������������"����������!��������������������������������������5������������	���
����������������������������������
�
�	����������#�������������������������������������������������������������������������	����
��������	������!����������	������������������������������
�
#�����������������������������������������	�����!����������������������������������	�	���������
�	����	������������������������������������������������������������	������,���������������������
�������������������	��
�����$������������������������������������	������	�!������!�	���������	�	�
������,��������������������������������������������������
�

���������������������	�����,�������������������������	���������������������������������������	��
����������������������	��������
���������������������������������������������������	���

�������������������	��
	�����������$�����������������
�
�	��#����������������������	���������������������9�������������������	���/9��1����	��������
�	����������������������������������������	�
����
�������9�����
������
�����������������

�������������������������������������23�����	���������������������2333��
�
�
�
�

Page 55



�

� � �1�

�	���������������	����������	������75�
�
•� ��������������������������������������"�����������������������������������	�������������&�

������	�����!?�
•� �	������������������������������������������������������������!��������?�
•� �����������������������������������������������������!�������	����#������
•� ������������?�
•� �����������������"������������������������	�������������	��������������������������������

����������!�������������	�������/�1��	����������!�������	��?�
•� ������������������������������������������������	�������������	����	������������������������?�
•� �����������������	��������������	�������������������������������������������������������

�����������!������
�
)"�������������
�
�������	��������������������������������"����������������������������23��&�2��	�����������
�����������������������������������������������#�����������������������!��	������������	��	��
����������������������,���������7�
�

•� �	��������
��������������  =�
•� �	��
��������������������
•� �	����������������������   �
•� �������������������-�����������2330�

�
�	������!����	��	������������	�����������������������������������������	����	�����!��	���
������������5���������������������������	��
�����$��!��������������������������
�
�	��������
���������$��-��������	���6�������������5�����������	�����!������	����������������
���������	�����������
�
������
����������
��
#���������23�3��	��9��������������
�������������������������������/9
��1����������
���������������������������������������������������)������D�����������������������
�
�	��������
�����������������������������������"���������23����������������	�����!�����	��

���������$����5	�����������������������������	���������������������������������	���������
�����	������	5���������������	��������������'���������23�2����	����������������������������
������������	�����	����������������	������������	����������������������	���"�������������
����������	����������������������������
�
������
���������
�
�	��
�����$��������
�����������������������
���������������	����#�����������6�������
��������������	��>�������%�������9�������������������	��$������������>���������������	�������
�	��>�������
���������-��!�����#���������
�
�	��
���������	�����������������������	��������������	�#������������)"������������������
����������	������������������������������!������������#�����������������������������������
�����������	����������������������������!���������������������
���������������������	��
���������������	��
���������	������"����������������
�

Page 56



�

� � �2�

�
�	��������
���������	��������������������7�
�

•� ������������������������������	������������������������������������������
� �������������������������!������!������	��
������
•� 6��������	��
�����$��������������	���������������	������������������
� ����������������������������������	���������%��������-������������ ����
'��������(������

•� -�������"���������������������������������������������������	������	������������
���������������!���������������������	��
�������

•� -����������������	��������������	���"����������������
•� 6��������	�����������������������������#��������������
•�
�������������������������������#����������������������������������������������	���
���	�����������������������������������������������������������
���������������

•� 
��������#�������������$����������������������������������������	���
� ���,������������������������������������������������
•� 6��������	�����������������	�����������6������������������
•� -������������������	��
�����������
����������	�������������	����������
� ����������'�������������'�������������������
•� E����������������������������������������	������5������'��������

�
#������������)"����������������!�������������	��������"����������������������������������������
�	���������������

�&�%&��*	'�.	��%$!��"	

�	��
������	������������������������������������������������������������������������	������
(������������'�������6����������:���������5����������	�������������������

�	��:�����	�����������������������	��
��������������������	�!������������������"��������
��4������������������������������������������������#��������������������������������������������
���������������������������������������������������	��������	��
��������	��:��������������
����������������������������	�������'����������������	����

%����6���23�2��	��:�����������������������������5�"���������������/����������������������
���������������1����������5�����������������������	�	���!���������������������������	��

���������	��
	���������	�������(������������'��������������������������	���
���������������
�����	�����!�����	��:������

�	�������������(������������'����������������	�����	�	�	�������������������������������������
������������������
������������������	�����������������	������	��
�����$��������������������
���	����������������������	����	������	�������������������������������������	�����F	���
�������������	���������������������	���������	�����	�����	�����������!�
�������6�����������
(�����������	��
�����������������������������������,����������	�����������	��	�����������	����
���!���	���������������������������	���������������	��������������	����	��
�����$��
������������

��&��*	��	�����!�&�����	
�
�������	�
����
������	����������������������������������������������������������������	��
�����������������	���������������������������������������������������	�������������������	���������
������������������������������������	�����������������������������������������������#������������

Page 57



�

� � ��3

)"�����������������#��������������������������������������������������������������������������
��������������������������������	��������
��������������	����	�������������	�!��������������
�
�	��
������������4������������������������������������������	����	���������������	��
�������������������������������������������������������������!������������������������	��

������	��������������	���-��!�6�����������������
�
#�������������	������������������������������������������������"��������������/����������
#��������1������������������������#��������������	�����������������������������	�����
�����	����������������������	�����������������������	������������������	�����������������������
�����������������!������������������������	����	�������������������������������
�
9����������������������������G������������������������	������������������������	����	����
9���������������	��������������	��,��������������	�������������������������	����������������
���������������������������������	��
�������
	
��-�����'�!	��&�%�'���	���$��	
�
������������	�������������	�������������������	�����������������������������	�������������������
�����������������	�������������������������������������������	���������������	���'��������7�
	
��.�$)	��%)	(��'���' 	�!%'!�-"�
'��!' 	�!%'!�-"			
�
�	��
�����$��6�����������%��������'��������/6�%'1������������������������������
�������
�����������	��
�����	�������'��������-����������������������23�(������23�3�������������
�������������������	��
����������������������	������������������4����������	�������������
���������	��23��&�2������������������"���������������������	��23�3&�������������������������
�������������
�������H�A����23����F��	��	���������������������23��&�2����������������	��

���������6��������������������������������������������
��������#�����������������������	���
����������	�������5�������������5���������������������������������������6�%'����������	���������
23�2����23�I����������������������������������
��������������������
�
�	��
�����	�������'��������-������/
'-1�����������	������(������23�3��������������
	��������������������������������������2=B������������	��������������������	����"��������������
�	�������������������������	���HB���������>�����������������������������������������������������
23��&�2�����23�2&�0��%����	����������������	��6�%'������������������������!����������������
������������������������������������������������������������������������������!��������������	�
����C�����������������������������������������	������9������������������
�
�	����������6�����������%��������'���������/6�%'1���������	���������23�25�I��#��������������	��
��!������������������������	����	������������������������	����	�������������	�������������
������������������������	���������������������������������
�	������������������������������������������������������	����	���������������������	������������
������������������7�
�
<������������"��
�

•� �	����������������������������������������������23�0&�.�����������?�
•� F�������-���������������	���������
��������"�:������������<��������<���9�������

-�����/<<9-1����������
•� '	������������������?��	��������	��������4�������������	����������������������������

�����������������������������
�

Page 58



�

� � ���

���������"���
�

•� �	������������������������������������������������������������	�	������������JH�����
23�2&�0�����������	���J�3�����23�0&�.��������������������������������"�����������

•� C������������������������������������������������	����������������	����������������	���������
����;B�,������

•� ������������	������������	��������������	�������$��������������?�
•� !���������������������������	����������'�����
�����
	��������F������
•� ��5����������������������������

�
:������������	���	����������������������������������������������������������	��23��&�2���������
��	������������	�������������:������9����������������	�	�����23��&�2���������J�0�?�����
23�2&�0��	���������������J23����������������J03�����23�0&�.���#����������������	��������������
����������������������������������������������������������	�����������
	
(����������������������������������������������������������F�������������������������������
����������������������������������4��������������������������"��<<9-���������������������

	������������������������	�����������������������23�2&�0�	��������	������������!��	����	��
�������������������������������������������������������	������	�������������
�
������������"���������������������������	������������������������������������������������������#
��
����������	�������������������������������	������	����������	�	�������!�����������	��
	�����������������	��������������	���������������������4������������������������������������
�	��������������������������
������	�������������������������������������������J0������
������������������������������������	�	��������������	��������������������������������4����
�	�	�������������	������	����������������������	������������!���	��������������������������������
��������������������������������������������������
�
�F��������	���������������������������������������������������������	����������������������
���������������>��������	��������	�����������������������������������������������
����������������������	�����������������������������������������������!���������
����������������������������������	������������������������������
�
�	���������������������������������������	����	�����������96���0����������������#�����������
:�����������������������������������	��K6�4���
	����K�����������	��6�%'���������������������
�	����!�����	���2&�0�����������������������������������������������������
������A����23�2����
��������������6����������(�����������������	������6���23�2������������������	��
���������
'�������9������������	����������������������	����4���������������������4��������������
6������
�	��������������������������������������������,�������������������������	��	��������������������
��,�������������������
�

�&��	
��!%�	���!��-	���$��	

�	��������������	��
����
�����������������##�������������)�����	�>��������������������	������
������������������������������������������	��
�������

#�����������������������������	������������	��������##�����������	��
���������!������	�)�����	�
>���������������������	��������������������	�����������������������������������������	�����
�������������	�������������

%����������	����������������	��4�����)>&�

�%�����������'������	��
��������������������	�
�������������	��(���������������������	��'���������������������������!����"����������	��

Page 59



�

� � ���


�����D������	�����������������	��
����
�������
������>����������	��
����
������������!��
)"���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�������������������	������"������	��
�����$����������������������'������������
�������������������!��������������

�����5���������!��	��
�����������������������������������������������	�������������!����
��������������������������	������������������	���������������������������	����	���������������!���

����������������������������������������������������������'������23�2��F	�����������
����������	����	����������������������������5�������������������	������	�����������������	��
��������������	������������������������������	�����������	��
���������������������������������
������������!������������	������������������D���������������D�����������
	
	
4'�!�	�(��($!$%�	�'�.��  	  �*'���	�%'.��-	��#�)�	��'�� �!���	
	
�	�����4������������������������������������������������������	��
������������������
�����������������������������������������������������������23�.���
�
�����������������������	���������������������������������������������	�
����
�����������
������������	���������%���23�2����	���	���4��������������	��������	����������������	�	������
���������,���	��	������������������������������	���������	�������������������������������

�
���������������������������������

��������	��"������������������������������������
)��������������������������������	����������	�������������������	��)��������������������	���	�
�	������������������4��������������	���������
�
�	�����4�������������������	�����������������������������������������������������������������
��������	���A�����
������������
������������������������	������4���)"��������������������
����������������������	�����	���	����
���������	�����4���������������	������������������
��������������	��9�������������������	����
�
�����4������!����������������,�������������	�������	�����4������������������������������	��
���4���������������!�������	�����������������������������	����������	������4���)"���������	��
�������������������������������������������	����������������������������	����	��
�����������
������������������������������������������	����	��"������������������������5�	�������
��������������������������������	������������������������������������
�
�	��
�����D�����'�����������������������������23�2&�0����	��	��23����������������	����	���
����������������������������������

D������������������������������������������������������������
���������������������23��&�2���	��
�����D������,������������������	����������������������	��

����������������������	�������'��������������23�2&�0�������������"�������	�����������	���	�
�	������	������������������������23�0����
�
����%)'!���	��&�%�'���	
	
#���������������	������������������������	����������������������������������������������������
���������	�����!��	�������������	�������������������,�������������������������������������������!����
�������L��������������������	��������������������������������������������������������������
�
�	��������������	����,���������������!�����������������	����������������������	��������������
���������������������	���������������������������������������	�������������������������������
�����������4����������	���������������������������������������
�

Page 60



�

� � ���

�	�������������	��������������������������������������������������������������������������	��������
��������������	��������������������������������������������������������������������������
����������������������������������������
�
-�������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����������������������	��
�����$��������������������	��������������������	������	������������
#����������������(��������������	���������������	��'������#�����������-��!�(������5��	��
9����������
���������'��������
	
�)�'�!	��	��' !#	'�.	����' 	
'%�	����%)�	
	
�����	������	�������������������������������	����	����������������	����������	����	���������
�
�	����������	������������������������	����	�������	��
�����?��	�����������������	����	�����������
���������?��	������������������>����	�@�F���������:����?������������������>����	�'��������������
������������������������������������	��A�����'��������<��������������/A'<�1?��	��������������
����������������������������������	����	���������������������������������������	������?�
����	����	����,����������	�	�	������������������������	���������	�-����������	����������������
�,������������������������/���	��������������������������������"�������������������������
<���	����	��������������������������������
�
�	��
������	�������������	�����>����	�@�F����:�����:������	�	���������������	�����������
	����	����,����������������������������	����	���A�����'��������<�������������������	��
���������
��������!������������������	��������������������>����	�������	����������
��������������	��

��������	�	���������������	�����������
�
F��	�������	�����>����	�����F���������:��������������������������������������������������
����������������!��������������������!�������������������������������������������������
�����������	��!��������������������7�

�

§� 9��������������>����	�����F���������:�����
§� 9����������������
����>����	�����F���������'���������������������	��A�����'��������<�����

�����������
§� 
�5�����������!���>����	����������������	���������F�������>�����
§� 6�����������������������������������������������	����	����������������

�
§� 9����������������A�����
���������������������	���
§� 
����������������>����	���	�
�
����������	������!���	��
�����������	������	��������	�2323��������������������������������	��
	����	����,����������������������������������������������������������������	������������	����	�
���,���������������	�����������������������������	��>����	�����F����:�����'���������

�

�	���"�������������������	�������������������������������������"�����������������	����	�
���,���������������!���������������������5�����������7�

�

§� :�������������	���������������������	����������	�������������������
§� %�����������������������������!����������������������������������������	��!��������	���

�	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
������	��������������������	�������������������������������

Page 61



�

� � ���

§� 9����������������	���������������������	��4�������������������������������������������
���������&�����������������������	��<>'���������������������������������������������
�������������������������

§� #��������������������	����	����������������������������������������	��������������������	���
	����������������������	����	��������������������������������������������	����	��
������������	���������������������������	���������

§� ��������	���������������������������>����	���	���������������������������������������
���������������������������������������������������,������������	����	�������

§� >����	�����F���������:�������	����	��	��>����	�����F���������'�����������������������
������������������������������������	����	�����������������������������������������������
���������������	����	����,����������

§� �����������������������������������������������������������
�������
���������������������
§� #����5��������������������#����������/F���������������
�������
��������������������<>'��

�

1��
§� (����������������������4��������!������������������������
�
#���������������	����������5��������������������������������������������	������������������������
������������
�
�)�'�!	��	�� ���	'�.	
%�)�	����%)�	
�
�	��	��������������������������������������������������������	��������������������������@�

�����
��������������������%���������������������������<�������������������	��������
���	����������������������"�����������������	���������@�
�������������������������	���������
�
�	��
��������������������������	���������������������������������������������������	���������������
������������������������������������������������	��
������/������	���
��������������	��
%���1����	����������	��������������������������	��
�����������$�������������������������������
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������	�����
�	����������������������������	��%����������	����	�����������������������	����������
�
F��	���������	�����!��������������������@�
����������������������������������������������������
���	���	�������������	���	��������	����������������������������������������������������������	��
���������������	�����������	�����������������������������������������������������������������
���������>������������������������������������	������������������������������������
��������������������	�	�������������������������	�����������������	����������F�����������
������������	�����	�����������������������6��	�23�0��
�
F��������������!��������������	�
���������'��������������	�����������	��%������������
���������%���5�������������	���'����������������������
���������9���������	�	��������	��
���������������4������������������������������������(���
���������'������6�������������!����
����������	��	����������>����(���������������������������	��������������������!����������
�����������������������������������
�
�	������!�������	������	���������������������������������	��	��
��������������������"������
������������������"�������������������	��
�����������$�����!��
�

#� .%��5�	����' 	
'%�	
��!�	
�
�	�����������0B�����������������������	��������	����&�2���������������������3&����������
�����������;3B�������	�������;����������	���	��������������������	���������������������������������
������������������	�����������������������������!�����������������������	����������	�����������

Page 62



�

� � ���

�	������������������������������������������������������	������������������������3B�������������
������������������������������	��������������
�

	����������	�	��������������������/
��1�	������������������������&�2���-��������	����	����	���
�������!������������������
����	�����	����������������.33��������������������&�2���
	����������
������������������������;B������&�2����	�������������������	�������������������������������
�������������3B�����	���������������
�
��������	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���������������������������������	�����������������������	���������������������	����������7���	��
���������������������������	��
�%�����������������������������	��	�������������������5������
��������������������������	�����������������	�����	�����	�������������������������������������
�����������	������$�������������
�
F��	���	������$��������������	��������������������������������������	����������������������
�	����	��	�������������������	������������������	�����������������	����������������#���������
�����������������������������������������������?�����������������������	�������������	����������
���������������������������������������������������������������������������&�����������������
�	�������	�������������	�������������
�
�	��������������������������������������������������	�������������������������������
��������������"��������������������������������������������
�
'������������������������������������������������������������������������������	���������������
����������������������������������������������F�������������������������������������
�����������������������!������������������������������������������������������������	�������
����,����������������������	��������������	������������������������	��	���F���������������
�������!��������������!�����������	��������������������������������������������	��������������
���	����	��
�������������������������������������������	�������������������������
�
#��!����������	�������������������4�����������������������������������������������!�������	�
!�����������������������������������������!�������������������������������������������	�������
������������������������������	�����������������
	
�)�'�!	��	4� �'%�	����%)�	
	
�	������������$����������������������������������!���	��������������������������������������
��������������!����������������������������������������������������	������������������������
��,�������������������������	������
�
�	����������������������	�	�����������	�����������������������������������������������	������5
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���,��������������	�������������������!�����������	�����������������������������������������������
���������������������������������������	���������������������������&�������	�����������������
���������������������������������������������

�����	�����������������������������
��������"��
�����	����������������,�����������������������������������	�����	
�
����������������������������������������	����������������	��������������	��
�����$��*������!��+�
���������	����	��
������������������������5���������������������!����������	����������������
�����<��������23���	��	��������	����������������"����!����������	�	����!��������������	�����!�	
	
	
	

Page 63



�

� � ��/


�%!����'!���	
�
F����������������	������������������!��������������������	�����������������������	�����	����
����������������������������F�����������������	����	������������������������	���������������	���
��������������	�������������������������������������������������������������������	����
����������������������������������������������"�����������������
�
����	��������������!�����������	�����������������������������������������������	������������
�������������������	��������
	
	
	
	 	

	
	
,��	
��)��%	 
  %	�$.�%	�&'��	 .')	,%��)�	
��!�%�)	
#���	�6��$!�&�	 ��'.�%	��	!#�	
�$��� 	 7�%��!�%	��	
�%��%'!�	��%&����	
7'!�.			 	 7'!�.				 7'!�.				
�

Page 64



�

�

���
��������	
���	
���
��	

	 	
�������	 	 	 	 �������	
���������
�����
������������	����


���������		 	 	 �������	��������

������ � � � �����
�������


������	�������	 �	�
����	�������������	


��	�������	 ������	�� 	���	��	��������!����

�������	 �����"	���
�#�"����	 ��	��	����������
��$
���
���


�������� � � � %��&����'(��)�*+,'�
� � � � ����-�	���
�.��/�	���-�	!-����

����� � � � ���0��"�

 �!	����"����	 1	��
	
������ $����
	
#$�����%�	�����!�	 	
	
������������
��	 ������������	��������	
������
���/�����#�$����	�������������!����2�����
�������
�
����!��	
��	��������������	
����������������
�	������	����
�� /��
������
�����2����������3��
��
���
��
����	���
���2�����	��	������������
��	
�	������	
���������
�����
���
��4��
�����

�
�-�
�
%������	���
	2�	����
�������	
��
��
����	����4��
����������	����!�����
�����!���
��
�������	
��������������-�
�
%����	����
��4���	 �	������	
�������
	2����	����������������� �	���)���	�++#��	�����
��)������
5���6����#�()��������5��4��6������
��*)��	2�5����
6����-�
�
%��������������	
������
�/������	�����������	
�	 �	���	 ����������2����
�����78�����!���  ����2�	�
���������
��/���!��
�������������������� 	��	2�
������������������-�
�
�	���
���/�	
����������������������
��������
��������	����	�������2�����������	 ��	
��	��
����	
0��������	
��
������-�
�
%������	�����	��
�������
 	�����	
�	
��	2�������
�����
����4��
����4�������
������	�
���9�
�	���4��
����	���-�
���������

��&�����	�'��	()*(+()*,�	 	 	
	
�������	
�������������������4��
������
����	�3��
�����
�	4:����!��2����������
����
���
�����	�
�����	��	��������
��
��	��� 	������	�����-��%����
�������������	���������
���������
�� ����2����
�
��!����������2������	
��	������	
��	
���4�����	�����!��/�	 �����/��	��	�����	4:����!�-�
����������
��&'�������"	���	��-���	����	.�������'	�'��	��-	��"�����	��&'�������"�					
���'�-��/	�������0	�����0	��	��-�'��-	
�

Agenda Item 9Page 65



�

�

1	
������
������ �����/� �	���������	���4����	
��	������������
�� �����
��������������	������!��
 �
�
�����	����	��������������	
-�
���
�����	��&'�������"�	�1/1	
��'-	��%���!0	
�������!	����!0	���'��	��-	����!0	��"2	
����/�����	��-	#3��'��!0	��%��"��!	��-	
�������!	
���"����	
�
1	
������
������ �����/� �	���������	���4����	���
��/�� ��/��
����������
��� ��/������
������
��������
��
��	����	�
���
��������������	
�	 ������������-�
��
��������-�����"	4	���"��"	���	��������-�-	�������	
�
%����������	�������������	���
�����	&�

•� 1	����
���
�	������������
���	���	
�2������������	�	������	
���������
�����
�-�
�

�'�������%�	�&����"	���"�-���-	��-	���"��"	���	��������-�-	�������	
�
7  ����!��������
�����
����	���������
���
����������
��	 ��
���
����	
��	���
�������������
�
���	���
�������
��	 ��		���	��	������	!��
�
��-��;	���������	
������
���!��	���	
�����
	��
�������4��-�
�
5��2/����-	&�&��"�	 	�
��/�	�������/��	�
����������
�����
���������/��
���	���/��������
��
�������	
����������������
���	�������2	���
��������
3��
�����
������
����
���������������<���(�
���!�	�����	���	
�������
�����
���	��������	��������
�
�/�	����		�
	
;�
� ��1�

��)-�
�=�

>��� >%�*
+)'�

"�� � �	���
��	��

� $%� � ������
��	��

�

�����
���
����%����4��&��%���"	2�#����������	�#����	����/��
��?	!��
�
���
"�!��/	���	
������������4�
������4��56�
�����	
��������	��@��A���

�

Page 66



�

�

*1	 �����-������	
�
*1*� ������������
��	 � �����������	��������	
���� ��
���/�����#� $� ���	�������������!����2����

�
������ �
�����!��	
��	��������������	
��������������� �
�	������	� ���
�� /��
������
�����
2���� ������ 3��
�� ���
� �
� ���	���
��� 2���� �	��	����� �������
�� 	
� 	������	
��� ����
��
�����
���
��4��
�����

�
�-�

�
*1(� %��� 4��
�� ���
� �����
��� �
�� ��������� ��� 4��
� ��!����  	�� ����<���(� �
�� ��������
��

��!�� 4��
� �
������ �
� �	������
�� ������ ��!���� 4��
�� ���
� ��������� �	� �	!��� ���� 
�8�� )�
/�����	���
�����
-�

�
*16� %��� ���	��� 
	2� 	����
�� ���� �	
��
��
�� ��	���� 4��
�� ����� ���	� ���!���� �
� ����!���
��

�������	
����������������
���
��2���������	�
���9�������!��	
��
���	��	��������	�����-�
�
*17� %��� �	���� 
��4��� 	 � 	������	
��� ���� 
	2� 4��
�� ���	����� ��� ���������  �	�� �)�� �	� ++#�

�	�����
��)������5���6�����()��������5��4��6������
��*)��	2�5����
6����-�
�
*1,� %��� ���� �������	
� �� ���
�/� ���� �	� ���� ������	
� 	 � 	��� 	 � ����� ���� 2����
� ���� 78�����!��

�  ����2�	����������
��/���!��
�������������������� 	��	2�
������������������-�
�
*18� %��� ���	��� �
������ �	���
���/� 	
� ���� ����� ���� ����� ���
�� ���� �	������� 2���� ������� 	 �

�	
��	������	
0��������	
-�
�
(1	 5��2/����-	
	
(1*� ����	�������������
�����	
� ����2	������4��
��4	�����#�������� 	���
������!���2����
�

����	������	 ���	���������
�������
���!����� 	��� 	�������	�
�����	��	
��
���	
����
����	!���
��:	��
�/��
�#��
�����������#� 	��������!��	���
��	 ��
��  ����!��������
�����
��
������/-��

�
(1(� B�� ��!�� ����� 	��� �	
��
���� �	� 2	��� �	2����  ���/� ��4����
�� ���� ��
�����
�� �
� ����

�	�
���9��	���4��
����	�����
���
��2��������	����
����	������	
����
-�
�
(16� %����		����	����������	2���������!���
��	 �����	����
����
��������	����	������	!����

���4���2��������
��������	������	
�����������
	2�4��
�����
�� �����  ����!��/#���������	
�
����	
������
��������
���������	
����������������	
��	�����	���
��/���	
�������������!��/�
	 �3��
�����
�	4:����!�-�

�
61	 �&��������'	��"2	��/�"���"	��-	���'!"�"	��	��"2"	�-�������-	
�
61*� %����	��	�����������
�����
����	����	��
�4�����!������!����������	
����������������	�

4�� 4�	����� �
� ��
�� 2���� 4��
�� ���

�
�� �����
��� ��
���� �	� ���� �	��	����� ���
� �� 
	2�
��4���������	������	�
���-�

�
61(� $
� ���2�
�� ��� ������ 3��
�� ���
#� ����
�� ������	�� �
�� "���� 	 � ���!���� ���� ���
�� /�
��

���� ����� ��/� ���!�
�� �����  �	�� ����!���
�� 	
� ������ ��/� ��!���� 	4:����!�� �
�#� 4/�
�	
��	��
�� ����� ���� 	
� �� �������� 4��#� 2���� 4�� ������
�� ���� �  ����!�
�� 	 � ��������	
�
�	
��	�-��

	
616	 �� ���� ���� ���
�� �����	
� ��	��� �
������ C��
�� �����	
� ���	���� �� ��	4�4����/0�������

����
�#����!�����	������	�4���4����	����
�� /���/������
�����	���������������	 �������
��	������	����  ����!��/-�

Page 67



�

�

	
617� �������!������!������� 	���
	2���������	���������������	
���������������	���������	���
��

2	����
���	�����
���
��2������!��	���
��	 �������3��
�����
-�
�
61,� �
�����������	�������	���������	!�����4��	2&�

•� ���&'�	
<� "	���D��	���
�����D��	�
���	����	
�
���
���������	���������-�
����������	 ������
�	����
�����
������������#��=�	������	
���������!��4��
����
 ������
�	� 	����� ����� �
�� *� ���� ���
 ������ �	� "	��� D� �	���
����-� � ���� 2���� 4�� �	���
��/�
����������,��	
���/� �
�	����
�����
�������
�� 5��%6� �	���!��2#� ������2���
���
��
�
�	�������
�	��	���
��/� 	�����	����
��������
��-�
<� �������
9��	����������
%����������
9����!��������������������!������
�	���������!��	
#�>� ��	
��>���
�
�#�>���
���
�
�� ;����/� ����	��� �
�� �������
9� �	����� ����� �
�� ���� ���� �	
��	���� �
� ��
�� 2���� ����
�������
��
��A	�
����	���9�%�������
-�
�

•� �'���	
<� %���������	������������
��/�������
����������������� 	��	2�
�������
�	����
�����
��

����������-�
�

•� 
��&�����	��%���"	
<� ���	�������!���0��!�
���D�3�
� ��0%��
����	
���
����
������!��4��
���!���� 	��	2�
������/���9�������������
��2����4���	
��	�����
����	
������
�������-�
<� ���	����/�D�?	!��
�
���
�����	
��
����	�4���	
��	�����
���
��2����������������
�9�4��
�����
-�
<� ;�
�
��#�7  ����
���#�%���
	�	�/��
������5;7%�6�
%����� ���� �����
��/� �	4��� ���� ��������  	�� ;�
�
��� �
�� �������� �
�� ���#� ���� ������� 	 �
2�����2����
�����	�4����!��2��� �
� �����	��
���	
����	��� ����� ������������
������������
�	
��	���������
�����
�������
���
��!���	
���	�	
�������
��2��������"����	 ����!���-��
%���;�
�
��������
��7  ����
����5;�76�����������������������4/���������
���������	��
	
���	
���	�	
��4���4���2������	�
�����	�4����!��2����	��������������
����	���������-��
%�������
��������	��  	�� ;7%����!��  �
��� ����	!��� �	� ������������ �
������ �
��;�
�
���
�����
���
����	!�����������	
�������	������
�������
��	 ������������-	

�
•� #$�����%�	������	

;	��	2�
�� ���� ����
�� ��������
�� ��<��������� �� 
�2� ���� ������	
� ��� 4��
� ���	�
���-��
����2��������  	���	 ������	
�����
���� �����E�2�/���/F���� �����
��	 ��������
��������
���������������
��/�4��
���	��������
���
��2����������!����4��
�����
-�
	

618� %�����4���4��	2��	2������	����
��4���	 �����
	2����
�� �����
�	������	
���������������
���	������	�
�����
���	2������	�����	
�2�������������	
��	��
������	�&�

�
	
��"2	
���/��!	 ��1	��	��"2"	9	

���	**	
��1	��	��"2"	9	
:��	*(	

��'���-	
��"2"	:��	*(	

��;	��"2"	
:��	*(	

������5"���6� �� )� �� ��
����4���5������6� ,,� ()� �,� ���
��?���
�5>	26� *,� *)� �*� ,�
��%	���� ��)� ++� )�� �,�

�
�

Page 68



�

�

	
	
	
71	 ��-	��"2"	
	
71*	 %��� E���F� ���� ���
�� ���� �
� �����4��� ����� �����
� 2����� �2	� 	����� ���� ��!�� 4��
�

������������
��������4��	2&�
�
��&�������	 ��������'	��"2	 
������"	<	����/�����	
	
#=����>	�#�	�� 	
	
.������0	#����������"0	
������'�/!	4	�""��"	

�������%����;�
�
�����
�������/�����

%�����������	��	
��	����
!���������������������
�������-�
%���������	
���4��
����	��/�
�	
��	�������	����!�����	�
��%9�)��������/���-��%���
�%;����4��
����������	
�
����4����	 ���������0�)�
4����������
����	����
����
�����	�4������
�����	�
�	�
�����
���
������-�

�#?	�#�	�� 	
@������'!	�����A	
	
���&'�	@����"	4	

���������"A	

$
�����
���	����
������
�������������	 �����>	����
"	��
�����	2�
���5>"�6�D�
B�� ������ 	������
���

"	����
��������
�	!���
�������� �2��	
��-��B��
��!���
��
�������
��������
	 �����	���/�
���	��	����	
��
�����
������
���	 �3���D�3���� ��-��
B	���2���������	�����
�	
��
����	��������	����
���!�
���������	����
�-��
B������2	���
��2����
����
����	� �
��
�2�2�/��	�
���!�
���	����
�#���
2������2	���
���	��
������
������	��������!������
����
���	�-��B����!������
��/�
�����!����
 	�����	
�	
�����
�(���	���	��������	�4��
�  ������4/�����4�
� �������
�
�������4����	�2	���2����
����
����	���	����!��/������
������!	����	����
��
2������	�4��-�

�#?	�#�	�� 	
@������'!	>����A	
	
���&'�	@����'��/	
�������/A	

���/��	�����!����  ����
��
�����������
�����
����/����
	���57
���
���  ����
��
�  	���4��������4���
�����������������
������	 �

������������������������
���,6�

%��������	�/����/��	�
��	!�����  ����
�� ����������
�	������4����������
�� 	���
/����	������4��
��8��
����
�	��
������'�������!�
������
�2	�/����	��� �	�����������
� ������������	
��4������/#�
4/�������4������)-��
���!�	��/�������2���������

Page 69



�

�

	 �����
�� 	���2	�/����	���
�������
���������!�
������
�	�������-��%���
�2�
�
�������
��
	2��8������
��������
�����������
��������/�2���������������
�
�� 	���/����	����
�������
��
������!������
��������
���
���
���	���
������
� ���
��
�
�������
�������2����
����
�	�4�����4�������
������
����-��%���7���/�A����
���!����������2
�����
�
����	
����
��
����2	���
��
2������������������	:����
%�����	����
�� /��	��
�����

�2�4�����	���8��
�	
��	�
�8���
����	!��	
-�

�
	
,1	 ��"2	��/�"���	�����������	
	
,1*� �������	
��� ���� �������� ���	��� ��������	
� ����	
� �
�� �	
��	��  	�� ���� ���� ���
�� ����

�	�������2������
���������	2
����
���������-�
�
,1(� �����	����(��
���
���������	
��������	�4����
������	��
��������4�����!����
����!��4��
�

���	!��� �	�����������
�������!����
���
��2�������������
��������
�����
���������/-�
�
,16� ���� �
 	�����	
� �
� 
	2� 4��
�� �
������� �
� ������
��� ���	��� ��	!����� �	� ���� ������	�����

��
�����
��%���� 	�����������	�����,��
���4	!���
����������	
���C�������/�4��-�
�
,17� �	�������������
 	�����	
�	
��
��!���������!���9���������������
�4��	4���
��� �	������"����

	 ��	��	���������D�$
���
��#���������
��������������	
�	��"����	 ����!���-��
�
81	 �����������	>�%�������	
�
81*	 $
� ����0��� ��!	
� ������ ����
������ �	
������� �� ��!��2� 	 � �
 	�����	
� ��
�����
��

����
����
���
�����	������� �
��
��	 �E �
����
����2���
��F�2�����2�����	������	�����
�	�������-�

�
81(� ��4�C��
��/#��
����	
���	����������� �
��
�#�����"����	 �$�%����	���
�������� 	�����	
�

	 � �� �	��	����� $
 	�����	
� >���� �  ����� ?�	��� 5$>�?6� �	� �	<	���
���� �� �	��� �	
���
��
����	�����	����������	 ��
 	�����	
���
�����
�����	������	�
���-�

�
816� %���$>�?9� �
�������������
��2�������	
�����������
��������	��������2�
������
�����	
�

���
��	����
�� /��
����������/��
 	�����	
��	!��
�
������-�
�
817� %���  ���� 	 � �� ����� 	 � �	��	����� �	���
�����	
� 	
� �
 	�����	
� �	!��
�
��� 2�� �
�� �	�

%������/�	����	
���������-��%������/��	���
�����	
�2����4������
����	�������	��	�����
�2���
���
������	!���
�����
��
��	 ��
 	�����	
��	!��
�
��������
�����
�����-�

�
B1	 ��"2"	��-	
��&�����	5�"���""	�����""�"	

Page 70



�

�

�
B1*� ����/�����	 �����������
�����
��������/����	���4���������
�����
���	
�������	
��
�	�

�	��� 4��
�� ��	���� ���� �� ��������� �
��  �
�
����� ���

�
�#� �	���/� ����
�#�
��	:���0����
��������
�����
�#���� 	���
�����
�����
���
��4��
�����

�
�-�

�
B1(� ?		����	�����	
��
����	�4��������
�����	 ������������� 	��	2&�
�

•� �����/��	 ��-	 .�������'	 �'�����/	 G� ;	��	2�
�� �
��/�� 	 � ���� ��/�	���� ���	��#� ����
�	�
���9� ���	���/�  	��� ��� 4��
� ��������  �	�� �*� �	��	����� $���	!���
�� ���	������ �	� *&�
����!�����	2��#�������������	
#���������
�C���������
����	!����!����� 	���	���
����-��%���
����<�(��	��	��������
� �� ���������� ��	�
����	���#� ������ �
����	����� �
�� E������
���
�
�����F� ���������	��
�
��/-	
	
•� ��'��!	��2��/	9	���	�������	���������
�������� 	�����4��������	
�������C�������	�
�
�����������	
�������	
��
����� �	
�������/������ 	�������	�����������	��-	
	
•� 
��&�����!	 .����;��2	 9	%��� �	�
���9� ��4������ ����	���� �	� ��
���
�� ���� ���
��������#� 	������	
��� �
�� ��	:���� ��!��� �� ���	����� 4/� �� �	�����
�/�  ����2	��� �����
���	�
����
���
�	������������
�����
��	 ����������	�����
�����
������-��%����
����
����������������
���2�����������
��/�����
����������
�2���������	
 ���
������������2����4��
�  ����!��/���
�������
�	��	���
����� ���/���4�����-��;����������
��/�	4���
��� �	��"���
�
��	����� 	�����������0��� ��3�
�������
���8�������	
 ���������++-�H�	 ���  ������	
�
�����	�����
�/������!��	���8�����
�������!�����C������ 	���������	��-��

	
•� �������<�������"��&"	����/�����	+	��4�	��<4���#����/<2������!��2�	 ��	!��
�
���
���	�����2�	�������
��������
���������
���2�/��
�������	 ������	������
�!�����
��
��
��!��2��
������������	
�4	��������	�
�����
������������������
����
����	��
�����������	 �
������������ 	�����	�
�� 	���8���������� ��������	!��	
�	 ��������������!�����
������
>	������3���-�
<���	:������
�����
������
����
���
���������	
��	��	 ������	��	�������	����/������
�
�������	4���������
�����
�������
�-�
<� �� 
�2� ����
������ ;����2	��� �� 4��
�� ��!��	���� 4/� ���� �	���/#� ��� 	���
��� �
��
����
������%�����
���������
��/�	��� 	���	
������	
-�%��������
���2����4�������
� ������
�	� �
��	������	
���
���	!��
�
������
������ �	�
�2�����
�����#� ���	�����4/����������	�
��
���
�����-	
	
•� 5�"���""	�'�����/	9	��������
��������������	
��	
��
����	�������		����	�����
�
��4����
�������	��	�����������
�����
����	��� �	��
�4�����!���� ��!����������	
�������
���������	�4��4�	������
���
��2��������4��
�����
������
����
���������������<���(-�

	 	
•� 
��''��/�	��&���"	9	�
 	�����	
�	
���/�������
	2�4��
�����	������	���
��/�
��	
�����4����������!��/#����
���	
��	��
���
��	�������/���� 	���
����
�����	���
�
�2�
�/����	
���/�������	�����������
������	��-�

�
C1	 
���'�"���	
	
C1*� %��� �	�
���9� ����� �
� �����
�� 2���� ���� ���� ���  ���� ��
� ��!�� �� ��:	�� ������� 	
� ����

�����!���
��	 ���/���	�����
��	4:����!���
�����������/#������ 	��#�	
�������!���	 ���!����
�	������	���
��/-�

�
C1(� %����	�
���� ���	�
��� ����� ��� ��	������
�� �
� ����������	 ��
�������
����  �
�
����� �������

�
�� ����� ��� ����� 	��� 
���� �	� 4�� �

	!���!�#� ��	���� ��#� ���	����  	����� �
�� ��	!����

Page 71



�

�

��������!����� 	���	
�/-��%��������!���
��	 �����!��/����
�����	
��	�����!���4�������!�
��
�	
��
����	�4����	��/��	
��	����4/����!��������
������0�)�2���������������	���
��	
�������
������4����	������	��	�������
�����
��%���-	

	
C16� %�������	�����	�	������	
���������
�����
��
	2�4��
����	����� ��  	�����	
� ����	!�
��

���� �4����/� 	 � ���!���� �	� ��
���� ��	�� ���� ����� ��/� ���!�
�� �����  �	�� ����!��/� 	 � ������
3��
���
������!��/����
�G����� �
� ���
��	���� �
� ����� ��������	���!��/�	
�	���	���  	��
��!���������
�#��� ������	���4��	���  ���/� �������
���������	���
��4��
����������#�
2�����	����	
��2�/��	2���������
������������
�����
����C������
��	 ��  ����!���	��	�����
�	!��
�
��� �
� ��
�� 2���� �8���
��� �
�����	
� �
�� �����	����� �8�������	
-� � $�� �	���� ��	�
�	
���4���� �	�������
�� �����	�
���9�	!������4�������� ����� �
�� �	������
�� ����������
���	 �
���������
�� �
�
������������-�

�
C17� �
��	 ��������	
�4�������	 ������������	�����������	������
�������!������
������������

�	�
��������
��  ����!���
���
����	
��	�� ����2	����
�������2������
����������
����
�� 	��
������
�����
��	 ��������4	�������������
��	������	
�����!��-�

�
C1,� %��� ������� ���	��� �	
 ���� ����� 	������	
��� ���� ���� 
	2� 4��
�� ���
�� ���� ���	� ���!����

2������������
���	�3��
�����
�	4:����!���
����	��	
 ���������		����	�����
���4����
��
������
�����
���
������	�
���9�	������	���4��
����	���-�

�
C18� %��� �������	
��� ���� ��
�����
�� ?�	��� �� �	
��
��
�� �	� 2	��� 2���� ��������
���� ����

������	
� �	� ���
���
� ���� �		�� ��	���� �	� ����� �
�� �	�  ������� ��!��	�� �	
���
��
���������	
�	 �������
�����
���	
�������	
����	�����	������	
�	 ������	�
���-�

�
C1B� %���
�8�����	���2����4������
�����	��������	���������
������4�������-�
�
D1	 ��������-�����	
�
D1*� ���4��� 	 � ���� ������ �	�������� ���� �
!����� �	� 
	��� ���� �����
�� �	���	
� 2���� ������� �	�

	������	
���������
�����
�-�

�
���

Page 72



�

�

���
��������	
���	
���
��	

	 	
�������	 	 	 	 ���������	
�
������������
������


���������		 	 	 �������������

�

������ � � � ������
������


������	�������	 ������������
�
�������	


��	�������	 ���
�����������������
��
� ��
��

�������	 ���
�!�����	"�!
��������������
����������#�������
�


�������� � � � $
�%����&'��(�)*+&�
� � � � ���
,������	-��.�����,	� ,����

����� � � � ���/��!�

 �!	����"����	 0���
	
������ #����
	
#$�����%�	�����!�	 	
	
$�����
�������������
����
�1���������
�����������	�����/�������
 
������
��������2��������������
���������	
�
��������� 
��%�

•� ��������
�����3�
������������������	
�
���4������
•� ������
	���
���
•� �����
�	
��
����������5����
����������	�
•� �������4� 
�����
�����
�
���
•� ���������	
�
���������
�����
�
��.�6���
1����
•� �����
�������4� 
�����
�
•� #�����
�����������	
�
���4������
�
•� #�����������7
���3����
��4�����8#7349�
•� �7���/������5
���������	����:������
•� ��������������$������	�
•� �
 �
1������;���#����
���/5����
������������.�
•� 6�������������/���(�

���������

��&�����	�'��	()*(+()*,�	 	 	
	
����������	��������.��
���������
��������������������������	
�
���
��:�
����
��������������������
�����
 �
1���
��
.��������������.���
 
���������������
 ��	�������������
������
� ��
��:;
��� 
�,�
����������
��&'�������"	���	��-���	����	.�������'	�'��	��-	��"�����	��&'�������"�					
���'�-��/	�������0	�����0	��	��-�'��-	
�
0��
�������	���
��������.������������
����,�
���
�����	��&'�������"�	�1/1	
��'-	��%���!0	
�������!	����!0	���'��	��-	����!0	��"2	
����/�����	��-	#3��'��!0	��%��"��!	��-	
�������!	
���"����	
�

Agenda Item 10Page 73



�

�

$�
����������	
�
��������
	.���
��������.������������
��������2��� 
�����	� 
�����
������	
�
���,�
��
��������-�����"	4	���"��"	���	��������-�-	�������	
�
$�
��������������

�����
����
��
����%�

•� 0��
���
���������
����,�
�

�'�������%�	�&����"	���"�-���-	��-	���"��"	���	��������-�-	�������	
�
0����������:�
,�
�
5��2/����-	&�&��"�	 	�
�����
	�������3�
���������������
	���
���
��
 ������������������

��
������
�
�/�	����		�
	
6��� ��0�

��(,�
�&�

7
	� 7$�)
*(&�

!�� � �����
�����

� #$� � ������
�����

�

3��	������	���$��
�:
�%��$���!�1
�"���������
����"��
������.�����4� 
�����
�
!� 
�.����������
����
���:��
���
�:
�8�9����
�������
��
����<��=
���

�

Page 74



�

�

*1	 �����-������	
�
*1*� $�����
�������������
����
�1���������
�����������	�����/�����������
���
 
������
��������2��

���������������������	
�
��,�
�
*1(� $�
��
 �
1��� 
��%�
�

•� ��������
�����3�
������������������	
�
���4������
•� ������
	���
���
•� �����
�	
��
����������5����
����������	�
•� �������4� 
�����
�����
�
���
•� ���������	
�
���������
�����
�
��.�6���
1����
•� �����
�������4� 
�����
�
•� #�����
�����������	
�
���4������
�
•� #�����������7
���3����
��4�����8#7349�
•� �7���/������5
���������	����:������
•� ��������������$������	�
•� �
 �
1������;���#����
���/5����
������������.�
•� 6�������������/�(�

�
(1	 
��&�����	��-	�&��������'	��"2	����/�����	6���&"	
	
(1*� �
�:
���1����:
��1��
��������
����������	
�
��������
	.��� �� 
�����1����
����������,��
�
(1(� $�
���������
�����	
�
��� $
��� 8��$9� ����� ��� ��
���������
� ���������	
�
���4�����

8���49�1�����
������:����.� ���� ��
������
	���������
	���
������ ��
�� 
����� ���������	
�
���
�����
	.,�

�
(17� ���4� ���� �
�� ����� ���
�� ��� ��
� ����� �1
� 
� ������� ��� �
�
� 
� ���� ����� 
� ���������	�

�
������ ���� ��� ������
�� �����
	��� ����� ����
�� ������ ��� ��:��
�� �������	� 	� ��	� ����� ��� ����
�
���������:
���
�
��
������������������

,�

�
(18� ���
������ �� 
� 
�	�	
�� ����.� ��� ��
� ����� ����	
�
��� ����
��� ��� �����	� �1�
������ ��� ��
�

�����
	���������
	���
��:�����������.�������4��

���	�����������	�������
�.
��������������	�
��
���
���� ��� ��
� �
	���
�� ��� ���
� 1���� ����	��	� �����������
�� ���� ��������
�� ���� ��
�
�������,�

�
(1,� ������
�������
������
	����
	���
��������1�:

�������	���*��
 �����������
����1������������1��

��� ���
� .
���� �	�� 1����� ��� 	���� 
 ��
��
� ��� ��
� �.������ �����
� ��� ��
� ����� ����	
�
���
����
�����������
�:
��
��
�������������
	����
 
�,�

�
(19� �������������
�������

���	�������:��
���������	��� 
������:

��
�	�	
�����������
���	�����

�����
�	��	����������	
�
������������	��
�����,�
�
(1:� ����
��������.������.���
������������������	
�
�����
���
��
������:����.������
�3�
���������

����� ����	
�
��� 4����� 83��49� 1����� ��� �����
�� :.� ��
� !
��� ��� ��������
� ����� >�
#�������
������������
����������������������
�������
������
����/����
� ��
,�

�
(1;� $�
�3��4������
��
 
�.�+?�1

�������
 �
1�������������3�
���������������
	���
��"����

������
� �����
 
���� �� �������
��� ��������� ��� ���������	
�
��� ���� ����� ��� ������
�� :����
����� �
�����
���� ���� ���������� ���������
� ����� ��
� ����� ����	
�
��� 6���� ��1����� �����
�
���������������� 
�,�

Page 75



�

�

�
(1<� $�
����������	
�
���6���� ��� ����
���.�@'�"�����
�� ���������� ��� ��
����� ������������	�

����� ���
��:�
��
�����
���� ��� ����
�
�������� �
�������� �������� 
�� �����
��� ����������.������
�
�����.� ����� 
�
���� 8���
/������
�� ������"� ��$A� 
��9"� �������	"� �
����� ���� ���
�.�
����� 
�
����
��,�

�
(1*)� �� ����� ��� ����
� ���;
���� �������
�� :.� ��
� 6���� ��� ����/��� ��� ������
�� ���� ������������ ���

���
���B��,�
�
71	 ��"2	��/�"���"	
�
71*� 5���������
	�������3�
���������������
	���
�����
���
���:;
����������������������	��������B

������.�:�����1������
��
�������������
�������	�

�� ������.������$������
�����.������:��
��
�������	���������������������	��
�����:
��	���
�
��
�����������������

,�

�
71(� ���������	� �
������ ��
� ��1� ������
�.� ������
�
�� ��� 
�����

���	� ��� ������������

�1����

�����
	�������3�
��������� ����������
����� ��
�� ������
����
��

���	�,� ��
������������
� ��
�
���
������ ��� ��� 
�� ���� ���� ������ ��
�����
�� ��� ����� �
	���
��� ���� ��� ��
� ����
����.� ��� ��
�

��
��� 
�
��������
����������	
�
�������
��
���������
,��

�
81	 
��''��/�	��&���"	��-	5�"���""	�'�����/	
	
81*	 #������������������ ������ ����
���+������:� 
� ��� ������
�� ��������
�	
��
������ �����$�����

���
������
���$�,� �$�
�
��
��������� ��
���C����:����D�����
�����
� ����
�����"����1
������
��	�� �
 
�� ����� �����������"� ������
� ����������� ��� �
��������
"� �
�� 
�.� ������ ���� :��	
��
�����������,�

	
81(	 �
�����
���������������������������
�������
�	�������	�
������
�:
����	���
���������
�

���������	
�
�������
������
��:�
��
� ��
��
 
��3�
���������������
	���
������:
�:���	������
���
�1������
�:����
��������	������
������
�����
��������',�

�
817� #�����1��	������
���5����
��������"��������������
����������!
��������
� ��
���
�:
��	����
��

�����
����.��������������.���
 
�����
��������
�� 
���	������
����
.��
� ��
��:;
��� 
�����"�:.�
���������	���
�
�������������
	�����:������������	
�
����
����

���	�"�1����:
��������	���
�

��
��� 
�
����������	��������������,�

�
818� $���� 1���� ��� �
.� ��� ���������	� ��� �
��������
� 
�:
��
��
��� ��� ����� ����	
�
���

������
���������������
��������2����������
�:����
�������
��
�,�
	
,1	 �����'	6�%�������	��������	
	
,1*� $�
��.��
��������
������������������
������������:��
����������	���	�����
��������
����.�����

���������
� ��
� ������ ��� ���
���� ��� ��
� ����
 
�
��� ��� ������
�"� ����� ���� �:;
��� 
�� ���� ���

 �����
���
����
��������������
�������:
��	��
����
��������
�����������������
.������,�

�
,1(� #�� ���������
� 1���� ��
� �#�6�/�37��E� ����
1���� �����
��� ����� ������	�
�� ��� ��
	�

����������"� ��
� �������� ���� �����
�� �� ������ ���
� ��� ��������
� 4� 
�����
� 1����� 1���
����� 
��:.��������������

����(�����������?,�

�
,17� $�
�����
1�����
����
�����������
��������������
�������������.����
�����
���
��������1����

������
��1������
���B����
���������
�����	����	� 
�����
��
�����������
����
,�
�

Page 76



�

�

,18� $�
� �4�� F�����	� 4����� ���� �����
�� ���� ����� ������� �
 �
1� ���� ��� �������
�� ����� ��
�
	� 
�����
� ����
1���� �
����:
�� ��� ��
� 4� 
�����
� ����
�
��� �������
�� ��
� ���������
�
�
G���
�
���������
��#�6�/�37��E����
�����
,�

�
,1,� $�
����������	�����
��
����1��������
��������	
�����������	����
��������2�������������������

����	
�
��������� ��	����:
����
��
��� 
���������������:����	������
��
�� 
�.�����������������.�
�
������:����."�1���� ��
� �����
	���������
	���
�� ��� ����������� ���	
�.� ��������	� ��
� ����
������
��
��4�,��

�
91	 ��"2	����/�����	��-	���	
��&�����!	.����=��2	
�
91*	 #�����*���
��������������
�����
1�����
�
��.�6���
1������ 
���	�����
����.

�������������

���� �������
��� ��� 
����
� ����� ��
�
� ��� �� ��
��� �
�� ��� ���������� ����� ���
������ ��
�
�
��������
"�:
�� �����"�1���"����1�
�	
�����������������������������
�����
����������
�� 
������
 ������������
��
.���������
�������
���������
�����,�

�
91(� ����� ����	
�
��� �
��������
� ��� ��
� ��� �� 
� ���
� ����	
�
��� ����
�
���
�� ��� ��
�

6���
1���� ��� ����� �
����� ����	
��� ��
� ��1� ���
��
�� ��� ��
��� ������:������ ��1����� ��
�
�
�� 
�.������
���������
����������	
�
��������
	.��������������
��������������������,�

�
:1	 �������"��&"	6�%�������	
�

��4���
��������	��	��������������
�������1��������
������
��
�:
������,��$����	���
�������
����� ��� ��
� � 
����� ��������
� 	� 
�����
� �����
������ ����
1���� �����
��� H� ����	��	�
�����
������� 4���
�1����� ���� :

�� ������
�� :.� ��
� �����."� �
��������
� ���� �����
�������
$
��� ����1����� ��� ����
���.� ���� ���� ������������,� � $���� 	������
�1���� :
� ��
�� ��� �����
� ���
��������
� �������
��� 	� 
�����
� ��������
�� ��� �
1� �����
������"� �������
�� :.� �� 	���
� ���
����	��	������,	

�
;1� ��������	��"2	����/�����	6��-�����
�
;1*	 $�
� ��������
� ����� ����	
�
��� $
��� �������
�� ��� �
 
���� 	������
� ���
����� 1����� ���

� ����:�
� �������	
��� ���� ������ 1������ �� �����
�
��� 
� ���������	
�
��� ��	
� ��� ��
� ������
�����������
�����
,�

	
;1(	 ����
���	������
��� 
�����
������1��	���
G�
���.����
��G�
������%�

•� F�������������<�
•� F����������������	
�
��<�
•� F�.�������������	
�
������������<�
•� !�1����#��
�����������<�
•� F���������
�����
����������������	������<�
•� F�������.��������������<�
•� !�1����#�����.��������������	
�
���������	<�
•� !�1���
�����������	
�
�������1������
�����
�
��.�6���
1���<�
•� !�1����#������	
����������	
�
����������	<	

	
;17	 #���������������������� ��
��������������	
�
������:����
����������	�������
��������2�����
�

�����������
�4� 
�����
,�
	
;18	 $�
� ���
���  
��������� ��
������
	���������
	���
�"����
� ����� 
��:.� ������������

"� ��� �����

��:����
�������
����
,	
	

Page 77



�

�

<1	 �����������	���-	�������	6���&	>���6?	
	
<1*� #�� ����/��� �
 ��� ������ �����
������ �������
�� �� �
 �
1� ��� ������������ ����	
�
���

�����	
�
���������
����
����������	����C������
�����1
���
��
�D�1�����1����
����
����������
�������

,�

�
<1(� ��:�
G�
���."�����
�����
������
�������������	�"���
�!
������#�$��
����
��
����
�����������

��� �� ��������
� #����������� 7
��� 3����
�� 4����� 8#7349� ��� ���������
� �� ���
� �������
���
������������������
����������������������	
�
������������
��������,	

	
<17� $�
�#7342�� ����	������

���	�1����
���������������������
�	����� ������1��	��������������

����������
����.���������
����
.�������������	� 
�����
�����
�,�
�
<18� $�
�������������
��
�������������
�������������������������������	� 
�����
�1����
����������

$
��� ��.������ ��� ��������� ��������	� �� �
�� ��� �
.� �������� ���� ������ ��� �����1� �:���� ��
���
��
��������
����������:��	�������������
�1�.���
.�������������
������������"���������	������
���
�
������	�����
���
�,������	
���1
�
����
�����������
�������������������������
�������������

������	
����������������
����

���	�,�

�
<1,� 6����
���
.����������������1����:
��
������������	���
�.
���1�����1����:
��
��	�
���������
�

��������
� �1��
�
��� ���� ����� 
� ���
��������	� ��� ������������ 	� 
�����
� ����
�� ����
��������
�,�

�
*)1	 �����@
�&��	��"2	����/�����	5�������2��/	
'��	()*(	
�
*)1*� $�
��������� ;���
�������.
��2��������������������	
�
���:
���������	����:����������
�����

�
��������
��	�����������2��0���������
��������
����
���������������	
�
��,�
�
*)1(� $�
��������������������������������
B
����
�����������
��
���������1�����1
�
��
����
����������

�������

�����&����
�����,�
�
*)17� ''� ������ ���������
�� �� 
� ��	�
�� ��� ����� .
��� ���� ��
� �
G���
�� ��� �����
�
� �� ��� 
.�

G�
���������
��
��	�
�����
��:�
������������������
�����
�����	���������2���
��������
��	������
��
� ��;��� ����� ����	
�
��� ���������"� 
B�
��������� ��� ����
������ :���
�� ���� ����
���� �����
���������
����������	
�
���
�
�
��������
��������4� 
�����
�����
�
��,�

�
*)18	 3����
�����������.
������1��������
��
��������� 
��	
�����
������&(I������������?'I�1�����

����
�������
��������
��
 
�������C
�:
��
���������
	���
�D����C��� ��	D���
�:����
���1�����
�����
���������
����:������
�CE��:�
��D�����C3�����
�D��
������������
�G�
���������
,�

�
*)1,� $�
������
�
��G�
���������
�����:

����:����
������1
��1������
�� 
�������� 
.��
����������

����������� ����� ��� ���.� �����1��	� 1����� �� �
����� 1���� :
� :���	��� ��� �
��
�:
�2�� ������
�������

,�

�
**1	 ��"2	
���&���	�������/	
�
**1*	 ������������������
��
�����1����.�E��
�������������������	
�
����������	������
����������

E�	���:
�������.����������+������&���.�����,��$�
������
��������
���
��:.���
�#�������
����
���������	
�
���8#��9�����1������ ��
����

��������	
������������������������
�:���
��������
����������.������	
,	

	

Page 78



�

�

**1(	 $�
��:;
��� 
���� ��
������
�1��������� ��
���:�����.
�������
�
��� 
� ������������������
�
��:;
���������������	
�
��"����������
%�

�
•� ������
��������	������
�
�
�	
��
�������������	
�
�����������������
�������1�������������

��������
�	� 
�����
,�
•� J��1�
�	
������
��
����������������"�������
� ����������
�����������	��	�����"���������	����

���
��������	� ��� ��
� ����
��� ��� ����� ��� :���� ������ 
� ���� �
	��� 
� 8����������.� ����
���
��9,�

•� EB������	� ��� �
����� ���� �����	�� ���������� 
B
����
�� ��
� ���� ���
�� �� �� 
�� ��� ��
�
����	
�
��� ��� ����� ��������	� ����� ���
���
��"� ����� ��
���
��"� ����� ���������	� ���� ��
�
�
 
����
��� ��� ����� �
	���
��� ���� ��
��� ���
	������� 1���� �
�����
� ���� :����
��� �������
�������	,�

•� �� ��
���  ������ ��� ��
� :
�
����� ���� ������ 
� ������
�� ��� :
� 
B�
��
�� ����� 	���� �����
����	
�
��,�

•� #�
��������������� ��
�:����
��� ���
�:
����	� ���������	
�
���1������ �����	���������� ����
���1�
�	
������
��������������
��������������������	����������	
�
���1���,�

	
**17	 $�
������
�1���1
����
�
� 
��:.�������
��
�
	��
��1���1
�
��1���
�����
��������
�
�����
��

:.���
�#����������������
�������
�����������
����,�
	
*(1	 ��%��=	��	�����	����-���"@5�"���""	
��������!	
	
*(1*	 $�
��������2�� �:����.� ��� �
������ �����;��� �����
���"� :����
B�
����� ���� ���
����"� ��� �
�������

��:���� ����
������ ���� ��
� ��	���	� �
�� 
�.� ��� ��������� �
� ��
�"� ��� ���������
�� :.� ��
� �� ���
����
������K���,�

	
*(1*	 5����
������������.������	
�
������
����	�
�������
�����
���5����������������5���'**���������

����������1������	���
����#�3���(��������
�1�����������
�,��$�
������
	.����������
�:
��
��
5����
������������.����������
���	��������������������
�%�

�
•� $�
� ��
������������ ��� ���
������ ������ ���� ��
� ������� ��� :����
��� ����
��
�/���� ���
��

�����	�������	�������:����
��������������.����85#�9�
•� $�
� ��
������ ��� �� ��������
� 5����
��� ���������.� #����
��� ����	
�
��� ����� ����

�
�����
������
�� 
�.�������1�������
����������.��������
�����������
��
•� $�
���������
�������
�����������������������
�
� ��	"������
����	������
�������	������.�

���������8
B�
����9����������8���
����9������
•� #��������
���������
�����
���
������� ����	���5����
�����������������
���
���������	���
�

��������������
�
� ��	"�
 �������	���������
�������	������������������
���	���������,��$����
�
���
�����:�
������
���
����������
���������
�
����
���������
����
�7.����.��
�������
�
�
.��
�����
�:�����
�
��������������
��:��
���.��
�������
����
��
�

•� F�
�
� �
��� ���
� �����
������ 
�����������
�� ��
�
� ��� �����	���	� �������	� ����
B
����
�
���	�������
����
�����
��
B
������������
�����	

	
*(1(	 E ��
��
����5����
������������.�:
��	�
�:
��
�����������
���	��������������:

�������	���
�

0�������������
�����0� 
�:
�������������
����
��������
������
������ 
�������
�������
������	�
�������,��3��:����������������
�5����
������������.������
	.�4������
�����
����
�.�1�
��
�
���:�
����
���	
��
�1����
�
� 
������������
���
����
����������1��
���
�������������,�

�
*(17	 0�������������
��0� 
�:
�������
� $�
������
	.�4��������
�������������	����
����
������������������������������1
�
���:���,��

#�� ����� 
����
�� ����� ������������ 1��� ���
��
�� ���� �����
��
�� ��� 
����
� ����� ��������
�
:������	��1
�
��:�
�����
�������
��������"���
�����������1���
�����
������1������
�����������

Page 79



�

�

������������1����
�
� 
������� ���
��
	�����	���
�������
����������������
��7�������������.�
�������,� �3�� ��
� ��.���� ��
� �����
� ��
�5����
�����������������
���
�1��� ���� ��
�� ���� :.�
��(������ ��������������
�
��� 
� ������������������
������
� ����������:������
���	����������
�����
� ��
���
��,��$�����
������.���������.���������1����:�
��������������
����������
���
�������
�
�1�������� 
��
����
������1���
�����
�������1�����1������
.��:;
��� 
��������
����	�
��
��
��������������
���	���������,�

�
*(18	 6�
�������������
	 $�
������
	.�4������
���������������������
���	
��
�1����
�
� 
������������
����
��
�������

1������
��������
� ����������������� ��
��:���
���������
�
� 
���������� ��
�,� ������������.�������
��������
�� �
� ��
�� ����� ��
� �
�
������ ��� ��
�� 1��� �����
�� ���� ���� �� ��������� ���� ��
�
1������1��������
���������
����
����������	
���������
��1�����
��
�,��$�
��
���
�����1����������
�����
�
��� 
� ���
��������	� ��� ��
� ��	���������2�� ��
�� �

��� 1��� ����
 
�� ���� :
����
�
�������������
��1�������
������
�
� 
���
�
�1������� ��	������
���	����������������� 
�
����
�
������������������
�:���
�����
,�

�
*(1,� #����������������
�
B�
����������
�������
�
�������	
������
�F����1��&����	����������
�����

��
�#�$��
�����
�������
�:
��
��:����
������������.�����
���
��1
�
���
�����
 �����
���
�
��������������� �������
������
���
����
�,� �$���� ������
��
������	��������:�������
�������
�
���:
������� ���
��:�
��
������1
�
��
�����
����������������������������������
	.�����

��
���������������
�1�������	�
��������
��
�� 
�.,�

*71	 .���"	���	()*(@()*7	
�
*71*� ��%��=	��	��"2	����/�����	�����/!��$�
����������	
�
��������
	.����:
��	��
 ��
��

����1����������
�	������
����C����������.D����������	
�
���������
�����
 
�
������������ 
�
������
�,����������������������.��
�������
���C��L���D���1
 
�"������ ��	���:�����
� ��
��
�
G���
������ �����������
�L��	��
1������������
����������	��	���
��������� �� 
��������
.�
����������
�����
����������
 
�
�����������:;
��� 
�,�

�
*71(� �����������	6�%�������	H��������
�������������#734�����
 
�����	���������
�
����	�

����������������
��:�
���
����������������
������

����
��������2���
� ��
��
�� 
�.�	���������

����
���	���	��
	������ 
����������
�������
�
���
�����	��
���
���������������������
	� 
�����
�:�
���
�,�

	
*717� ���'��	���'��	����"�����	�'��	H	$��
����
�	� 
�����
������	
�
������
��������
����

����������
�
��
��� 
�
�������
�� 
�.��
���������������
�;�����������������������	�:
�1

��
0!�������
������
 ��"���.�����"�$��:�.������
 ��������.��������,	

�
���� 
���'�"���	
�
*81*� $�
�
������1�	����
 ��
��
������
��
 
����
�����������������	
�
���������
�1��������
�

��������1����������� 
�
�	�	
�
�������
�:
��"����
����������!
��������
� ��
"������
�����
��
�������������	
���H������������
�����������
��:.�����������.����
���
�����������
����	
�
����
��������
��������������
�����
�
��.�6���
1�������������������������
��,�

�
*81(� $�
�����������1�����1
���
 
���
��������� 
�����������	
�
�������
��
���������
�1�����

�� 
�:

�����
	���
�������:����
����������	"�:��	
�"����;
��������
��������
�����	
�
��,�
�
*817� $������������
��������������
�
���
�	� 
��������������

��
�:
�����������
���������
�

� ��
G���.�����
��
��� 
�
��������
����
������������������	
�
�������"��������������"���
�
� ������:������������������	
�
��������
�� 
�����	� 
�����
�����
1���,�

�

Page 80



�

�

*818� 6����
��1������������
���������/�(����
����
��������
�
������	
�
�����������
����:
�
� �
 
���
������
�����
�,�

�
*,1	 ��������-�����	
	
*,1*	 $�
��������������

�����
����
��
��������
���
���������
����,	
���

Page 81



�

�

���#���A	�	
	

�� 	����6#�#��	5��	�����B#�	()**@*(�
�

*1		
�������!	��%���"	>��������"?	C	��&'�������	=����	������"	>**@)*?	
�
K�	���
����1��
���
��
�������
 
�
������������1�.�7�:����
�����
B�����	����������:�
�����:�
����	�
 �� 
�����:
�����
�,�
�

D*0):819:	
�
(1		
��&�����	���&���!	C	��&'�������	=����	������"	��	����=�!	�����	
�����	>**@)(?	
�
�
����
�
���1��
���
��
������
B�����	����������:�
�����:�
����	� �� 
����:
�����
�,�
�

D9,71:;	
�
71		
�������!	��%���"	C	���������	=�''	��	�����"�	�����������	
�����	>**@)7?	
�
����������1���������� ��
������
�1�����	�
� �����
��������������
����	�1���������������� ��
���� ��.�
1�
��������	��

���	�,�
�

D;881;7	
�
81		
�������!	��%���"	>��������"?	C	#���/���!	'�/����/	��-	����	�'���	"!"���	��	�	
5�-���$	������!	>**@),?	
�
E�
�	
��.���	����	�������	���
�������
��������.��
�,�
�

D70;9(1))	
�
,1		��%���"	���	
��'-���	4	����/	���&'�	C	B�'�-�����	��	=�����/	��-������"	��	���	

������"�	-�����"�	>**@)9?	
�
�
�����
���� ������
�1�����	�����������������
����
����������:��
������
�� 
������������������������
:
��������
��:.�
 ��
��
,�
�

D*0(,(1))	
�
91		��	4	��	C	
�"�	��	���������	-�"�/�	���	
�"�����	��'�����"��&	����/�����	!"���	
>**@):?	
�
�
�����
�����
��	��������
����
������1������������	���
������.��
��1���������1���
�:
��������
�
��:���������������������������������
��
�����	�����
������������
�.������
���,�
�

D,0*;91;9	
�
:1		��	4	��	C	
�"�	��	���"�'����	��	-�"�/�	"�'�+"��%���	&����'	���	"����'"	>**@);?	
�
�
�
���������
����	�������
��
���
� ��
�����������:
���
��:.���������������������
��
�,�
�

D(0;,)1))	

Page 82



�

�

�
�
;1		��	4	��	C	��"�����"	��	-�"�/�	�	"������!	��-�'	���	���	#����&��"�	��"�����	>**@*)?	
�
�
�����
�����
��	���
�����.����
�������1����:
������
������������
��.��������
���
�����
���������
,�
�

D80;,81<,	
�
<1		
�������!	��%���"	>��������"?	C	

�B	���	��"���!	����	��	
�����'	������!	>**@**?	
�
EB�
��
����$A������
��
������7�:���.������1��	������������������
�:
����������,�
�

D*0*7;1,<	
�
*)1		#�%���������'	��%���"	C	B����'�	"��""��	'���	��	������	���2	��&��	>**@*(?	
�
���������� 
����
���������������������1����
����
�����	���� 
����
����������
�������
���,�
�

D:0,))1))	
�
**1		��������!	4	6�%�������	C	.��-��/	��	%����	���	(	-�!	#����&��"�	��"2	
����/�����	�������/	>**@*7?	
�
A
��
����
��������
���	������:� 
��������	���� ��
��������������������:.�4����	�
��!
����,�
�

D:;)1))	
�
*(1		
��&�����	���&���!	C	��/�'	��/�"�������	��	����"	��	�

	'��-	=���	���-	��/�"��!	
>**@*8?	
�
$�������
�
���
��
	����
	��������������
���������
��������������������
�7�����
	����.,�
�

D:0,))1))	
�
*71		
��&�����	���&���!	C	�&-����/	��	�"��"��"	��/�"���	>**@*,?	
�
���������
�����
�������������	���:
������
	���
���������������������
�$
���6��	
�����:��
,�
�

D:0,))1))	
	
	

����'	>*7?						D880<<:19:	

Page 83



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

Subject: Annual Report on Treasury Management Activities 
for 2011/12 

 
Committee:  Audit Committee 

Date:     21 June 2012     

Cabinet Member: Councillor Lowry 

CMT Member:   Director for Corporate Services 

Author: Andrew Liddicott (Senior Accountant)  

Contact:    Tel:  (01752) (30)7873 
    e-mail: andrew.liddicott@plymouth.gov.uk  

Ref:    Acct/AL 

Key Decision   No 

Part: I    

 
Executive Summary:  
 
In order to comply with the Code of Practice for Treasury Management, the Council is 
required to formally report on its Treasury Management activities for the year, 
providing information on the progress and outcomes against the Treasury Management 
Strategy. This report covers the treasury management activities for financial year 
2011/12 including the final position on the statutory Prudential Indicators.  
 
The Council’s external loans at 31March 2012 stood at £206.398m. The borrowing 
strategy for the year was to reduce the Council’s underlying level of its long-term debt 
meeting any borrowing requirement with short-term loans (less than 1 year) or the use 
of internal resources. However due to the movement in interest rates and gilts which 
made early repayment of debt expensive in terms of premature redemption penalties,  
long-term borrowing has remained unchanged at £191.398m.  Total loans have reduced 
by £79.985m with the reduction of short-term borrowing as credit condition worsened 
in the second half of the year.  
 
The reduction in short-term loans has also led to a reduction in investments at year end 
of £81.872m, leaving total investments of £83.975m including £21.49m invested on 
behalf of the Heart of the South West LEP in respect of the Growing Places Fund. Of 
the overall amount £46.92m was invested in instant access call accounts and could be 
withdrawn without penalty should circumstances require.   
 
In terms of the impact against the revenue budget, an overall favorable variance of 
(£0.388m) was achieved in the year. This is mainly as a result of savings in the MRP 
charge to revenue and additional interest income achieved from using short-term loans 
as an alternative to the use of internal balances to cover capital financing requirements.   
 

Agenda Item 11aPage 85



2 
 

In line with the recommendations in the Code of Practice, this report is submitted to 
Audit Committee as the Committee responsible for scrutiny of the Treasury 
Management function.  
This report is required to be submitted to Full Council.  
        
 
Corporate Plan 2011-2014:   
 
Treasury Management activity has a significant impact on the Council’s activity both in 
revenue budget terms and capital investment and is a key factor in facilitating the 
delivery against a number of corporate priorities.     

 
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
Into the medium and longer term the Council is facing significant pressures due to the 
national economic situation, which has led to a reduction in resources for local 
authorities over the Government’s latest spending period.  Effective treasury 
management will be essential in ensuring the Council’s cash flows are used to effectively 
support the challenges ahead.  
 

 
Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Section 17 Community Safety, 
Health and Safety, Risk Management, Equalities Impact Assessment, etc. 
  
There is an inherent risk to any Treasury Management activity. The Council continues 
to manage this risk by ensuring all investments are undertaken in accordance with the 
approved investment strategy, and keeping the Counter party list under constant 
review.  

  
Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
 
1. Audit Committee note the Treasury Management annual report for 2011/12. 
 
2. The report be referred to Full Council as required by the CIPFA Treasury 

Management Code of Practice (TMP note 6). 
 
3. Audit Committee approve the Treasury Management Practices for 2012-13 as 

outlined at Appendix 3.   

 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
None- requirement to report to Council on the Treasury Management activities for the 
year.   
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background papers: 

Page 86



3 
 

 
• Treasury Management Strategy report to Audit Committee 21 January 2011 
• 2011/12 Budget Papers – presented to Full Council 28 February 2011 
• Mid Year Review report to Audit Committee 16 December 2011  
• Joint Finance and Performance report for 2010/11 to Cabinet 12 June 2012 

 
Sign off:   
Fin DJN121

3.009  
Leg/ 
Dem&
Gov 

TH0048 HR n/a Corp 
Prop 

n/a IT n/a Strat 
Proc 

n/a 

Originating SMT Member: Malcolm Coe 

Page 87



4 
 

Annual Report on Treasury Management Activities for 2011/12 
 
 

1. Introduction 
 
 

1.1 Treasury Management in Local Government is underpinned by the CIPFA 
Code of Practice on Treasury Management in the Public Services (The Code) 
and in this context is the “the management of the Council’s investments and cash 
flows, its banking, money market and its capital market transactions; the effective 
control of the risks associated with those activities and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks”. 

 
1.2 The Treasury Management Code requires public sector authorities to 

determine an annual Treasury Management Strategy, and as a minimum, 
formally report on their treasury activities and arrangements to Full Council at 
least twice a year- mid-year and after the year-end.  These reports enable 
those tasked with implementing policies and undertaking transactions to 
demonstrate they have properly fulfilled their responsibilities and enable those 
with ultimate responsibility/governance of the treasury management function 
to scrutinise and assess its effectiveness and compliance with policies and 
objectives.      

 
1.3 This report outlines the Treasury Management activities in 2011/12, providing 

information on progress and outcomes against the approved strategy, and 
builds on the mid year report presented to Audit Committee and Full Council 
in December 2011.  

 
1.4 The responsibility for implementing and monitoring Treasury Management 

polices and practices and for the execution and administration of Treasury 
Management decisions is delegated by the Council to its Section 151 Officer – 
the Director for Corporate Services, and in 2011-12 was overseen by a 
Treasury Management Board consisting of senior officers within Finance, 
Efficiencies, Technology and Assets and the portfolio Member for Finance, 
Property and People.   

 
1.5 The day to day operation of the treasury management activity is carried out in 

accordance with detailed Treasury Management Practices (TMP’s). These are 
required to be updated annually. The TMP’s applicable to 2011/12 were 
approved by Audit Committee at its meeting of 27 June 2011.  

 
1.6 The Council works closely with its treasury management advisors Arlingclose 

who assist the Council in formulating views on interest rates when determining 
the Treasury Management Strategy, regular updates on economic conditions 
and interest rate expectations, and advice on specific borrowing and 
investment decisions.  

 
1.7 This report:  

a) is prepared in accordance with the revised CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code and the revised Prudential Code; 

b) presents details of capital financing, borrowing, debt rescheduling and 
investment transactions for the year 2011/12;  

c) provides an update on the risk inherent in the portfolio and outlines 
actions taken by the authority during the year to minimise risk; 

d) gives details of the outturn position on treasury management transactions 
in 2011/12; 

e) confirms compliance with treasury limits and Prudential Indicators (PI’s) 
and outlines the final position on the PI’s for the year. 

Page 88



5 
 

 
1.8 In accordance with TMP note 6, the report is required to be presented to Full 

Council.  
 
1.9 The Treasury Management Practices for 2012/13 have been updated for 

changes in the 2012-13 Treasury Management Strategy and the revised CIPFA 
Treasury Management Code of Practice. The updated practices are attached at 
Appendix 3. These require approval by Audit Committee. 

  
2. The Economy and Events in 2011/12 
 
2.1 Before reviewing the Council’s performance for the year it is appropriate to 

outline the national and economic background within which Council Officers 
operated during 2011/12: 

2.2 At the time of determining the 2011/12 strategy in January 2011, there were 
tentative signs that the UK was emerging from recession with the worst of the 
financial crisis behind it.  Recovery in growth was expected to be slow and 
uneven as the austerity measures announced in the 2010 Comprehensive 
Spending Review were implemented in order to bring down the budget deficit 
and government borrowing and rebalance the economy and public sector 
finances. Inflation measured by the Consumer Price Index (CPI) had remained 
stubbornly above 3%. Unemployment was at a 16 year high at 2.5 million and 
was expected to rise further as the public and private sector contracted.  
There was a also high degree of uncertainty surrounding Eurozone sovereign 
debt sustainability. 

2.3 Inflation : 

 During 2011-12 inflation remained high with CPI (the official measure) and RPI 
rising in September to 5.2% and 5.6% respectively primarily due to escalating 
utility prices and the January 2011 increase in VAT to 20%.  Inflation eased 
slowly as reductions in transport costs, food prices, intensifying competition 
amongst retailers and supermarkets and the VAT effect falling out in 2012, 
pushed February 2012’s CPI down to 3.4% and RPI to 3.7%. This, however, 
was not enough to offset low wage growth and, as a result, Britons suffered 
the biggest drop in disposable income in more than three decades.  

2.4 Growth, Employment, House Prices :  

 Growth, on the other hand, remained elusive. The Bank’s Quarterly Inflation 
Reports painted a bleak picture as the outlook was downgraded to around 1% 
in 2011 and 2012 alongside. The unresolved problems in the Eurozone 
weighed negatively on global economic prospects. UK GDP was positive in 
only the first and third calendar quarters of 2011; annual GDP to December 
2011 registered just 0.5%. Unemployment rose to 2.68 million and, worryingly, 
youth unemployment broke through the 1 million barrier. House prices 
struggled to show sustained growth and consumer confidence remained fragile.   

2.5 Monetary Policy :  

 It was not surprising that the Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee 
maintained the status quo on the Bank Rate which has now been held at 0.5% 
since March 2009, but increased asset purchases by £75bn in October 2011 
and another £50bn in February 2012 taking the Quantitative Easing (QE) total 
to £325bn. 

Page 89



6 
 

 The policy measures announced in the March 2012 Budget statement were 
judged to be neutral.  The government stuck broadly to its austerity plans as 
the economy was rebalancing slowly. The opinion of independent Office for 
Budget Responsibility (OBR) was that the government was on track to meet its 
fiscal targets; the OBR identified oil price shocks and a further deterioration in 
Europe as the main risks to the outlook for growth and in meeting the fiscal 
target.   

2.6 United States of America: 

 The US economy continued to show tentative, positive signs of growth 
alongside a gradual decline in the unemployment rate. The US Federal Reserve 
(the Fed) committed to keeping policy rates low until 2014, although a modest 
shift in the Fed’s language in March, alongside an improvement in economic 
activity, cast doubts about the permanence of the Fed’s policy commitment.  

2.7 Europe: 

 In Europe, sovereign debt problems for some peripheral countries became 
critical.  Several policy initiatives were largely ineffectual; two bailout packages 
were required for Greece and one for Portugal, and the contagion spread to 
Spain and Italy whose sovereign bonds came under increased stress in 
November. Standard & Poor’s downgraded nine European sovereigns and the 
EFSF bailout fund. The successful Greek sovereign bond swap in March 2012 
shortly after its second bailout package allowed it to avoid bankruptcy later 
that month, but it was not a long-term solution. The ECB’s €1.3 trillion Long-
Term refinancing Operations (LTROs) flooded the financial markets with ultra-
cheap 3-year liquidity and relieved much of the immediate funding pressure 
facing European banks in 2012, but markets ultimately took the view the 
LTROs simply served to delay a resolution of, rather than addressed, the 
fundamental issues underpinning Euroland’s problems.  

 Markets sentiment oscillated between ‘risk on’/’risk off’ modes, this swing 
becoming the norm for much of 2011/12 as investors shifted between riskier 
assets and the relative safety of higher quality government bonds. Gilts, 
however, were a principal beneficiary of the ‘risk-off’ theme which helped push 
yields lower. There was little market reaction to or impact on gilts by the 
decision by Fitch and Moody’s to change the outlook on the UK’s triple-A 
rating from stable to negative. Over the 12-month period from April 2011 to 
March 2012, 5-year gilt yields more than halved from 2.40% to 1.06%; 10-year 
gilt yields fell from 3.67% to 2.25%; 20-year yields fell from 4.30% to 3.20% and 
50-year yields from 4.20% to 3.35%. PWLB borrowing rates fell 
commensurately (see table 2 in appendix 2), but the cost of carry associated 
with borrowing longer-term loans whilst investing the monies temporarily until 
required for capital financing remained high, in excess of 4.1 % for 20-year 
PWLB Maturity borrowing.  

2.8 Credit:  

 Europe’s banking sector was inextricably linked with the sovereign sector. 
Sharp moves in sovereign CDS and bond yields were fairly correlated with the 
countries’ banking sector performance. The deterioration in the prospects for 
real growth had implications for earnings and profit growth and banks’ 
creditworthiness. The European Banking Authority’s banking stress tests of 70 
EU banks undertaken in October 2011 identified a collective €106 billion 

Page 90



7 
 

shortfall to banks’ Core Tier 1 ratio of 9%. The slowdown in debt and equity 
capital market activity also had implications for banks’ funding and liquidity. 
These principal factors, as well as a reassessment by the rating agencies of 
future sovereign support for banks, resulted in downgrades to the long-term 
ratings of several UK and non-UK financial institutions in autumn 2011. 

2.9 Appendix 2 outlines the various Interest rates in force during the year.  

 
3. The Council’s Strategy for 2011/12 

 
3.1 The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy was approved by full Council on 

28th February 2011. As an overriding principle, the strategy proposed that in the 
current financial climate the Council would continue to minimise risk contained 
within its current debt and investment portfolios by establishing an integrated 
debt management and investment policy which balanced certainty and security, 
with liquidity and yield. The Council would continue to make use of short term 
variable rate borrowing, whilst at the same time seeking to balance its 
investments across a range of investment instruments. 

  
3.2 Where possible the Council would continue to reduce the underlying level of 

long-term debt with the borrowing strategy for 2011/12 to meet the capital 
financing requirement from short-term fixed rate borrowing or variable rate 
borrowing where rates were lower than those available to the Council on its 
investments. Where borrowing rates were higher than investment rates internal 
resources would be used in lieu of borrowing with borrowing only taken to 
cover short-term cash flow requirements. Capital expenditure levels, market 
conditions and interest rate levels would be monitored during the year in order 
to minimise borrowing costs over the medium to longer term. 
 

3.3 The mid-year report outlined the deterioration of credit condition through the 
year with the increase in sovereign debt problems in the Eurozone changing the 
strategy to a greater emphasis on internal borrowing reducing external 
borrowing and investments further reducing the credit risk of the Council’s 
investment portfolio. This strategy was subject to constant review reacting to 
any changes in credit conditions. 

 
Review of the Council’s Performance 2011/12 

 
4. Treasury Portfolio 
 
4.1 Table 1 shows the Council’s overall Treasury Portfolio at the end of 2011/12 

compared to 2010/11. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 91



8 
 

Table 1 
31/3/2011 
 £m 

Average 
Interest 
rate 
% 

 31/3/2012 
 £m 

Average 
Interest 
rate 
% 

61.315  
130.000 
0.083 
94.985 

 
5.4001 
4.4202 
1.1660 
0.4800 

External Borrowing Long-term:  
    PWLB 
    Market 
  Bonds 
Temporary Borrowing 

61.315 
130.000 
0.083 
15.000 

 
5.4001 
4.4202 
1.1668 
0.2900 

286.383 3.3222 Total PCC Borrowing 206.398 4.4098 
 

31.753 
 

8.7300 
Long-term liabilities 
   PFI Schemes  

 
31.017 

 
8.7300 

3.263 n/a    Finance leases 2.585 n/a 
35.016  Total Long term Liabilities 33.602  
321.399  Total External Debt 240.000  

(165.802) 1.7207 Total Investments (83.975) 1.0564 
 

155.597 
 Net Borrowing/(Net Investment) 
Position 

 
156.025 

 

 
 
4.2 The total external debt as shown above includes long term liabilities in respect of 

PFI schemes or finance leases as these liabilities are seen as a credit arrangement 
thus increasing the Council’s total debt and must be taken into account within 
the statutory borrowing limits. The Council has one PFI scheme, the contract 
with Pyramid to build and run the schools at Woodview campus and Riverside. 
The move to producing statutory accounts on an International Financial 
Reporting Standard (IFRS) basis has resulted in a reclassification of a number of 
leases from operating to finance leases. These were added to the Council’s 
Balance Sheet in 10-11 and previous years Balance Sheets restated as 
appropriate.  

  
 The total investments include £21.49m invested on behalf of the Heart of the 

South West Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) in respect of the Growing places 
Fund. This balance was received in two payments with £6.978m received on 21st 
February 2012 and £14.51m on 29th March 2012. These funds were deposited in 
call accounts with interest credited to the fund balance. The fund will be 
distributed subject to approved bids across the LEP region and over time the 
amount invested by the Council on behalf of the LEP will reduce. 

 
5. Borrowing 

 
5.1 The borrowing strategy for the year, should market conditions allow, was: 

• To reduce the underlying level of long term debt. 
• To manage out the risk inherent in the existing portfolio in terms of 

market loans to PWLB by exercising call options on Lobo’s where the 
opportunity was available. 

 
5.2 After considering the risks inherent in the existing portfolio and the outlook for 

interest rates in the short term, the capital financing borrowing requirement for 

Page 92



9 
 

2011/12 was to be financed from short-term fixed rate borrowing or variable 
rate borrowing where rates were lower than those available to the Council on 
it’s investments. Where borrowing rates were higher than investment rates 
internal resources would be used in lieu of borrowing with borrowing only taken 
to cover short term cash flow requirements. Capital expenditure levels, market 
conditions and interest rate levels would be monitored during the year in order 
to minimise borrowing costs over the medium to longer term.  

 
5.3 Figure 1 below shows the maturity profile of the long term debt for the Council 

as at 31 March 2012.  
 
5.4 The debt portfolio continues to include £130m of LOBO (market) loans. These 

loans have various option call dates where the banks have the ability to amend 
the loan terms and at which point the Council could choose to repay the loan if 
the terms are changed adversely. This is reflected within the maturity profile 
shown above (in amber) to enable officers to risk manage the Council’s 
cashflows. During the year £56m of LOBO loans entered the period where they 
could have been called, but options were not exercised by the relevant banks.  

 
Figure 1 

Plymouth Risk Maturity Profile

0

10000000

20000000

30000000

40000000

50000000

60000000

70000000

80000000

90000000

20
11
/2
01
2

20
13
/2
01
4

20
15
/2
01
6

20
17
/2
01
8

20
19
/2
02
0

20
21
/2
02
2

20
23
/2
02
4

20
25
/2
02
6

20
27
/2
02
8

20
29
/2
03
0

20
31
/2
03
2

20
33
/2
03
4

20
35
/2
03
6

20
37
/2
03
8

20
39
/2
04
0

20
41
/2
04
2

20
43
/2
04
4

20
45
/2
04
6

20
47
/2
04
8

20
49
/2
05
0

20
51
/2
05
2

20
53
/2
05
4

20
55
/2
05
6

20
57
/2
05
8

20
59
/2
06
0

20
61
/2
06
2

20
63
/2
06
4

20
65
/2
06
6

20
67
/2
06
8

20
69
/2
07
0

20
71
/2
07
2

20
73
/2
07
4

20
75
/2
07
6

20
77
/2
07
8

Financial Year 11/12 - 78/79

M
ax
 M

at
u
ri
ty
 i
n
 Y
ea
r 
(£
)

Lobo Maturity PWLB Lobo Call

 
 
5.5 Under Section 3 of the Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations 

the Council must determine and keep under review how much it can afford to 
borrow. The Council is required to set two limits:  

 
• The Authorised Limit – This is the statutory limit which should not be breached. 

This can only be amended with the approval of Full Council. 
• The Operational Boundary – This is based on the same estimate as the 

Authorised Limit but reflects the most likely, prudent but not worst case scenario 
without the additional headroom included within the Authorised Limit.    

Page 93



10 
 

 
5.6 The borrowing limits for 2011/12, originally approved by Council in March 2011, 

were as follows: 
 

• Authorised limits               £368m 
• Operational Boundary       £343m 

 
The revised prudential indicators, as approved by Council on 27 February 2012, 
reduced the limits to fall in line with the Council’s strategy to reduce debt when credit 
conditions worsened as was the case in the second half of the year. The approved 
updated limits were as follows: 
 

• Authorised limits               £291m 
• Operational Boundary       £271m 
 

5.7 The Director for Corporate Services confirms that there were no breaches to 
the Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary during the year. The maximum 
debt outstanding during 2011/12 was £325.959m on 11 April 2011 (including 
£35.016m for the PFI and finance lease liabilities). This was within both the 
authorised limit and the operational boundary. Following the reduction in 
borrowing limits in February 2012 the maximum debt outstanding reached 
£241.414m on 20 March 2012. This again was within both the updated 
authorised limit and operational boundary.   

 
5.8 Table 2 shows the movement in the borrowing portfolio during the year..              

 
Table 2                        Movement in Borrowing Portfolio 

 

Balance 
on 

01/04/11 
 £000s 

Debt 
Maturing 
£000s 

Debt 
 Repaid  
£000s 

 
New 

Borrowing 
£000s 

Balance 
on 

31/03/12  
£000s 

Increase/ 
(Decrease) 

in 
Borrowing  

Short Term 
Borrowing       94,985 (669,585)  

 
    

  589,560        15,000 

 
            

(79,985) 

Long Term 
Borrowing    191,398                    

 
 
      191,398 

 
             
0 

Total 
Borrowing     286,383   (669,585)          0 

 
      

589,560 
     

206,398 

 
            

(79,985) 
 
5.9 In accordance with the Council’s treasury management strategy no long term 

borrowing was taken in 11-12 however as a result of market conditions it was 
not possible to reduce long term borrowing.  Due to the movement in Gilts and 
the resulting reduction in PWLB rates the cost of repaying any of our PWLB 
loans early was prohibitive. No lenders options were taken on any of the 
Council’s Lobo loans and as a result we were not able to exercise the Council’s 
option to repay at no cost. Despite this the Council’s borrowing reduced from 
£286.383m to £206.398m, a reduction of £79.985m in short-term loans offset by 
a reduction in short-term investments.  
 

Page 94



11 
 

5.10 The Council’s underlying need to borrow as measured by the Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR) as at 31March 2012 was estimated at £270.235m  (including 
PFI and Finance leases). 
 

5.11 New borrowing in year 
  
 The use of short-term borrowing has been the most cost effective means of 

financing of capital expenditure and cashflow requirements. Matching short-term 
borrowing with the availability of liquid deposits held in bank call accounts 
lowered overall treasury risk by allowing flexibility to reduce debt and 
investment levels at short notice when credit conditions deteriorated during the 
year. 

 
At the start of the year the Council had £94.985m of short term loans. These 
are generally taken for periods of less than 30 days, repaid and replenished with 
new loans as subject to availability and favourable rates during the year. At the 
end of the year the Council had £15m of short term loans.  
The average period of new loans taken in the year was for 24.95 days at an 
average interest rate of 0.36%. This is below the bank base rate. Short term 
loans are generally taken from other local authorities.  

 

5.12 Debt Repayment 
 

There was no loan repayments made in 2011-12. The reduction in loans is a 
result of short-term loans not being replaced on maturity. 
 

5.13 Debt Rescheduling 
 

 There has been no debt rescheduling in the period due to falling interest rates 
making the repayment of any PWLB loans more expensive. Officers along with 
the Council’s advisers Arlingclose will continue to monitor PWLB interest rates 
looking for opportunities to repay any debt maximising the savings achieved 
whilst maintaining a balanced maturity profile. 

 

5.14 Overall Debt Performance for the year  
 
The average interest rate on the Council’s borrowing has increased over the 
course of the year from 3.322% to 4.4098%. This rate reflects the position at the 
end of each financial year (i.e. 31 March 2011 and 2012). The increase in rates is 
due to the repayment of low rate short-term loans using internal balances as 
credit conditions worsened over the second half of the year. Loan transactions 
were taken at various times throughout the year at various rates and, taking all 
transactions in the year, the overall average borrowing rate for 2011/12 was 
3.9652% compared with a rate of 3.5476% for 2010/11.     

 
6. Investments  
 

Managing Investment Risk 
 
6.1 The Guidance on Local Government Investments in England gives priority to 

Security and Liquidity of investments and the Council’s aim is to achieve a Yield 
commensurate with these principles.  

 

Page 95



12 
 

6.2 Security 
Security of capital remained the Council’s main investment objective.  This was 
maintained by following the Council’s counterparty policy as set out in its 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2011/12 This restricted new 
investments to the following, although as indicated not all of the instruments 
were used during the year:  
• The Debt Management Office 
• Other Local Authorities (not used in 2011/12) 
• AAA-rated Stable Net Asset Value Money Market Funds (not used 2011/12) 
• Call Accounts and deposits with UK Banks and Building Societies 

systemically important to the UK banking system and deposits with select 
non-UK Banks (Australia, Canada, Finland, France, Germany, Netherlands, 
Spain, Switzerland and the US). (Only deposits with UK banks used in 
2011/12)    

• Bonds issued by Multilateral Development Banks, such as the European 
Investment Bank (not used 2011/12). 

• Treasury Bills (T-Bills) (not used in 2011/12) 
 

6.3 The long-term  credit rating criteria used at the start of the year as per the 
approved investment strategy for 2011-12 was amended on 29th November 2011 
as approved by Cabinet to A-/A3 in response to downgrades in credit ratings 
below A+ of many institutions considered to be systemically important to the 
financial system. The downgrades were driven principally by the credit rating 
agencies’ view on the extent of future government support (flowing from the 
recommendations to the government from the Independent Commission on 
Banking) rather than deterioration in the institutions’ creditworthiness. 
 

6.4 Table 3 summarises the counter parties available during the year together with 
the approved limits.  The Counter Party list is kept under constant review and 
counter parties removed or limits adjusted as appropriate.  
 

 
Table 3                    Approved Counter Party Listing in force 31 March 2012 

Financial Asset Category Criteria Maximum 
Investment  

Maximum 
Investment 
Term 

Government Debt Office Central Government Office No Limit 
 

12 Months 
 

UK Banks and Building Societies Minimum credit rating: 
Fitch – Long-Term A- Short-Term 
F1 
Moody’s – Long-Term A3 Short-
Term P-1  
S&P – Long-Term A- Short-Term 
A-1 

£30m  
 

12 Months 
 

Foreign Banks Minimum credit rating: 
Fitch – Long-Term A- Short-Term 
F1 
Moody’s – Long-Term A3 Short-
Term P-1  
S&P – Long-Term A- Short-Term 
A-1 

£10m 
 

12 Months 
 

Page 96



13 
 

Local Authorities Unitary Councils 
County Councils 
Metropolitan Councils 
London Borough Councils 

£5m 12 Months 

Money Market Funds AAA with Constant Net Asset 
value investing predominantly in 
Government securities. 
AAA with a Constant Net Asset 
investing in instruments issued 
primarily by financial institutions.  

2.5% of overall 
investment 
portfolio 

Call 

Bonds Issued by Multilateral 
Development banks 

AAA or Government Guaranteed 
Eurosterling Bonds 

Total 
investment 
£20m or 10% 
of investment 
portfolio 

10 years 

 
6.5 The limits placed on deposits with UK Banks and Building Societies and foreign 

banks were reviewed during the year as credit conditioned worsened with 
problems in the Eurozone and a number of banks were downgraded. The 
Investment Strategy for 2011-12 approved by Council in February 2011 allowed 
for deposits up to 2 years. In practice deposits were limited to shorter periods. 
In May 2011 limits on deposits with Non-UK banks were reduced from 2 years 
to 12 months. In August 2011 UK, Australian, Canadian and US bank deposits 
were limited to 6 months with European banks reduced to maximum maturities 
of 1 month as credit conditions in the Eurozone deteriorated. In September 
2011 all French banks were suspended from the Council’s list of available 
institutions for investments. In December 2011 the maximum limit for any 
deposit for any deposit was limited to 3 months with all European banks 
suspended. Towards the year end credit conditions improved and at the 31st 
March 2012 the limits in place for deposits were as follows: 

 
UK Banks: 
Santander UK Plc. up to 35 days 
Barclays Bank Plc up to 100 days 
Lloyds Banking Group up to 100 days  
Royal Bank of Scotland Group up to 100 days 
HSBC Bank Plc up to 6 months 
Standard Chartered Bank up to 6 months 
 
Australian/Canadian/USA banks: 
Maximum deposit maturities up to 6 months. 
 
All investments made in 11-12 were with UK banks and the Nationwide Building 
Society.     

  
6.6 Figure 2 below shows the actual split of deposits by country/sector as 31 March 

2012. Table 4 provides more detail on the actual deposits by counter party 
group.  These deposits include £21.49m invested on behalf of the Heart of the 
South West LEP. 
 
 
 

Page 97



14 
 

Figure 2 
 

 
 
 
Table 4 

Group Bank/Institution PCC deposits 
£m 

LEP deposits 
£m 

Total deposits 
£m 

RBS Group Royal Bank of Scotland 16.600 4.500 21.100    
Lloyds Banking Group Bank of Scotland 11.450 5.750 17.200   
Barclays Banking Group Barclays 13.020 5.750  18.770 
Nationwide Building 
Society 

Nationwide Building 
Society 

10.000  10.000  

Banco Santander Group Santander UK    6.361 5.489  11.850 
Iceland deposits Landsbanki Island   2.835     2.835    
 Heritable Bank    0.962     0.962    
 Glitnir   1.258     1.258    
Total Deposits @ 31st 
March 2012 

 62.486 21.489 83.975 

 
6.7 The movement in the investment portfolio during the year was as follows: 
 
Table 5                       Movement in Investment Portfolio 

Investments 
 

Balance on 
31/3/11 
£000 

Investments 
Made 
£000 

Maturities/ 
£000 

Balance on 
31/03/12  
£000 

Avg Rate % 
/ Avg Life 
to maturity 
(days) 

Short Term Investments 
(less than 1 year) 149,802 519,915 (590,742) 78,975 1.39%/ 

38days 
Long term Investments 
(over 1 year) 16,000 5,000 (16,000) 5,000 2.65%/ 

118 days 

Total Investments 165,802 524,915 (606,742) 83,975  
 

Page 98



15 
 

 
6.8 The majority of the short term deposits were held in call or short term notice 

accounts. In line with the Council’s approved investment strategy for 2011/12 
the following longer term deposits were taken in the year: 
 
Amount Start Date End Date Term 

(days) 
Rate 
% 

£1.0m 15/04/11 14/10/11  182 1.42 
£1.0m 09/05/11 09/11/11  184 1.41 
£5.0m 13/05/11 27/07/12  441 2.65 
£5.0m 02/06/11 02/12/11  183 1.03 
£5.0m 02/06/11 31/05/12  364 1.41 
£1.0m 08/06/11 08/12/11  183 1.41 
£5.0m 14/06/11 12/06/12  364 1.53 
£5.0m 04/08/11 06/02/12  186 1.04 
£5.0m 04/08/11 02/08/12  364 1.42 
 

6.9 The above deposits have been taken above target rates and increased the return 
on investments in 2011/12. The maximum approved term for new deposits in 
2011/12 was 2 years.  

 
6.10 CLG investment guidance which came into effect 1 April 2010 recommended 

that strategies should show details of assessing credit risk.  Counterparty credit 
quality is assessed and monitored with reference to:  

 
• Credit Ratings (Council’s minimum long-term counterparty rating of A+ 
across all three rating agencies, Fitch, S&P and Moody’s);   Amended to A- on 
29th November 2011.  

• Credit Default Swaps;  
• GDP of the country in which the institution operates;  
• the country’s net debt as a Percentage of GDP;  
• Sovereign Support Mechanisms /potential support from a well-resourced 
parent institution; 

•  Share Price. 
 

6.11 The Council’s treasury advisors, Arlingclose, have developed a matrix to score 
the credit risk of an authority’s investment portfolio. The matrix allocates a 
numerical score based on the credit rating of an institution, with a AAA rated 
institution scoring 1, and a D rated institution scoring 15. This is then weighted 
to reflect both the size of the deposit and the maturity term of the deposit. The 
aim is to achieve an overall score of 5 or lower on both weighted averages to 
reflect an investment approach based on security. The lower the score the 
better the security of the deposit.  
 

6.12 Table 6 shows the rating currently attached to the Council’s portfolio and its 
movement during the year using this matrix.  
 
 
 
 

Page 99



16 
 

Table 6                                    Credit Risk Matrix 
Date Value 

Weighted 
Average – 
Credit Risk 
Score 

Value 
Weighted 
Average – 

Credit Rating 

Time 
Weighted 
Average – 
Credit Risk 
Score 

Time 
Weighted 
Average – 

Credit Rating 

31/03/2011 4.20 AA- 4.75 A+ 
30/06/2011 4.24 AA- 4.58 A+ 
30/09/2011 4.37 AA- 4.68 A+ 
31/12/2011 5.39 A+ 5.35 A+ 
31/03/2012 5.48 A+ 5.42 A+ 
Note : These scores exclude any deposits with Icelandic banks. 
 
Based on the scoring methodology, the Council’s Counterparty credit quality has 
reduced over the course of the year. This is due to the credit rating downgrade 
of the Counterparties used by the Council. All Council deposits in 11-12 have 
been made with UK banks considered to be systemically important to the UK 
financial system. The credit risks score has moved above the target of 5 for the 
year. This target has increased to 7 for 12-13 in light of the credit rating 
downgrades. Council officers are reviewing alternative invests to reduce the 
credit score of the Council’s investment portfolio. Section 6.15 compares the 
authority’s performance with that of other authorities who are clients of 
Arlingclose.  
 

6.13 Liquidity 
In keeping with the CLG’s Guidance on Investments, the Council maintained a 
sufficient level of liquidity through the use of overnight deposits and the use of 
call accounts.   
 

6.14 The maturity profile of the Councils deposits is represented in figure 3. This 
shows a large proportion of deposits maturing in less than one month reflecting 
the deposits in call accounts giving the liquidity requirement to cover any adverse 
changes in market conditions. The Treasury Management Board has set a 
requirement that at least £15m should remain within callable deposits at all 
times. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 100



17 
 

6.15  
Figure 3 

 
 
6.15 Yield- Investment performance for the year 

The Council sought to optimise returns commensurate with its objectives of 
security and liquidity.  The UK Bank Rate was maintained at 0.5% through the 
year.  

 
6.16 Investments are made short-term to cover cashflow and liquidity requirements 

and longer-term to maximise and guarantee future income. During 2011/12 the 
Council invested for a range of periods from overnight to 15 months, dependent 
on the Council’s cash flows, Officer’s interest rate view, the interest rates on 
offer and the economic climate/credit risk. The Council’s treasury management 
officers work to a benchmark rate of return, the 7 day London Interbank Bid 
(LIBID) rate – which is the rate which can be achieved on the London interbank 
market for cash deposits of 7 days and is regarded as the standard benchmark.  
The 7 day rate is calculated on a daily basis and averaged for the year. Table 7 
below compares the average return achieved by the in-house team with the 
benchmark.  An average rate of 1.02978% was achieved for new investments 
(including investments made on behalf of the LEP) in the year against a budget of 
1%. 

 
Table 7 
 

 Weighted 
Average 
Investment 

Benchmark 
Rate % 

Actual Return  
% 

Internally Managed: 
 
£127.035m 

 
0.54 

 
1.3647 

Page 101



18 
 

 
The table shows that the internal performance exceeded the benchmark for the 
year, despite the restricted investment counterparty list and the tighter 
limitations placed on deposits in the second half of the year. 

 
6.17 As outlined above, Arlingclose have developed a set of benchmarking criteria to 

enable comparisons on investment performance to be made on data provided by 
all their clients. To compare like with like the following graphs compare our 
investment performance with other Unitary authorities. This is based on data 
provided to 31 March 2012. The results of the benchmarking are discussed at 
regular strategy meetings with the Advisors. The benchmarking has to be taken 
in the context of risk appetite and the legacy investments that the Council has in 
its portfolio. 
 

6.18 The graphs used for comparison are: 
 
1. Average rate of investments against average maturity period 
2. Average rate of investments against value weighted average credit risk 

score 
3. Average rate of investments against time weighted average credit risk score 

 
 
Graph 1  Average Number of days to Maturity V Return 
 

 
 
This graph shows the duration of investments against return. It shows the Council’s investments 
have performed well against other unitary authorities. Despite reducing maturity periods of 
deposits the Council’s return on investments as held up as a result higher rates negotiated by 
the treasury management officer on the Council’s call accounts.   
 

Page 102



19 
 

Graph 2  Value Weighted Average V Return 
 

 
 
 
As a general rule the aim should be to convert a greater average length of portfolio 
duration into a greater than average return. There should be a positive correlation 
between duration and return. However, this chart should not be viewed in isolation 
from other measured parameters and it should be noted that a high Average number of 
days to maturity does not necessarily mean a higher risk, in fact the reverse may be 
considered to be true in some cases. As can be seen from this graph, Plymouth City 
Council is converting duration into a higher return than many of their peer group. 
However with the maturity of some of the higher rate deposit previously held in the 
Council’s portfolio and the credit rating downgrades for the banks currently used for 
the Council’s deposits the Council’s score has increased over time. Council officers will 
look at alternative investment to reduce the credit risk of the Council’s investments. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 103



20 
 

Graph 3  Time Weighted Average V Return 
 

 
 

Longer term investments are inherently more risky. Ideally authorities should 
move towards the top left hand corner of the graph. Therefore it is preferable to 
see risk taken converted into return at a greater than average rate. This should 
be seen as a longer term goal within the Council’s investment portfolio which has 
been affected by a number of rating downgrades on legacy investments and on 
banks currently used increasing the credit risk score. As previously stated 
Council officers are investigating alternative investments that will reduce the 
credit risks. However this may impact on the returns achieved by the Council. 

 
7. Icelandic Banks Update   
 
7.1 The latest position on the recoveries of monies invested in the Icelandic banks 

is as follows:   
 
7.2  Heritable Bank £3m  

 

The Council received further dividends totaling 17.81p in the £ in 2011/12, 
made up of principal of £0.534m and interest of £0.027m, bringing total 
dividends paid to 31st march 2012 to 67.92%. A further dividend was received 
in April 2012 of 3.79p in the £ made up of principal of £0.114m and interest of 
£0.006m bringing the total dividends paid to date to 71.71%.   

 
 

7.3  Glitnir £6m  
 

In March 2012 the Council received £5.033m made up of principal of £4.742m 
and interest of £0.291m. 

 

Page 104



21 
 

7.4 Landsbanki £4m  
 
 In February 2012 the Council’s receipt amounted to £1.230m made up of 

principal of £1.165m and interest of £0.065m. In May 2012 the Council 
received a second distribution amounting to £0.517m made up of principal of 
£0.490m and interest of £0.027m   

  
7.5 Impairment of Icelandic bank deposits  
 
 In the 09-10 Accounts impairment was calculated based on an estimate of 

future collections. At this point the impairment of the deposits was calculated 
as £5,903,956.28. To cover this impairment a capital direction was applied for 
and agreed to the value of £5.7m. This allowed the Council to capitalise this 
expenditure and spread the charge to revenue over 20 years. The remaining 
balance of £203,956.28 was met by a transfer from the internal Icelandic Bank 
reserve. This reserve had been created to cover Icelandic legal costs and 
losses on recovery of the Icelandic deposits. Following the receipt of dividends 
in 2011-12 and 2012-13 this impairment has been recalculated and reduced by 
£1,284,162.58 so the impairment is in line with the unrecovered deposits. This 
reductions means that part of the accounting entries made in 2009-10 can be 
reversed resulting in a transfer back to the Icelandic bank reserve of 
£203,956.28 increasing the balance in this reserve to £563,886.77. The 
remaining adjustment of £1,080,206.30 reduces the Council’s borrowing 
requirement and the annual revenue charge over the next 18 years. Any 
additional receipts prior to the publication of the 11-12 Statement of Accounts 
will result in an amendment to these accounts and a further reduction in the 
impairment.    

 
7.6 Further recoveries 

The Council continues to pursue recovery of the outstanding monies through 
the Icelandic Courts in partnership with the LGA. The cost of the continuing 
external legal advice has been met from the Council’s internal reserve set up 
for Icelandic bank issues. A sum of £0.020m has been incurred in 2011/12.  

 
8. Revenue Implications of Treasury Management 

 
8.1 The expenditure arising from the Council’s borrowing and lending accrues to 

the revenue accounts. This includes interest payable and receivable, the 
minimum revenue provision (for debt repayment), and premiums and discounts 
written out to revenue from previous debt rescheduling.  Some of the interest 
receivable is passed onto specific accounts where this interest has accrued from 
the investment of surplus balances for these services.  The balance (net cost) is 
met by the General Fund. Table 8 below shows the income and expenditure 
arising from these transactions in 2011/12. 

 
8.2 The net cost of capital financing to the General Fund in 2011/12 reduced by 

£0.388m from the 2011/12 budget due to a reduction in MRP of £0.267m, 
reduced treasury management costs of £0.190m and other cost increases of 
£0.039m. The MRP is a statutory charge to revenue based on the Council’s 
capital expenditure financed from borrowing. The reduction in treasury 
management costs is due to use of low rate short term borrowing as an 

Page 105



22 
 

alternative to the use of internal balances to fund capital expenditure and a 
reduction in debt management costs. Additional MRP and interest payments 
resulted from PFI schemes however this was matched by grant funding. 

 
Summary of Capital Financing Costs 2011/12  
 

Table 8 
 

 2011/12 2011/12 Variance 
 Budget Outturn  
 £000 £000 £000 
External Interest payments   8,872 9,235 3,632 
Interest payable (PFI) 0 2,773 2,773 
External Interest received  (1,593)  (2,080) (487) 
Interest transferred to other accounts   50 140 90 
Premiums / Discounts written out to 
Revenue 

    (189)  (189) 0 

Debt Management Expenses  130 115 (15) 
Treasury Management Cost 7,270     9,994 2,724 
    
Minimum Revenue Provision  7,285   7,018 (267) 
Minimum Revenue Provision (PFI) 0 737 737 
Recharges for unsupported borrowing   (1,588)    (1,512) 76 
Recovered from trading Accounts   (3,332) (3,480) (148) 
PFI Grant 0 (3,510) (3,510) 
Net Cost to General Fund   9,635  9,247 (388) 

 
 
9. Compliance with Prudential Indicators 
 

Under the arrangements set out in the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in 
Local Authorities, individual authorities are responsible for deciding the level of 
their affordable borrowing, having regard to the Code, and for establishing a 
range of Prudential Indicators covering borrowing limits and other treasury 
management measures.  The compliance of borrowing with the Authorised Limit 
and Operational Boundary is confirmed in sections 5.5 to 5.7 of this report. The 
Prudential Indicators for 2010/11 were approved by Council on 28 February 
2011and updated on 27th February 2012 as part of the approved Treasury 
Management strategy for 2012-13. The latest position on the indicators is set out 
in Appendix 1. 

 
 
10. Balanced Budget 
 
10.1 The Council complied with the Balanced Budget requirement. 

Page 106



23 
 

 
 
11. External Service Providers  
 
11.1 Arlingclose is appointed as the Council’s treasury management advisor.  The 

Council is clear as to the services it expects and is provided under the contract.  
The service provision is comprehensively documented.   The Council paid a sum 
of £21,000 in 2011/12 for this service.  

 
11.2 The Council is also clear that overall responsibility for treasury management 

remains with the Council.  
 
12. Training 
 
12.1 CIPFA’s revised Code requires the Director for Corporate Support to ensure 

that all members tasked with treasury management responsibilities, including 
scrutiny of the treasury management function, receive appropriate training 
relevant to their needs and understand fully their roles and responsibilities.  

 
12.2 The CLG’s revised Investment Guidance also recommends that a process is 

adopted for reviewing and addressing the needs of the authority’s treasury 
management staff for training in investment management. 

 
12.3 The Council commissioned a Treasury Management awareness and training 

session from external consultants Griffiths Morley and this was delivered on 22 
January 2010. The Council subsequently provided an updated session for 
members on 10 January 2011. Further training will be undertaken in 2012-13 
following consultation with the Council’s advisors, Arlingclose. The provision of 
1 days training is included in the Contract agreed with Arlingclose for the next 3 
years.  

 
12.4 During the year, the Council’s treasury management officer has successfully 

completed and been awarded a Certificate in International Treasury 
Management- Public Finance (CERT TM- PF). This is an accredited course for 
treasury management specialists in the Public Sector, supported by CIPFA. 
Officers also attend regular workshops and seminars on treasury management.  

 
12.5 The Council continues to keep its training requirement under review.  
 
13 Other Items  
 

Potential for reduced PWLB borrowing rates 
A brief paragraph in the 2012 Budget Report (March 2012) contained HM 
Treasury’s intention to offer a 20 basis points discount on loans from the PWLB 
“for those principal local authorities providing improved information and 
transparency on their locally-determined long-term borrowing and associated 
capital spending plans” and the potential of an independent body to facilitate the 
provision of “a further reduced rate for authorities demonstrating best quality 
and value for money”.  More detail is awaited and, given that discussion with 
relevant bodies will be required, it could be some months before either of these 
measures is implemented. This will be taken into account in future decisions on 

Page 107



24 
 

any new long term borrowing and updates included in quarterly monitoring 
reports to Cabinet and the mid-year and annual Treasury Management reports 
to the Audit Committee and Council. 

 

14. Recommendations 
 
14.1 Audit Committee note the Treasury Management report for 2011/12. 
 
14.2 The report be referred to Full Council as required under the CIPFA Treasury 

Management Code of Practice (TMP note 6). 
 
14.3 Audit Committee approve the Treasury Management Practices as outlined at 

Appendix 3. 

Page 108



  Appendix 1 
 

1 
 

Prudential Indicator Compliance 
 
1. Upper Limits for Fixed Interest Rate Exposure and Variable Interest Rate 

Exposure  
 

§ These indicators allow the Council to manage the extent to which it is exposed 
to changes in interest rates.   

§ The upper limit for variable rate exposure allows for the use of variable rate 
debt to offset exposure to changes in short-term rates on our portfolio of 
investments.    

 Limits for 
2011/12 
% 

Maximum 
during 2011/12  
% 

Upper Limit for Fixed Rate 
Exposure 225 222.47 

Compliance with Limits: Yes Yes 
Upper Limit for Variable Rate 
Exposure 85 -4.00 

Compliance with Limits: Yes Yes 
 
2 Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate Borrowing  

 
§ This indicator is to limit large concentrations of fixed rate debt needing to be 

replaced at times of uncertainty over interest rates.  
  

Maturity Structure of 
Fixed Rate Borrowing 

Upper 
Limit 

% 

Lower 
Limit 

% 

Actual Fixed Rate 
Borrowing in 2011/12 

Compliance 
with Set 
Limits? 

   High % Low %  
under 12 months  50 0 33.48 5.27 Yes 
12 months and within 24 
months 70 0 51.2 22.99 Yes 

24 months and within 5 
years 35 0 16.72 5.22 Yes 

5 years and within 10 
years 25 0 4.56 1.94 Yes 

10 years and within 20 
years 25 0 2.5 2.50 Yes 

20 years and within 30 
years 25 0 5.73 5.37 Yes 

30 years and within 40 
years 25 0 1.97 0.72 Yes 

40 years and within 50 
years 35 0 21.5 19.88 Yes 

50 years and above 50 0 0 0 Yes 

Page 109



  Appendix 1 
 

2 
 

 
(The 2011 revision to the CIPFA Treasury Management Code now requires the 
prudential indicator relating to Maturity of Fixed Rate Borrowing to reference the 
maturity of LOBO loans to the earliest date on which the lender can require payment, 
i.e. the next call date1 
 
(d) Actual External Debt 

 
§ This indicator is obtained directly from the Authority’s balance sheet. It is the 

closing balance for actual gross borrowing (short and long-term) plus other 
deferred liabilities. 

§ The indicator is measured in a manner consistent for comparison with the 
Operational Boundary and Authorised Limit.  

 
Actual External Debt as at 31/03/2012 £m 
Borrowing 206.398 
Other Long-term Liabilities 33.602 
Total 240.000 

 
 
(e) Total principal sums invested for periods longer than 364 days 

 
§ This indicator allows the Council to manage the risk inherent in investments 

longer than 364 days.  
§ The limit for 2011/12 was set at £25m.   
§ The Council’s investment policy for 2011/12 was in the main to keep investment 

maturities to a maximum of 12 months. One investment of £5m was made for a 
period in excess of 12 months in 11-12 well below the limit set. 
 

(f) Capital Expenditure 
 

§ This indicator is set to ensure that the level of proposed capital expenditure 
remains within sustainable limits, and, in particular, to consider the impact on 
Council tax. 

 
Capital 
Expenditure 

2011/12 
Approved 

£m 

2011/12 
Revised 

£m 

2011/12 
Actual 

£m 

2012/13 
Estimate 

£m 

2013/14 
Estimate 

£m 
Total 85.201 78.662 72.472 58.379 28.493 

  
 
 
 
 

                                            
 

Page 110



  Appendix 1 
 

3 
 

Capital expenditure has been and will be financed or funded as follows: 
 

Capital Financing 2011/12 
Approved 

£m 

2011/12 
Revised 

Estimate 
£m 

2011/12 
Actual 

£m 

2012/13 
Estimate 

£m 

2013/14 
Estimate 

£m 

Capital receipts 19.642 20.126 18.526 11.420 5.152 
Government Grants 41.169 30.827 27.656 35.705 22.293 
Contributions 1.474 2.748 2.321 0.846 0.050 
Section 106/Tariff/RIF 6.572 1.857 1.898 1.163 0.050 
Revenue Contribution 0.015 0.950 2.096 0.134 0.021 
Funds 0.000 2.348 2.141 1.355 0.177 
Total Financing 68.872 58.856 54.638 50.623 27.743 
Supported borrowing  0.078 0.277 0.217 0.107 0.000 
Unsupported borrowing  16.251 19.529 17.617 7.649 0.750 
Total Funding 16.329 19.806 17.834 7.756 0.750 
Total Financing and Funding 85.201 78.662 72.472 58.379 28.493 

  
The table shows that the capital expenditure plans of the Authority could not be 
funded entirely from sources other than external borrowing. 

 
 

(g) Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 
 

§ This is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications of 
existing and proposed capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of the 
revenue budget required to meet financing costs. 

§ The ratio is based on costs net of investment income. 
 

Ratio of 
Financing Costs 
to Net Revenue 
Stream 

2011/12 
Estimate 

% 

2011/12 
Revised 

% 

2011/12 
Actual 

% 

2012/13 
Estimate 

% 

2013/14 
Estimate 

% 

Total 7.29 6.90 6.83 8.56 8.67 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 111



  Appendix 1 
 

4 
 

 
(h) Incremental Impact of Capital Investment Decisions 

 
§ This is an indicator of affordability that shows the impact of capital investment 

decisions on Council levels. The incremental impact is calculated by comparing 
the total revenue budget requirement of the current approved capital 
programme with an equivalent calculation of the revenue budget requirement 
arising from the proposed capital programme. 

 
Incremental Impact of 
Capital Investment 
Decisions 

2011/12 
Estimate 

£ 

2011/12 
Revised 

£ 

2011/12 
Actual 

£ 

2012/13 
Estimate 

£ 

2013/14 
Estimate 

£ 
Increase in Band D Council Tax 1.96 0.81 1.28 0.92 5.12 

 
(i) Gross and Net Debt 

§ The purpose of this treasury indicator is to highlight a situation where the 
Authority is planning to borrow in advance of need. 

 
Upper Limit on 
Net Debt 
compared to 
Gross Debt 

2011/12 
Estimate 

£m 

2011/12 
Actual 

£m 

2012/13 
Estimate 

£m 

2013/14 
Estimate 

£m 

Upper Limit 80 78.74 80 80 
Lower Limit 36 36.39 35 35 
N.B. CIPFA has acknowledged that the upper limit does not work as was Intended and 
is working on a revised indicator. This indicator will be amended once revised guidance 
has been received from CIPFA. 

 
 

(j) Upper Limit for Total Principal Sums Invested Over 364 Days 
 

§ The purpose of this limit is to contain exposure to the possibility of loss that 
may arise as a result of the Authority having to seek early repayment of the sums 
invested. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Upper Limit for 
total principal 
sums invested 
over 364 days 

2011/12 
Approved 

£m 

2011/12 
Revised 

£m 

2011/12 
Actual 

£m 

2013/14 
Estimate 

£m 

2014/15 
Estimate 

£m 

 25 25 5 25 25 

Page 112



 Appendix 2 
 

1 
 

 
The average, low and high rates correspond to the rates during the financial year and rather than those in the 
tables below 
 
 
Table 1: Bank Rate, Money Market Rates 
 

Date  Bank 
Rate  O/N 

LIBID 
7-day 
LIBID 

1-
month 
LIBID 

3-
month 
LIBID 

6-
month 
LIBID 

12-
month 
LIBID 

2-yr 
SWAP 
Bid 

3-yr 
SWAP 
Bid 

5-yr 
SWAP 
Bid 

01/04/2011  0.50  0.40 0.54 0.54 0.69 1.12 1.59 1.89 2.36 3.00 
30/04/2011  0.50  0.50 0.40 0.49 0.69 1.05 1.52 1.62 2.07 2.74 
31/05/2011  0.50  0.40 0.40 0.52 0.69 1.08 1.56 1.53 1.89 2.54 
30/06/2011  0.50  0.50 0.40 0.50 0.77 1.06 1.54 1.44 1.82 1.50 
31/07/2011  0.50  0.40 0.40 0.50 0.78 1.07 1.55 1.29 1.53 2.09 
31/08/2011  0.50  0.40 0.40 0.56 0.86 1.15 1.63 1.27 1.43 1.92 
30/09/2011  0.50  0.60 0.60 0.54 0.92 1.21 1.69 1.25 1.38 1.75 
31/10/2011  0.50  0.63 0.55 0.56 0.96 1.25 1.74 1.30 1.42 1.81 
30/11/2011  0.50  0.65 0.58 0.64 1.01 1.31 1.80 1.41 1.49 1.76 
31/12/2011  0.50  0.50 0.65 0.67 1.05 1.35 1.84 1.31 1.34 1.54 
31/01/2012  0.50  0.50 0.70 0.68 1.06 1.38 1.87 1.20 1.23 1.46 
29/02/2012  0.50  0.50 0.75 0.67 1.05 1.37 1.87 1.22 1.29 1.54 
31/03/2012  0.50  0.55 0.55 0.61 1.00 1.33 1.84 1.22 1.30 1.59 
             
Minimum  0.50  0.10 0.35 0.49 0.68 1.01 1.40 1.08 1.23 1.46 
Average  0.50  0.47 0.52 0.58 0.89 1.21 1.69 1.36 1.55 1.98 
Maximum  0.50  0.65 0.95 0.68 1.06 1.38 1.87 1.95 2.42 3.07 
Spread  --  0.55 0.60 0.19 0.38 0.37 0.47 0.87 1.19 1.60 
 
 
Table 2 : PWLB Borrowing Rates – Fixed Rate, Maturity Loans 
 

Change Date Notice No 1 year 4½-5 yrs 9½-10 yrs 19½-20 yrs 29½-30 yrs 39½-40 yrs 49½-50 yrs 

01/04/2011 128/11 
 

1.93 3.66 
 

4.81 
 

5.33 
 

5.35 
 

5.31 
 

5.28 
 

30/04/2011 162/11 
 

1.73 3.45 4.61 5.18 5.21 5.17 5.14 

28/05/2011 202/11 
 

1.64 
 

3.21 
 

4.43 
 

5.08 
 

5.12 
 

5.09 
 

5.07 
 

30/06/2011 246/11 
 

1.61 
 

3.09 
 

4.42 
 

5.17 
 

5.21 
 

5.20 
 

5.18 
 

30/07/2011 288/11 
 

1.52 
 

2.75 
 

4.06 
 

4.97 
 

5.07 
 

5.06 
 

5.04 
 

31/08/2011 332/11 
 

1.48 
 

2.50 
 

3.71 
 

4.66 
 

4.84 
 

4.87 
 

4.85 
 

30/09/2011 376/11 
 

1.51 
 

2.41 
 

3.47 
 

4.35 
 

4.61 
 

4.69 
 

4.69 
 

29/10/2011 418/11 
 

1.45 
 

2.42 
 

3.56 
 

4.29 
 

4.46 
 

4.47 
 

4.44 
 

30/11/2011 462/11 
 

1.32 
 

2.14 
 

3.21 
 

3.84 
 

4.02 
 

4.03 
 

3.98 
 

31/12/2011 501/11 
 

1.21 
 

1.99 
 

3.04 
 

3.86 
 

4.09 
 

4.12 
 

4.08 
 

31/01/2012 042/12 
 

1.29 
 

1.99 
 

3.08 
 

3.89 
 

4.11 
 

4.15 
 

4.12 
 

29/02/2012 084/12 
 

1.31 
 

1.96 
 

3.11 
 

4.04 
 

4.25 
 

4.26 
 

4.21 
 

30/03/2012 128/12 1.28 2.05 3.21 4.17 4.38 4.41 4.36 

         

 Low 1.19 1.93 2.98 3.77 3.98 4.02 3.98 

 Average 1.47 2.53 3.70 4.50 4.65 4.67 4.64 

 High 1.97 3.73 4.89 5.41 5.42 5.39 5.35 
 

  

   
 
 
 

Page 113



 Appendix 2 
 

2 
 

 
 
Table 3: PWLB Repayment Rates - Fixed Rate, Maturity Loans 
 
Change 
Date 

Notice 
No 

1 year 4½-5 yrs 9½-10 yrs 19½-20 yrs 29½-30 yrs 39½-40 yrs 49½-50 yrs 

01/04/2011 128/11       0.82        2.37        3.62       4.21       4.24       4.16       4.10  
30/04/2011 162/11 

 
      0.62        2.16        3.42       4.06       4.10       4.02       3.96  

28/05/2011 202/11 
 

      0.53        1.93        3.23       3.97       4.01       3.94       3.90  
30/06/2011 246/11 

 
      0.50        1.80        3.22       4.05       4.10       4.05       4.01  

30/07/2011 288/11 
 

      0.41        1.48        2.86       3.84       3.96       3.91       3.87  
31/08/2011 332/11 

 
      0.37        1.25        2.50       3.53       3.73       3.72       3.68  

30/09/2011 376/11 
 

      0.38        1.20        2.33       3.26       3.53       3.57       3.55  
29/10/2011 418/11 

 
      0.34        1.16        2.37       3.16       3.35       3.32       3.26  

30/11/2011 462/11 
 

      0.21        0.90        2.03       2.71       2.91       2.88       2.81  
31/12/2011 501/11 

 
0.10 0.75 1.85 2.72 2.97 2.97 2.90 

31/01/2012 042/12 
 

      0.18        0.76        1.88       2.76       3.00       3.00       2.95  
29/02/2012 084/12 

 
      0.20        0.74        1.91       2.91       3.13       3.11       3.03  

30/03/2012 128/12       0.17        0.81        2.01       3.04       3.27       3.26       3.19  
         
 Low       0.08        0.70        1.79       2.64       2.87       2.87       2.81  
 Average       0.36        1.28        2.51       3.37       3.54       3.51       3.46  
 High       0.86        2.44        3.71       4.29       4.31       4.23       4.18  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Table 4: PWLB Borrowing Rates – Fixed Rate, EIP Loans        

        

Change Date Notice No 1 year 4½-5 yrs 9½-10 yrs 19½-20 yrs 29½-30 yrs 39½-40 yrs 49½-50 yrs 

01/04/2011 128/11 
 

 -   2.76 3.73 4.83 5.21 5.33 5.36 

30/04/2011 162/11 
 

 -   2.55 3.53 4.64 5.05 5.18 5.22 

28/05/2011 202/11 
 

 -   2.37 3.30 4.46 4.93 5.09 5.12 

30/06/2011 246/11 
 

 -   2.25 3.17 4.46 4.99 5.17 5.22 

30/07/2011 288/11 
 

 -   2.01 2.83 4.11 4.73 4.97 5.06 

31/08/2011 332/11 
 

 -   1.88 2.57 3.75 4.38 4.67 4.80 

30/09/2011 376/11 
 

-   1.85 2.48 3.51 4.06 4.36 4.53 

29/10/2011 418/11 
 

-   1.80 2.49 3.59 4.07 4.30 4.42 

30/11/2011 462/11 
 

-   1.59 2.21 3.24 3.65 3.85 3.97 

31/12/2011 501/11 
 

-   1.47 2.05 3.08 3.59 3.87 4.02 

31/01/2012 042/12 
 

-   1.50 2.05 3.12 3.64 3.9 4.05 

29/02/2012 084/12 
 

-   1.50 2.03 3.15 3.76 4.05 4.19 

30/03/2012 128/12 -   1.54 2.11 3.26 3.87 4.18 4.33 

         

 Low               -               1.45             1.99             3.02             3.53             3.78             3.92  

 Average               -             1.89           2.60           3.74           4.27           4.51           4.61  

 High               -               2.82             3.82             4.92             5.30             5.41             5.44  

Page 114



 Appendix 2 
 

3 
 

 
 
 
 
Table 5: PWLB Repayment Rates - Fixed Rate, EIP Loans 

 
 
 
 
Table 6: PWLB Variable Rates  
 
 1-M Rate 3-M Rate 6-M Rate 1-M Rate 3-M Rate 6-M Rate 
 Pre-CSR Post-CSR 

01/04/2011 0.67 0.77 0.89 1.57 1.67 1.79 

30/06/2011 0.67 0.71 0.79 1.57 1.61 1.69 

30/09/2011 0.65 0.65 0.66 1.55 1.55 1.56 

31/12/2011 0.58 0.59 0.61 1.48 1.49 1.51 

30/03/2012 0.59 0.60 0.62 1.49 1.50 1.52 

       
Low 0.58 0.59 0.60 1.48 1.49 1.50 

Average 0.63 0.65 0.68 1.53 1.55 1.58 

High 0.69 0.79 0.91 1.59 1.69 1.81 

 

 

Change Date 
Notice 
No 

1 year 4½-5 yrs 9½-10 yrs 19½-20 yrs 29½-30 yrs 39½-40 yrs 49½-50 yrs 

01/04/2011 128/11 -   1.54 2.55 3.70 4.10 4.22 4.25 

30/04/2011 162/11 
 

-   1.33 2.34 3.50 3.93 4.07 4.11 

28/05/2011 202/11 
 

-   1.16 2.10 3.32 3.81 3.97 4.01 

30/06/2011 246/11 
 

-   1.04 1.98 3.31 3.87 4.06 4.11 

30/07/2011 288/11 
 

-   0.82 1.64 2.95 3.60 3.86 3.94 

31/08/2011 332/11 
 

-   0.70 1.39 2.60 3.25 3.55 3.68 

30/09/2011 376/11 
 

-   0.68 1.30 2.36 2.93 3.24 3.41 

29/10/2011 418/11 
 

-   0.70 1.42 2.57 3.05 3.27 3.39 

30/11/2011 462/11 
 

-   0.43 1.03 2.10 2.53 2.73 2.85 

31/12/2011 501/11 
 

-   0.31 0.88 1.93 2.46 2.75 2.90 

31/01/2012 042/12 
 

-   0.35 0.88 1.97 2.51 2.78 2.93 

29/02/2012 084/12 
 

-   0.35 0.85 2.00 2.63 2.93 3.08 

30/03/2012 128/12  -    0.38 0.94 2.10 2.74 3.06 3.21 

         

 Low  0.29 0.82 1.87 2.40 2.66 2.80 

 Average  0.71 1.42 2.59 3.14 3.39 3.50 

 High  1.59 2.62 3.78 4.18 4.30 4.33 

Page 115



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Plymouth City Council 
 
 
 
 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT 
PRACTICES PRINCIPLES AND 

SCHEDULES 
 

2012-13 
 

 

 

 

 

1st April 2012 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Page 117



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
2 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICES, PRINCIPLES AND SCHEDULES 
This section contains the schedules which set out the details of how the Treasury 
Management Practices (TMPs) are put into effect by Plymouth City Council. TMPs will 
be authorised by the Director for Corporate Services and subjected to the scrutiny by 
the Audit Committee, and will be kept under review and amended from time to time 
to take account of the current guidance from CIPFA and developments in local 
authority treasury practice generally, and Plymouth’s practice in particular.  

  Page 

TMP 1 Risk management  3 

TMP 2 Performance measurement 25 

TMP 3 Decision–making and analysis 29 

TMP 4 Approved instruments, methods and techniques 31 

TMP 5 Organisation, clarity and segregation of responsibilities,  
  and dealing arrangements       34   
 

TMP 6 Reporting requirements and management information arrangements  44 

TMP 7 Budgeting, accounting and audit arrangements 48 

TMP 8 Cash and cash flow management  52 

TMP 9 Money laundering 55 

TMP 10 Training and qualifications 58  

TMP 11 Use of external service providers 60 

TMP 12 Corporate governance  63

Page 118



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
3 

 

TMP1 RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
All treasury management activities involve both risk and the persuit of reward or gain for 
the Council. The council’s policies and practices emphasise that the effective identification, 
management and containment of risk are the prime objective of treasury management 
activities. 
 
General Statement 
 
The Director for Corporate Services will design, implement and monitor all arrangements 
for the identification, management and control of treasury management risk, will report at 
least annually on the adequacy/suitability thereof, and will report, as a matter of urgency, the 
circumstances of any actual or likely difficulty in achieving the organisation’s objectives in 
this respect, all in accordance with the procedures set out in TMP6 Reporting requirements 
and management information arrangements. In respect of each of the following risks, the 
arrangements which seek to ensure compliance with these objectives are set out as 
schedules below.  
 
1.1 CREDIT AND COUNTERPARTY RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Credit and counterparty risk is the risk of failure by a counterparty to meet its contractual 
obligations to the Council under an investment, borrowing. Capital, project or partnership 
financing, particularly as a result of the counterpart’s diminished creditworthiness, and the 
detrimental effect on the Council’s capital or current (revenue) resources.   
 
Principle: 
 
This organisation regards a key objective of its treasury management activities to be the 
security of the principal sums it invests.  Accordingly, it will ensure that its counterparty lists 
and limits reflect a prudent attitude towards organisations with whom funds may be 
deposited, and will limit its investment activities to the instruments, methods and techniques 
referred to in TMP4 Approved instruments, methods and techniques, and listed in the 
schedule.  It also recognises the need to have, and will therefore maintain, a formal 
counterparty policy in respect of those organisations from which it may borrow, or with 
whom it may enter into other financing or dirivative arrangements. 
 
Schedule: 
 
1.1.1. CRITERIA TO BE USED FOR CREATING/ MANAGING APPROVED 
COUNTERPARTY LISTS/LIMITS 

1. The Director for Corporate Services is responsible for setting a prudent criteria and the 
Council’s treasury advisors will provide guidance and assistance in setting this criteria for 
assessing and monitoring the credit risk of investment counterparties.   

2. The Council’s treasury management advisors will advise on credit policy and 
creditworthiness related issues. The Council will maintain a counterparty list based on 
its criteria and will monitor and update the credit standing of the institutions on a 
regular basis. This assessment will include consideration of credit ratings from all 3 

Page 119



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
4 

agencies and other alternative assessment of credit strength including statements of 
potential government support, Credit Default Swap information for Countries and 
individual banks. The Council will also take account of information on corporate 
developments of and market sentiment towards investment counterparties. 

3. Credit ratings will be used as supplied from one or more of the following credit rating 
agencies: - 

 Fitch Ratings  

 Moody’s Investors Services 

 Stander & Poors  

4. The approved investment counterparty list is determined by the following criteria: - 

 
ORGANISATION INVESTMENT CRITERIA MAX AMOUNT MAX 

PERIOD 
Government Debt 
Office 

Central Government Office: 
• DMADF 
• Treasury Bills (T-Bills) 
• Gilts 

 

 
No Limit 
No Limit 
20% of overall 
investment portfolio 

 
12 Months 
12 Months 
10 Years 

Local Authorities Unitary Councils 
County Councils 
Metropolitan Councils 
London Borough Councils 

£5m 2 Years 

UK Banks  Minimum credit rating: 
Fitch – Long-Term A-  
Moody’s – Long-Term A3  
S&P – Long-Term A-  

£30m  
 

12 Months 
 
 

UK Building 
Societies  

Minimum credit rating: 
Fitch – Long-Term A-  
Moody’s – Long-Term A3  
S&P – Long-Term A-  

£30m  
 
 

12 Months 
 
 

Nom-UK Banks Minimum credit rating: 
Fitch – Long-Term A-  
Moody’s – Long-Term A3  
S&P – Long-Term A-  

£5m 
 
 

12 Months 
 
 

Money Market 
Funds 

AAA with Constant Net Asset 
Value (CNAV). 
AAA with a Variable Net 
Asset Value (VNAV) . 

20% of overall 
investment 
portfolio. Maximum 
£5m per fund 

Call 

Bonds Issued by 
Multilateral 
Development Banks 

AAA or Government 
Guaranteed  

20% of overall 
investment portfolio  

10 years 

Page 120



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
5 

UK Companies 
Corporate Bonds 

Minimum credit rating: 
Fitch – Long-Term A-  
Moody’s – Long-Term A3  
S&P – Long-Term A- 

10% of overall 
investment portfolio  

12 Months 

UK Companies 
Commercial Paper 

Minimum credit rating: 
Fitch – Long-Term A-  
Moody’s – Long-Term A3  
S&P – Long-Term A- 

10% of overall 
investment portfolio  

9 Months 

Other Money 
Market Funds and 
Collective 
Investment Schemes 

Pooled funds which meet the 
definition of a Collective 
Investment Scheme per SI 
2004 No 534 and subsequent 
amendments 

£10m No set 
maturity 
date 

 

5. The maximum period of lending is 12 months for deposits other than in 
Gilts/Multilateral Development Bank bonds where the limit will be 10 years.  

6. The maximum value for any one investment transaction will be unlimited with the DMO 
(DMADF/T-Bills) or £30m for any other investment. 

7. The maximum limit for bank/group to include money market deposits will be £30m. 

8. The maximum limit for lending to a non UK bank will be £5m. 

9. The limit on investments with non-UK banks will be 10% per country of total 
investments.  

10. The maximum limit for investments in Money Market Funds will be 20% of the total 
investment portfolio with a limit in each fund of £5m or 0.5% of the total fund value. 

11. The maximum investment in Multilateral Development Bank Bonds will be 20% of the 
total investment portfolio. 

12. The maximum investment in UK Government Gilts will be 20% of the total investment 
portfolio. 

13. The Maximum investment in Corporate Bonds will be 10% of the overall investment 
portfolio. 

14. The Maximum investment in Commercial Paper will be 10% of the overall investment 
portfolio. 

15. The Maximum investment in pooled funds, which meet the definition of a Collective 
Investment scheme per SI 2004 No 534 and subsequent amendments, will be limited to 
£10m. 

16. Authority’ Bankers – The Authority banks with the Co-operative Bank Plc. Where 
the rating falls below the minimum credit criteria set by the Council for investment 
purposes the Co-operative Bank will continued to be used for short term liquidity 

Page 121



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
6 

requirements (overnight and weekend investments) and business continuity 
arrangements.   

 
1.1.2 APPROVED METHODOLOGY FOR CHANGING LIMITS AND 

ADDING/ REMOVING COUNTERPARTIES 
Credit ratings for countries and individual counterparties along with credit default 
swaps and market sentiment can change at any time.  The Director for Corporate 
Services has delegated responsibility to add or delete counterparties and to review 
limits within the parameters of the criteria detailed in 1.1.1 and amend the approved 
counterparty list when there is a change in the credit quality of individual 
counterparties or in banking structures e.g. on mergers or takeovers.  Any revision 
to approved counterparties will be based on the advice of the Council’s Treasury 
Management advisors. 
 
The Director for Corporate Services will also adjust lending limits and periods when 
there is a change in the credit quality of individual counterparties. This is delegated 
on a daily basis to the Senior Accountant (Technical Accountants) subject to the 
approval of the Director for Corporate Services following recommendations by the 
Council’s Treasury Management advisers and the Treasury Management Board. 
 
The Senior Accountant (Technical Accountants) is responsible for maintaining the 
Council’s approved lending lists adding or removing counterparties in accordance 
with approved criteria as authorised by the Director for Corporate Services. 
 

1.1.3 COUNTERPARTY LIST AND LIMITS 
A full individual list of counterparties based on the criteria will be maintained and 
approved by the Director for Corporate Services under delegated authority.  
 

1.1.4 COUNTRY, SECTOR AND GROUP LISTINGS OF COUNTERPARTIES 
AND LIMITS 
Investments will be displayed so as to show total group exposure, total country 
exposure and total sector exposure. Group limits have been set for the above as set 
out in the criteria in 1.1.1. 

 
1.1.5 DETAILS OF CREDIT RATING AGENCIES’ SERVICES AND THEIR 

APPLICATIONS 
The Council considers the ratings of all 3 rating agencies (Standard & Poor’s, 
Moody’s and Fitch), as supplied by its Treasury Management advisers Arlingclose, 
when making investment decisions Credit rating information is just one of a range of 
instruments used to assess creditworthiness of institutions. The Council applies a 
minimum rating criteria based on the lowest denominator of the 3 rating agencies 
and where one of the ratings falls below the minimum the counterparty will be 
removed from the Council’s approved list of investment counterparties for new 

Page 122



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
7 

investments. Where investments are already in place advice is sought from the 
Councils advisers as to what action should be taken including the possibility of 
requesting the termination of the investment subject to the agreement of the 
counterparty. 
 

1.1.6 DESCRIPTION OF THE GENERAL APPROACH TO 
COLLECTING/USING INFORMATION OTHER THAN CREDIT 
RATINGS FOR COUNTERPARTY RISK ASSESSMENT 
The Council’s Treasury Advisor, Arlingclose, provides timely information on 
counterparties, in terms of credit rating updates and economic summaries. Credit 
default swap information is received monthly, as well as information on share prices. 
Share prices of the counterparties used for investments are monitored on a daily 
basis by the Corporate Accountants (Technical) team with any variation in share 
price reported to the Treasury Management board via e-mail. Where movements 
are above 10% or within 10% of the year low further investigation is undertaken 
and/or advice sought from Arlingclose as to reasons and this is reported to 
members of the Treasury Management Board via e-mail.   

 
In addition the Senior Accountant (Technical) reads quality financial press for 
information on Counterparties with any news impacting on investments reported to 
the Treasury Management board and the advice of the Council’s Treasury 
Management advisers sought. 
 
Other information sources used for monitoring the creditworthiness of 
counterparties are: 
 

• Central Banks 
• Government Departments 
• Debt management Office 
• Multilateral agencies 
• Multilateral development banks 
• Newspaper and periodicals and internet 
• Financial data providers 
• Professional bodies and associations 
• Annual reports of Banks and Building Societies 
• Rating agencies 
• Bank and Building Society websites 

 
1.2 LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk that cash will not be available when it is needed, that ineffective 
management of liquidity creates additional unbudgeted costs, and that the Council’s 
business/service objectives will be compromised.  

Page 123



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
8 

 
Principle 
 
The Director for Corporate Services will ensure the Council has adequate though not 
excessive cash resources, borrowing arrangements, overdraft or standby facilities to enable it 
at all times to have the level of funds available to it which are necessary for the achievement 
of its business/service objectives.    
 
The council will only borrow in advance of need where there is a clear business case for 
doing so and will only do so for the current capital programme or to finance future debt 
maturities. 
 
Schedule: 
 
1.2.1 AMOUNTS OF APPROVED MINIMUM CASH BALANCES AND SHORT 

TERM INVESTMENTS 
 

CASH FLOW AND CASH BALANCES 
 

The Council will aim for effective cash flow forecasting and monitoring of cash 
balances and will maintain a rolling 12 month cash flow forecast. 

 
The Treasury team shall seek to optimise the balance held in the Council’s main 
bank accounts at the close of each working day in order to minimise the amount of 
bank overdraft interest payable or maximise the interest that can be earned. 
 
Borrowing or lending shall be arranged in order to achieve this aim. The Treasury 
Management Team carries out daily activity with the objective of leaving the Council 
with a nil balance.  The arrangements with the bank are such that no interest is 
received on balances in hand but an overdraft facility has been provided. 
 
In order to achieve the maximum return from investments a daily cash balance of +/- 
£100,000 is the objective for the Council’s bank account. 
 
SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS 
 
The Council uses various Reserve accounts/Money Market Funds to manage liquidity 
requirements. These accounts/Funds are named on the Council’s approved 
counterparty list. The maximum balance on each of these accounts is reviewed and 
set as part of the Council’s investment strategy. To cover liquidity requirements a 
minimum balance of £15m is available on call at all times. 
 

1.2.2  Details of: 
• Standby facilities 
Up to 3.30 pm (the Chaps payment cut off time) payments can be made to any of 
the Council’s deposit account facilities with approved banks subject to counterparty 

Page 124



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
9 

limits. Any unexpected surplus funds can be lodged in these accounts. These 
accounts are available on call to cover daily cash flow requirements. Where funds 
are received by the Council after 3.30 pm any forecast surplus balance will be 
deposited in the Council’s Co-operative bank Public Sector Reserve account 
receiving tiered interest rates depending on the size of deposits. These funds will 
only be held in this account overnight or over the weekend and the balance will be 
withdrawn to be added to cashflow balances on the next working day. 
• Bank overdraft arrangements 
A £2.4m overdraft has been agreed as part of the bank tender. The overdraft is 
assessed on a group basis for the Council’s accounts. The overdraft rate agreed in 
the contract with the bank is 2% above base up to £100,000 and 5% above base for 
over £100,000 
• Short-term borrowing facilities 
The Council has access to temporary borrowing of up to 364 days through approved 
brokers on the money market. When the Council is able to forecast in advance that 
it will have a short term borrowing requirement on a particular day, in advance the 
Council will contact brokers with a view to securing some or all of the required 
borrowing subject to interest rates at that time. The approved brokers have been 
provided with the details of staff that are authorised to negotiate deals on behalf of 
the Council. At no time will the outstanding total of temporary and long-term 
borrowing together with any bank overdraft exceed the Prudential Indicator for the 
Authorised Borrowing Limit agreed by the Council before the start of each financial 
year. 
• Insurance/guarantee facilities 
No liquidity insurance/guarantee facilities have been made. 

 
1.2.3 POLICY IN TERMS OF BORROWING IN AVANCE OF NEED 
 

The Council will consider borrowing in advance to cover the capital programme in 
future years or to fund future debt maturities as part of its annual strategy. The 
Director for Corporate Services will monitor interest rates and credit risk and will 
consider such borrowing only where there is a clear business case for doing so.  

 
1.3  INTEREST RATE RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that unexpected changes in interest rates expose the Council to 
greater costs or a shortfall in income than have been budgeted for.  The Council will seek 
to minimise this risk by seeking expert advice on forecasts of interest rates from treasury 
management consultants and using this in formulating its strategy for the coming year for 
the investment and debt portfolios.  It will also determine appropriate limits and trigger 
points. These limits and strategy are set out in the annual Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement. This strategy will be periodically reviewed during the relevant year to see 
whether any modifications are required in the light of actual movements in interest rates. 
 
 
 

Page 125



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
10 

Principle: 
 
This organisation will manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates with a view to 
containing its interest costs, or securing its interest revenues, in accordance with the 
amounts provided in its budgetary arrangements as amended in accordance with TMP6 
Reporting requirements and management information arrangements. 
 
It will achieve this by the prudent use of the council’s approved instruments, methods and 
techniques, primarily to create stability and certainty of costs and revenues, but at the same 
time retaining a sufficient degree of flexibility to take advantage of unexpected, potentially 
advantageous changes in the level or structure of interest rates. This should be the subject 
to the consideration and, if required, approval of any policy or budgetary implications. 
 
It will ensure that any hedging tools such as derivatives are only used for the management of 
risk and the prudent management of financial affairs and that the policy for the use of 
derivatives is clearly detailed in the annual strategy. 
 
Schedule: 
 
1.3.1 Minimum/maximum proportion of fixed/variable rate debt interest 
 Borrowing/investments may be at a fixed or variable rate. 
 

The Prudential Code requires the Council to determine each year the maximum 
proportion of interest payable on net borrowing which is subject to fixed and variable 
interest rates.  This is set each year as part of the annual budget setting process.  

 
In setting its forward Treasury Strategy on an annual basis, the Council will determine 
the necessary degree of certainty required for its plans and budgets but will, at the 
same time, allow sufficient flexibility enable it to benefit from potentially advantageous 
changes in market conditions and level of interest rates and also to mitigate the 
effects of potentially disadvantageous changes. 

 
The Council will achieve this by the prudent use of its approved financing and 
investment instruments, methods and techniques, primarily to create stability and 
certainty of costs and revenues, but at the same time retaining a sufficient degree of 
flexibility. 

 
1.3.2 Details of approved interest rate exposure limits 

The Council appointed Arlingclose Ltd. as a treasury management adviser to the 
council and part of their services is to assist the Council to formulate a view on 
interest rates. The Council may have exposure to fixed as well as variable borrowing 
interest rates. The Council’s net exposure to variable interest rates is determined by 
the difference between money borrowed, and money lent out at any point in time 
which is at variable rates. However, the Council is also mindful that at any time its 
exposure depends also on fixed rate borrowings and lending which are due to 
mature within 12 months. In managing overall debt the Council may consider 
restructuring long-term debt into short-term debt to produce savings during periods 

Page 126



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
11 

in which short-term borrowing rates are lower and long-term borrowing rates are 
not expected to rise in the near future.  The interest rate exposure limits are stated 
in the Annual Treasury Management Strategy and adjustments will be made during 
the year when necessary subject to approval by full Council. 

 
1.3.3 Trigger points and other guidelines for managing changes to interest rate 

levels 
The main impact of changes in interest levels is to monies borrowed and invested at 
variable rates of interest. The Treasury Management Strategy report outlines the 
view on interest rates for the year.  The expected change in long term as well as 
short-term interest rates will determine the borrowing strategy to be implemented.  
Subsequently, in conjunction with the Council’s treasury advisers, officers will 
continually monitor both the prevailing interest rates and the market forecasts and 
adopt a pragmatic approach to any changing market conditions. More detailed 
information is provided, along with the limits for fixed and variable rate exposure, in 
the Council’s annual Treasury Management strategy report. 
 
The Council will consider matching borrowing at variable rates with investments 
similarly exposed to changes in interest rates as a way of mitigating any adverse 
budgetary impact.  
 

1.3.4 Policies concerning the use of financial derivatives and other instruments 
for interest rate management. 

a. forward dealing 
Consideration will be given to dealing from forward periods dependent upon market 
conditions. When the term of a loan from deal date to maturity date exceeds 365 
days and the term of a deposit from deal date to maturity date exceeds 1 month the 
approval of the Director for Corporate Services or Assistant Director of Finance, 
Assets & Efficiencies is required. 
 

b. callable deposits 
The Council will use callable deposits as part of its Annual Investment Strategy (AIS). 
The credit criteria and maximum periods are set out in the Schedule of Specified and 
Non Specified Investments appended to the AIS. Callable deposits with maturity 
dates beyond 1 month will be taken subject to the approval of the Director for 
Corporate Services or Assistant Director of Finance, Assets & Efficiencies. 
 

c. LOBOS (borrowing under lender’s option/borrower’s option) 
The Council considers the use of LOBOs as part of its annual borrowing strategy. 
LOBO rates are periodically monitored and may be taken subject to the approval of 
the Director for Corporate Services or Assistant Director of Finance, Assets & 
Efficiencies. 
 

Page 127



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
12 

d. Derivatives to hedge against interest rate risk. 
An example would be an interest rate swap used to exchange variable interest rates 
for fixed interest rates or vice versa reducing the risk of exposure to large levels of 
variable or fixed debt and balancing this against the mixture of variable and fixed rate 
investments.   

 
Currently Local Authorities’ legal powers to use derivative instruments remain 
unclear. The General Power of Competence enshrined in the Localism Bill is not 
sufficiently explicit. Consequently the Authority does not intend to use derivatives. 

 
Should the position change, the Council may seek to develop a detailed and robust 
risk management framework governing the use of derivatives such as interest swaps 
and options, but this change in strategy will require Full Council approval. 
 

1.4  EXCHANGE RATE 
 
Exchange rate risk is the risk that fluctuations in foreign exchange rates create an 
unexpected or unbudgeted burden on the Council’s finances against which the Council has 
failed to protect itself adequately. 
 

Principle: 

The Council will ensure that it protects itself adequately against the risk of fluctuations in 
foreign exchange rates creating an unexpected or unbudgeted burden on the Council's 
finances. It will manage any exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates so as to minimise any 
detrimental impact on its budgeted income/expenditure levels. 

Schedule: 

1.4.1 Exchange rate risk management 

This Council does not, on a day to day basis, have foreign currency transactions or receipts.  
Any receipt of foreign currency will be converted to sterling at the earliest opportunity.  
 
If the Council has a contractual obligation to make a payment in a currency other than 
sterling then forward foreign exchange transactions will be considered, with professional 
advice. 
 
At the present time statute prevents the Council borrowing in currencies other than 
Sterling.  The Council has also determined that all its investments will be in Sterling.  

 
 

1.5  REFINANCING RISK MANAGEMENT 

Refinancing risk is the risk that maturing borrowings, capital, project or partnership 
financings cannot be refinanced on terms that reflect the provisions made by the organisation 
for those refinancings, both capital and current (revenue), and/or that the terms are 
inconsistent with prevailing market conditions at the time. 

Page 128



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
13 

 
Principle: 
 
The Council will ensure that its borrowing, private financing and partnership arrangements 
are negotiated, structured and documented, and the maturity profile of the monies so raised 
are managed, with a view to obtaining offer terms for renewal or refinancing, if required, 
which are competitive and as favourable to the organisation as can reasonably be achieved in 
the light of market conditions prevailing at the time. 
 

It will actively manage its relationships with its counterparties in these transactions in such a 
manner as to secure this objective, and will avoid over reliance on any one source of 
funding if this might jeopardise achievement of the above. 

 
Schedule: 
 
1.5.1 DEBT/OTHER CAPITAL FINANCING MATURITY PROFILING, 

POLICIES AND PRACTICES 
 
The Council will establish through its Prudential Indicators the amount of debt 
maturing in any year/period. The Council debt will be managed within the maturity 
limits set by the approved Prudential Indicators to ensure that the maturity profile of 
debt will not expose the Council to high levels of debt requiring refinancing in any 
one financial year. This takes into account all possible maturity dates for Lobo’s 
which may mature at any option date if the lender alters the interest rate and the 
Council (borrower) takes the option to repay.  
 
Any debt rescheduling will be considered when the difference between the 
refinancing rate and the redemption rate is most advantageous and the situation will 
be continually monitored in order to take advantage of any perceived anomalies in 
the yield curve.  The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include: 
a) to fulfill the borrowing strategy stated in the Council’s Treasury Management 

Strategy report 
b) the generation of cash savings at minimum risk 
c) to reduce the average interest rate 
d) to enhance the balance of the long term portfolio (amend the maturity profile 

and /or the balance of volatility) 
All rescheduling will be reported to Cabinet at the meeting immediately following its 
action as part of the quarterly budget monitoring report. 
 

1.5.2 PROJECTED CAPITAL INVESTMENT REQUIREMENTS 
As part of the Local Government Act 2003 “The Prudential Code” for Capital 
Finance in local authorities has introduced new requirements for the manner in 
which capital spending plans are to be considered and approved.  The Prudential 
Code gives local authorities the power to determine their own borrowing levels 
within a framework based around affordability, prudence and sustainability and 

Page 129



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
14 

takes account of the next three financial years. The Director for Corporate 
Services prepares the five-year plan for capital expenditure for the Council in 
accordance with the statutory guidelines. The capital plan will be used to prepare a 
three year revenue budget for loan charges of principal repayments, interest and 
expenses that will take account of the plans for capital expenditure, loan 
repayments and forecasts of interest rate changes. Financing of capital expenditure 
will be met from capital receipts, any grants or contributions awarded, revenue 
resources or reserves. Funding will be from internal or external borrowing, as 
decided. 
 
As required by the Prudential Code, the Council will undertake Options Appraisal 
to evaluate the best capital expenditure financing route. 
 
The Council’s projected long-term borrowing requirement will be linked to the 
projected Capital Financing Requirement.  

 
1.5.3 POLICY CONCERNING LIMITS ON REVENUE CONSEQUENCES OF 

CAPITAL FINANCING. 
 
The revenue consequences of financing the capital programme are included in cash 
flow models, annual revenue estimates and medium term forecasts. 
 
In considering the affordability of its capital plans, the Council will act with regard 
to the Prudential Code for Capital Finance.  The Council will consider all the 
resources currently available/estimated for the future together with the totality of 
its capital plans, revenue income and revenue expenditure forecasts for the 
forthcoming year and the two following years and the impact these will have on 
council tax. It will also take into account affordability in the longer term beyond this 
three-year period.  

 
1.6  LEGAL AND REGULATORY 

Legal and regulatory risk is the that the Council itself, or a third party with which it is dealing 
in its treasury management activities, fails to act in accordance with its legal powers or 
regulatory requirements, and that the Council suffers losses accordingly. 

 
Principle: 
 
The Council will ensure that all of its treasury management activities comply with its 
statutory powers and regulatory requirements.  It will demonstrate such compliance, if 
required to do so, to all parties with whom it deals in such activities.  In framing its credit 
and counterparty policy under TMP1(1) Credit and counterparty risk management, it will 
ensure that there is evidence of counterparties’ powers, authority and compliance in respect 
of the transactions they may effect with the Council, particularly with regard to duty of care 
and fees charged. 
 

Page 130



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
15 

The Council recognises that future legislative or regulatory changes may impact on its 
treasury management activities and, so far as it is reasonably able to do so, will seek to 
minimise the risk of these impacting adversely on the organisation. 

 
Schedule: 
 
1.6.1 REFERENCES TO RELEVANT STATUTES AND REGULATIONS 
 
The treasury management activities of the Council shall comply fully with legal statute and 
the regulations of the Council.  These are: 

• CIPFA’s Treasury Management Code of Practice 2001 and subsequent 
amendments 

• CIPFA Guide for Chief Financial Officers on Treasury Management in Local 
Authorities 

• CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities and subsequent 
amendments 

• CIPFA Standard of Professional Practice on Treasury Management 

• The Local Government Act 2003 

• The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England ) Regulations 
2003 SI 2003 No 3146, and subsequent amendments 

• Pensions, England and Wales – The Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Management and investment of Funds) regulations 2009 SI 2009 No 393 

• The CLG’s statutory Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)   

• The ODPM’s (now CLG’s) Guidance on Local Government Investments in 
England issued March 2004 and subsequent amendments  

• The Local Authorities (Contracting out of Investment Functions) Order 1996 SI 
1996 No 1883 

• LAAP Bulletins 

• Code of Practice on local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom based on 
International Financial Reporting Standards 

• Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003, as amended together with CLG’s 
Guidance  

• The Non Investment Products Code (formerly known as The London Code of 
Conduct) for principals and broking firms in the wholesale markets. 

• Council’s Constitution including:- 
o Standing Order relating to Contracts 
o Financial Regulations 
o Scheme of Delegation 

 
1.6.2 PROCEDURES FOR EVIDENCING THE ORGANISATION’S 

POWERS/AUTHORITIES TO COUNTERPARTIES 

Page 131



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
16 

The Council’s powers to borrow and invest are contained in legislation.   
 
Investing:    Local Government Act 2003, section 12   
Borrowing: Local Government Act 2003, section 1 
 
The Council’s Financial Regulations contain evidence of the power /authority to act 
as required by section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
The Council prepares, adopts and maintains, as the cornerstones for effective 
treasury management: 
• a Treasury Management Policy Statement, stating the overriding principles and 

objectives of its treasury management activities and, as an integral part of that 
Statement. 

• Treasury Management Practices, setting out the manner in which the Council will 
achieve those principles and objectives, and prescribing how it will manage and 
control those activities.  

 
The Council will confirm, if required to do so by counterparties, the powers and 
authorities under which the Council effects transactions with them. 
 

1.6.3 REQUIRED INFORMATION FROM COUNTERPARTIES CONCERNING 
THEIR POWERS/AUTHORITIES 
Lending shall only be made to counterparties on the Council’s authorised lending 
list, which has been approved by the Council’s Director for Corporate Services. This 
list has been compiled based on the credit ratings supplied by Standard & Poor’s, 
Fitch Ratings and Moody’s Investor Services and the advice of the Council’s Treasury 
Management advisers. 
 
The Council will only undertake borrowing from approved sources such as the 
PWLB, Local Authorities, and organisations such as the European Investment Bank 
and from commercial banks. Where required, the Council will also establish the 
powers of those with whom they enter into transactions, including any compliance 
requirements in respect of a duty of care and best practice. 
  
The approved sources of borrowing are contained in TMP 4. 
 

1.6.4 STATEMENT ON THE ORGANISATION’S POLITICAL RISKS AND 
MANAGEMENT OF SAME. 
 
The Director for Corporate Services shall take appropriate action with the Council, 
the Chief Executive and the Leader of the Administration to respond and manage 
appropriately political risks such as change of majority Group, Leadership in the 
Council, change of Government etc. 

Page 132



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
17 

 
1.6.4.1 Monitoring Officer 

The monitoring officer is the Assistant Director for Democracy and Governance; 
the duty of this officer is to ensure that the treasury management activities of the 
Council are lawful. 

 
1.6.4.2 Chief Financial Officer 

The Chief Financial Officer is the Director for Corporate Services; the duty of this 
officer is to ensure that the financial affairs of the Council are conducted in a 
prudent manner and to make a report to the Council if he/she has concerns as to 
the financial prudence of its actions or its expected financial position. 
 

1.7 FRAUD, ERROR AND CORRUPTION, AND CONTINGENCY 
MANAGEMENT 
 

This is the risk that the Council fails to identify the circumstances in which it may be exposed 
to the risk of loss through fraud, error, corruption or other eventualities in its treasury 
management dealings, and fails to employ suitable systems and procedures and maintain 
effective contingency management arrangements to these ends. It includes the area of risk 
referred to as operational risk. 

 
Principle: 

The Council will ensure that it has identified the circumstances which may expose it to the 
risk of loss through fraud, error, corruption or other eventualities in its treasury 
management dealings.  Accordingly, it will employ suitable systems and procedures, and will 
maintain effective contingency management arrangements, to these ends. 

 
The Council will therefore:- 
a) seek to ensure an adequate division of responsibilities and maintenance at all times of 

an adequate level of internal check which minimises such risks.   
b) fully document all its treasury management activities so that there can be no possible 

confusion as to what proper procedures are.   
c) staff will not be allowed to take up treasury management activities until they have had 

proper training in procedures and are then subject to an adequate and appropriate 
level of supervision.   

Records will be maintained of all treasury management transactions so that there is a full 
audit trail and evidence of the appropriate checks being carried out. 
 
Schedules: 
 
1.7.1 DETAILS OF SYSTEMS AND PROCEDURES TO BE FOLLOWED, 

INCLUDING INTERNET SERVICES 

Page 133



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
18 

 
Authority: 
• The Scheme of Delegation to Officers sets out the delegation of duties to           

officers.  
• All loans and investments are negotiated by the Senior Accountant (Technical) 

or other authorised officers 
• All loans over 1 year and investments over 1 month require the prior approval 

of the Director for Corporate Services or the Assistant Director of Finance, 
Efficiencies, Technology & Assets.  

 
Occurrence: 
A detailed register of loans and investments is maintained in the Logotech (Treasury 
Management) system. An authorised member of the Treasury management team 
independently checks the register to the ledger balance.  Adequate and effective 
cash flow forecasting records are maintained on a spreadsheet (S:\Corporate 
Resources\New Finance\Treasury Management\Cashflow\2012-13\Cash Flow 
Forecast 12-13 - Updated for actuals.xls) for the following year and updated on a 
daily balance with actual income and payments supporting the decision to lend or 
borrow. A manual diary is also kept and updated with all due principal and interest 
payments.  A written confirmation is received promptly from the Council’s brokers 
as well as the lending or borrowing institution. All transactions placed through the 
brokers are confirmed by a broker note showing details of the loan arranged. 
 
Completeness: 
The loan register, which is also maintained as back-up on an Excel spreadsheet 
(S:\Corporate Resources\New Finance\Treasury Management\Dealing\2012-
13\dealing record 12-13.xls) is updated to record all lending and borrowing.  This 
includes the date and the amount of the transaction, the name of the 
lender/borrower, maturity date, interest rates, brokerage fees etc. 
 
Measurement: 
The calculation of repayment of principal and interest notified by the lender or 
borrower is checked for accuracy against the amount calculated by the Logotech 
(Treasury Management) system. 
The Logotech system automatically calculates periodic interest payments of PWLB 
and other long-term loans. This is used to check the amount paid to these lenders.  
Average weighted principal interest rates and debt management expenses are 
calculated monthly using information from the financial ledger, spreadsheet working 
papers and accrual prints from the Logotech system. Rates generated are compared 
against the Council’s Treasury Strategy Statement and assumed budget rates.  These 
interest and expense rates are then used to calculate the principal, interest and debt 
management expense charged to the Capital Financing budget.  
 

Page 134



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
19 

Timeliness: 
The Logotech system prompts the Treasury Officer that money borrowed or lent is 
due to be repaid, thereby avoiding the incurring of penalties or overdraft charges, 
which is due to late payment. All future repayments are recorded on the cash flow 
forecast and the manual diary. 
 
Regularity: 
All lending is only made to approved institutions.  
All loans raised and repayments made go directly to and from the institutions bank 
account. 
Authorisation limits are set for every institution (see 1.5.1.6.).  Brokers have an up 
to date list of named officials authorised to perform loan transactions.  There is 
adequate insurance cover for employees involved in loan management and 
accounting.  The control totals on the Treasury Management system for borrowing 
and lending are regularly reconciled with the ledger balance sheet codes by an 
assistant accountant on the corporate accountancy (technical) team. There is a clear 
separation of duties in the Section between the repayment of a loan and its checking 
and authorisation.  The bank reconciliation is carried out monthly from the bank 
statement to the financial ledger.  The corporate accountancy (technical) staff dealing 
with treasury management team also has an up to date financial code list for all 
interest and principal used for coding of creditors and office cash transactions. 
 
Internet Banking: 
The Council’s online banking service provided by the Co-operative bank provides 
details of transactions and balances are available as required, and the system also 
holds historic data. This service is used to update the Council’s cashflow and 
calculate required/available funds on a daily based used for funding/investment 
decisions. The service is also used to transmit Chaps payments for deposits/loan 
repayments and other large payments where same day receipt is required. Officers 
access to the system is required for account/balance enquiry, the input of chaps and 
the authorisation of Chaps payments. 
 
Security: 
The Logotech system can only be accessed by a password. 
Payments are only authorised in a formal CHAPS transfer request document by 
officers authorised to approve such transactions. The bank transfer (Chaps) facility 
system (Financial Director) provide by the Co-op bank is also password protected 
with internal controls for input and approval. Each officer authorised to use the 
internet banking system is issued with a pin protected random number generator 
which is required to be entered on log-in to the site to enable access. Officers set 
up on the internet banking service to input/authorise Chaps payments are as follows: 
 
 

Page 135



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
20 

Input: 
Senior Accountant (Technical) 
Accountants (Technical) 
Assistant Accountant (Technical) 
 
Authorisation: 
Director for Corporate Services 

 Assistant Director of Finance, Efficiencies, Technology & Assets.  
Head of Finance 
Head of Value for Money & Efficiencies 
Strategic Finance Manager 
Group Accountant 
 
Substantiation: 
The Treasury Management system balances are proved to the balance sheet ledger 
codes at the end of each quarter and at the financial year-end.  Working papers are 
retained for audit inspection. 
A debt charge/investment income listing is produced every time the debt 
charges/investment income is recalculated for budget monitoring purposes.  A debt 
charge/investment listing is also produced at the financial year-end and this 
document is retained for audit inspection. 
The method of accounting for unrealised losses or gains on the valuation of assets 
within the funds will comply with best value ACOP accounting practice by reflecting 
the market value of the fund in the balance sheet. This will be agreed with Council’s 
external auditors. 

 
Internal Audit: 
Internal Audit carry out an annual regulatory review of the treasury management 
function including probity testing. See TMP7 Budgeting, accounting and audit 
arrangements. 
  

1.7.2 EMERGENCY AND CONTINGENCY PLANNING ARRANGEMENTS 
 

There are a number of systems/procedures essential to the workings of the treasury 
management team in the management of the council’s cash flow and borrowing and 
investment activities. The key items are: 
 

1. Treasury Management files held on S:\Corporate 
Resources\New Finance\Treasury Management 

2. Logotech loan/investment register system 
3. Connection with the Co-op Bank 
4. Contact with brokers and counter-parties 
5. Office Cover 

Page 136



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
21 

 
1.7.2.1 Treasury Management files  
 
The files held on the S drive of the Council’s network are essential for: 
 

• the recording and forecasting the Councils cash flow for anything up to one year 
ahead (especially critical to ensure cash available to cover creditors/payroll one or 
two days ahead); 

• recording and calculating the cash available/need on a daily basis from financial data 
downloads from the Co-op Bank; 

• recording all loans/investments undertaken by the Council together with deposits 
into the Council’s various bank Deposit accounts;  

• a variety of other administration tasks such as dealing confirmations. 
 
As the TM files are held on the S drive these are backed up at the end of the day along with 
all other PCC corporate drives. This should suffice as a safeguard. There is also the added 
safeguard in that all Council loans and deposits are held on the Treasury Management 
system (Logotech) – see below. 
 
A manual diary is also kept recording all major receipts and payments including future Chaps 
payments that need to be made.   
 
1.7.2.2 Logotech Loans/Investment register 
 
This system records all loans and deposits activity of the TM team. It is reconciled to the 
ledger quarterly and provides reports, accruals and back up information for monitoring and 
the annual accounts. It also produces paperwork for deposits used in the input and 
authorisation of Chap payments.   
 
This is an essential system for the control and upkeep of the council’s loans and deposits. 
Loss of this data would cause major disruption to the work of the TM team and risk 
inaccurate records in the accounts along with delaying the production of these accounts. 
This system is held on the C drive of a PC. To safeguard this data daily backups are made to 
the S drive. Records of loans and deposits are also held on the S drive in the Treasury 
Management folder. 
  
1.7.2.3 Internet Banking 
 
In the event of complete failure of Financial Director due to system or internet problems it 
will be necessary to telephone the FD helpline on 08457 616616 for status update and if 
necessary to provide balance information to ensure that investment/borrowing decisions 
can be based on adequate information. 
 

Page 137



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
22 

Financial Director also enables the Council to make Chaps payments for deposits, loan 
repayments and other large creditor payments. Should FD fail there are back-up procedures 
in place where Chaps payments can be made manually. This requires a fax to be sent to the 
Co-op bank on 0161 8392163. This fax requires the payment amount and the payee, bank, 
bank sort code and account number to be credited and must be signed by a bank authorised 
signatory.  
 
The internet connection with the bank is essential but, provided the telephone system is 
working and faxes can be received/sent, the Treasury Management function could be 
undertaken for a few days without it. 
 
1.7.2.4 Contact with Brokers and Counterparties 
 
Most loans undertaken by the council are brokered by a third party. These brokers contact 
the council on a daily basis and provide information on the rates available in the market. 
These rates are also used when considering investments together with direct rates e-mailed 
to members of the treasury management team on a daily basis. In the main investments are 
agreed directly with the banks where higher rates can be achieved.  
 
 
Without the information from brokers the Council would be restricted in its investment 
decisions and the availability of any borrowing required. 
 
The telephone numbers required are: 
 
Broker    Contact   Tel. No. 
  
Martin Brokers  Shusmita Chaudury  0207 4699580 
Sterling Brokers  Jim Risley   0207 5623456 
Tullet Prebon   Jon Hurley   0207 2007042 
London Currency Brokers Roger Lane   0207 7394444 
Tradition   Alex Cicopalus  0207 4223566 
 
The Council also deals directly with Barclays, Bank of Scotland, Santander UK and Royal 
Bank of Scotland. Contact with these counterparties is essential for cash management. 
Telephone/fax access to them allows the Council to request transfer of funds or notification 
of impending Chaps payments. Contact is required as follows: 
 
Barclays  - Withdrawals by fax – 0845 9645511 – by 3.00 pm 
   - Phone contact 0845 6016047 
 
Bank of Scotland  - Withdrawals by fax – 0845 6011445 – by 2.00 pm 

- To confirm receipt of fax – 0845 6048129 

Page 138



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
23 

 
Santander UK  - Withdrawal by phone (password required) – 0845 6066358 by 11.30
   - Withdrawal by fax – 0845 6066351 by 11.30 am 

- Investment /withdrawal notification by e-mail – 
RMT@santander.com over £5m 

 
RBS   - Withdrawal by fax – 0845 3003349 – by 3.15 pm 

- Phone contact – 01752 274606 
 
As a back-up the telephone numbers of brokers are kept in the front of the diary and the 
numbers for direct contact counterparties on their individual lever- arch files. If phone lines 
are down contact with brokers/counterparties could be made by mobile phone. Faxes 
would need to be sent from a site with an available phone line/fax.  
 
1.7.2.5 Office Cover 
 
The minimum amount of office cover required for adequate Treasury Management controls 
to be maintained is one member of the treasury management team. However if any Chaps 
payments are required this will need the availability of an authorised officer. 
  
This leaves the TM function vulnerable to situations such as local transport gridlock or 
epidemic diseases, where large numbers of staff would be unable to get to work.  
 
Chaps payments using the Co-op internet banking system can be undertaken as long as the 
appropriate officers to input and authorise have their pin activated random number 
generator available. The co-op website is available using internet access on any site including 
at home. 
 
There are currently 5 Members of staff that can input Chaps payments and 9 that can 
authorise these payments. 
 
1.7.3 INSURANCE COVER DETAILS. 
 
The Council has ‘Fidelity’ insurance cover with Chartis.  This covers the loss of cash by 
fraud or dishonesty of employees up to the sum of £10m in the year and an excess of 
£10,000 only in one occurrence.   

 
The Council also has a ‘Professional Indemnity’ and a ‘Public Liability and Official 
Indemnity’ insurance policy with Chartis, which cover loss to the Council from the actions 
and advice of its officers that are negligent and without due care, while acting within as well 
as outside the scope of their official duties. The total sums insured for these policies are 
£5m and £50m respectively with an aggregate excess of £5,000 and £250,000 respectively.  

 

Page 139



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
24 

The Council also has a ‘Business Interruption’ (or an ‘Increased Cost of Working’) 
cover as part of its property insurance with Travelers. The total sum insured is £15m with 
an excess of £100,000. 
  
1.8. MARKET VALUE OF INVESTMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

This is the risk that, through adverse market fluctuations in the value of the principal sums 
the Council borrows and invests, its stated treasury management policies and objectives are 
compromised, against which effects it has failed to protect itself adequately. 

Principle:  

This Council will seek to ensure that its stated treasury management policies and objectives 
will not be compromised by adverse market fluctuations in the value of the principal sums it 
invests, and will accordingly seek to protect itself from the effects of such fluctuations. 

 
Schedule: 
 
1.8.1 DETAILS OF APPROVED PROCEDURES AND LIMITS FOR 

CONTROLLING EXPOSURE TO INVESTMENTS WHOSE CAPITAL 
VALUE MAY FLUCTUATE (GILTS, CDS, etc.) 

 
 These are controlled through setting limits on investment instruments where the 

principal value can fluctuate.  The limits are determined and set through the Annual 
Investment Strategy (which forms part of the Annual Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement). 

 
 

1.8.2 ACCOUNTING FOR UNREALISED GAINS/LOSSES 
The method of accounting for unrealised gains or losses on the valuation of financial 
assets comply with the Accounting Code of Practice. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 140



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
25 

TMP 2 PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENTS 
 
Principle: 
 
The Council is committed to the pursuit of value for money in its treasury management 
activities, and to the use of performance methodology in support of that aim, within the 
framework set out in its treasury management policy statement. 
 
Accordingly, the treasury management function will be the subject of ongoing analysis of the 
value it adds in support of the Council’s stated business or service objectives.  It will be the 
subject of regular examination of alternative methods of service delivery, or the availability 
of fiscal or other grant or subsidy incentives, and of the scope for other potential 
improvements.  The performance of the treasury management function will be measured 
using the criteria set out below. 
 
Schedule: 
 
2.1 POLICY CONCERNING METHODS FOR TESTING VALUE FOR MONEY 

Best value reviews will include the production of plans to review the way services are 
provided by 

• Challenging 
• Comparing performance 
• Consulting with other users and interested parties 
• Applying competition principles 

in order to persue continuous improvement in the way the Council’s functions are 
exercised, having regard to a combination of value for money, efficiency and 
effectiveness.  

 
2.2  METHODOLOGY TO BE APPLIED FOR EVALUATING THE IMPACT OF 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT DECISIONS 
The Council has a number of approaches to evaluating treasury management decisions:- 

• regular meetings of the Treasury Management Board. 
• reviews with our treasury management consultants 
• quarterly review in budget monitoring report 
• mid-year review to Audit committee  
• annual review as reported to committee 
• comparative reviews/benchmarking 

 
The Council is a member of the CIPFA Treasury management benchmarking club. The club 
enables comparison with other authorities for its investment and debt positions and 
activities. Data is provided for comparison on an annual basis. 
 
The Council’s Treasury Management advisers review the existing debt portfolio and all 
transactions that have occurred in the interim in order to ensure that best practice has 
been achieved. 

Page 141



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
26 

 
The Council’s Treasury Management advisors compare the performance of the Council’s in-
house investments , both in terms of risk and return, with funds managed by other client 
Local Authorities and report quarterly on the risk /return score ratings comparing the full 
client base and a comparison of unitary authorities .   
 
2.2.1.  Periodic reviews during the financial year 

There is a regular treasury management board meeting attended by the Senior 
Accountant (Technical), the Director for Corporate Services, the Assistant Director 
of Finance, Efficiencies, Technology & Assets, and the Head of Finance.  
 
These meetings include discussion on investments and borrowing strategies, change 
in market, counterparty and credit conditions and a review of investment and loan 
levels. There is also a monthly strategy and review meeting to include review of 
actual activity against the Authorised Borrowing Limit. Capital Financing budget and 
Treasury Management Strategy. 
This will include: 

• Total debt including average rate and maturity profile 
• Total investments including average rate and maturity profile 
• Transactions in the period since the last meeting 
• Cash flow forecast update 
• Counterparty lending against limits 
• Monitoring position – latest forecast against budget. 

 
2.2.2 Reviews with management consultants 

Members of the Treasury Management Board hold reviews with our consultants 
(Arlingclose) on a quarterly basis to review the performance of the investment and 
debt portfolios. 
 

2.2.3 Annual review after the end of the financial year 
An Annual treasury Report is submitted to Council each year after the close of the 
financial year which reviews the performance of the debt and investment portfolios. 
The report contains the following:- 
 

• total debt and investments at the beginning and close of financial year and 
average interest rates 

• borrowing strategy for the year compared to actual strategy 
• investment strategy for the year compared to actual strategy 
• explanation for variance between original and actual strategies 
• debt rescheduling done in the year 
• actual borrowing and investment rates available through the year 
• comparison of return on investments to the investment benchmark 
• compliance with Prudential Indicators 

Page 142



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
27 

 
2.2.4 Comparative reviews 

When data becomes available, comparative reviews are undertaken to see how the 
performance of the authority on debt and investments compares to other 
authorities with similar size portfolios (but allowing for the fact that Prudential 
Indicators are locally set). Data used will be sourced from:- 
 
• CIPFA Treasury Management statistics published each year for the last complete 

financial year 
• CIPFA Risk Management study 
• CIPFA Benchmarking Club 
• Arlingclose risk return comparators of client base  

 
2.3 METHODS TO BE EMPLOYED FOR MEASURING THE PERFORMANCE 

OF THE ORGANISATION’S TREASURY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES 
 

• Compliance to CIPFA Code of Treasury Practice. 
• Expenses contained within approved budget.  Reviewed in the quarterly budget 

monitoring reports 
• Review of benchmarking club data. 

 
Treasury management activity is reviewed mid-year and at year end against strategy 
and prevailing economic and market conditions through the Audit Committee, 
Cabinet and Full Council.  
The report will include:  

• Total debt including average rate and maturity profile 
• The effect of new borrowing and/or maturities on the above 
• The effect of any debt restructuring on the debt portfolio 
• An analysis of any risks inherent within the debt portfolio (e.g. exposure to 

variable rate; LOBOs in their call period) 
• Total investments including average rate, credit and maturity profile 
• The effect of new investments/redemptions/maturities on the above 
• The rate of return on investments against their indices for internally managed 

funds 
• An analysis of any risks inherent within the investment portfolio (e.g. 

exposure to market movements in the value of CDs, gilts/bonds, callable 
deposits in their call period) 

• A statement whether the treasury management activity resulted in a breach 
of the Prudential Indicators and other limits set within treasury strategy. 

 
 
2.4 BENCHMARKS AND CALCULATION METHODOLOGY WITH 

REGARDS TO RISK AND RETURN: 
 

Page 143



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
28 

2.4.1 Debt management 
• Average rate on all external debt 
• Average rate on external debt borrowed in previous financial year 
• Average rate on internal borrowing 
• Average period to maturity of external debt  
• Average period to maturity of new loans in previous year 
• Ratio of PWLB and market debt (beginning and end of period) 
• Ratio of fixed and variable rate debt (beginning and end of period) 

 
2.4.2 Investment. 
 
 The performance of in house investment earnings will be measured against 7 day LIBID. 

 
 
2.5 POLICY CONCERNING METHODS FOR TESTING VALUE FOR MONEY 

IN TREASURY MANAGEMENT, 
 
2.5.1 Frequency and processes for tendering 

Tenders are normally awarded on a three yearly basis with the option to extend for 
one year, if approved by the Cabinet Committee. The process for advertising and 
awarding contracts will be in line with the Council’s Contract Standing Orders. 

 
2.5.2 Banking services 

Banking services will be retendered or renegotiated every 3 years to ensure that the 
level of prices reflects efficiency savings achieved by the supplier and current pricing 
trends. 
 

2.5.3 Money-broking services 
The Council will use money broking services in order to make deposits or to 
borrow, and will establish charges for all services prior to using them.  An approved 
list of brokers has been established which takes account of both prices and quality of 
services. 

 
2.5.4 Consultants’/advisers’ services 

This Council’s policy is to appoint full-time professional treasury management 
consultants. 

2.5.5   Policy on External Managers 

The Council’s current policy is not to use an external investment fund manager to 
manage a proportion of surplus cash.  This will be kept under review.    

 
 
 

Page 144



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
29 

TMP 3 DECISION-MAKING AND ANALYSIS 
 
3.1  FUNDING, BORROWING, LENDING, AND NEW INSTRUMENTS/TECHNIQUES: 
 

Principle: 

The Council will maintain full records of its treasury management decisions, and of the 
processes and practices applied in reaching those decisions, both for the purposes of 
learning from the past, and for demonstrating that reasonable steps were taken to ensure 
that all issued relevant to those decisions were taken into account at the time. The issues to 
be addressed and processes and practices to be pursued in reaching decisions are detailed 
below. 

 
Schedules: 
 
3.1.1 Records to be kept 

The Treasury section has a computerised treasury management system called 
Logotech. All loan and deposit transactions are recorded on the system as well as on 
an Excel spreadsheet. Full details of the system are covered in the user manual.   
The following records will be used relative to each loan or investment: 

• Daily cash balance forecasts 
• Money market rates obtained by telephone from brokers 
• Dealing slips for all money market transactions 
• Brokers’ confirmations for investment and temporary borrowing transactions 
• Confirmations from borrowing /lending institutions where deals are done 

directly. 
• PWLB loan confirmations 
• PWLB debt portfolio schedules.  
• Certificates for market loans, local bonds and other loans 

 
3.1.2 Processes to be pursued 

• Cash flow analysis. 
• Debt and investment maturity analysis 
• Ledger reconciliation 
• Review of opportunities for debt restructuring 
• Review of borrowing requirement to finance capital expenditure (and other 

forms of financing where those offer best value) 
• Performance information (e.g. monitoring of actual against budget for debt 

charges, interest earned, debt management; also monitoring of average 
borrowed rate, investment returns, etc). 

 
3.1.3 Issues to be addressed. 
 

Page 145



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
30 

3.1.3.1. In respect of every decision made the Council will: 
 
a) above all be clear about the nature and extent of the risks to which the Council may 

become exposed 
b) be certain about the legality of the decision reached and the nature of the 

transaction, and that all authorities to proceed have been obtained 
c) be content that the documentation is adequate both to deliver the Council’s 

objectives and protect the Council’s interests, and to deliver good housekeeping 
d) ensure that third parties are judged satisfactory in the context of the Council’s 

creditworthiness policies, and that limits have not been exceeded 
e) be content that the terms of any transactions have been fully checked against the 

market, and have been found to be competitive. 
 
3.1.3.2.  In respect of borrowing and other funding decisions, the Council will: 
 
a) evaluate the economic and market factors that might influence the manner and 

timing of any decision to fund 
b) consider the merits and demerits of alternative forms of funding, including funding 

from revenue, leasing and private partnerships 
c) consider the alternative interest rate bases available, the most appropriate periods 

to fund and repayment profiles to use  
d) consider the ongoing revenue liabilities created, and the implications for the 

Council’s future plans and budgets. 
e) seek to reduce the overall level of financing costs/smooth maturity profiles through 

debt restructuring. 
 
3.1.3.3.  In respect of investment decisions, the Council will: 
 
a) consider the optimum period, in the light of cash flow availability and prevailing 

market conditions 
b) consider the alternative investment products and techniques available, especially the 

implications of using any which may expose the Council to changes in the value of its 
capital. 

c) determine appropriate credit policy limits and criteria to minimise the Council’s 
exposure to credit and other investment risks. 

 
3.1.3.4.  In respect of decisions regarding derivatives, the council will: 
 
a) be able to demonstrate that the derivative transaction has reduced the Council’s 

overall exposure to treasury risks. 
 
 
 

Page 146



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
31 

TMP 4 APPROVED INSTRUMENTS, METHODS AND TECHNIQUES 

Principle: 

The Council will undertake its treasury management activities by employing only those 
instruments, methods and techniques detailed in the schedule to this document, and within 
the limits and parameters defined in TMP1 Risk Management. 

Where the Council intends to use derivative instruments for the management of risk, these 
will be limited to those set out in the annual treasury strategy. The Council will seek proper 
advice and consider that advice when entering into arrangements to use such products to 
ensure full understanding of these products. 

Schedules: 

4.1 APPROVED ACTIVITIES OF THE TREASURY MANAGEMENT 
OPERATION 

The Council is permitted to undertake the following activities: 
§ Managing cashflow 
§ Capital financing  
§ Borrowing including debt restructuring and debt repayment 
§ Lending including redemption of investments 
§ Banking 
§ Leasing 
§ Managing the underlying risk associated with the Council’s capital financing and 

surplus funds activities.  
 

The above list is not finite and the Council would, from time to time, consider and 
determine new financial instruments and treasury management techniques; 
however, the Council will consider carefully whether the officers have the skills and 
experience to identify and manage the advantages and risks associated with using 
the instruments/techniques before undertaking them, more so as some risks may 
not be wholly or immediately transparent. 

4.2 APPROVED INSTRUMENTS FOR INVESTMENTS 

 
The Council will determine through its Annual Investment Strategy (AIS) which 
instruments it will use, giving priority to the security and liquidity (in that order) of its 
invested monies.  The investments will be categorised as ‘Specified’ or ‘Non Specified’ 
based on the criteria set out by the ODPM (now CLG) in its Investment Guidance 
March 2004 (as amended).  
 
The Council will determine through the AIS which instruments will be used in-house and 
which will be used by the appointed external fund manager(s) including the maximum 
exposure for each category of non-specified investments.  Where applicable, the 
Council’s credit criteria will also apply. 
 
§ Deposits with the UK government, the Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility 

(DMADF), and UK local authorities 

Page 147



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
32 

§ Term deposits with banks and building societies 
§ Certificates of deposit 
§ Callable deposits 
§ Investments in Money Market Funds , i.e. ‘AAA’ liquidity funds with a 60-day 

Weighted Average Maturity (WAM)  
§ Gilts 
§ Bonds issued by multilateral development banks 
§ Bonds issued by financial institutions guaranteed by the UK government 
§ Sterling denominated bonds by non-UK sovereign governments 
§ Pooled funds, i.e. Collective Investment schemes as defined in SI 2004 No 534 
§ Bonds and debt instruments issued by corporate bodies e.g. 

o Corporate Bonds 
o Commercial Paper 

 
4.3 APPROVED TECHNIQUES 
 

• Forward dealing  
• LOBOs – lenders option, borrower’s option borrowing instrument 

The use of structured products such as callable deposits 
 
4.4 APPROVED METHODS AND SOURCES OF RAISING CAPITAL FINANCE 
 
Finance will only be raised in accordance with the Local Government and Housing Act, 
2003, and within this limit the Council has a number of approved methods and sources of 
raising capital finance.  These are: 
 

On Balance Sheet Fixed Variable    
• Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) Loans • •  
• European Investment bank (EIB) • •  
• Long term money market loans including LOBOs • •  
• Temporary money market loans (up to 364 days) • • 
• Bank overdraft  • 
• Stock issues • • 
• Local bonds • 
• Negotiable Bonds • • 
• Commercial Paper • 
• Medium Term Notes •  
• Finance Leases • • 
• Deferred Purchase • • 

 
 Internal Resources  

• Capital receipts 
• Revenue balances 
• Use of Reserves 

Page 148



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
33 

 
Other Methods of Financing 

• Government and EC Capital Grants 
• Other capital grants and contributions 
• Lottery monies 
• PFI/PPP  
• Operating leases 

 
Borrowing will only be undertaken in Sterling.  All forms of funding will be considered 
dependent on the prevailing economic climate, regulations and local considerations. The 
Director for Corporate Services has delegated powers in accordance with Financial 
Regulations, Standing Orders, the Scheme of Delegation to Officers Policy and the Treasury 
Management Strategy to take the most appropriate form of borrowing from the approved 
sources. The level of debt will be consistent with the treasury management Strategy and the 
Prudential Indicators. 
 
4.5 INVESTMENT LIMITS 
The Annual Investment Strategy within the treasury Management Strategy sets out the limits 
and the guidelines for use of each type of investment instrument.   
 
4.6 BORROWING LIMITS 
The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Prudential Indicators sets out 
the limits on borrowing.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 149



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
34 

TMP 5 ORGANISATION, CLARITY AND SEGREGATION OF 
RESPONSIBILITIES, AND DEALING ARRANGEMENTS 
 
Principle: 
 
The Council considers it essential, for the purposes of the effective control and monitoring 
of its treasury management activities, for the reduction of the risk of fraud or error, and for 
the pursuit of optimum performance, that these activities are structured and managed in a 
fully integrated manner, and that there is at all times a clarity of treasury management 
responsibilities. 
 
The principle on which this will be based is a clear distinction between those charged with 
setting treasury management policies and those charged with implementing and controlling 
these policies, particularly with regard to the execution and transmission of funds, the 
recording and administering of treasury management decisions, and the audit and review of 
the treasury management function. 
 
If and when the Council intends, as a result of lack of resources or other circumstances, to 
depart from these principles, the Director for Corporate Services will ensure that the 
reasons are properly reported in accordance with TMP6 Reporting requirements and 
management information arrangements, and the implications properly considered and 
evaluated. 
 
The Director for Corporate Services will ensure that there are clear written statements of 
the responsibilities for each post engaged in treasury management, and the arrangements for 
absence cover.  The Director for Corporate Services will also ensure that at all times those 
engaged in treasury management will follow the policies and procedures set out. The present 
arrangements are detailed in the schedules below.  
 
The Director for Corporate Services will ensure there is proper documentation for all deals 
and transactions, and that procedures exist for the effective transmission of funds. The 
present arrangements are detailed in the schedules below. 
 
The delegations to the Director for Corporate Services in respect of treasury management 
are set out in the schedules below.  The Director for Corporate Services will fulfill all such 
responsibilities in accordance with the organisation’s policy statement and TMPs and, if a 
CIPFA member, the Standard of Professional Practice on Treasury Management. 
 
 
Schedules: 
 
5.1.1 LIMITS TO RESPONSIBILITIES/DISCRETION AT COMMITTEE / 

EXECUTIVE LEVELS 
 
Full Council 
 

• Receiving, reviewing and approving prudential indicators as part of the budget setting 
process (following receipt by Cabinet). 

• Approval of the Treasury Management Strategy and Annual Investment Strategy and 
any subsequent amendments (following receipt by Cabinet).  

• Receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies, practices and 
activities including a mid-year review and an annual report (following review by 
Audit Commitee).  

Page 150



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
35 

 
Cabinet 

• Approval of amendments to adopted clauses and treasury management policy 
statement (following scrutiny by the Audit Committee). 

• Budget consideration and approval. 
 

Audit Committee 
• Responsible for the scrutiny of treasury management strategy, activities and 

practices and approval of the treasury management practices. 
 

Delegated to Director for Corporate Services 
 

• The Director for Corporate Services will be responsible for amendments to the 
Council’s adopted clauses, treasury management policy statement and treasury 
management practices. 

• Approval of the segregation of responsibilities. 
• Receiving and reviewing of the external audit reports and putting recommendations 

to the Audit Committee. 
• Approving the selection of external service providers and agreeing terms of 

appointment in accordance with Financial Regulations. 
 
5.2 PRINCIPLES AND PRACTICES CONCERNING SEGREGATION OF 

DUTIES 
 
The segregation of duties will be determined by the Director for Corporate Services.       
 

Dealing  

 

Group 
Accountant/ 
Senior 
Accountant/ /t 
Accountants 

 

Negotiation and approval of deal. 

Receipt and checking of broker’s confirmation note  

Receipts and checking of confirmation from deposit/loan counterparty 

Reconciliation of cash control account. 

Bank reconciliation 

Accounting 
Entry 

Senior 
Accountant / 
Accountants/
Assistant 
Accountant 

Production of Direct debit form 

Processing of accounting entry 

Authorisation 
/ Payment of 
Deal 

Senior 
Accountant/ 
Accountants/ 
/Assistant 
Accountant 

Entry onto Financial Director (FD) 

Page 151



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
36 

Authorisation 
/ Payment of 
Deal 

Authorised 
DoCS, 
ADFETA,  
HOF,  
Strategic 
Finance 
Managers 
and Group 
Accountants 

Approval: 

Authorisation on FD/sign off direct debit and Chaps request 

   

5.3 TREASURY MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION CHART 
  Director for  Corporate 

Services 
  

  I   
  Assistant Director of Finance , 

Efficiencies, Technology & 
Assets 

  

  I   
  Head of Finance   
  I   
  Strategic Finance Manager   
  I   
  Group Accountant (Corporate 

Accountancy – Technical) 
  

  I   
Assistant 
Accountant 
(Corporate 
Accountancy -
Technical) 

 

 

Senior Accountant (Corporate 
Accountancy - Technical) 

 

 

Accountants 
(Corporate 
Accountancy 
-Technical) 

 
 
 
5.4 STATEMENT OF DUTIES/RESPONSIBILITIES  
 
5.4.1 Treasury Management Board 
 
The Treasury Management Board will meet on a regular basis at the discretion of the 
Director for Corporate Services and consists of: 

 
Director for Corporate Services 

Page 152



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
37 

 Assistant Director of Finance, Efficiencies, Technology and Assets 
 Head of Finance 
 Senior Accountant (Corporate Accountancy - Technical) 
 
In the absence of the Senior Account (Corporate Accountancy – Technical) an Accountant 
(Corporate Accountancy – Technical) will attend.   
 
Its duties and responsibilities will include:  
 

• Ongoing review of the Council’s borrowing and Investment strategy considering 
counterparty limits, maturity periods and financial impact. 

• Credit risk management. Reviewing credit rating changes, economic news, share 
price data and press information to consider the appropriateness of investments, 
their risk and any action required to mitigate this risk. 

• Considering the council’s borrowing position, reviewing rescheduling 
opportunities and proposed debt repayments as part of the management of risk. 

• Discussions and recommendation on and for the Council’s Treasury 
management strategy. 

• Meeting with the Council’s Treasury Management advisors to discuss Strategy. 
Considering the economic climate and forecast interest rates, ongoing 
investment and borrowing and current issues impacting on creditworthiness of 
financial institutions.     

• Assessing the revenue and cash flow impact of any proposed action and how this 
fits into the previously set strategy. Agreeing revisions to this strategy and 
considering the financial impact of such revisions. 

• Communicate and promote awareness of key treasury management issues and 
risks amongst senior managers and members. 

• Aim to achieve the investments and borrowing targets as detailed in the council’s 
MTFS. 

• Monitor and report on significant variations to revenue account budgets as a 
result of changes to treasury management activity. 

 
 
5.4.2 Director for Corporate Services 
 
1. The Director for Corporate Services will: 
 

• Submit budgets and budget variations in accordance with Financial Regulations and 
guidance. 

• Recommend clauses, treasury management policy / practices for approval, reviewing 
the same on a regular basis, and monitoring compliance 

• Determine Prudential Indicators and Treasury Management Strategy including the 
Annual Investment Strategy. 

Page 153



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
38 

• In setting the prudential indicators, be responsible for ensuring that all matters are 
taken into account and reported to the Council so as to ensure the Council’s 
financial plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable in the long term. 

• Establish a measurement and reporting process that highlights significant variations 
from expectations. 

• Submit regular treasury management reports as required to the council/cabinet/audit 
committee. 

• Receiving and reviewing management information reports. 
• Review the performance of the treasury management function and promote best 

value reviews. 
• Ensure the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the effective 

division of responsibilities within the treasury management function. 
• Ensure the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit. 
• Recommend on appointment of external service providers in accordance with 

council standing orders. 
• Provide regular updates to relevant Cabinet Members. 

 
2 The Director for Corporate Services has delegated powers through this policy to take 

the most appropriate form of borrowing from the approved sources, and to make the 
most appropriate form of investments in approved instruments. 

 
3 The Director for Corporate Services may delegate his power to borrow and invest to 

Group Accountants (Corporate Accountancy -Technical), Senior Accountant 
(Corporate Accountancy - Technical) and Accountants (Corporate Accountancy – 
Technical. 

 
4 The Director for Corporate Services will ensure that the Policy is adhered to, and if 

not will bring the matter to the attention of elected members as soon as possible.  
 

5 Prior to entering into any capital financing, lending or investment transaction, it is the 
responsibility of the Director for Corporate Services to be satisfied, by reference to the 
Council’s legal department and external advisors as appropriate, that the proposed 
transaction does not breach any statute, external regulation or the Council’s Financial 
Regulations 

 
6 It is also the responsibility of the Director for Corporate Services to ensure that the 

Council complies with the requirements of The Non Investment Products Code 
(formerly known as The London Code of Conduct) for principals and broking firms in 
the wholesale markets. 

 
5.4.3 Assistant Director of Finance, Efficiencies, Technology & Assets  
 

Page 154



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
39 

• The responsibilities of this post will include covering the full responsibilities of the 
Director for Corporate Services in their absence. 

• Delegated authority to approve loans over 1 year and investments up to 10 years. 
• Delegated authority to approve loan repayments/rescheduling. 

  
5.4.4 Head of Finance 
 

• Submit budgets and budget variations in accordance with Financial Regulations and 
guidance. 

• Establish a measurement and reporting process that highlights significant variations 
from expectations. 

 
5.4.5 Group Accountant (Corporate Accountancy – Technical) 
 

• To provide cover in the absence of the Senior Accountant (Corporate Accountancy 
– Technical) and cover the full responsibilities of this post. 

 
5.4.6 Senior Accountant (Corporate Accountancy – Technical) 
The responsibilities of this post include: - 
 

• Carrying out or delegating the execution of transactions to the treasury 
management team 

• Adherence to agreed policies and practices on a day-to-day basis. 
• Maintaining relationships with third parties and external service providers and 

reviewing their performance. 
• Supervising treasury management staff. 
• Monitoring performance on a day-to-day basis. 
• Submitting management information reports to the Treasury Management Board, 

Director for Corporate Services, Assistant Director of Finance, Efficiencies, 
Technology & Assets and Head of Finance. 

• Identifying and recommending opportunities for improved practices. 
• Prepare and update, making recommendations for including counterparties on the 

Council’s lending list following the advice of the Council’s Treasury Management 
advisors. 

• Authority to borrow for periods up to 1 year and lending up to 1 month.. Lending in 
excess of 1 month subject to the agreement of the Treasury Management Board 
and/or the approval of the Director for Corporate Services or Assistant Director of 
Finance, Efficiencies, Technology & Assets.   

• Make recommendations on all lending up to 10 years and borrowing over 1 year 
maturity. 

• Following approval by the Director for Corporate Services or Assistant Director of 
Finance, Assets & Efficiencies undertake all borrowing over 1 year and 
deposits/investments up to 10 year maturity. 

Page 155



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
40 

• Recommend early repayment of debt over one year and subject to the approval of 
the Director for Corporate Services, Assistant Director of Finance, Efficiencies, 
Technology & Assets or the Head of Finance arrange the repayment of these loans. 

• Maintaining the Council’s cash flow forecast ensuring funds are available to meet the 
Council’s financial commitments. 

• Prepare draft Treasury Management Policy, Treasury Management strategy and 
investment strategy, Annual Treasury Management report and Treasury Management 
Practices. 

• Prepare budget for capital financing including all treasury management loan and 
investment activities including MTFF. 

• Monitoring of Capital Financing Budget. 
• Updating the Treasury Management Board with information on credit ratings, share 

prices, economic and press news impacting on the credit quality of the Council’s 
deposits.  

 
5.4.7 The Head of the Paid Service – the Chief Executive 
The responsibilities of the post will be:- 
 

• Ensuring that the system is specified and implemented. 
• Ensuring the Director for Corporate Services reports regularly to the full 

Council/Cabinet on treasury policy, activity and performance. 
 
5.4.8 Assistant Director for Democracy & Governance ( in the role of 
monitoring officer) 
The responsibilities of this post include: - 
 

• Ensuring compliance by the Director for Corporate Services with the treasury 
management policy statement and treasury management practices and that they 
comply with the law. 

• Being satisfied that any proposal to vary treasury policy or practice complies with 
law or any code of practice. 

• Giving advice to the Director for Corporate Services when advice is sought. 
 
5.4.9 Internal Audit 
The responsibilities of Internal Audit include: - 
 

• Reviewing compliance with approved policy and procedures. 
• Reviewing division of duties and operational practice. 
• Assessing value for money from treasury activities. 
• Undertaking probity audit of treasury function. 

 
5.5 ABSENCE COVER ARRANGEMENTS 

Page 156



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
41 

The normal office arrangements are that on any working day, at least one member of the 
Team is available to be consulted on any aspect of treasury management, and at least one 
member of the Treasury Management team is available to carry out any required dealing 
transactions.  
 
The minimum amount of office cover required for adequate Treasury Management controls 
to be maintained is one member of the treasury management team. However if any Chaps 
payments are required this will need the availability of an authorised officer. 
 
There are currently: 
5 members of staff that can undertake dealing 
9 members of staff that can authorise Chaps payments on Financial Director 
 
1 of each of these would be required for the full process to be undertaken. 
 
In the absence of the Senior Accountant (Corporate Accountancy – Technical) the Group 
Accountant (Corporate Accountancy – Technical) will undertake all loan transactions in 
excess of overnight loans. 
 
Subject to the approval of the Treasury Management Board and/or the Director for 
Corporate Services or The Assistant Director of Finance, Efficiencies, Technology  & Assets 
and Efficiencies an Accountant (Corporate Accountancy – Technical) can undertake deposit 
transactions up to 1 year. 
 
In the event of the unforeseen absence of the person responsible for dealing, or the 
Management Team members, the Council’s treasury management advisor may be contacted, 
and advice sought. 
 
5.6 DEALING LIMITS 

The following posts are authorsed to deal:-  
 
Senior Accountant (Corporate Accountancy – Technical) 
No dealing limits for loans up to 1 year. 
Deposits up to 1 month with unlimited value with the Debt Management Office or £5M 
with an approved Local Authority or £30m with an approved bank or building society 
subject to the limits detailed in the Council’s Annual Investment strategy and the 
approved lending list. 
Deposit limits up to 1 year subject to the approval of the Treasury Management Board 
and/or the Director for Corporate Services, Assistant Director of Finance, Efficiencies, 
Technology & Assets or Head of Finance. Investment up to 10 years in accordance with 
approved annual investment strategy subject to the approval of the Director of 
Corporate Services. 
 

Page 157



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
42 

Accountant (Corporate Accountancy – Technical) 
Overnight/Call Account deposits with unlimited value with the Debt Management Office 
or £5M with an approved Local Authority or £30m with an approved bank or building 
society subject to the limits detailed in the Council’s Annual Investment strategy and the 
approved lending list. 
Deposit limits up to 1 year subject to the approval of the Treasury Management Board 
and/or the Director for Corporate Services, Assistant Director of Finance, Efficiencies, 
Technology & Assets or Head of Finance.  
Loans overnight only (includes weekend) with maximum value of £15m. 
 
Cover 
For cover in the absences of the Senior Accountant (Corporate Accountancy – 
Technical) the Group Accountant (Corporate Accountancy – Technical) will have the 
same dealing limits. 

 
5.7 LIST OF APPROVED BROKERS 

A list of approved brokers is maintained within the Treasury Team and a record of all 
transactions recorded against them. See TMP 11.1.2. 

 
5.8 POLICY ON BROKERS’ SERVICES 

It is the Council’s policy to utilise the services between at least two brokers. The 
Council will maintain a spread of business between the brokers in order to avoid relying 
on the services of any one broker. The service provided by Broker’s is reviewed on an 
on-going basis in line with Best Value. 

 
5.9 POLICY ON TAPING OF CONVERSATIONS 

It is not Council Policy to tape broker conversations 
 
5.10 DIRECT DEALING PRACTICES 

The Council will consider dealing direct with counterparties if it is appropriate and the 
Council believes that better terms will be available. At present all deposits are direct 
and most loans are arranged through brokers. The following transactions are 
undertaken directly with Bank and Building Societies on the Council’s approved lending 
list. 
 
• Business Reserve Accounts: 
• Call Accounts: 
• Money Market Funds. 
• Fixed term deposits. 

 
Prior to undertaking direct dealing the Council will ensure that each counterparty has 
been provided with the Council’s Standard Settlement Instructions. 

 

Page 158



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
43 

5.11 SETTLEMENT TRANSMISSION PROCEDURES 
All dealing transactions are made via CHAPS transfer by the Financial Director system, 
which is connected, online to the local authority’s bankers’ network.  The payment is 
entered onto this system and afterwards approved by an authorised signatory.  The 
electronic transfer should be sent by 3.30 p.m. on the same day. Where the system 
breaks down, a letter signed by a bank signatory setting out each transaction would be 
faxed to the local authority’s bankers where preliminary instructions would have been 
given by telephone.   

 
5.12 DOCUMENTATION REQUIREMENTS 

For each deal undertaken a record should be prepared giving details of dealer, 
amount, period, counterparty, interest rate, dealing date, payments date(s), broker 
and type of deal. Additional requirements are: 

  
Investments: 
• confirmation from the broker 
• confirmation from the counterparty 
• Chaps payment transmission document 
Loans: 
• confirmation from the broker 
• confirmation from PWLB/market counterparty 
• Chaps payments transmission document for repayment of loan 
 

5.12.1 ARRANGEMENTS CONCERNING THE MANAGEMENT OF THIRD-
PARTY FUNDS. 

The Council holds a number of trust funds. The cash in respect of these funds is held in 
the Council’s bank account but transactions are separately coded. Interest is given on 
credit balances at the average rate for internal balances for the year.   

 

Page 159



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
44 

TMP 6 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS AND MANAGEMENT  
INFORMATION ARRANGEMENTS 
 
Principle:  
 
The Council will ensure that regular reports are prepared and considered on the 
implementation of its treasury management policies; on the effects of decisions taken and 
transactions executed in pursuit of those policies; on the implications of changes, particularly 
budgetary, resulting from regulatory, economic, market or other factors affecting its treasury 
management activities; and on the performance of the treasury management function. 
 
As a minimum, the Council/Cabinet/Audit Committee will receive: 
• An annual report on the strategy and plan to be pursued in the coming year 
• A mid-year review 
• An annual report on the performance of the treasury management function, on the 

effects of the decisions taken and the transactions executed in the past year, and on 
any circumstances of non-compliance with the organisation’s treasury management 
policy statement and TMPs. 

 
The Cabinet will receive regular monitoring reports on treasury management activities and 
risks. 
 
The Audit committee will have responsibility for the scrutiny of treasury management 
policies and practices. 

Schedule: 

6.1 FREQUENCY OF EXECUTIVE REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
 
 The Director for Corporate Services will annually submit budgets and will report on 

budget variations as appropriate. 
 

The Director for Corporate Services will submit the Prudential Indicators and the 
Treasury Strategy Statement (including Annual Investment Strategy) and report on 
the projected borrowing and investment strategy and activity for the forthcoming 
financial year to the Audit Committee/Cabinet and Full Council before the start of 
the year. 

 
 The Annual Treasury Report will be prepared as soon as practicable after the 

financial year end and, in all cases, before the end of September.   
 

A Mid-Year Treasury Report will be prepared by the Director for Corporate 
Services which will report on treasury management activities for the first part of the 
financial year. The report will also provide a forecast for the current year. The Mid-
Year Report will be submitted to Audit Committee and Full Council during the year. 
Alll of the above reports will also be submitted to Audit Committee who will be 
responsible for the scrutiny of treasury management policies and practices. 

Page 160



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
45 

6.2 CONTENT OF REPORTING 

6.2.1 PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 

 
6.2.1.1 The Council will set the following Prudential Indicators, revise if necessary, and 

following the year end publish Ractual (where appropriate) in respect of: 
• Financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream (estimate; actual) 
• Capital expenditure (estimate; actual) 
• Incremental impact of capital financing decisions (estimate) 
• Capital Financing Requirement (estimates; actual) 
• Authorised limit for external debt 
• Operational boundary for external debt 
• Actual external debt 
• Upper limits on fixed and variable rate interest exposures 
• Upper and lower limits to maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing 
• Upper limit to total of principal sums invested longer than 364 days. 

 
6.2.1.2 The Prudential Indicators are approved and revised by Full Council and are integrated 

into the Council’s overall financial planning and budget process.  
 

6.2.2 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT INCLUDING 
ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

 
6.2.2.1 The Treasury Management Strategy sets out the specific expected treasury activities 

for the forthcoming financial year. This strategy will be submitted to the Audit 
Committee for scrutiny and Cabinet/Full Council for approval before the 
commencement of each financial year. 

 
6.2.2.2 The formulation of the annual Treasury Management Strategy involves determining 

the appropriate borrowing and investment decisions in the light of the anticipated 
movement in both fixed and shorter -term variable interest rates.  For instance, this 
organisation may decide to postpone borrowing if fixed interest rates are expected 
to fall, or borrow early if fixed interest rates are expected to rise. 

 
6.2.2.3 The Treasury Strategy Statement integrates with the Prudential Indicators being set 

and will include the following: 
• Link to Capital Financing and Treasury Management Prudential Indicators for the 

current and ensuing three years 
• Strategy for financing new borrowing requirements (if any) and refinancing 

maturing borrowing (if any) over the next three years and for restructuring of 
debt 

• the extent to which surplus funds are earmarked for short term requirements 
• the investment strategy for the forthcoming year 

Page 161



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
46 

• the minimum to be held in short term/specified investment during the coming 
year 

• the interest rate outlook against which the treasury activities are likely to be 
undertaken. 

 
6.2.2.4 Investment Strategy 

Based on the ODPM’s (now CLG’s) Guidance on Investments, the Council will 
produce an Annual Investment Strategy (AIS) which sets out  
• the objectives, policies and strategy for managing its investments;  
• the determination of which Specified and Non Specified Investments the Council 

will utilise during the forthcoming financial year(s) based on the Council’s 
economic and investment outlook and the expected level of investment balances;  

• the limits for the use of Non-Specified Investments.   
The AIS will be integrated into the Treasury Strategy Statement. 

 
6.2.2.5 The Treasury Management Strategy will establish the expected move in interest 

rates against alternatives (using all available information such as published interest 
rate forecasts where applicable), and highlight sensitivities to different scenarios.  

6.3 POLICY ON INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE 

 
6.3.1 The Council approves before the beginning of each financial year a number of 

treasury limits which are set through prudential indicators.      
 
6.3.2 The Director for Corporate Services is responsible for incorporating these limits 

into the Annual Treasury Management Strategy, and for ensuring compliance with 
the limits. Should it prove necessary to amend these limits, the Director for 
Corporate Services shall submit the changes for approval to the full Council. The 
latest limits are as set out in the treasury management strategy. 

6.4 ANNUAL REPORT ON TREASURY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY 

 
6.4.1 An annual report will be presented to the Audit Committee/Cabinet and then the 

full Council at the earliest practicable meeting after the end of the financial year, but 
in any case by the end of September. This report will include the following: -  
• a comprehensive picture for the financial year of all treasury policies, plans, 

activities and results; 
• transactions executed and their revenue (current) effects; 
• report on risk implications of decisions taken and transactions executed; 
• monitoring of compliance with approved policy, practices and statutory / 

regulatory requirements; 
• monitoring of compliance with powers delegated to officers; 
• degree of compliance with the original strategy and explanation of deviations; 
• explanation of future impact of decisions taken on the organisation; 

Page 162



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
47 

• measurements of performance; 
• report on compliance with CIPFA Code recommendations and Prudential 

Indicators. 
 
6.5 MID YEAR REPORT ON TREASURY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY 
 
6.5.1 The Director for Corporate Services will produce a mid-year report for the Audit 

committee/Council on the borrowing and investment activities of the treasury 
management function for the first six months of the year. The main contents of the 
report will comprise: 

 
§ Economic background. 
§ Economic forecast (including interest rate forecast). 
§ Treasury Management Strategy Statement update. 
§ Performance versus benchmarks. 
§ Borrowing information including premature repayment and new loans. 
§ Information on investments, including current lending list. 
§ Government framework and scrutiny arrangements. 

  

6.6 CONTENT AND FREQUENCY OF MANAGEMENT INFORMATION 
REPORTS 

 
6.6.1 Treasury Management Board 
 
Monitoring information will be prepared monthly for the Treasury Management board. This 
will include: 
 

§ Total debt including average rate and maturity profile 
§ Total investments including average rate and maturity profile 
§ Transactions in the period since the last meeting 
§ Cash flow forecast update 
§ Counterparty lending against limits 
§ Monitoring position – latest forecast against budget 
§ Comparison of actual balances against prudential limits or other treasury 

management limits 

6.7 PERIODIC MONITORING COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
6.7.1 The Cabinet will receive and consider a periodical review of treasury management 

activities during the financial year including details of any debt rescheduling 
undertaken. 

 

Page 163



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
48 

TMP 7 BUDGETING, ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT ARRANGEMENTS 
 
Principle:  
 
The Director for Corporate Services will prepare, and the Council will approve and, if 
necessary, from time to time will amend, an annual budget for treasury management, which 
will bring together all of the costs involved in running the treasury management function, 
together with associated income.  The matters to be included in the budget will at minimum 
be those required by statute or regulation, together with such information as will 
demonstrate compliance with TMP1 Risk management, TMP2 Performance 
measurement, and TMP4 Approved instruments, methods and techniques.  The 
form which the Council’s budget will take is set out in the schedule below.   
 
The Director for Corporate Services will exercise effective controls over this budget, and 
will report upon and recommend any changes required in accordance with TMP6 
Reporting requirements and management information arrangements. 
 
The Council will account for its treasury management activities, for decisions made and 
transactions executed, in accordance with appropriate accounting practices and standards, 
and with statutory and regulatory requirements in force for the time being.  The present 
form of the Council’s accounts is set out in the schedule.  
 
The Council  will ensure that its auditors, and those charged with regulatory review, have 
access to all information and papers supporting the activities of the treasury management 
function as are necessary for the proper fulfillment of their roles, and that such information 
and papers demonstrate compliance with external and internal policies and approved 
practices.  The information made available under present arrangements is detailed below. 
 
Schedule:- 
 
7.1 STATUTORY/REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

 
7.1.1 Balanced Budget Requirement:  
 
7.1.1.1 The provisions of S32 and S43 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 require 

this Council to calculate its budget requirement for each financial year including, 
among other aspects:  
(a) the expenditure which is estimated to be incurred in the year in performing its 
functions and which will be charged to a revenue account and  

   (b) revenue costs which flow from capital financing decisions.   
 

 S33 of the Act requires the Council to set a council tax sufficient to meet 
expenditure after taking into account other sources of income. 

 
7.1.1.2 The accounts are drawn up in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting in Great Britain that is recognised by statute as representing 
proper accounting practices. The Council has also adopted in full the principles set 
out in CIPFA’s ‘Treasury Management in the Public Services - Code of Practice” (the 

Page 164



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
49 

‘CIPFA TM Code’), together with those of its specific recommendations that are 
relevant to this Council’s treasury management activities.  

 
7.2 ACCOUNTING PRACTICES AND STANDARDS 

 
7.2.1 CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom: A 

Statement of Recommended Practice (the local authority SORP) constitutes “proper 
accounting practice under the terms of S21 (2) of the Local Government Act 2003”. 
 

7.2.2 Due regard is given to the Statements of Recommended Practice and Accounting 
Standards as they apply to Local Authorities in Great Britain.  The Council adopts in 
full the principles set out in CIPFA’s ‘Code of Best Practice and Guide for Treasury 
Management in the Public Services’ (the ‘CIPFA Code and Guide’), together with 
those of its specific recommendations that are relevant to this organisation’s 
treasury management activities. 

 
7.3 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

The Financial Statements comprise: 
§ An explanatory foreword 
§ Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors 
§ Presentation of financial statements 
§ Movement in reserves statement 
§ Comprehensive income and expenditure statement 
§ Balance sheet 
§ Cash flow statement 
§ Housing revenue account 
§ Collection Fund (England) 
§ Statement of Responsibilities  
§ The Accounting Statements  
§ Additional Financial Statements (Housing Revenue Account, Collection Fund) 
§ Notes to the financial statements 
§ Statements reporting reviews of internal controls or internal financial     

controls 
§ Events after the reporting period 
§ Related party disclosures 
 

7.4 SAMPLE BUDGETS/ACCOUNTS/PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 
 
7.4.1 The Director for Corporate Services will prepare a three year medium term 

financial plan with Prudential Indicators for treasury management which will 
incorporate the budget for the forthcoming year and provisional estimates for the 
following two years. This will bring together all the costs involved in running the 

Page 165



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
50 

function, together with associated income.  The Director for Corporate Services will 
exercise effective controls over this budget and monitoring of performance against 
Prudential Indicators, and will report upon and recommend any changes required in 
accordance with TMP6.  

 
7.4.2 The current form of the Council’s accounts is available within the Finance 

department. 
 

7.5 TREASURY MANAGEMENT RELATED INFORMATION 
REQUIREMENTS OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS 
 

7.5.1 The following information is specifically requested by the external auditor and 
should be considered an initial request for information.  It is usually followed by 
more detailed audit testing work which often requires further information and/or 
explanations from the Council’s officers. 

 
7.5.1.1 Information is this context includes internally generated documents including those 

from the Council’s Treasury Management System, externally generated documents, 
observation of treasury management practices which support and explain the 
operation and activities of the treasury management function. 

 
§ Determination of Affordable Borrowing Limit under Section 3 of the Local 

Government Act 2003. 
§ Prudential Indicators. 
§ Treasury Management Strategy including Annual Investment Strategy. 

 
7.5.1.2 External borrowing: 

§ New loans borrowed during the year : PWLB certificates / documentation in 
relation to market loans borrowed (including copy of agreements, schedule of 
commitments) 

§ Loan maturities.  
§ Compliance with proper accounting practice, regulations and determinations for 

the amortisation of premiums and discounts arising on loans restructured during 
the year and previous years. 

§ Analysis of loans outstanding at year end including maturity analysis. 
§ Analysis of borrowing between long- and short-term 
§ Debt management and financing costs 
§ Calculation of (i) interest paid (ii) accrued interest 
§ MRP calculation and analysis of movement in the CFR. 
§ Bank overdraft position. 
§ Brokerage/commissions/transaction related costs. 

 
7.5.1.3 Investments: 

§ Investment transactions during the year including any transaction-related costs 
§ cash and bank balances at year end 
§ Short-term investments at year end 

Page 166



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
51 

§ Long-term investments at year end (including investments in associates and joint 
ventures) by asset type, including unrealised gains or losses at year end 

§ calculation of (i) interest received (ii) accrued interest 
§ actual interest received 
§ External fund manager valuations including investment income schedule and 

movement in capital values, transaction confirmations received (if any) 
§ Basis of valuation of investments 
§ Evidence of existence and title to investments (e.g. Custodian’s Reports; FRAG-

21 report from Custodian.  
§ Schedule of any investments in companies together with their latest financial 

statements); statement of transactions between the company and the Council. 
  
7.5.1.4 Cash Flow 

§ Reconciliation of the movement in cash to the movement in net debt  
§ Cash inflows and outflows (in respect of long-term financing) 
§ Cash inflows and outflows (in respect of purchase/sale of long-term investments) 
§ Net increase/decrease in (i) short-term loans (ii) short-term deposits (iii) other 

liquid resources 
 
7.5.1.5 Other  

§ Amounts which are held on behalf of schools, amounts which are held by 
schools under delegated schemes 

§ Details of (treasury-related) material events after balance sheet date not 
reflected in the financial statements. 

§ External advisors’/consultants’ charges 
 
7.6 INTERNAL AUDIT 
 
7.6.1 Internal Audit generally conducts an annual review of the treasury management 

function and probity testing. The Internal Auditors will be given access to treasury 
management information/documentation as required by them. 

 

7.7 COSTS FOR TREASURY MANAGEMENT 
 
The budget for treasury management forms part of the capital financing budget. This 
budget forms part of the Council’s annual budget setting strategy. 

Page 167



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
52 

TMP 8 CASH AND CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT 
 
Principle:  
 
Unless statutory or regulatory requirements demand otherwise, all monies in the hands of 
the Council will be under the control of the Director for Corporate Services and will be 
aggregated for cash flow and investment management purposes.  Cash flow projections will 
be prepared on a regular and timely basis, and the Director for Corporate Services will 
ensure that these are adequate for the purposes of monitoring compliance with TMP1 [2] 
liquidity risk management.  The present arrangements for preparing cash flow 
projections and their form are set out in the schedule below. 
 
Schedule:- 
 
8.1 CASH FLOW FORECASTING 

 
Cash flow projections are prepared annually, monthly and daily. The annual and monthly 
cash flow projections are prepared from the previous years’ cash flow records, adjusted 
for known changes in levels of income and expenditure and also changes in payments 
and receipts dates. These details are supplemented on an ongoing basis by information 
received of new or revised amounts to be paid or received as and when they are 
known. The cash flow forecast for the year is updated on a daily basis with actual figures 
from the Council’s bank transactions available from Financial Director. The cash flow 
forecast is a key document used for calculating any borrowing needed to cover short-
term cash flow requirements or the availability of cash for any short-term or longer-
term investments.  
 
The detailed annual cash flow model includes the following: 

 
 Revenue activities:  
 Inflows: 

• Revenue Support Grant 
• Non domestic rates receipts 
• NNDR receipts from national pool 
• Council tax receipts 
• Housing subsidy 
• DSS / other government grants 
• Cash for goods and services 
• Other operating cash receipts 

 
 Outflows: 

• Salaries and payments on behalf of employees 
• Operating cash payments 
• Housing Benefit paid 
• Precepts paid 

Page 168



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
53 

• NNDR payments to national pool 
• Payments to the capital receipts pool 

 
 Capital activities including financing 
 Inflows: 

• Capital grants received 
• Sale of fixed assets 
• Other capital cash receipts 

 
 Outflows: 

• Purchase of fixed assets 
• Purchase of long-term investments 
• Other capital cash payments 

 
 Financing, Servicing of Finance/Returns on Investments 
 Inflows:  

• New long-term loans raised 
• New short-term loans raised 
• Interest received 
• Discount on premature repayment of loan 

 
 Outflows: 

• Loan repayments  
• Premia on premature repayment of loan 
• Short-term investments 
• Capital element of finance lease rental payments 
• Interest paid 
• Interest element of finance lease rental payments 

     
8.2 BANK STATEMENTS PROCEDURES 

The Council receives daily bank statements and a daily download of data from its bank.  
All amounts on the statement are checked to transaction records from Payroll, 
Creditors etc. A formal bank reconciliation is undertaken on a monthly basis by the 
Bank Reconciliation Team. 

 
8.3 PAYMENT SCHEDULING AND AGREED TERMS OF TRADE WITH 

CREDITORS 
The Council has a policy of paying suppliers in line with agreed terms of trade and the 
following service standards: 
 

§ Small and medium enterprises (SME’s – business employing up to 250 people) to 
be paid within 15 days of receipt of invoice. 

§ All other creditors to be paid within 30 days of receipt of invoice. 
 
 
 

Page 169



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
54 

8.4 ARRANGEMENTS FOR MONITORING DEBTORS / CREDITORS LEVELS 
The information on levels of debtors and creditors are monitored. Debtors payment 
information is recorded from the daily bank transactions and creditors payments passed 
to the treasury team following each pay run to assist in updating the cash flow forecast. 

 
8.5 PROCEDURES FOR BANKING OF FUNDS 

Instructions for banking of receipts are set out in the Financial Regulations.  
 
All money received by an officer on behalf of the Council will without unreasonable 
delay be either passed to Transaction Centre staff to deposit or banked directly, under 
arrangements put in place by the Strategic Manager (Transaction Centre), into the 
Council’s bank accounts. Cash & cheques received by Transaction Centre staff are 
banked weekly due to the reduction in the value of receipts and the cost of transporting 
the deposits. These bankings are then included in the figures available on Financial 
Director used to calculate the Council’s available funds/funding requirement 
requirements and to update the Cash flow forecast for the year. 

 
8.6 PRACTICES CONCERNING PREPAYMENTS TO OBTAIN BENEFITS 

All prepayments must be authorised by the approved signatory in the respective 
department. 
 

Page 170



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
55 

TMP 9 MONEY LAUNDERING 
 
9.1 Background:  
 
9.1.1 The Proceeds of Crime Act (POCA) 2002 consolidated, updated and reformed 

criminal law in the UK in relation to money laundering.  The principal offences 
relating to money laundering are: 
• Concealing, disguising, converting, transferring or removing criminal property 

from England and Wales, from Scotland or from Northern Ireland 
• Being concerned in an arrangement which a person knows or suspects facilitates 

the acquisition, retention use or control of criminal property 
• Acquiring, using or possessing criminal property. 
Other offences include failure to disclose money laundering offences, tipping off a 
suspect either directly or indirectly, and doing something that might prejudice an 
investigation. 

 
9.1.2 Organisations pursuing relevant businesses were required to appoint a nominated 

officer and implement internal reporting procedures; train relevant staff in the 
subject; establish internal procedures with respect to money laundering; obtain, 
verify and maintain evidence and records of the identity of new clients and 
transactions undertaken and report their suspicions. 

 
9.1.3 In December 2007, the UK Government published the Money Laundering 

Regulations 2007, which replaced the 2003 Regulations. 
 
9.1.4 CIPFA believes that public sector organisations should “embrace the underlying 

principles behind the money laundering legislation and regulations and put in place 
anti money laundering policies, procedures and reporting arrangements appropriate 
and proportionate to their activities”.  

 
9.2 Principle : 

The Council is alert to the possibility that it may become the subject of an attempt 
to involve it in a transaction involving the laundering of money.  Accordingly, it will 
maintain procedures for verifying and recording the identity of counterparties and 
reporting suspicions, and will ensure that staff involved in this are properly trained.  
The present arrangements, including the name of the officer to whom reports should 
be made, are detailed in the schedule below 
 

Schedule:- 
 

9.3 PROCEDURES FOR ESTABLISHING IDENTITY / AUTHENTICITY OF 
LENDERS 

The Council does not accept loans from individuals.   

Page 171



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
56 

 
All loans are obtained from the PWLB, other local authorities or from authorised 
institutions under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000:  (The FSA register 
can be accessed through their website on www.fsa.gov.uk). 
 
When repaying loans, the procedures in 9.4 will be followed to check the bank 
details of the recipient.  

 
9.4 METHODOLOGIES FOR IDENTIFYING DEPOSIT TAKERS 

In the course of its Treasury activities, the Council will only lend money to or invest 
with those counterparties that are on its approved lending list.  This will be 
authorised deposit takers under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000:  (The 
FSA register can be accessed through their website on www.fsa.gov.uk). 
 
Where counterparty is contracted via a broker, the broker confirms bank details. 
Where Plymouth City Council has previously used the counterparty, details are 
checked against those currently held. Any changes are confirmed by the broker and 
by the counterpart on headed paper. When a broker introduces a new 
counterparty, Standard Settlement Instructions on headed paper are requested. 
Confirmation of bank details on headed paper is required before any principal or 
interest payments are made. 
     
All transactions are carried out by CHAPS for making deposits or repaying loans.  

 
9.5 PROCEEDS OF CRIME ACT 2002 (POCA) 

 
Please find below an explanation of the current responsibilities of local authorities: - 
 
The Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 imposes an obligation on any person or other body 
that undertakes a regulated activity as defined by the Act to report any incident that 
leads them to suspect that an individual or other body is making transactions with the 
proceeds of any criminal activity. This is an extension of the obligations previously 
imposed principally on financial services organisations and employees under money 
laundering legislation.  The money laundering legislation, as reinforced by the FSA 
guidance, made it clear that an organisation had to nominate a money laundering 
reporting officer, MLRO, through whom suspicious transactions had to be reported and 
it was incumbent on the MLRO to decide if these transactions had to be reported to 
the National Criminal Investigation Service (NCIS), being the police body charged with 
dealing with these matters.  
 
The question therefore arises as to whether organisations now caught under the 
provisions of the Proceeds of Crime Act (POCA) have to also nominate a MLRO. 
There is nothing that states that an MLRO has to be nominated and indeed, a number 

Page 172



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
57 

of organisations that are caught by POCA would not have a direct regulator to notify. 
However, it is equally clear that such organisations must have a process in place 
whereby employees can alert management of activities that may fall under POCA and 
that process must make it clear to whom an internal report has to be made. Therefore 
whether called an MLRO or not, under their internal processes organisations need to 
appoint a senior officer to whom suspicions must be reported and who is responsible 
for deciding whether to pass the report to the NCIS. 
 Their contact address is as follows:  
 

NCIS 
PO BOX 8000 
LONDON SE11 5EN 
www.ncis.co.uk 

 
The Council has appointed the Head of Finance to be the responsible officer to who 
any suspicions that transactions involving the Council may include a party who is 
involved in criminal activity. Suspicious transactions will be investigated as far as the 
Council is in a position to do so or it is appropriate to do so, and if doubts remain, 
these transactions will then be reported to the National Criminal Investigation Service. 
 

 
The treasury management team is conversant with the requirements of the Proceeds of 
Crime Act 2002. The Council will only lend money to or invest with those 
counterparties who are authorised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 
and each organisation will be asked to formally provide adequate settlement 
instructions.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 173



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
58 

TMP 10 TRAINING AND QUALIFICATIONS  

Principle:  
 

The Council recognises the importance of ensuring that all staff involved in the treasury 
management function are fully equipped to undertake the duties and responsibilities 
allocated to them. It will therefore seek to appoint individuals who are both capable and 
experienced and will provide training for staff to enable them to acquire and maintain 
an appropriate level of expertise, knowledge and skills.  The Director for Corporate 
Services will recommend and implement the necessary arrangements. 

 
The Director for Corporate Services will ensure that board/council members tasked 
with treasury management responsibilities, including those responsible for scrutiny, 
have access to training relevant to their needs and responsibilities. 

 
Those charged with governance recognise their individual responsibility to ensure that 
they have the necessary skills to complete their role effectively. 

 

The present arrangements are detailed in the schedule below. 
 

Schedule:- 
 

10.1 QUALIFICATIONS/EXPERIENCE OF TREASURY MANAGEMENT 
STAFF 

The Council recognises the importance that all treasury management staff should 
receive appropriate training relevant to the requirements of their duties at the 
appropriate time. The courses/events the Council would expect its treasury 
management personnel to consider are: 
 
• Appropriate qualifications in Treasury Management. This was previously a 

Certificate in International Treasury Management – Public Finance which has been 
obtained by the Senior Accountant on the Treasury Management team. This 
qualification is no longer available and Cipfa are working on a new qualification for 
treasury managers. 

• Training courses for Accounting, Auditing, Best Value/Competition, Budgeting, 
Capital Finance & Borrowing, and Financial Management run by CIPFA and IPF. 

• Any courses/seminars run by Treasury Management Consultants. 
• Attending Cipfa Conference 
• Training attended by those responsible for scrutiny of the treasury function.  

  
10.2 STATEMENT OF PROFESSIONAL PRACTICE (SOPP) 

1. Where the Chief Financial Officer is a member of CIPFA, there is a professional 
need for the CFO to be committed to professional responsibilities through both 
personal compliance and by ensuring that relevant staff is appropriately trained.  

Page 174



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
59 

 
2. Other staff involved in treasury management activities who are members of 

CIPFA must also comply with the SOPP. 
 
10.3 RECORDS OF TRAINING 

Records of training received by treasury management staff and those charged with 
governance are maintained on the appropriate personnel file or as part of 
councilor/committee records. 
 

Page 175



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
60 

TMP 11 USE OF EXTERNAL SERVICE PROVIDERS 
 
Principle:  
 
The Council recognises that responsibility for the treasury management decisions remains 
with the organisation at all times. It recognises the potential value of employing external 
providers of treasury management services, in order to acquire access to specialist skills and 
resources.  When it employs such service providers, it will ensure it does so for reasons 
which will have been submitted to a full evaluation of the costs and benefits.  It will also 
ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which their value will be 
assessed are properly agreed and documented, and subjected to regular review. And it will 
ensure, where feasible and necessary, that a spread of service providers is used, to avoid 
over reliance on one or a small number of companies.  Where services are subject to 
formal tender or re-tender arrangements, legislative requirements will always be observed.  
The monitoring of such arrangements rests with the Director for Corporate Services and 
details of the current arrangements are set out in the schedule below. 
 
Schedule:- 
 
11.1 DETAILS OF CONTRACTS WITH SERVICE PROVIDERS, INCLUDING 

BANKERS, BROKERS, CONSULTANTS, ADVISERS AND 
REGULATORY STATUS 

 
11.1.1 Banking services 

Name of supplier of the service: Co-operative Bank PLC. 
The branch address is: 
160 Armada Way, Plymouth PL1 1LF 
Tel No. 01752 661482 
Commencement Date 1st April 2008 
Expiry Date 31st March 2012 
 
The contract ran for 4 years from the 1st April 2008. The contract allowed for the 
possibility of two additional annual extensions to be agreed by both parties before 
October 2011 and 2012 respectively. The first extension has been agreed and runs 
until 31st March 2013. 
  
Other Banks used for access deposit account facilities: 
 
Name of Bank Account Type Address 
 
Bank of Scotland PLC Call and 7 Day Notice 3rd Floor 
 Citymark 
 150 Fountainbridge  

Page 176



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
61 

 Edinburgh EH3 9PE 
 
Santander UK Plc Call Abbey National House 
 301 St Vincent Street 
 Glasgow 
 G2 5NT 
 
Clydesdale Bank Call and 15 Day Notice Plymouth Financial Solutions 
  Centre  
 Ground Floor   
 Envoy House  
 61 Longbridge Road 
 Plymouth PL6 8LU  
  
Royal Bank of Scotland Call and 30 Day Notice RBS Corporate Banking 
 2nd Floor Vantage Point
 Woodwater Park 
 Pynes Hill 
 Exeter EX2 5FD 
 
Barclays Call PO Box 330 
  3 Bedford Street  
  Exeter 

  BX3 2BB 
 
11.1.2 Money-broking services 
The council will use money brokers for temporary borrowing and investments up to 1 year 
and long term borrowing. Brokers currently used are: 
 
Name of Broker Address     Tel. no. 
 
Martin Brokers (UK) PLC  Cannon Bridge House, 
    25 Dowgate Hill, 
    London EC4R 2BB   0207 4699580 
Tullet Prebon Europe Ltd 155 Bishopsgate, London EC2M 3TQ 0207 2007042 
Sterling International Brokers Ltd No. 10 Chiswell Street 
  London EC1Y 4UQ   0207 4968955 
London Currency Brokers lCB House, 3 Scrutton Street   
  London EC2A 4HF    0207 7394444 
Tradition (UK) Ltd Beaufort House 
  15 St Botolph Street 
  London EC3A 7QX   0207 4223566 
 

Page 177



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
62 

11.1.3 Consultants’/advisers’ services 
The Council will seek to take expert advice on interest rate forecasts, annual treasury 
management strategy, debt rescheduling and use of various borrowing and investment 
instruments. 
Treasury Consultancy Services 

Name of supplier of service is Arlingclose Ltd. 
Their address is: 
60 Moorgate 
London 
EC2R 6EL 
Tel:  08448 808200 
Contract Expiry Date is 31st December 2012 
Cost of service is £22,000 + Vat in 2012. 
The Council has the option to extend the contract for a further two one year periods 
subject to an annual review with cost in 2013 increasing to £23,000 + Vat and in 2014 to 
£24,000 + Vat. 
  

External Fund Managers 
The council does not currently hold funds with an external fund manager. 
 
11.1.4 Regulatory Status of Services Provided 
 

All financial services providers are regulated by the Financial Services authority (FSA) 

Page 178



Treasury Management Practices 2012-13    Appendix 3    

   
63 

TMP 12 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
Principle:  
 
The Council is committed to the pursuit of proper corporate governance throughout its 
businesses and services, and to establishing the principles and practices by which this can be 
achieved.  Accordingly, the treasury management function and its activities will be 
undertaken with openness and transparency, honesty, integrity and accountability. 
 

The Council has adopted and has implemented the key recommendations of the Treasury 
Management Code of Practice (Revised 2011). This, together with the other arrangements 
detailed in the schedule below, are considered vital to the achievement of proper corporate 
governance in treasury management, and the Director for Corporate Services will monitor 
and, if and when necessary, report upon the effectiveness of these arrangements. 
 
12.1 LIST OF DOCUMENTS TO BE MADE AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC 

INSPECTION 
 
The Council is committed to the principle of openness and transparency in its treasury 
management function and in all of its functions. 
 
The following documents are available for public inspection: 

• Treasury Management Policy Statement 
• Treasury Management Strategy Statement (Including Prudential Indicators and 

investment Strategy) 
• Annual Treasury Report 
• Annual Statement of Accounts 
• Annual budget 
• 5 year Capital Plan 
• Minutes of the Council/Cabinet/committee meetings 

 
Financial information is additionally available on the Council’s website www.plymouth.gov.uk 
 
12.2 PROCEDURES FOR CONSULTATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS 
 
Members and senior officers are consulted via reports to the Audit Committee, Cabinet 
and Full Council.  

Page 179



Page 180

This page is intentionally left blank



� � �

��
��

��
�	
�

���

�

��

�
���
�

�

��

��
���

��
���
�
��

��
�
	�
�
��

��
��
��

�
�

� � � �
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

� 	


�
�

��
�


�	
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

� � � ��
Agenda Item 13Page 181



A
cc

ou
nt

s 
A

ud
it 

A
pp

ro
ac

h 
M

em
or

an
du

m
 

� ©
 2

01
2 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.



��

��
��

�
��
��
��
��
�	

�
��
��
	��


��
��
��

��

�
�

�	
��
��
��
��
��
�	

�
��
��
	��
�

��
�


�



�
��
	�

��

�
�

��
	

��
���
�	
��
��

��
��

�	�
�
��
��

��
�

�


��
��
��
�
���
�
� 
�

	��

�

��
�

�


��
��
��
!
�"
��
�	
��
��
#
��
��

�$
�

��

Page 182



A
cc

ou
nt

s 
A

ud
it 

A
pp

ro
ac

h 
M

em
or

an
du

m
3

� ©
 2

01
22

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
. 

�
��
��

��

��
���

��
���
��
��
��
	
�

�	
���
�
��

��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
���

��
���
��

��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��

���
��

���
��
��
��
	
���
���

��
��
��
���

��
��
��
��

���
��
��
��
��
��

��
���
��
��
���

��
��
	
��
��
��
��
���

��
���
���

��
��

��
��
��
��
��

���
��
��

��
��
��
� 
��
���
� 
��!
��
�
��	

��
��
��
���
�

�!
���

��
���

��
��

���
�
��
 �
�
��
��
��
��

���
��
��
��
"�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��

#
��
�
���
$�

•
�
��
��
��
���

��
��
 �
�
��
��
��
�
��	

��	
��
!��

��
�
���

��
�

��
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
�
��
���

��
���
��
��
���

��
��
��

�
�
��

�
���
	�
��
��

���
�!
!�

��
��
��
�

•
��
��
��
��
��
��

���
��

��
��
��
��
��
��

��
���

� 
�%
��
���
��
��	

��
��
��
���

!��
	�
��
��

���
��
��

��
��
��
���
�
��
�%
��
���

��	
��
���

��
�!
!��
��

��
��
�&
��
��

�
•

�
��
��
��
��	

��
�
��
��
��
���
��
�!
���
��
��
�
��
��
��
	�
��

��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

���
��
��
�
	�
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

��
!��

��
��

��
� �	

��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
���
�!
��
��
��
��

��
���

��

��
���

��
���
��
��

��
��
��
��
��	

��	
��
�
��

���


��

�
���
��
���

��
��
	
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
���
��
��
��
��

��
��
'�
�
���

��	
���
�
��

��
��
��

�
"�

�
��
�
�
��
 
�

• 
(
��

��
��
��
��

���
��

��
��
��
��
��

��
!�
�	
��


��

�
���
�	
��
��
	�
��
�
��
���

��
��
��	

�
�
��
��
��

��
���

��
��
���

��
��

��
!�
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��!
��
��
�
��
���

��
��
��
��

• 
)�
��
��!
��
��

��
��

���
��
��
��
��
��
�
�!�
�
�
�
��

���
��
���

��
�
��
���
��
��
��

�

�
�
�
��
�
��

�
!
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

•
*�

��
��

��
��
�	
��
��
���

��
�!
!�
�
��
��
��
���

��
���

��
��

��
��
���

��
�!

���
��
��
��
�!�
��
�
��
��

�
��
��
���
��
�
��

��
��
)�
���

	�
��
��	

��
���

��
�
��
��
�	
��
!��

��
�
��
���
��
��

��
��
�

• 
�
��
��
���

��
��
��
���
�� 

��
��

��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��

���
��
��
��
��
�

• 
��

��
��
��
�	
��
��

��
��
��
��
�!
!�
�
��
��
��
���

!�
���

��
�
��
�
��

���
���

• 
�
��
��
���

��
�	
��


��

�
��+
���

��
��
��
�
��
��
�!�

��
��

��
��
��

��
��	

���
'�
��
��
���

���
��
��
��

,�
�%
��
��
�
�
���

-�
���

�
��
��
�

• 
�
��
��
���

��
�	
��
�!
!�
�
��
��
��
���

!�
��
��
��
��
��
��

���
�

�
�
"
#
��
�
��
!
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
#
�

• 
*�

��
��

��
��
�
��
��
��
���

��
��
��
��
���
��
��
���

��	
��
!��

��
�
��
���
��
��

��
��
�

• 
��

�!
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
���

��
��

�
• 

.�
��!
��
��

��
���
�
��
��
��
���
�
��

��
��
��
�'
��
��

���
��
��
��

�%
��
��
�
��	

��
���


��

��
���

��
 �
��

���
��
�
��

���
��
��
��
��
�
	�
�	
��
��
��

���
��
��
��
�
���
���

!!
�
��
��
��
��

��
��

��
��
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

• 
��

�!
��
�
��
��
��

��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
�!

��
��
��
��
 �
��

��	
��
!��

��
�
��
���
��
��

��
��
���

�
��
��
��

��
��
�
	�
�	
��
��	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

�!�
���
��
��

• 
/
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��

���
��

��
��
�

• 
*�

��
��
��
��
��
�0
��
��
�
���

��
���
��
��
*
�� 

�

��

�
���
��
��	

��
��

	�
��

��)
1�

��
2�

���
��

��
�

��
��
�
��

��
���

��
���
3�

���
�

�

Page 183



A
cc

ou
nt

s 
A

ud
it 

A
pp

ro
ac

h 
M

em
or

an
du

m
4

� ©
 2

01
22

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
. 

$
�
��
��
�
��
�%
�

�
��
���
�
��
��

��
�%
��
�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
���
��
�	
��
!��

��
�
��
���
��
��

��
��
��!
���
	�
��

�	
���
��

��
���

��
��
��
��
��

4�
��

��
��
��
���
	�
�!�
��
�
��
���
��
��
�
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��

��
��	

��
��
���
��
��
��

!�
���
��
��

"�

�
��
��
��
���
��
���
��
���

���
	�
��
��
��
���

!��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
��
��
��

���
��
���
��
���

!��
��

���
�
��
 �
���
��
��
��
�"
�)�
���
��	

��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
	�

��
��	

��
��
��
���

��
�
��
���

��
��
��
���

��
��
��
���
	�
�

��
��
�
��
!��

��
���
��

��
��
�	
��
!��

��
�
��
���
��
��

��
��
"��

��
���

��
��!
��
��
��
��
��
��
���

�!!
��
��
�
��

��
��
��
���
	�
��
�5

��
!��

��
��
��
���
��
�
���
�%
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��

��
��
!��

��
��
���
��

�
���

��
��
�
��
��
"��

�	
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���

��
��
��

���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
��

�
��
��
���

��
��

��
��

���
!��

��
�

��
��
��
�
��	

��
��
��

��
��
��

��
���

�
���
��

���
��
��

���
�6
��
��!
��
���

	
���
��

���
���

��
��
�!
!�%

��
��
��

��
��
��

���
��
��
���

!��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
�
�!
���

��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��	

��
��	

��
��
��
���

�
��
��
��
���
��

�	
��
!��

��
�
��
���
��
��

��
��
"�

�
��
���
�
��
!��
��

��
��
��
��

��
�%
��
��
��
��
��
��
�6�

��
��
���

�%
��
�
��
��
��
��%

��
���
��
��
��
��
�!�

��
�'
��

��
��
��
��
���
�
��	

��
��
!!
�
��
��	

��
��
�
��
��
��
��
!��

���
�
��
�+�
��

��
��

��
��
"��

��
���
�
��
!�

	�
�	

��
��
��
��
��

��
��
-�

��
��
�%
��
6�
��

��
��
��
��

��
��
��
���
!��
���

��
���

��
��
���
��
���
	�
���
��
	�
��
��

!�
���

��
���

!��
	�
�!�
��
�
��
���
��
��
�
��
��
"�



�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

#
��
�
��
 �
�
��	

��	
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

���
!�
�
���

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

���
��

���
��
��
��
	
���
 �
���


��

��
�

�!
��	

��
���
 �
���

��
��!
��
��
!�
��

���
��
��

���
	�
��
	�
��
�
��

��
�
��
���

��
��
��
���

��	
��
!��

��
�
��
�

��
��
��

��
��
���
�%

6�
�
���

��
��
���

��
��

��
!��
	�
��
!!
�
���

��
��
���

!��
	�
���

��
��
��
��
��

���
!�
�
���

�"
�

� #
	�
��
���
��

�!�
�
��
���
� 
���
��
�	
��
!��

��
�
��
���
��
��

��
��
��
��
���

��
��!
��
��
!�
��

��
��
��
�
��
�
��
 �
�

���
�
��
�%
��
��

��
�%
��
���

�
��

��
��
��
��
�
��	

��	
��
�
��
 �
�!
���

��
��
��
��
��

���
��
��
��

��
��
��

�
��
��
��
�

��
��
�
��
��
��
�!
��
!!
��
�"�
#
	�
��
���

	
���

���
�
��
��
 �
���

��
�
��	

���
�
���
�%
��
��
�
�!�
�
���
��
��
��
��
��

��
��	

��
��
��

��
��
��
�!
��
��
���

��
���
"



�
!
��
&
��
'�
�
�(
�
�
�
��
�
�#
�
�
��
�
�
�#
%
#
��
�
#
)�

�
��
��
��

���
��
��
��
	
��
��
��

��
��	

��
��
��
�
���
��
���

���
���

�
��

��
�'
�
��

��
��
���

��
��
�
���

��
�

�
�
��

���
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
���

���
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
���
��
��
��
��

%�
��
��
!��
��
��
�
���

��
"��

	�
��
��

��
�

%�
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
���

�
��
��
���
��

���
�
��
���

��
��
��
���

��
!��

��
�
��
���

��
��
��
��
��
!�
��

��
��
��
�

��
�
��

��
��
�	
��
��
��

��
��

��

��
�"�
�

��
��
��

��
���

��
��
��

��
�
	�
��
-�

���
���

���
��
��

��
!��
	�
�

��
��
��
��
�
��

���
���
��
��	

��


��

�
��+
���
�!
��
�
��
��
��
��
	
��

��
��
�7)
�8
��
��

���
��

��
�"�

,�
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��

��
���

!��
	�
�
��

��
�'
���
��
!��
	�
��
��
��
���
)�

��
��

���
��

��
���
�
��
	�
��
�

��
��

��
��
���

�
��
���
���

�
	�

��
��

��
*
�� 

�1
��
��
�
��7
�*

18
���

��
��

��
%�
��
���

��
��
��
��

���
�
��
 �

��
��
��
��
���

��
��

��
��
 �
��
���

��
��

��
!��
	�
��
��
��
���
)�

�
��

���
���
��

���
��

��
���

��
���
��

�!�
�
��
�

��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
"��

��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�#
�

�
��

���
��

���
��
��
��
���

�-
��
��
��	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��	

��
��
���

��
�!
!�
�
��
��
��
���

!��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
���
��

��
��	

��
!��

��
�
��
���

��
��
��
��
��
�
��
���
��
��
��
��!
��
��
��
���

!��
��
 �

��
���
	�
��

��
��
�

��
��
���

��
��
��
��
���

���
��
��
�
��
�"�
�	

��
�!
��
��
��
��
�
���
�!�

�
���

��
�
��

���
���
��
��
�
��
��
�	
��
	�
�	

�
���
 �
��
��
���

!��
	�
�!�
��
�
��
���
��
��
�
��
��
"�

)�
��
��
��
���

��
��
��
���

	�
�	
��
�
��

��
��
��	

��
��
%�
��
���

��
��

��
��
��
��
���

��
��

��
���

��
�
���
�

�
��

�
���

�
��

%�
��
���

��
�!
���

-�
���

��
��

��
%�
��
��
���

��
��
�
��
��
��
���
��

���
	�
��
�

��
��
��

���
��
���
��
��
�
���

��
�
�� 

�	
��
��
	�
"�#

	�
��
�!�

��	
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
���

��
���
�!
!�

��
�
��

�
��
�%
��
��
��
��
���

��
�
���
�
��

���
��
��
���

�
��
���

��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
���
�	
��
��
��
�
��
�
��

���
��
���

�
%�
� 
��
���

���
��
���

��
��
��	

��
��
��
��!
��
��
���
 "
�

"

�

Page 184



A
cc

ou
nt

s 
A

ud
it 

A
pp

ro
ac

h 
M

em
or

an
du

m
5

� ©
 2

01
22

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
. 

(
��

��
��
��

��

��

��
���

��
���
���
 �
��
��
��
�
��
��

�
���

��
���

!��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
 �
�
��
	�
��
���

��
��

��
��	

��
 �
��
��
��
��

���
 �
���

��
��!
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

���
��
��
��
��
��

��
���
���

��
��
��
��
���

��	
��
�
��

���


��

�
���
��
���

�
�
��
	
��
��
�"
��
���

���
��
���
�!
��	

���
��

��
��
��
��
��
���

��
�%
��
��

��	
��
��

�
��

��
�!
��
��
 �
�
�
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
!�
��
	�
���

��
 �
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���

!��
	�
�!�
��
�
��
���
��
��
�
��
��
��
��

��"
�

�
��
��
��

��
��
���

��
��

��
!��
	�
� 
��
���
� 
��!
�
��
��
�	
��


��

�
���
	�
���
��
��
�!�
��
��
��

���
��

��
���
� 
���

�
	�
	
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�%
��
��
��
��
��

���
��
��

���
��
��

��
��
��

���
��
��
��

��
"��

	�
��

�6
��
���
��
!�

�	
��
��
���
 �
��
��
���

��
��
��
��
��	

��
�
��
��
���
��
��
�
���

��
��
!��
	�
�

��

�
���
��
�
��

��
��
!�
��
	�
��

	�
��

��
�

��
��	

��
�
�
�
��

���
��
��
��
�%
��
��
�
���
�
%�
��

��
���
��
��
���

��
��

���
��
��
���

��
�!
�
��

��
�
��
��
��
�

��
��

���
��
%�
���
��
��
�1
��,

��
�!�

�
�1
	
��

���
)
��
��
��
�
,�

� 
���
��

��
��

��
��
��
��

��

��

��
��
��
!�
���
	�
�

3�
�
��9

��
��
��
���

��
��
��
��
�	
��
�73

9
�8
"��
#
��
	�
��
��
��
 �
��
�
��
��
��
�
��	

��	
��
!��

��
�
���

��
�

���
�
�:�

��
��
��
��
��
���

��
��

��
���
	�
���

��
�
��
��
��
��
!��

���
��
��

��
��
�
	�
��

��
���

��	
��
�
�
��

��
"�

�	
��
���
 �
��
��
��
�
��
��%

��
��

��
���

��
��
��
��
���

��
��

��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
��

��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�	
��

��
��
�
��
��
��
�!�

���
��
��
��

���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
"��

#
��
�
���
���

��
��
��
��
�!�

���
!��

��
��

���
��

�
��

�
��
��
��
���

���
��
�
���

!��
�
	�
���
 �
��
��
��!
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
��

��
��*

��
��
���
��
�	

��
��


	�
��
��
��
��	

�;
��

��
��
�
��
7)
1�

��
2�
8��

��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�!
��
��
�

!��
��
��

��

��
���

��
��"

T
ab

le
 1

: 
 K

ey
 a

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 r

is
ks

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
ed

 a
ss

u
ra

n
ce

s 

K
ey

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

k 
A

u
d

it
 a

re
as

 a
ff

ec
te

d
 

 
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

 
 

 
F

u
rt

h
er

 w
o

rk
 p

la
n

n
ed

�

•
�
���

��
��

��
!��
	�
�
��
��
�!�
�
���

��
�!
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
� 
��
�%
��
�	
��


��

�
���
��
��
��
���

!��
	�
���

��
��
��

�!�
��<

��
���
��
��
��
��
��	

��
���

��
��!
��
��

�!
��
��

%�
���

!��
��
��
���
	�
��	

��
��
%�
��
�

�
��
��

���
��
���

�
��
�
���
"��
�
���
��
��
!��
	�
�

��
��
��
�	
��
��
%�
��
���

%�
���
��
���

��
���

��
��	

��
��

��
��

��
��
���

-�
���

��
��
��
�
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
�"�
�

#
��
	�
��
��
��

��
��
��
�	
��
!��

��
��

���
��	

��	
��



��

�
���
���

�
��	

��
�	
��
��
%�
��
���

��
��!
��
��
��
�

��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��	

��
�
��
�
���
��
��
�
��
���
��

��
��
��
�"
�

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 f
o

r 
P

ro
p

er
ty

, 
P

la
n

t 
an

d
 E

q
u

ip
m

en
t�

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

A
ss

et
s�

•
�
���

��
���

!��
	�
�!�
��
���

��

��
���

��
�
���
���

��
��

��	
��

6�
��

�
��
��
��
��

���
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
��

���
��
�

�
�
��

���
��
��
��
��

��
��

•
#
��
�
���
���

��
��	

��
�
��

��
��
��
���

��
��
��
��
�	
��
�

��

�
��

���
�

�
��
��
���
���

��
��
��
���
���
��
��
"�

•
#
��
�
���
���

��
��

��
��

��
��
��
���

��	
��
��	

��
!��

��
�
��
�

��
��
��

��
��
���

���
��
���

��
��
�

��

�
��

���
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
�

�	
��
��

��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��	

��
��
%�
��
��

��
"�

•
#
��
�
���
�
��

���
��
��
	�
�	
��
��	

��
��

��
��

��
��
���

-�
���

��
�

��
��
��=

��
���

�6
��
��

��
�"�

Page 185



A
cc

ou
nt

s 
A

ud
it 

A
pp

ro
ac

h 
M

em
or

an
du

m
6

� ©
 2

01
22

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
. 

T
ab

le
 1

: 
 K

ey
 a

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 r

is
ks

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
ed

 a
ss

u
ra

n
ce

s 
(c

o
n

ti
n

u
ed

) 

�K
ey

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

k 
A

u
d

it
 a

re
as

 a
ff

ec
te

d
 

 
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

 
 

 
F

u
rt

h
er

 W
o

rk
 P

la
n

n
ed

�

•
#
��
	�
��
��
��

��
��
��
�	
��
	
��
��
���

�
�
�
��

���
��
��
-�

���
�
��
��
��
��

��
��

��
��
 �
��

��
���

���
��
���

��
��

��
!��
	�
�

��

�
��+
��

��
��
��

��
��
��
�!�

���
	�
���

��
��!
�
��
��
��
�!
�

	�
���
��
��
��
��
��
���

��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��	

�
�	
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
!�0

*
1>

��
�
	�
	
��
��
�

��
��

��
��
%�
��	

��


��

��
!�
���
	�
�!�
��
���
��

��
��
�

��
��
4�
�"
�

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 f
o

r 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 
P

la
n

t 
an

d
 E

q
u

ip
m

en
t�

H
er

it
ag

e 
A

ss
et

s 
�

•
�
���

��
���

!��
	�
�!�
��
���

��

��
���

��
���
�
��
�
���
���

��
��

��	
��

6�
��

�
��
��
��
��

���
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
��

���
��
�

�
��
��!
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�!
��
��
��
�"�

•
#
��
�
���
���

��
��

��	
��
��
�
��
��
��
���

��	
��
��	

��
!��

��
�
��
�

��
��
��

��
��
���

���
��
���

��
��
�	
��
���
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��	

��
�

�	
��
��
-�

���
�
��
��
��
!��
	�
�

��

��
��
��
�
��
�

•
#
��
	�
��
���

��
��

��
��	

��
��
�
��
��
���
��
��
�
��

��
���

��
�
���

!��
	�
��
��

��
��
��
�!
��	

��
��
�
�

��
��
���
��
���
��
���
��
��
��
�
��
��
��	

��
��
�
�
���
��
��
��
�'
��
�
��
��	

��
�	
��
�%
��
��

��
��
��
� 
��
"�#

��
	�
��
�%
��
��
��
�
��

���
��
��

��
�
��
���

��
�
��	

��	
��


��

�
���
��
���

��
�
���

!�
�	
��
	
��
��
���

���
��
��
!�
��

��	
��

��
�
�
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
�
��
��
�	
��

��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
���

��	
��
�
�
��

��
"�

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 f
o

r 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 
P

la
n

t 
an

d
 E

q
u

ip
m

en
t�

A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
n

ew
 

as
se

t 
re

g
is

te
r 

 �
•

�
���

��
���

!��
	�
�!�
��
���

��

��
���

��
���
�
��
�
���
��
��

��
��
 �
�

��
��
���

��
���
��
���

��
��

��	
��
��
%�
��
�
��
���

�
��
��
��
��
��
�	
��

��
��
��

��
��
��

��
��
��
��	

��
�
�
��

��
"��

•
#
��
�
���
���

��
��

��	
��
��
�
��
��
��
���

��	
��
��	

��
!��

��
�
��
�

��
��
��

��
��
���

��
��
��
��
�	
��
��	

��
��
-�

���
�
��
��
��
!��
	�
�

��

��
��
��
�
��
"�

•
#
��
	�
��
��
��

��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
���

��
���

!��
	�
��
��
��
��
��	

��	
��


��

�
���

��
��
��
��
���
	�
��

��

��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��

��	
��
�

���
	�
��%

��
��
%�
��

�	
���
��
��
��
�"�
��
	�
�

�
�
��

���
��
��
��
��

��
��	

��
�%
��
��
��
��
��
�

�	
��
��
	�
��

4�
��
��

��
��

��
���

��
�%
��
�
��
��
�	
��



��

�
���
��
��
��

��
��
��
�"�

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 f
o

r 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 
P

la
n

t 
an

d
 E

q
u

ip
m

en
t�

L
if

e 
ce

n
tr

e 
an

d
 

im
p

ai
rm

en
t 

o
f 

th
e 

M
ay

fl
o

w
er

 C
en

tr
e 

an
d

 
S

w
im

m
in

g
 P

o
o

l �

•
�
���

��
���

!��
	�
�!�
��
���

��

��
���

��
���
�
��
�
���
���

��
��

��	
��

�
�
��

���
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
�
���
���

�
��

��
�
�
��
���

��
��

��	
��

�
��
��

���
��
��
��
�!
��	

��
��
��
��
"�

Page 186



A
cc

ou
nt

s 
A

ud
it 

A
pp

ro
ac

h 
M

em
or

an
du

m
7

� ©
 2

01
22

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
. 

� T
ab

le
 1

: 
 K

ey
 a

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 r

is
ks

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
ed

 a
ss

u
ra

n
ce

s 
(c

o
n

ti
n

u
ed

) 
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

•
�
��	

��
	�
��
	�
��
���

��
��
�)1

�
�2
��
*
��
��
���
��
��

��
��
���

��
	�
��
�
��

���
��
��
��
��
��

��
���

��
�

��
��
��

��	
��
�
�
��

���
��
���

��
�
��
���

!��
	�
�

:�
��
��


��
�
���
��
��
��	

��	
��

�

��
�
���
��

��	
��

�
��

���


��

�
���

��
��
?�
��
��
��
��
��
!�


��
��

��
��



��

��
��


��

�
��"
���

	�
���

��
��
�
�	
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
�	
��
�%
��
	�


��

�
���
��
���
�	
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
�@
��

��
��
��
��
��
��

��
!��

��
��
�

%�
��
��
��

��
���

!�
��

��
��
��
��
��

��
��
�%
��



��
��

��
��


��
�
��"
��
	�
��
��
���
��
���

�%
��

��
��
�
��
��
��
�!�

���
��

��
��
��

�%
��
��
�
��
��
��
��

�	
��
�
*
�"
���

A
ll 

ar
ea

s 
o

f 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

. 
�

T
am

ar
 B

ri
d

g
e 

an
d

 
T

o
rp

o
in

t 
F

er
ry

 J
o

in
t 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
– 

in
cl

u
si

o
n

 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

si
n

g
le

 e
n

ti
ty

 
ac

co
u

n
ts
�

•
#
��
�
���
�
��

���
��
���

��
��

��
���


��

��
��
��
��
��
��

��
���

��
�

��
�
��
��
��
���

��	
��	

��
�
��

���

�

�
�
���

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�	
��
�

�	
��
��
���
��
�
��
���
��
���

��
��
�
	�
!�
��%

��
	�


��

�
��+
��

�
�
��

��
"�

•
#
��
�
���
��
'�
�
��
��
�	
��
��
��
��
��
�!�
��
��
��!
��
��
��
��

��
��
��

�
��
��
%�
��	

��
!��
	�
��
��
��
��

��
��
���
��
�
��
��
�
"�

•
�
���

��
���

!�!
��
��
��

��

��
���

��
�
���
���

��
��

��
���

�
��
��

��
�
�
��
�!
��
��
 �
��
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��	

��
��
�
��
��
��
�!
��	

��
��

�
��
�,
���

��
��
��

��
��
��

��
��0

��
���

���
��
��
�	
��


��

�
��+
��

�
�
��

��
�	
��
�%
��
��
��

��
���

 �
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��	

��
��
!�
��

��
��
��
�
�!
��
�
���
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��!
��
��
���

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
"��

•
�
�4
��

��
��
��
�
��
���

��
�	
��
��
%�
��
�	
��
��
��	

�
�	
��


��

�
���
��
���

��
�
���

!��
	�
��
���
��
�!
!��

!�
��
��


��

�
���
��

'�
��
%�
"��

	�
�

��

�
���
	�
��
�

��
��
��
���

��
���
��
�	
��
��
���

��
���
��
%�
��
!!
��
��

�
��
��
�
��
��

��
���

���
�%
��
�
��
��
��
��	

��
��
��
��

��
�
�
��

��
"��

D
is

cl
o

su
re

 a
n

d
 

C
o

m
p

ar
at

iv
es
�

C
o

u
n

ci
l T

ax
  b

ad
 d

eb
t 

p
ro

vi
si

o
n

 
 

�
•

�
���

��
���

!��
	�
�!�
��
���

��

��
���

��
 �
�
��
�
���
���

��
��

��	
��

��
��
��

��
��
��
�!�

���
���
��
��
�	
��


��

�
���
��

'�
��
%�
��
!!
�"�

K
ey

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

k 
A

u
d

it
 a

re
as

 a
ff

ec
te

d
 

 
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

 
 

 
F

u
rt

h
er

 W
o

rk
 P

la
n

n
ed

�

Page 187



A
cc

ou
nt

s 
A

ud
it 

A
pp

ro
ac

h 
M

em
or

an
du

m
8

� ©
 2

01
22

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
. 

� T
ab

le
 1

: 
 K

ey
 a

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 r

is
ks

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
ed

 a
ss

u
ra

n
ce

s 
(c

o
n

ti
n

u
ed

) 
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

•
�
��

��
�9
��

�
��

%�
���
���

�
��

��
���

��	
��
�
�
��

��
��
���

��
��

��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��

��	
��
�!
��
��
�	
��

��
�%
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
	
"��
�	

��
��
��

���
��
�
��

�
��

���
��
��
��
��
��

���
��	

��
�!
��
��
��
��
��
��
��A

�"
��
"��
�	

��
�
��
��!
�
��
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
�!
��	

���
��
��
���

���
�%
��
�'
��

��
��
��
���

��
���

!��
	�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

�9
-�

��
�
��
���
��
���

��
��

��
��
� 
��
��
��
��
��
!��

��
�

�
�
��

��
"��

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 f
o

r 
P

ro
p

er
ty

, 
P

la
n

t 
an

d
 E

q
u

ip
m

en
t�

M
o

u
n

t 
E

d
g

cu
m

b
e�

•
�	

��


��

�
���
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

���
��
��
��

�
��
;
��
��

��

��

��
��!
��
��
��
��

��
"��
)�
�	
��
�%
��
��
��
��
��
��	

��
��
���

��
��

�
�!
��	

��
�'
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
6�
��

��
��
��
��
���
�%
��
��

��
��
� 
��
��
��
��
��
�	
��
!��

��
��

��

��
�"�
��

G
ro

u
p

 a
cc

o
u

n
t 

re
p

o
rt

in
g
�

G
ro

u
p

 A
cc

o
u

n
ts

 
P

ro
p

o
sa

l 
�

•
#
��
�
���
�
��

���
��
��	

��
��

��
�
��
!��
	�
���

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

���
��
��
��

��
���

!�!
��

��
��
��1

��,
��

�!�
�
��
��

��
��
��
���
!�

�	
��
��
��
��
��
��
!�
��
	�
���
�
��
�
��
��
��
�!�

���
��
���

��
��
��
�!
��

	�
��
�%
��
��
�
�"�

•
�

 C
on

tr
ol

s 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

 
S

t 
B

o
n

if
ac

e 
S

ch
o

o
l 

�

K
ey

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

k 
A

u
d

it
 a

re
as

 a
ff

ec
te

d
 

 
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

 
 

 
F

u
rt

h
er

 W
o

rk
 P

la
n

n
ed

�

•
�
���
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��	

��
��
%�
��
���

��
��

��
�!�

���
	�
���
 �
��	

��
��
�!
��
�
%�
��

��
���
��
��
��
��

�
��

�
��
��
��
��
���

��
�
��
"�

�	
���
	�
��%

��
��
��
�!
��
�
��
�%
��
�#



��
��

��	
��
��
��
���
��
!��
	�
���

���
�%
��
��
��
��

��
"��
�
���

��
���

!��
	�
�!�
��
���

��

��
���
	�
�

�
�
��

���
��
��
��
��

��
���
��
��
��
�
���

!��
��
��
�
�
��

��
�
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

��
�
%�
��

��
���
��
��
��
���
�%
��
�'
��

��
��
"��
�

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 f
o

r 
P

ro
p

er
ty

, 
P

la
n

t 
an

d
 E

q
u

ip
m

en
t 

&
 

L
ea

se
s�

E
m

b
ed

d
ed

 L
ea

se
s 

 
�

Page 188



A
cc

ou
nt

s 
A

ud
it 

A
pp

ro
ac

h 
M

em
or

an
du

m
9

� ©
 2

01
22

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
. 

� � � � � � T
ab

le
 2

: 
 A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 k
ey

 a
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 r
is

ks
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
n

ed
 a

ss
u

ra
n

ce
s 

(c
o

n
ti

n
u

ed
) 

� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

�

•
�

•
�	

��


��

�
���
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

���
��
�
� 
��
��
��
�6
��
��

��
���
��
��
��
�
���

!��
	�
�)

��
��
��
�
,�

� 
��
��
��
���
��
��
���

��	
��

��
�
��
��
��
��
�!
��	

��
�
�	
�!�
��

���
��

��	
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
!�
���
��
���
�
��
�"�
�
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
	�
���
���

��
��
��
���

��
!�
��

��	
��
3�

�
��
��
��
��
�
"�#

��
�
���
�
��

���
��
��
	�
�	
��
��	

��


��

�
��+
���

��
��

��
��
��
��
��

��
���
��
��
�	
��
��
��	

�
��
��
���

��
���

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
���

��
��
��
%�
��
��
��
��
���

!��
��
��
��
��
��
��
!��

��
��

��

��
���

��
�
��

��
�"�
�

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
Ic

el
an

d
ic

 B
an

ks
�

•
�
��
���

��
���

��
��

���
��
��
��!
��
��
�	
��
��	

��


��

�
���
	�

��
�!�

��
���
��
��
��
�
���

!�3
9
��
�
	�
	
���
��
��
��
���
��
���
��
���
"�#

��
	�
��
�
��
��!
��
��
�	
��
�
�
��

���
��
��
��
��

��
��!
��
���

	
��
�
��
���
��
��
��

�	
��
��
�
�!
���

��
��	

��
��	

��
��
�	
��

��
�%
��

�
�
��

��
��
!�
���

��
��
��
��
�
��
%�
���

"��
�	

��
�
�
��

���
��
��
��
��

��
���

���
�%
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
!��

��
��

��

��
�"�

C
as

h
 a

n
d

 B
an

k 
L

E
P

 A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g
�

•
�	

��


��

�
���
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

���
��
�
� 
��
��
��
�6
��
��

��
���
��
��
��
�
���

!��
	�
�)

��
��
��
�
,�

� 
��
��
��
���
��
��
���

�
�	
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
�!
��	

��
�
�	
�!�
��

���
��

��	
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
!�
���

��
���
�
��
�"�
�
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
	�
���
���

�
��
��
��
��
��
!�
��

��	
��
3�

�
��
��
��
��
�
"��

	�
�

��

�
���
��
��
��
��

�
��

��	
��
��

��
���

��
��
�!�

���
��
�
��
��
���

�
��
��
"�

#
��
�
���
�
��

���
��
��
	�
�	
��
��	

��


��

�
��+
���

��
��

��
��
��
��
��

��
���
��
��
�	
��
��
��	

��
��

���
��

��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��

��
��
��

�%
��
��
���

��
���

!��
��
��
��
��
��
��
!��

��
��

��

��
���

��
�
��

��
��

D
eb

to
rs

 a
n

d
 

lia
b

ili
ti

es
  

Ic
el

an
d

ic
 B

an
ks

 a
n

d
 

re
p

ay
m

en
t 

o
f 

d
eb

t 
o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 �

•
#
��
	�
��
��
��

��
��
��
�	
��


��

�
��+
���

��
��

��
��
��
��
��
	
�!�

��
��
�
��
���

��
�	
��
��
��

��
���
��
��
�
�
��
���
��

��
���
�

��
��
��	

���
��
��
��
��
���
���

��
���

!��
��
�!�
��
���

��

��
���

��
��"
��
	�
���
���
	�
���

�
��
%�
���

��
���

��
��
��
�
��	

��
���
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
�"�

E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

R
em

u
n

er
at

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
al

 L
ea

ve
 A

cc
ru

al
�

Is
su

e 
A

u
d

it
 a

re
as

 a
ff

ec
te

d
 

 
A

u
d

it
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 

 
 

 
�

Is
su

e 
A

u
d

it
 a

re
as

 a
ff

ec
te

d
 

 
A

u
d

it
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 

 
 

 
�

Page 189



A
cc

ou
nt

s 
A

ud
it 

A
pp

ro
ac

h 
M

em
or

an
du

m
10

� ©
 2

01
22

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
. 

*
��
��
��
��
!�)
��
��
��

��
��

���
#
��
 

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
���

��
���

!��
	�
���

��
���

��
��

���
�
��
 �
��
��

���
��
��

��
�
��
!��

��
�!�
��
���

��

��
���

��
���
!��

��
�
��
 �
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
��
$�

•
�	
��
�!
!�
�
��
��
��
���

!��
	�
�)�

��
��
��
��
��

���
!�
�
���

�&
�

•
��
��
��
��
��
��

��+
���

��
 �
��

��	
��


��

�
��+
�� 

��
�!�
��
�
��
���
��
��
�
�&�
�

•
�	
��
�
��
 �
�!
��
��
��
���

��
�'
��
���

��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�	
��
�
�
��

���
��
��
���

�&
�

•
�
��
 �
	�
��

�	
���

��
��
��
��
�
��

!��
�
��
	�
�	
��
�
��

���
���
��
��
��

��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
	�
��
��
��
	�
��
���

��
��!
��
��
���

��
!�

��
���


��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
 &
�

��
��

•
��
��
��
��

��
!�)
�!
��
�
��
��
��
��

	
��

��
��
�
��

���
���

�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�'
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

#
��
	�
��
���

��
��

��
���

��
��
��
��
��

��+
���

��
��
���
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��	

��
��
�2
�

)�
0�

�)�
��
��
��
�

�
��

���
1�
��
��
��
�"�
#
	�
��
��	

��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
���

�%
��
��
�-
��
��
���

��
�
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
�
��
!�
��

��	
��
��

��
��
���

��
 �
��

��
���

 �
��
%�
���

��
��
��
��
��

���
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��	

��
��	

��
��
��
�
��
���
��
!��
��

��
��
�%
��
��
��
��

���
��
��
��
��
��	

��
��
��
��
��
�
��

��
��
��
��

���
��

��
���

��
��
��
��
���

��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��	

��
��	

��


��

�
��"
�#

��
��
��
���

��
��

��
��
 �
��
�!
��
�
��
���

��
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
��
���

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��

��
���

�� 
���

��
��
�%
���
	�
�	
��
���

��
���

��
��
	�
�	
��
��
��
�
��

��
�
��
��
���
�
��
��

��	
��
�
��
 "
�

#
��
�
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��

��
!�)
��
��
��
���

��
���
��
��
��
���
	�
�

)�
0�

���
��
��
��
���
��

��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�	
��
��	

��
)�
��
��
��
��
��

���
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
���

��
��
��

��
���

��
���

���
!�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��	

��


��

�
���
��
��
�	
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
 �
��
��
��
��
�
�

!�
��

��	
��
���

��
 �
��
�
��

��
�%
��
��
��
��
��
��
�!
!�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��

��
��
��
��

���
��

��
���

���
	�
�



��

�
��"

)�
��
��
��
��
���

��
!�
���

��
�!�
��
���

��

��
���

��
���
��
��
��
��

��
���

��
��
��
	�
���

���
��
��

���
��
��
���

��
��
�B�
��
��
 �
��

��	
��
!��

��
�
���
��
��
��

�&�
	�

�
��
��
���

��
��
���
�!
��	

��
��
��

��
���

��
��
��
��
��
%�
��

��
���

��
��

���
��
��
��

���
��
��

���
��

��
	
��
��
�"
��/

��
��
���

��
��
��	

���
��
��
��
��
��

���
	�
��
�

�
�!
���

��
��	

��
��	

���
�
��
��
��
���

���
��
�'
�
��
��
��
��!
�
��
��
$�

•
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��	

��
��	

��
��
��
�
��
��
���

�
��
��
��
��
!��
	�
�

��

�
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

•
��
��
��
��
��
��

���
�
��
�
��
���
��
��
��
��
���

���
�!
!��
�
 �

��
���

��
��
%�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
"��

� #
��
��
��
��

��
��	

��
��
!��
��
��
	�
	
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��	

��
���

��
�!
��
��
��

��
	
��
���
��?

�1
�
���

��
��
2�
�
�
C
)9

1�
�

��
	�


��
��
�
��
��
��
��
)�
��
��
���

�1
��
�"�

� �	
��
!��

��
�
��
���

��
��

��!
��
��
�
��
 �
	�
��
��
��
��
��
%�
��
�
��

��
��
��
�%
��
��	

��
!��
��
��
��
��
��

���
��
��

��
���
��
��
!�
���
��
��
�
��
���
	�
���
�
��
�!
��
��
��
��

���
�
��
 "
��
	�
���

��
���

�	
��
��
��

�
�%
��
��
���

��
��
��
�

�	
��


��

�
���
!�
��

��
�
��
��
��
��
��

���
��
��

&�	
��

��
��
��	

��
��
��
��
��
���
���

��
��
!��
!�
��

��
��
��

��
��
��

�
�
��
��
��
���

��
��
��
��
�"
�

�� #
��
	�
��
��
���

�
��

���
��
��
��	

��
��
��
���

!��
��
��
���

��
%�
�)�

��
��
��
��
��

���
��
��	

��
�
��

���


��

�
���
��
"��

��
��
��
���

��
��
��
��
��

���
�
�
��
��
���

!��
��
��
��
���
��

���
�
��
 �
�
�
��
��
��
���

��	
��

��
���

��
��
��
��

���
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
�
��

���


��

�
���
��
��

��
���

�"
��
��
��
��
���

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

�
��
���

�
��
��
��
��
���

��
��
!��

	�
	
���

�
��

��
��	

��
�
��

��
��<

��
��
�!
�)�

��
��
��
��
��

���
��

��
��
�"
�"�
�

#
��
%�
���
��
��	

��
��	

��
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
!��
��
��
���

��
�
��
��
%�
���

��
��

��
���

��
��
��
���

��
��
��
�	
��

�
��

���


��

�
���
��
��
�4
��

��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��

��
��	

��


��

�
��+
��!
��
��
�
��
���

��
��

���
��

��	
��
�
��
 �

�!
�)�

��
��
��
��
��

��"
�#

	�
���
��
��
�
 �

��
��
��

��
�	
��
�)�

��
��
��
��
��

���
���
��
��
��
��
���

��
��
��
��
�%
��
�

��
��
��
���

���
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

���


��

�
���
��
���

��
��
��
'
��
���

��
%�
���

���
��
��
��	

��
�
��
��
�!
��	

��
)�
��
��
��
��
��

���
��
��

��
�
�
��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
��
��
!��
	�
���

��
��

���
	�
���

��
�%
��
��

��
��

��
��
 �
��
�
��

�
��

��
���

��
��
���
	�
���

��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
���

��
�
��
�%
��
��
-�

���
�"
�

#
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�	
��
��	

��
��
���
��
��

��
��
��
�!
��	

��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��	

��
)�
��
��
��
��
��

���
��
��
�

�
��	

��
���

�
�
��
��
�!
�!�
��

��
��
�!�
��

���
��

�!�
�
��
���

��
��

���
��
��
�	
��
��
�
	�
��
��	

��
��
��
��
+<
��
	�

��
��
���
�+�
��
�
�
�
��
��
���

��
���
��
��
	
��
��

���


��

�
���
��
���

��
��
%�
��
�
��

%�
��
���

��
��
��
��

4
��

��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��

��
��	

��
�!
!�
�
��
��
��
���

!��
	�
���

��
��
��
��
��

���
�
���

���
��
��

�
��

���
���

��
��
��
��
��
��
��	

��


��

�
��"
�#

��
	�
��
���

��
��

��
��	

��
)�
��
��
��
��
��

���
��
��
��	

��
���
���

%�
���
��
��	

��

Page 190



A
cc

ou
nt

s 
A

ud
it 

A
pp

ro
ac

h 
M

em
or

an
du

m
11

� ©
 2

01
22

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
. 

�
��

���


��

�
���
��
"�#

��
��
��
��

��
��
�	
��
�)�

��
��
��
��
��

���
��
��
��
��	

��
���
 �
�!
��
�
	�
��
��
���

�%
��

�
��
��
��
��
��	

��
��
��
���

�%
��
��
��
��
���

��
��
�!�

���
��
��
��

��
���

��
���

��
��

"�#
	�
���
��	

���
��
���

��
��
�

��
��
���
 �
��
��
��
�
��
���
���

��
��
��
��
�
��	

��	
��
�
��
��
��

��
���
��
�
��
��
�
��

��
���

��
��
���
	�
���
���
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
���

��	
��
�
��

���


��

�
���
��
"��
#
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�	
��
��	

��
��
��
���

��
�
��

��
��
��	

��
��	

��
)�
��
��
��
��
��

���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���

��	
��
�
��

���
�

��

�
���
��
���

�
��

��
��	

��
��
���

��
��
��
��

���
� 
��
��
��
��

��
���

��
��
��
���

��
��
���
	�
���

�
��
��
��
�!
��	

��
��
��
���
��
�	
��
��
��
"�)
��

�	
���
�
��
���

��
%�
��
��
���
�%
��
��
!�
��

��
��
!��
	�
���

��
��

��
��
%�
	�
��

���
��

���
��	

��
��	

��
��
��
��
��

�
�	
��
��
��
���

��
'�
�
��
��
�	
��
�"�

)�
��
��
��
���

��
�	
��
�!
!�
�
��
��
��
���

!��
��
��
��
���
��

���
�
��
 �
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
���

�
��
��
�!
���

��
��
���

��
��
��!
���
���

��
��
��
��	

��

)

�0
�
���
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��	

��
$�

•
��
��
��

���
��
��
��
�-
��
��
��
��
�
��

��
��
�&
�

•
 �
��
�
��
��
���
	�
��
�%
��
��
��
��
��!
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�&
�

•
 �
��
�
��
��
���
	�
��
�%
��
��
��
��
��
&��
��

�
•

�
��
 �

��
��
��	

��
��
%�
��
���

��
���

��
��
��

��
��
��

��
��

�

0�
���
	�
��	

��
��
!��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�%
��

��
��
��
�
	�
	
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
���

��
��
	
��
��
��
�
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
���

��
��
��	

��
���

��
���
�
��
���
	�
�!�
��

��
��
��
��
��
�
��
���
��
���

��	
��	

��
�
��
 �
�
��
��
��
��

�"�

#
��
��

��
��
!�
��

��
��
��

��
��
���
��
��
�
��
!��

��
���
��

�
�
��
��
���

��
�	
��
��	

��
��
	�

��
��	

��
�	
��
��
!��
��
�

�	
��
��	

��
��
�
��
��
��
-�

��
��
���
��

�!�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
���

��
��
���
	�
��
��

���
��

��
��
��
��
��
�"
�#

��
��
��
��!
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��!

��
���

��
��

��
��
���
	�
��)
��
��
��
���
��

���
	�
��
��
��

���
 �
��
��

�
%�

��
�"
���

�#
��
�
���
���

��
��

��	
��
!��

��
���

��
��
���

��
�!�
��
��!

��
��	

��
!��

��
�
��
���

��
��

���
���

��
���

!��
��
�!�
��
��

�
�
��

��
��
���
�"�

#
��
�
���
��
���

���
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��	

���
��
��
��
��
��

���
��

��
��	

��
!�
��	

�
�
��
��
��
��
���

��
��
��
��
�	
��
�

�	
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
���

��
�%
��
�!�

���
��
��
��
��
�!
���

��
��
��
��
��

���
�
��
 �
��
��
!��
��
�!�

���
'�
��
��
���
��

���
��
��
��

��
��

��
��
��
��
�
"��

*
�
�+
��
��
�
 
�
��
�
#
��
�
 
��
�
�
��
�
#
�#
��
'�
�
�
�
��
�
�#
�

#
��
 �
	�
��

�	
���

��
���

��
��
���

��
��

��
!��
	�
�
��

���
���
��
���

��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
���

���
��
���

��
��
�

�	
��
��
�
�!�
�
�
�
��

��
��
��
��
���

��
���
 �
��
	�
	
��
��
�
��
��
��
���

��
��
��
��
��
���
��

�!�
�
��
���
� 
��
!�

�
��
��
��
���

���
��
��
�
��
���
��
�	
��
!��

��
�
��
���
��
��

��
��
"��

#
��
�
��
��
�%
��
���

�
��

��
��
��
�	
��
�
��
 �
	�
��

�	
��
��

��
�
��

��
��
���

��
�!
��	

��
!�
���

�
��
��
��
��
��

��

•
�
��
��
���

��
�'
��
��
��
&�

•
��

��
��
�&�

•
��
��
���

��
��
���

��
��

�9
-�

��
�
��
�&�
��
��

•
<
��

���
��
,�

��
!��
�"�

� C
��
���

��
!�

��
���
��
��
���

��
��
��

��
��
�
	�
��
��
��
 �
	�
��

�	
���

��
��
��
�
��
�
��

��
��
��
"�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
%
��
�
�
��
�
�#
�

:�
��
��
���
��
���

��
�
��
��
��
��

���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��	

��
��
!!
�
��
���

��
���
�!
!��

��
%�
��
�

�
��
���

��
��
��
��
��
���

��
6�
��
��
���
�
��
��
��

���
��
��	

��
���

��
�!�

��
	�
���

��
	�

���
��
��
��
���
��
��
�
��
��

�!
��	

��
��
��
��
�!
��	

��
6�
��
��
�"�
#
��
	�
��
�!�

���
�
��
��
��
�	
���
��
�
�
�
��
��
���

��
��
��
��
���

!��
��
�

��
��
��

��
��
��
���

��
�!�

��
��
�	
��
��	

���
	�
���

��
���

�%
��
��
��
��
��
�"
�#

��
�
���
��
��
!�
��

��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
�!
��
��
�6�

��
��
���

��
���
	�
��

��
��
��
���
��
��
��
���
���

��
���

!�!
��
��
��

��

��
���

��
��"
�#

��
�
��

��
�Page 191



A
cc

ou
nt

s 
A

ud
it 

A
pp

ro
ac

h 
M

em
or

an
du

m
12

� ©
 2

01
22

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
. 

��
��
���

�
�
�
��
��
�	
��
��

��
��
��

��
���
��
��
�
��	

��
��
�	
��
���

���
��
��
�
��
��
���

��
��
��
�!�

��
��
��
���

��
6�
��
��
��"
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
#
#
�
��
�
�
�
�&
�
�+
�

��
���

��
��
���
	�
��
��

���
��

��
��
��
!�
���

��
��

��
���

��
	�
��
��
��

��
��
 �
��
%�
��
!��
��
��
�
���
��
�	
��

!�
���

�
��
��
��
��
�$�

•
.
�
��
?�
�
���

��
��

�	
��
�%
��
��
��

��
��
� 
��
�%
��
��
�
��
���
��.

�
��
��
��
��

��
�"�
�/

��
��
��
�	
��

��
��
��

��
��
��
��
���
���
�� 

��
��
���

��
��!
��
�"
���

� �	
��


��

�
���
	�
��
���
��
��
��	

��
3�
!�
�

��
��
��
��
��

���
��!
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
	�
	
���
��
��
�

�
���
�
��
"��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��

4%
��
��
��
���

�
��
���
�!�

��.
�
��
��

��
��
��
��
��

���
���

��
�">

>�
%�

��
���
	�
�

��

�
���
���
�%
��
���

���
�
��
�
��
���
�	
��
.
�
��
���
��
�
��
��
��
���
��
��

4%
��
��
��
��

�
���

���
��
"��


��
��
��
��
���

��
�	
���
%�
���

���
	�
�

��

�
���
	�
���

�
��
��

��
��
���
��
��

��.
�
��
��

��	
��

%�
���

�
��
��
"��

�
<
��

��
��
���
!��
	�
��
��
��
��
���

!��
	�
�3
�!�

�

��
���

���
���

��
��
��
��
��
��
	�
��

�%
�
 �
��
��	

��


��

�
���

��
��
'
	�
��

��
!�
���
	�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�!
��	

��
3�
!�
�

��
��
��
�!�

���
'�
�
��
��
�!�
��
���

��
��
��
�

!�
���
	�
�

��

�
��+
���

	
��

��
	�
��
��
��
�<

�
*


��

��
���

 �
��	

��
��
��

��	
��
��	

��
��
���

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
7�
��

4�
��

��
��
�8
�!�

���
	�
���
��
��
��
��
	�
�
��
�	
��
��
���
��

�%
�
��

��
��
�%
��
��
��
��

�
���

���
"��
�	

���
�
��
��
��
��
���

��
�
��
�
%�
 
��
!�.

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
���

��
��
��
��!
��	

��
��
��
��
�
��
�

.
�
��
�'
��

��
��%

��
��	

��


��

�
���
	�
���

��
��
�
��
���
��
�!�
%�
��
��
��
��
��
���

'�
�	
��
���
��
��
	
��	

��
�

�!�
�	
��
��
���
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
���
�
��
��
��
���

���
��
���

��
��
��
�.
�
��
��
'�
%�
��
��
��
��
7�

	�
	
�

��
��
��
��
���
	�
�

��

�
��+�

�.
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�	
��
�
��
��
�
���

��
�!
��	

��
3�
!�
�

��
���

8"�
�

#
��
��

��
��
��
��

��	
��
��	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
���

��
���

��
��
���

�
��	

��


��

�
���
��
��
��

�.
�
��
��
�

�	
��
��

�4
�
��

��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
�
��
��
��
	�
	
��

��
��
��	

��
��	

��


��

�
���
�
��
	�
�	
��
��

��
�!�

��
��
��
�.
�
��
�	
��
�<

�
*


��
��
�
���
��
%�
��
��
"��
�

�
#
��
��

��
��	

��
��
���
	�
���

��
��
��	

���
���
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
���
���
�� 

��
	�
	
�
��
��

��%
��
-�

��
��!
��
�"
��)
��

�	
��

��
��
���

�%
��
��

��
��
�	
��
��	

��


��

�
���
	�
���

��
���

��
��!
��
��
��
��	

���
���

��
�	
��
���
���

�
��
��
�

��
��
��
	
���

��
�
��
�!�
��

��	
��
3�
!�
�

��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
�"�

� �
��
��
��
 �
��

�)�
��
��

�9
�
��
��
�
��
���
�'
��
��
���
�%
��
��
��

���
��
��
��	

��
)1
�
�2
��
!�
���

�
��
��
��

��
!��

��
��

��

��
���

��
���
�
��
 "
��

�

Page 192



A
cc

ou
nt

s 
A

ud
it 

A
pp

ro
ac

h 
M

em
or

an
du

m
13

� ©
 2

01
22

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
. 

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�#
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���

��
	�
��
�
��

���
��
��
��
��
��
 �
�
��
��
��
�
��	

��	
��
!��

��
�
���

��
�

�	
��
��
	�

��
��	

��
!��

��
��

��

��
���

��
��
��
���

��
��
�
��
�"�
#
��
	�
��
�	
��
	�
��
	�
��
��	

��
��
��
���

��
��

���
 �
��	

��
�	
��
��
%�
��
���

��
��!
��
��
��

���
��
�	
��
�
��
��
��
!��
	�
���
���
��
��
��
���

�
��
��
��

��
�!
��	

���
��
��

��
"�9

��
��
���

��
��!
�
��
��
��
�!
���
��
��
���

!�
��

���
��
���

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
%�
��
��
���
��

��
��
��
��
���

��
���

	�
��
��
��
��%

��
��
���

��
��
���

���
��
�"
�

#
��
	�
��
��	

��
��
��
��
��
��
 �
��

��
��
��
���

-�
���

�
��
��
��
��	

�!�
��
�
��
��
��

��
��

%�
��
��
��

��	
��



��

�
���
��
��
��
��	

��
��
�
��
���

!��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

��
���

��
��

�
�
��
��
���

���
�
��
!�
���

��
��
��

���
��
���
���

�:�
��
"�

)�
��

��
	
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��

��

��

��
��
��
��

��
���

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

���
��

���
��
��
��
	
��	

��
��
��
��
���

���
	�
���

��
��	

��
%�
 
��
��

��
���

��
��

���
-�

��
��
���

��
��	

��
��

��
��
��
�
��
!�

��
��
��
�
��
���

��
��

"��

#
��
	�
��
���

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
!�
��
%�
 
���

��	
��


��

�
���
��
���
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��

�
��	

��
��

�
%�
��

�!
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
���

��
��
��	

��
�
�
��

��
"�

#
��
�
���
�
��

���
��
���

��
��
 �
�
��
��
��
�
��	

��
��

%�
��
��
!��
	�
�!�
��
�
��
��
��

��
���
	�
��
��
!��
!��

��
�
��
�

��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
	�

��
��	

��
��
��
���

��
�
��
"�

� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

Page 193



A
cc

ou
nt

s 
A

ud
it 

A
pp

ro
ac

h 
M

em
or

an
du

m
14

� ©
 2

01
22

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
. 

�
��

��
��
�
���

�D
,�

Page 194



A
cc

ou
nt

s 
A

ud
it 

A
pp

ro
ac

h 
M

em
or

an
du

m
15

� ©
 2

01
22

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
. 

�
��

��
��
'�
�
�4�
3�

��
��
�
��


��
�
��
"
��
#
��
�
�
��
��
�
#
��
�
�
#
�

�	
��
!�
���

�
��
��
��
��

��
��
���
�
��
�%
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
%�
��
���

���
��

��
��
��
��
�
��	

��
��
��
��

��
�$�
�

,
!
�
�
�

	
�
��

��
��
��
��
��
��

�!�
��
��

��
 �
��
�
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��

��
��
���

��
��
�
�

�
��
��
��
��



��

��
��
��
��
�!
��
��
��
��
��
��

���
��
��
��
�
��

���
���
��
��
��

��
:�
��
��
��
��

1�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��

��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��

���
���

>�
�:�

��
��
��
��



��

�
��
�
��

��

��
���

��
���
!��

��
�
��
 �

E�
:�
��
��
��
��



��
��
��
�
��

��
���

��
��
��
��

��
���

��
�!�
��

��
��
�

�
��
��
���
��
��
�

/
��
!��
)1
�
��
2�
���

��
���
��
�%
��
���

��
��
%�
�

2�
1�
��
��
��
��

*
��
��
���
��
0�
��
�
��
�
��

���
��
��
*
�� 

�

��

�
���
��
�7)
1�

��
2�
8�

�@
�1
��
���

��
��

� �	
��
��
��
���

��
�
��
���
��
��

��
��
��

��
�%
��
�!
!�
�
��
��
��
�6
�
���

��
��
��

��
���
��
��
��
��
��	

��
��
��
�
4

��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

��
��
��
���

��
��
�
���

!!
�
��
��
��
���

��
��
���

��
���

��
��
��
��
"�)
���
���
	�
��
!�
��
�

��
��
��
��
���
	�
���

��
�
��
 �
�
��
��
��
�
��	

��
��

���
��
�
���

��
	
��
��
��	

���
���

��
�%
��
"��

��
��
��
��
�

!�
��

��
��
��

��
	�
��

��
��
!��
�!
��
�
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
���
�%
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
	�

��
��	

��
�
��
��
��
!��

��
��
��

���
!��

��
�
��
 �
��
���

��
��
���

!��
	�
���

��
"�

,
�
 
�
 
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

)�
��

��
��
�
��
�
��	

��
��
��
��

���
��
��
��
��
��

��
���
��
��
��

��
	
��
��
��
��	

��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��

��
��

�!�
���
	�
��

��

��
���

��
���
�
���
���

�
��

�$
�

�
�
�
�



�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
#
�

,�
��
��
��

��
���
�

9
��

��
��

��
��

/
���

�
��
�

�$
���

��
F�
>�
G�
FF
�H
�

9
$��
%�
��
��
"�

��
���
I
� 

"�
�"
��

�

;
��
��
��
��
�/

��
��

1�
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
�

�$
���

��
F�
>�
G�
FF
E�
�

9
$��
��
��"
�"
��
��
I
� 

"�
�"
��

�

9
�
�
��
/
��

��
��

9
'�
�
���

��
�$
��
��
F�
>�
G�
F2
�@
�

9
���
�
�
�"�

��
��
�I

� 
"�
�"
��

�
� ��
'�
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
-
�
��
�
�
�
�
�#
�

�	
��
��
!�
��

��
��
��
��
��
�
��
 �
��

��
��
��
���

-�
���

�
��
��
��	

��
��
��

��
��
��
���
��
���
��
��
��
!!
�
��
��
��
��

�
���

��
��
��
��
���

!��
	�
��
��
�4
��
��
!��

��
�
��
���
��
��

��
��
�	
��
��
%�
��
�
��

�
��

�
��
��
���

��	
��
!��

��
�
�

��
��

��
��	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�3
��
��
���
���

��
��
��
��

��
	
��
��
��

Page 195



� �
��

��
��
'�
,�
?�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
�%
�

.
� 
�
�4�
1�
��

�!�
�
��
��
!!
�
���

��
�
��
��
���
��
��
�
�

$
�
�
��
�
�4�
9
!!
�
���

��
�
��
��
���
��
��
�
�

/
�
&
�4�
,�

��
��
��
�
�
��

� 

�
�
�

�
�
0



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�%

$
�
�
�
 
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�#

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
#
�
�
�
#
�"
��
��
%

�
�

)�
��
��
��
��
��

���
�	
��

��
���

��
��

���
��
��
�
���

��
�
��
�
���
���

��
��
%�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
 �
��
�

%�
�
��

��
��
��
��
��	

��
��	

��
��
��
��
���
�
��
�
��
�"�
�

<
��
	�

�	
��
��
�%

��
�
���

'�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�'
�
��
��
��
���
��

�	
��
�/

�
��
��
��
��
	�

��
�	
��
��
��
��

��
�
��
��
��
��

	�
�	

���
��
���

!��
��

��
��
��

���
 
��
��
���

��
��
��

��
��
��

�
��
��
���
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
�
���

��
��

��
��
�!
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
���
��
�
	�
�"
�*
��
��

�
��
��
��
�
��

��
��
���
�

��
��
��

��
��
��

���
��
���

��
�%
��
��

���
 �
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

�'
��
��
�
��
�
��
���

��
��
��

�>
�

<
��
��
�!
�/

�
��

� �
�4
��

��
��

�
�

)�
��
��
��
��
��

���
�	
��

��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
	�
���
��
��
���

��
�!
��	

��
��
��

��
��
�

��
��
��
���
	�
�)�

��
��
��
��
��

���
��
��
��
��	

��
���

�
�
��
��
�!
�!�
��

��
��
�!�
��

���
��

�!�
�
��
�

��
��
��

���
��
��
�	
��
��
�
	�
��
��	

��
��
��
��
+<
��
	�
��
��
���
�+�
��
�
�
�
��
��
���

��
���
��
��
	
�

�
��

���


��

�
���
��
���

��
��
%�
��
�
��

%�
��
���

��
��
��
��

4�
��
��

��
��
��
��
�
��
��
���
	�
�

�!
!�
�
��
��
��
���

!��
	�
���

��
��
��
��
��

���
�
���

���
��
��

�
��

���
���
��

��
��
��
��
��
��	

��


��

�
���

�
��
��
�
�

�	
��
���

��
��
��
!��

��
���


��

�
���
��
��

��
���

��
��
��

��
���
��
��
���
��
!��
��
�	
��
�
�
��
��
���

��
��
��
��
��

��
��

���
�
��
 �
��

��
�-
��
���

���
�%
��
��"
�/

�
��
�
��
��
��

��
��

�
��
��
!�
�-
��
��
���

��
���
��

��
!��

��
���
�
��
 �
��
��

!��
��
��

���
!��
�-
��
��
��
%�

���
��

��
���

��
��
���
	�
��

��
��
�%
��
��
�G
��

��
�	
��
���

�
�
��
��
��
��	

��
1�
��
��

%�
��


��
�
���
��
��H
��

��
�	
��
���

�/
�
��

%�
��



��

�
���
��
��
��

��
��
��
�
��

�	
��
���

�
�
��
��
��
��	

��
�
��
	
�

��

�
���
��
��

��
	�
�%
��
��
��
��

���
��
"��
)�
�

��
��
���

��
��
��
��
��
��

��
���
��
��
���
��
:�
��
�

/
��
��
��
<
��
��
�!
�/

�
��

��
�
��

���
�
��
��
��
��

� 1�
��
��

%�
���

��
��

>
�

#
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�	
��
��	

��
��
��
���
��
�
��

��
��
��	

��
��	

��
)�
��
��
��
��
��

���
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

���


��

�
���
��
���

�
��

��
��	

��
��
���

��
��
��
��

���
� 
��
��
��
��

��
���

!�
��
��
��!

��
���

�
��
��
�"
�#

��
�
��

��
��
���

���
��
��
���
	�
���
���
�
��
��
���

�!
��
��
�
���

��	
��

��
��
��
��
���

��
�
��
�7%

��
-�

��
��
�8
�!�

���
��
 �
��
�%
��
�
�
��
��
��
"��

�
��
��
�
��

�	
��
�
��

���
��
��
���
��
��
���

��
�	
��
�%
��
��
��
��

��
�
��
���

��
��
��	

���
��
��
��

��
��
��
���

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
���
�� 

��
���

���
���

���
��
��
�
��
���

	�
	
�
��

���
��
��

��
��
��

��
�!
�!�

�
��
���
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
���

��
��
��
��

��
��
���
�"
��
	�
���

�� 
��
���

���
���

���
��
���
�
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��	

��
���

	�
	
���
��
��
���
%�
��
!�
��

�
���

��
��
��
��
��
�
"�

Page 196



� 

�
�
�

�
�
0



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�%

$
�
�
�
 
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�#

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
#
�
�
�
#
�"
��
��
%

��
��
��

��!
���

-�
���

�"
���

	�
��
��

��
�
	�
��
��

��
��
���

��
���
��
��
��
��	

��
��
��

��
��
	�
	
��
��
���
��
�
��

���


��

�
���
��
��
	�
��
�	
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
"��

��
��
��

�!
��
��

���
���
���

%�
�-
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��	

��
��
��
��
�"�

E
�

�	
��


��

�
���
�	
��

��
���

��
��

��	
��
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
�
�!�

���
	�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��

��
�	
��
���

���
��
�!
�6�

��
��
���
%�
���

��
��
��

��
�"�

<
��
	"
��

�
��
��
��

��
���

���
�
��

���
��
���

���
��
��

��	
���
��
��

�
	�
��
��
��
��%

��
���

��
��

��
�	
��
��
�
��
��
�"�
�

�
�4
��

��
��
�

� � � �

Page 197



� � �

Page 198



� � P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l  

A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 2

01
1/

12
 –

 P
ro

g
re

ss
 R

ep
o

rt
 

A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 

Ju
n

e 
21

 2
01

2 
 

�
�

Agenda Item 14Page 199



2

� �
�

20
11

/1
2 

A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 U

p
d

at
e 

– 
Ju

n
e 

20
12

. 

W
o

rk
 a

re
a 

R
ea

so
n

 
p

er
fo

rm
ed

 
W

o
rk

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e 

D
ra

ft
 t

o
 le

ad
 

o
ff

ic
er

 
P

ly
m

o
u

th
 C

C
 

le
ad

 o
ff

ic
er

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 t
o

 d
at

e 

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

A
ud

it 
P

la
n 

20
11

/1
2 

C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

 
 T

o 
de

si
gn

 a
n 

au
di

t p
la

n 
th

at
 m

ee
ts

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
an

d 
re

le
va

nt
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
f A

ud
iti

ng
. 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

D
av

id
 N

or
th

ey
  

P
la

n 
ag

re
ed

 a
nd

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 a

t t
he

 la
st

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 m
ee

tin
g 

in
 M

ar
ch

.  
 

In
te

rim
 R

ep
or

t &
 U

pd
at

e 
to

 
F

in
an

ci
al

 A
ud

it 
P

la
n 

C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

T
o 

ga
in

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 fr

om
 s

ys
te

m
s 

of
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

co
nt

ro
l f

or
 o

pi
ni

on
. 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 
D

av
id

 N
or

th
ey

 
W

or
k 

is
 n

ow
 c

om
pl

et
e 

an
d 

a 
su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 o

ur
 w

or
k 

an
d 

fin
di

ng
s 

is
 a

tta
ch

ed
 a

s 
a 

se
pa

ra
te

 it
em

 to
 th

e 
ag

en
da

 
fo

r 
th

is
 m

ee
tin

g.
 

A
cc

ou
nt

s 
op

in
io

n 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
T

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

 o
pi

ni
on

 o
n 

th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

. 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

12
  

A
da

m
 B

ro
om

e 
A

ud
it 

of
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 d

ue
 to

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 J

ul
y 

– 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

12
. O

pi
ni

on
 d

ea
dl

in
e,

 3
0 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

. 

IS
A

26
0 

re
po

rt
 

C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

T
o 

su
m

m
ar

is
e 

th
e 

fin
di

ng
s 

fr
om

 o
ur

 fi
na

l 
ac

co
un

ts
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 C
od

e 
w

or
k 

th
at

 im
pa

ct
s 

on
 

ou
r 

op
in

io
n 

an
d 

di
sc

us
s 

w
ith

 th
os

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
. 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

 
A

da
m

 B
ro

om
e 

T
o 

be
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 in

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

. 

W
ho

le
 o

f G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

A
cc

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
C

on
so

lid
at

io
n 

ex
er

ci
se

 

IS
A

60
0 

– 
S

pe
ci

al
 

C
on

si
de

ra
tio

ns
, 

A
ud

its
 o

f G
ro

up
 

F
in

an
ci

al
 

S
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 

T
o 

pe
rf

or
m

 s
pe

ci
fic

 te
st

s 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 
W

G
A

 N
A

O
 g

ro
up

 in
st

ru
ct

io
ns

. 
N

/A
 

A
da

m
 B

ro
om

e 
W

or
k 

to
 c

om
m

en
ce

 in
 A

ug
us

t 2
01

2 
an

d 
to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 fo

r 
th

e 
op

in
io

n 
de

ad
lin

e 
of

 3
0 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

. 

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

M
o

n
ey

 (
V

fM
) 

co
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 

V
fM

 r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
T

o 
id

en
tif

y 
ar

ea
s 

of
 r

is
k 

to
 th

e 
V

fM
 c

on
cl

us
io

n 
an

d 
w

he
re

 m
or

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
w

or
k 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d.

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

12
 

A
da

m
 B

ro
om

e 
 

R
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t c
om

pl
et

e.
 A

re
as

 o
f w

or
k 

ar
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 
in

 th
e 

pl
an

 fo
r 

20
11

/1
2.

  

F
in

an
ci

al
 R

es
ili

en
ce

 -
  

C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

T
ai

lo
re

d 
to

 lo
ca

l r
is

ks
. 

M
ay

 –
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

 

D
av

id
 N

or
th

ey
 

W
or

k 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 o

n-
go

in
g.

  

F
ol

lo
w

 u
p 

of
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

ye
ar

s'
 w

or
k 

an
d 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

T
o 

re
vi

ew
 th

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 a

ga
in

st
 a

gr
ee

d 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

s.
 

Ju
ly

  -
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

 

A
da

m
 B

ro
om

e/
 

M
al

co
lm

 C
oe

 
P

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r 

th
is

 w
or

k 
is

 in
 p

ro
gr

es
s.

 

R
e-

 e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

de
liv

er
y 

C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

T
o 

ex
am

in
e 

th
e 

vf
m

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
re

de
si

gn
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y 
in

 2
01

1/
12

 
Ju

ly
 –

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

12
 

M
al

co
lm

 C
oe

 
P

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r 

th
is

 w
or

k 
is

 in
 p

ro
gr

es
s.

 

Page 200



3

IC
T

 s
ha

re
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
T

o 
re

vi
ew

 th
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 a

gr
ee

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 a

 s
ha

re
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r 
IC

T
 a

t t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

Ju
ly

 –
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

 

M
al

co
lm

 C
oe

 
T

o 
co

m
m

en
ce

 in
 J

ul
y 

20
12

. 

O
ve

ra
ll 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 in

 p
la

ce
 fo

r 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

, r
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 

C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e.

 
T

o 
ex

am
in

e 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 in

 p
la

ce
 a

t 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
or

 th
es

e 
ar

ea
s 

an
d 

us
e 

th
is

 w
or

k 
to

 
in

fo
rm

 th
e 

V
F

M
 c

on
cl

us
io

n.
 

Ju
ne

  -
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

 

A
da

m
 B

ro
om

e 
W

or
k 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 o
n-

go
in

g.
   

V
fM

 c
on

cl
us

io
n 

C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

T
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 o

n 
th

e 
P

C
T

's
  

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
V

fM
. 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 
A

da
m

 B
ro

om
e 

 
V

F
M

 c
on

cl
us

io
n 

to
 b

e 
is

su
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

au
di

t o
pi

ni
on

 in
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

. 

O
th

er
 r

ep
o

rt
s 

A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
T

o 
su

m
m

ar
is

e 
ke

y 
fin

di
ng

s 
an

d 
co

nc
lu

si
on

s 
fr

om
 th

e 
w

or
k 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 u

nd
er

 o
ur

 a
ud

it 
pl

an
. 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

 
A

da
m

 B
ro

om
e/

 
D

av
id

 N
or

th
ey

 
T

o 
be

 d
ra

fte
d 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
is

su
e 

of
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

op
in

io
n 

an
d 

V
fM

 c
on

cl
us

io
n 

G
ra

n
t 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d

 C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

s 

B
en

 O
1 

G
ra

nt
 c

la
im

 
w

or
k 

T
o 

au
di

t t
he

 C
ou

nc
il'

s 
gr

an
t c

la
im

 fo
r 

B
E

N
01

 in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 g

ra
nt

 c
la

im
 in

st
ru

ct
io

ns
 a

s 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. 

Ju
ne

 –
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

 

D
eb

bi
e 

P
er

ry
 

W
or

k 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 o

n-
go

in
g 

�

Page 201



Page 202

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Audit Committee Work Plan 2012/13 

 
 

  2012 2013 

Item Cabinet Member / 
Lead Officer J J A S O N D J F M 

 
Internal Audit Annual Report 
 

Cllrs Lowry and Peter 
Smith / DfCS 
 

 
  

 
  

 
  

 

            
 
Statement of Accounts 2010/11 
 

Cllrs Lowry and Peter 
Smith / DfCS 
 

 
  

 
  

 
  

 

            
 
Operational Risk Management  - 
Update Report 
 

Cllrs Lowry and Peter 
Smith / DfCS 
(Mike Hocking) 

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

            

Risk Management Annual Report 
Cllrs Lowry and Peter 
Smith / DfCS 
(Mike Hocking) 

 
  

 
  

 
  

 

            

Annual Governance Statement 
Cllrs Lowry and Peter 
Smith / DfCS 
(Mike Hocking) 

 
  

 
  

 
  

 

            
 
Strategic Risk Register Monitoring 
Report 
 

Cllrs Lowry and Peter 
Smith / DfCS 
(Mike Hocking) 

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

            

A
genda Item

 17
P

age 203



 
Audit Committee Work Plan 2012/13 

 
 

  2012 2013 

Item Cabinet Member / 
Lead Officer J J A S O N D J F M 

 
Six Month Internal Audit Progress 
Report 
 

Cllrs Lowry and Peter 
Smith  / DfCS 
(Sue Watts) 

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

            

Internal Audit Annual Plan 
Cllrs Lowry and Peter 
Smith / DfCS 
(Sue Watts) 

 
  

 
  

 
  

 

            

Interim Report and Update to 
Financial Audit Plan 2010/2011 

External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
 

  
 

            

Review of Procure to Pay Project External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
 

  
 

            
Annual Report to Those Charged 
with Governance (ISA260 Report) 
2010/2011 

External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
 

  
 

            

Financial Resilience Review External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
 

  
 

            

P
age 204



 
Audit Committee Work Plan 2012/13 

 
 

  2012 2013 

Item Cabinet Member / 
Lead Officer J J A S O N D J F M 

Project Management Review External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
 

  
 

            

Annual Audit Letter 2010/2011 External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
 

  
 

            

Certification Work Report 
2010/2011 

External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
 

  
 

            

Audit Plan 2011/2012 External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
 

  
 

            

Audit Fee Letter 2012/2013 External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
 

  
 

            
 

P
age 205



P
age 206

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	7 INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12
	8 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2011/12
	8a - AGS_2011-12_FINAL_VERSION_V2_

	9 OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT - UPDATE REPORT
	10 RISK MANAGEMENT - ANNUAL REPORT
	11a ANNUAL REPORT ON TREASURY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES FOR 2011/12
	11a1 - Appendix 1 Prudential Indicator Compliance Final
	11a2 - Appendix 2 Final
	11a3 - TM Practices update 12-13 at 01-04-12 Appendix 3 Final 12 06 12

	13 INTERIM REPORT AND UPDATE TO FINANCIAL AUDIT PLAN 2011/12
	14 EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN PROGRESS REPORT
	17 AUDIT COMMITTEE FORWARD WORKPLAN 2012/13

